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Strategic Report P Overview

We are an integrated producer broadcaster,
creating, owning and distributing high-quality
content on multiple platforms.
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maximising

We invest over £1 biltion annually in our programming,
significantly more than our commercial competitors,
and have an unrivatled ability to deliver mass audiences
across all demographics for our advertisers.

@ See page 20 for more

growing

As an integrated producer broadcaster we create
value from world-class content that we develop,
own and distribute around the world.

@ See page 24 for more

i ld i
As we grow our investment in content, we are
creating more windows to extend the reach of that

content and monetise it across more markets and
platforms, both free and pay.

® See page 28 for more

Strategic Report

Series 16 of I'm a Celebrity.. Get Me Out of Here!
Launched in the UK with 12,7 million viewers
making It ITV’s most watched entertainment
programme in 2016. The series averaged 10.4
million viewers and had a 50% share for the
16-34s demographic.

Poldark is produced

by Mammaoth Screen
(part of ITV Studios UK)
for the BBC and has
been recommissioned
for a third series to be
detivered in 2017,

Vera is a British based detective drama.
The sixth series was broadcast on [TV
In 2016 and was the most watched to
date, averaging 7.2 million across the
series. It has had huge international
success, selling to over 150 countries.

The Strategic Report explans in detai how we have performed this year and sets out a fair review of the business, a balanced and comprehensive analysis of our performance, the use of key
performance indicators ta explain the progress we have made, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company, and an indication of potentiat future developments
The Strateqic Reportis prepared in line with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the Company has had regard to the gquidance issued by the Financial Reporting Council
It is intended to provide shareholders with a better understanding of the Company, of 113 position in the markets within whichit operates, and of its prospects n setting out the Company's
main nsks and uncertainties, an indication of potential future developments, andin other content, this report and acCounts Contains statements that are based on knowledge and
information avattable at the date of preparation of the Strateqic Report, and what are believed 1o be reasonable judgements, and therefore cannot be considered as indications of bkelihood
or certanty. A wide range of factors may cause the actual outcomnes and results to differ matenally from those contained within, or implied by, these vanious forward-locking statements

Nane of these statements should be construed as a profit forecast

{ Front Cover
{ Victoria, produced by ITV Studios UK

odey nb6eens
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2016 Highlights

ITV delivered another strong performance in 2016 as we continued to

strengthen, rebalance and grow the business.

Group external revenue’ £m Non-NAR revenue?£m Adjusted EBITA® £m
£3,064m £1,855m £885m
AdjustedEPSp  StatutoryEPS'p T Dividend per share p jordinary)
17.0p M.2p 7.2p
Adjusted EBITA growth of Proposed an increase of

338% 20%in the

since 2009 ordina ry
dividend

Online, Pay
& Interactive
revenue up

23%

Alternative Parformance Measures
We use both statutory and adjusted measuresin our
Strategic Report, the latter of which, In management's view
reflects the undertying performance of the business and
provdes a mare meaningful companson af how the business
1s managed andmeasured day-to-day A full reconaliation
between our reported and adjusted results is provided in our
Alternative Performance Meaasures definitions on page 34
Our KPIs are set out on pages 36 to 39,
1 TheStrategic Report aiso refers to total revenue which
includes all ITV revenye, both Internat and external
2 Non-Net Advertising Revenue (Non-NAR} includes all
ITV revenue, hoth internal and external, except Net

Advertising Revenue (NAR) Unforgotten is a detective drama produced by
3 EBITA before exceptional items has been adjusted Manstreet Pictures (part of ITV Studios UK) and

ta refiect the inclusion of production tax credits ..

(adjusted EBITA) has baen recommissioned for a second series
4 Statutory profit before tax is £553 millign to bebroadcast onITV IN 2017,

(2015 g641million)

Good Morning Britain s broadcast on ITV five
rmornings a week and reaches § millien viewers
across this pericd Its biggest audience was 1.2
million following the EU referendum result.
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In 2016 we grew our share of
the UK television ad market to

47.4%

21.4%

share of viewing

for ITV Family,
up 1% since 2015

24%

increase in long-form video
requests in 2016 to

over 1bn

Britaln’s Got Talent averaged 9.9 million
viewers across the series with two episodes
achieving ovar 12 miltion viewers. 50% of

the audience was the 16-34s demographic.

Marcella was one of the top ten new dramas
N 2016, launching with 8.0 million viewers.
It averaged 6.8 million viewers across the
series and has been recommussioned

Cotonation Street was the most watched soap
in 2016 averaging 7.6 million viewers across the

year it reached over 60% of the viewing
population which 1s around 36 million

90%

increase

in total ITV Studios hours
produced since 2010

80 mv

formats sold
in 2016

The England vs Iceland Euros football match
In June 2016 was watched by 15.2 million
viewers and was the most watched sporting
event of 2016.

yiodey sjbezeays
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Investor Proposition

ITV continues to make
significant progress in
growing and strengthening
the business creatively,
commercially and financiatlly.

A strong track record
for delivery

i Pictured top to bottom:

i ITV on-screen ident;

i Multiscreening of a football
i match broadcast onITV.

Since 2009 we have grown adjusted earnings per
share by 844%. Even in 2016 when NAR declined
by 3% we delivered revenue and adjusted EBITA
growth as a result of the significant progress we
have made in rebalancing the business. We are
reducing our dependence on UK advertising and
driving new revenue streams to build a more
gtobal and diversified organisation

i Pictured left toright- Joanna Lumley presented a three-part documentary

an Japan for [TV, ITV hosted the Six Nations Rugby Championships for the first
i timein2016.England vs Ireland was the most watched match onITV with an

i average of 6.6 mitlion viewers

844,

increase in adjusted
EPS since 2009

53%

of total revenue is from
sources other than spot
advertising
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Strong market position

The Broadcast business remains robust. Our on-screen
and online viewing performance is strong and we
continue to deliver unrivalled audience scale and reach
for advertisers as well as more targeted demographics
on our digital channels and on the ITV Hub.

Online, Pay & Interactive is a material, fast-growing and
profitable part of the business and we are continuing to
build our digital business with the announced launch of our
Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD) service BritBox US

Our international content business is now a global player
of scale, creating, owning and managing rights and we
will continue to grow both organically and through
acquisitions in key creative markets

99,

of all commercial
audiences over 5 million
areonliTV

50%

of total Studios revenue
is from outside the UK

syodey 3ibejens

i Pictured: The Tour de France has
i beenbroadcastonITVandITv4
i for nine years.

Highly cash generative

We are a highly cash generative business and

our disciplined approach to cash, costs and capital
has strengthened our balance sheet and allowed
us to continue to invest across the business

Investment opportunities

4 2% As we continue to deliver our strategy we see

growth in online
viewing on the ITV Hub

good investment opportunities to grow the
business and enhance shareholder value whilst
maintaining capitat discipline

£1 .8bn Compelling shareholder returns

returned to shareholders =

since 201 when the dividend ~ The Board is committed to a long-term sustainable
wasrestored  dividend policy. Ordinary dividends will grow broadly

in line with earnings, targeting dividend cover of

around 2x adjusted eainings per share over the

medium-term
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ITV at a Glance

ITV, as an integrated producer broadcaster, creates, owns
and distributes high-quality content on multipte platforms.

ITV total revenue mc mtemet e
O Broadcast & Online £2,132m
O ITV Studios £1,395m

ITV adjusted EBITA
O Broadcast & Online EG&2m
Q ITV Studios £243m

Broadcast
& Online

We operate the targest commercial family of channels in the UK
and deliver our content through traditional television broadcasting
as well as on demand via the ITV Hub.

474,

largest
share

of the UK TV
advertising market

21.4%

share of
viewing
for the ITV Family
in 2016

17/m

reqgistered users

of the ITVHub

ITV broadcasts a wide variety of content on its family of free-to-air channels

QOur investment in programming is primarily funded by television advertising revenue.
ITV has the largest share of the UK television advertising market, and we estimate that
this share of broadcast (S0B) is 474% in 2016,

The family of channels attracted a total share of viewing (SOV) of 21.4% in 2016, the
largest audience of any UK commercial broadcaster.

Our main channel is the largest commercial channel in the UK, delivering 99% of
all commercial audiences over five million.

Our free-to-air digital channels provide more targeted demographics for advertisers
such as 16-34's, ABC1 Men and Housewives with Children, and consist of ITV2 and ITV3,
the two largest digital channels in the UK, and {TV4, CITV and ITVBe.

We also have high definition versions of our digital channels available on pay
platforms along with ITV Encore, our pay only channel available exclusively on Sky.

In addition to linear broadcast, ITV delivers its content across muittiple
platforms. This is either through our over-the-top (OTT) service the ITV
Hub, available on 27 platforms including ITV's website (itv.com), pay
providers such as Virgin and Sky, or through direct content

deals with services such as Amazon, Apple iTunes and Netflix.

We are partnering with the BBC to launch a new SV0OD service in the US
during 2017. The streaming service will allow subscribers to access the
best of British television.
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i Pictured left to right Emmerdale was
the second biggest soap in 2016 with an

i average SOV of 32%. It reached 60% of

{ the UK population, which 1s more than

i 35miltion viewers, Assautt course game

i show Ninja Warror UK produced by ITV

i Studios UK returned for a second seriesin
i 2016, with a third recommission for 2077,

ITV Studios

We have built significant scale in key creative markets around the
world, creating and producing programmes and formats that return

and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment.

/7,800

hours

of original content
produced and
delivered in 2016

60 labels

in 10 different
countries

supplying over
234 channels

80

formats sold
in 2016

ITV Studios creates and produces content in the UK and internationally, while our
distribution business, Global Entertainment, sells finished programmes and
formats worldwide.

ITV Studios UK

ITV Studios UK is the largest commercial produ  erin the UK. We produce
programming across a diverse range of genres such as drama, entertainment and
factual for ITV’s

own channels, as well as for other UK broadcasters such as the BBC, Channel 4,
Channel % and Sky.

ITV America

ITV Americais the largest unscripted independent producer of contentin the US.
We have acquired a number of unscripted and reality producers and have grown

our presence in scripted content, using our strong cash flows to produce high-profile
dramas with the potential to travel and build international appeal.

ITV Studios Rest of World

{TV Studios also operates in the Netherlands (through Talpa Media), Germany, France,
Australia and the Nordics. Talpa produces and distributes entertainment formats while
the ather bases produce content for local broadcasters in these regions. This content is
either created locally or are formats that have been created elsewhere by iTV, primarily
the UK and Talpa.

Global Entertainment

Global Entertainment, ITV's distribution business, owns the rights to ITV programmes
and formats and acquires third-party content and distributes this to other broadcasters
and platforms internationally. Within this business we also finance productions bothon
and of f-ITV to acquire global distribution rights,

yioday beaiens
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Market Review

The market environment in which we operate is dynamic and constantly
changing. Consolidation of media and telecoms companies and the increasing
influence of technology brings both challenges and opportunities.

Global Content

produced by ITV America for the Hallmark
channelinthe US and will go inta its third
i seasonin 2017

i Pictured: The Good Witchis a scripted format

Key market trends

Global demand for content continues to
grow, with more channels, more platforms
and new entrants increasing spend on
high-quality programming. We estimate
that the global content market is growing
at around 5% per annurn, with sorme gerres
such as drama growing faster than others.

This growth can be attributed to a number
of factors, including: a larger internaticnal
pay television market; the consolidation of
pay providers with content companies and
distributors coupled with the convergence
in the television market, where telecom and
new media companies are competing with
traditionat media companies for content and
viewers; online players such as Netflix and
Amazen investing heavily in new original
content and archive; and online advertising
driven platforms like YouTube and Facebook
creating a new market for short form and
digital content.

The US is by far the largest content market in
the world, dominating the global production
sector, with the UK the second largest
market. This represents a significant
opportunity for [TV Studios, which has

a strong presence in both regions.

Dernand for drama, particularly US drama,
has increased significantly in the last few
years. Original scripted content becomes
brand defining for broadcasters and OTT
players in an increasingly competitive gtobal
environment. US studios continue to
dominate the market for dramain the US and
internationally. However, the rise of Netflix
and Amazon, who are investing heavily in
creating high-quality original scripted
content, has significantly increased
competition in the market.

This increased competition for high-quatity
content has driven up the cost of production
Deficit financing has therefore become
increasingly important in financing
productions, where distributors are often
funding the difference between what the
content buyer is paying for the original
broadcast and the cost of production, which
is then covered by global sales, second-run
windows and sales to QTT providers. [TV asa
distributor as well as a producer is in a strong
pasition to deficit finance its own productions
and therefore produce high-quality content
andretain the rights to it

Leveraging our network relationships and
international distribution network, we are
looking to expand our global scripted
business and develep a strong portfolio
of international and returning drama.

ITV America has developed several scripted
prograrmmes over the last few years and
has a healthy pipeline of content in
development. Our 2016 scripted deliveries
included The Good Witch and Aquarius and
scripted deliveries for 2017 are expected to
include Sun Records, Somewhere Between,
a pilot of Snowpiercer and the third series
of The Good Witch.
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i Pictured: Come Dine With Me continues
i tosellwellinternationally with 13

: format sates in 2016, four of which

i were produced by ITV Studios.

Hell's Kitchen

Hell's Kitchen has been a huge international
success with 34 format sales worldwide over
thelast tenyears.

in the UK, there is stronger demand and
higher viewing figures for UK content over
imported series. We are a major producer of
scripted content and have further reinforced
this position through our acquisitions of
Mammoth Screen and Twofour Group in
2015. Our 2016 scripted deliveries in the

UK included Victoria, Cold Feet, Poldark

and Witness for the Prosecution. Scripted
deliveries expected in 2017 include Prirne
Suspect 1973, Fearless, the second series of
Victoria and the second series of Cold Feet,
all of which have international appeal.

While not growing as quickly as scripted
content, demand for non-scripted content
remains strong as networks continue to
require lower cost, high volume popular
series, The UK remains the dominant
producer of unique non-scripted formats.,

ITV significantly strengthened its capability
in this area with the acquisition of Talpa
Media in 2015. Along with the established
entertainment and factual entertainment
genres, scripted reality programming, where
we have focused our US acquisitions, has
grown quickly with formats such as Pawn
Stars, Real Housewives and Fixer Upper.

ITVis now a genuine global player in
non-scripted content, being a leading
unscripted independent producer in the US
and Europe as well as the largest commercial
production company in the UK. The large
independent production companies, such as
Endemol Shine Group and Fremantle Media,
continue to be ITV Studios’ main competitors
in non-scripted content.

66

The US is by far the largest content
market in the world, dominating
the global production sector, with
the UK the second largest market.
This represents a significant
opportunity for ITV Studios,

which has a strong presence

in both regions

i Pictured: Behind-the-scenes on Victoria
i The eight-part senes has been a huge
success for ITV Studios UK, selling

i toaround 180 countries [t has been

} recommissioned for a second series,

yodey 3baens



Strategic Report P Overview

Market review continued

Broadcast & Online

i Pictured top to bottom: Family watching vOD
i via their television set; The ITV Hub logo

Over recent years the number of ways to
watch TV has greatly increased with viewers
able to choose a variety of platforms, both
free and pay. Traditional linear television
viewing remains resilient despite significant
changes in the market and in the availability
and delivery of content. Viewing habits also
vary by demographic with younger viewers
watching more non-linear content than
older demographics.

Inthe UK linear television viewing remains the
most popular form of media entertainment
despite year-on-year fluctuations. UK average
television viewing in 2016 was 212 minutes per
day which is similar to 2015 (216 minutesjand
asimilar level to ten years ago (Source: BARB),

Television viewing

SOV by broadcaster

Qv Famity Nk
O 8BC Family 9%
O Channet 4 Farmuly 10.5%
O Five Farmily 6%
O Sky Famity 3.3%
O other nre

Source BARE® .

Non-linear viewing, while currently only a
small propartion of total viewing, is growing
fast, particularly via SVOD services such as
Netflix and Amazon, which have seen
exponential growth over the last few years.
We continue to invest inITV's online offering,
the ITV Hub, along with rolling out our SVOD
service, BritBoxin the US to enable us to
compete in this market.

ITV competes for viewers with the BBC

and commercial broadcasters including
Channel 4, Sky and Channel 5. Over the last
few years, the number of avaitable channels
has grown which has impacted the SOV of the
traditional broadcasters. SOV for the other
channelsincreased to 21.7% in 2016 from
211% in 2015. Despite anincrease in the
number of channels, ITV and BBC1 continue
ta be the only channels consistently able to
deliver mass audiences as well as targeted
demographics, and in 2016 ITV delivered 99%
of all commerdial audiences over five million
viewers and 95% over three million. In 2016
the ITV family of channels increased their SOV
to 21.4% (2015; 21.2%), second only to the
BBC's family of channels at 31.9% which lost
share during the year (2015. 32.7%) as a result
of BBC3 moving online.

¢ Viewing data is based on Weeks 1-52 for 2016 compared
to Weeks 2-53for 2015

10
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£ Pictured: This Morning continues
i asone of the longest running

i daytime programmesinthe UK.
i Its audience grew by 2% n 2016

i reachings 2 million viewers

i aweek,

Pay television

The pltatform
mix in the UK
is roughly 50%
free-to-air

and 50% linear

Free-to-air television in the UK is delivered
through services including Freeview, YouView
and Freesat, while linear pay televisionis
delivered through operators such as Sky,

BT, Virgin and Talk Talk. The platform mix
between free-to-air and traditional linear
pay television has remained constant for a
number of years at around 50:50. Linear pay
television revenues continue to grow but the
market dynamics are changing rapidly as
established pay television providers such as
Sky and Virgin face increasing competition
from relatively new entrants to the market
such as BT, Netflix and Amazon.

Increasingly homes are supplementing their
free television with other forms of paid
content including SVOD services such as
Netflix, or by purchasing additional channels
through ‘no-contract’ praviders such as Now
TV or Talk Talk TV Store. Around 30% of homes
in the UK have an SVOD service and this is
weighted towards those homes that have
linear pay TV (Source: BARBY). Including SVOD
pay services, the platformmix inthe UK 15
roughly 40% free-to-air and 60% paid viewing.

ITV participates in the pay television market,
earning revenue from various third parties,
including Sky and Virgin, through the licensing
of channels and content. ITV also has its pay
only television channel, ITV Encore, on the Sky
platform atong with our other pay channels,
ITV2HD, ITV3HD and (TV4 HD.

ITV also recently announced the creaticn of a
joint venture with the BBC to launch BritBox,
anew SVOD service in the US. The service
offers a significant amount of content from
both broadcasters and gives ITV access to
the fast growing SVOD market in the US.

Non-linear viévt;i;'lg )
Long-form content viewing

O Live (including simulcast) 81%
O Timeshifted (PVR)

up to 28 days 12%
O voD Broadcaster

catch-up 3%
O VoD Other &%

Source 2015 Internal estimates

Non-linear viewing of long-form content
includes recorded, or timeshifted viewing

{up to 28 days}and catch-up of live television
{inear television - up to 7 days), and also
encompasses Video on Dernand (VOD) and
OTT delivery of other long-form content such
as box sets and movies.

While non-linear viewing has grown fast it
stillaccounts for a small proportion of total
viewing time. In the UK we estimate 81% of
all viewing of legal tong-form content is live
{(including simulcast), with a further 12%
timeshifted via a Personal Video Recorder
{PVR) and watched within 28 days of the
original broadcast date. Of the estimated
7% of content viewed on demand, 3% is
catch-up viewing of broadcaster content via
the television set or to other devices such as
tablets and mobiles. The remaining 4% of
content is other VOD viewing, where viewing
of box sets via services such as Netflixis
replacing viewing of DVDs. This is growing
quickly driven by increased availability of
devices such as smartphones, tablets and
connected televisions.

Thereis currently no industry measure for
online viewing. BARB are in the process of
developing a joint-industry, audited measure
of viewing online television.
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Advert_i.;ing revenue

Television's share of the
advertising market

O Television 27.5%
O Press 15.6%
ORadio 3.3%
O CGinema 1.3%
O Outdoor 5.7%
O Internet £6.6%

Source Advertisng Association January 2017

ITV generates revenues from advertising
through traditional broadcast, sponsorship
and online, and competes with commerciat
broadcasters and other advertising media,
for its advertising revenues. In the UK,
television advertising {including VOD,
sponsorship and other television revenues)
continues to hold a significant share of the
overall advertising market with a share of
275% in 2016, (2015: 28.7%). Internet
advertising (search, classified and display)
has grown its share to 46.6% in 2016 (2015
42 7%), making the UK one of the most
developed markets for online advertising.
This growthiis at the expense of print
advertising, which declined to 15.6%in
2016 (2015:18.2%,).

The UK television advertising market

is extremely difficult to measure as all
broadcasters have different definitions.
We estimate ITV's SOB {which is based on
pure linear television advertising excluding
VOD, sponsorship and self promotion) to be
47.4% in 2016 {including UTV), up from
44.7% in2009. Thisincrease is because

of ITV's unique ability te deliver mass
audiences across multiple regions and

in key demographics.

Non-linear viewing, while currently
only a small proportion of total
viewing, is growing fast and we
continue to invest inITV’s VOD
and SVOD services

n

todey 2i6e3ens
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Our Strategy and Business Model

We remain focused on our original vision for ITV as an owner, producer and
broadcaster of content. We are confident that our strategy to maximise our
value as an integrated producer broadcaster, creating, owning and distributing
cantent around the warld, is the right long-term path for [TV.

L 'R
Our strategy Our sources of competitive advantage

Our strategy is focused The UK's biggest marketing platform delivering unrivalled
on three key priorities: commercial audiences

The scale of our channels and the significant investment we make in quality content

gives ITV unique scale and reach on our main channel and more targeted audiences

on our farnily of channels and the ITV Hub.
maximising
maximise audience %

and revenue share from
free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

(W) seepage20formare

growing
grow an international
content business

© See page 24 for more

building
build a global pay and
distribution business

@ See page 28 for more

Our channels reach around 80% of the television owning
population each week

World-class content

At the core of ITV is our focus on creativity and content, whether selling unique
content around the world or investing in third-party content to broadcast across
multiple platforms, Internationalty we have built production and distribution scale
in key global creative markets through organic growth and selective acquisitions.

>> £1 bn

We invest over £1bn annually in content for ocur family of channels

Global distribution

ITV has built relationships globally, with major networks, platform owners and local
broadcasters, and owns the rights to a diverse portfolio of shows, particularly drama
and entertainment, for international distribution.

40,000-

Hours of television and film content

N
2N

Our strategic assets

Creating and Our strong brand Our talented,
owning the rights creative people
to quality content

2



TV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

i Pictured left to right: This Time Next Year 1s a

¢ reality programme presented by Davina McCall
i inthe UK and produced by Twofour Group, part
i of IV Studios UK. The format has been sold to

i sixcountries in 2016; Family Guy launched an

{ ITV2in 2076 The SethMcFartane collection

¢ reached 25 million viewers on ITV2 during

i 2016,59% of which were 16-34s,

Our diversified revenue streams Creating value

By developing and managing the rights to content, ITV
is able to maximise the value of its programme brands
across a range of revenue streams, making ITV a more
balanced business and enabling it to drive value from
different revenue models.

Advertising

Our family of channels and the ITV Hub drive
significant advertising revenues from the mass
audiences and more targeted demographics it
detivers, which funds our investment in the
programme budget.

Commercial We work with advertisers and advertising agencies

partnerships to provide unique commercial partnerships and
sponsarship opportunities that extend beyond
pure spot advertising.

Pay & We earn pay revenues primarily from licensing our

interactive HD channels, our pay channel ITV Encore and our

yd

online VOD services. In the first half of 2017 we >
are launching a joint venture (JV} with the BBC,
BritBox US, a SVOD service offering the best of
British television.

AN

We also monetise our consurmer interaction with our
biggest shows through competitions and voting.

Original We produce original content commissions for
production broadcasters and platform owners internationally
from our production bases in the UK, the US, the
Netherlands, Germany, France, Austratia and
the Nordics.
Distribution We own the rights to a significant catalogue of
revenues programmes and formats that we sell and license to

broadcasters and platform owners internationally,
The strong global demand for content provides a
significant opportunity for us

M

growth in total revenue derived from sources
other than traditional spot television advertising

For advertisers

Through delivering unique
scale and breadth of
demographics and new
innovative ways of engaging
with consumers around
quality programme brands

For audiences
Through a varied, high-quality
programming schedule

For broadcasters and
platform owners

Through delivering quality
programming that they can
then monetise through their
own business models

For shareholdars
Through a track record of
creating shareholder value
and delivering significant
shareholder returns

For our peaple

Investing in and developing our
Creative, on-screen, commerdcial
and operational talent

13
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Chairman's Statement

To be able to announce record results, even after a year in which television
advertising saw a small decline, is eloquent testimony to the health of

ITV's business.

66

We have a clear
strategy in place
which the
management team
remains very
focused on
delivering

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

14

Thisis my first annual report as Chair, and

it's a pleasure to observe how different ITV is
compared to seven years ago or indeed since
Ifirst joined the Board in 2013. To be able to
anngunce record results, even after a year in
which television advertising saw a small
decline, is eloquent testimony to the health
of ITV's business. It reflects the fruits of the
continued rebalancing of the Cornpany,

with revenues other than spot advertising
representing more than half of the total.

In the business of television, it of course all
starts with superb programmes and they
are made by aplethora of great talent:
performers, writers, directors, producers and
journalists. Both ITV's main channel and our
family of channels improved their SQVin
2016, ahuge achievernent in a multi-channel,
multi-platform era. This underlines the value
of one of our greatest assets: the ability to
deliver the onty commercial, genuinety mass
audience in the UK and one which also offers
the key demoegraphics to advertisers,

Pivatal to our success is offering choice and
flexibility to our viewers, and within that the
ITV Hub which we launched just over a year
ago continues to be highly demanded as we
further develop and enhance its service.
Significantly we have recently announced the
beginning of our SVOD service, BritBox, jointly
with the BBC. BritBox will offer the best of
British content in the US and it is our intention
to roll cut our SVOD services further into
other international markets under the
BritBoxumbrelia.

Key to rebalancing ITV has been the
significant growth of ITV Studios in the UK
and internationatly, Worldwide dermand for
quality content continues to grow ~ from
broadcasters, from traditional platforms
and from the new VOD services.ITV, as an
increasingly scaled international producer
and distributor of high-guality content, is
well placed to take advantage of that. we'll
continue to seek opportunities to add scale
and value in the future, both organically and
through acquisitions, as we grow our globat
content business and further diversify our
revenues away from our reliance on the UK
television advertising market.

Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths lead a strong
managernent tearn, wha took swift action
after last June's referendum to deliver
additional cost savings to ensure ITV is

welt placed to face the opportunities and
challenges that lie ahead. We have a clear
strategy which the team remains very
focused on delivering.

Our strong balance sheet and significant
cash flows will support this and enable
us to continue to invest in the business
as well as deliver sustainable returns

to our sharehoiders.

In 2014, the Board made a commitment to
grow the full year ordinary dividend by at
least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a
more normal dividend cover of between 2.0
and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share. In line
with this policy, and reflecting ITV’s good
perfarmance in 2016, the Board is proposing
afinal dividend of 4.8p which equates to a
full year dividend of 7Z2p.
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Reflecting ITV’s strong cash generation and
the Board's confidence in the business, the

Board is also proposing a special dividend of
5.0p per share, worth just over £200 mitlion,

I am proud to be leading a focused Board
of non-executives to which| am pteased to
welcome a new member, Salman Amin, the
Chief Operating Officer of SC Johnson, who
brings extensive experience of advertising
and marketing and who works in one of our
key territories, the US,

0On behalf of the Board, I'd like to take this
opportunity to thank all colleagues for the
creative and commercial achievements

of 2016 as we look forward to 2017

with enthusiasm.

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

Dividend

7.2p

i Pictured. Loose Women has been

i broadcastaspart of the ITV daytime

i schedule for 17 years It grew its audience
i by 8% n 2016 and reached 3.9 million

i viewers aweek.

5p Special dividend, worth justnﬁvei'—

£200m

{ Prctured left tanight: Fixer Upper 1s produced by
i HighNoonin the US and was the highest rated
programme on the netwark HGTV in 2016; The
Durrells was commissioned for ITV and was the
i maost watched new drama launch of 2016.
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Chief Executive’s Review

In more uncertain markets, ITV has delivered a good performance
in 2016 as we continue to rebalance and strengthen the business
creatively, commercially and financially.

66

The continued

growth in revenue
and adjusted profit
despite a decline

in the advertising

market is clear

evidence that our
strategy is working

Adam Crozier
Chief Executive
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ITV detivered a good performance in

: 2076 as we continue to rebalance and
: strengthen the business creatively,

£
|
i
!
i
1

i
!
|
|
|
|
|
i
z

commerciatly and financially. External
revenues grew 3% and adjusted earnings
per share (EPS) increased 3% despite a 3%

. decline in net advertising revenues (NAR),

which was clearly impacted by the wider
political and economic uncertainty.

We measure performance through a range
of metrics, most particularly through our
alternative performance measures and KPI’s,
as well as our statutory results, all of which
are set out in more detail later in the report.

Our good performancein 2016 is a result of
ITV continuing to deliver on our strategy to
diversify the business and grow new revenue
streams, thereby reducing our reliance on UK
spot advertising and making ITV a stronger
and more resilient business. Total revenues
from sources other than traditional spot
advertising (non-NAR} were up 11% in the year
and 53% of total revenues came from sources
other than traditional spot advertising.

Our global production business, TV

Studios, continues to grow in the UK and
internationally, delivering around 7800 hours
of content in 2016. ITV is now a globat player
of scale, with 50% of total reveniues coming
from outside the UK. We have a strong
creative pipeline and continue to perform
well across the key genres that return

and travel.

Our Broadcast & Online business is robust

We performed strongly on-screen with share
of viewing (SOV) up 3% on our main channel
and again delivered unrivalled audience reach
for advertisers. Online, Pay & Interactive
revenues grew significantly up 23% as we
continued to grow our audiences and
demand from advertisers online.

We remain committed to our original vision
of ITV as an owner and producer of world-
class content that travets. Qur strategy of
maximising our value as anintegrated
producer broadcaster, making cur content
famous on multipte platforms, both free and
pay and distributing it globally, is clearly the
right one for ITV,

As we continue to execute our strategy we
remain focused on delivering against our
three strategic prionities:

maximising

maximise audience and revenue
share from free-to-air
broadcast and YOD business

@ See page 20 for more

growing
grow an international
content business

@ See page 24 for more

building
builet a global pay and
distribution business

@ See page 28 for more

We will continue to strengthen the business
and grow new revenue streams both
organicalty and through acquisitions, and we
see further investment opportunities acrass
ITV. There will be an increasing emphasis on
building our digital assets throughout the
business as we seek opportunities to drive
further value from the content we own by
exploiting and managing it online.

Rebalanced ITV delivers continued
revenue and profit growth

In 2016 we grew external revenues by 3% to
£3,064 mittion (2015: £2,972 million) driven
by £197 millicn growth in non-NAR to £1,855
million (2015: £1,664 million) including the
benefit of acquisitions, while ITV Family NAR
was down 3%. With our continued focus on
cash and costs we delivered 2% growthin our
adjusted EBITA to £885 mitlion (2015: £865
million), which corresponded to a 29% margin,
in line with 2015, Adjusted EPS grew 3% to
17.0p (2015: 16.5p). Reported profit before tax
declined by 14% to £553 million (2015: £641
million) and reported EPS declined 10% to
1.2p (2015: 12.4p) primarily due to higher
operational exceptional items and
amortisation of acquired intangibles which

is explained in more detail in the Financial
and Performance Review.
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Group external revenue growth £m
£3,064m

AdjustedEPSp
17.0p

We have a strong balance sheet and

the business continues to be highly cash
generative. Profit to cash conversion (as
reconciled in the Finance and Performance
Review) was 97% and we ended the year with
net debt of £637 million after acquisitions

of £97 million, dividend payments of £663
million and pension deficit contributions of
£80 million.

In 2014, the Board made a commitment to
grow the full year ordinary dividend by at
least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a
rmore normal dividend cover of between 2.0
and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share. In line
with this policy and reftecting ITV's good
performance in 2016, the Board is proposing
afinal dividend of 4.8p which equates to a full
year dividend of 7.2p. This is a dividend cover
of 2.4x and delivers on the commitment the
Board made three years ago.

Reflecting ITV's strong cash generation and
the Board's confidence in the business, the
Board is proposing a special dividend of 5.0p
per share, worth just over £200 million,

¢t Pictured right. The 13th series of
Saturday Night Takeaway launched

¢ withits biggest audience in overa
decade. The series averaged 77 million
i wviewers, with a quarter of the audience

i being16-34s

Looking ahead, the Board is committed to
along term sustainable dividend policy. The
ordinary dividend will grow broadly in line
with earnings, targeting dividend cover of
around 2x adjusted earnings per share over
the medium-term.

Maximise audience and revenue share
from free-to-airbusiness

The media environment inwhich we operate
is constantly changing but our Broadcast &
Online business remains strong and is
evolving to take advantage of the significant
opportunities for growth.

While the current economic uncertainty is
impacting the demand for advertising, the
traditional broadcast market is robust with
overall commercial viewing up in the year and
with television advertising continuing to be in
high demand. ITV has maintained its strong
paosition within this market with its unique
reach and scale. ITV's SOV was up 3% on the
main channel, up 1% across the ITV family,
We delivered 99% of all audiences over five
rmillion, which enabled ITV to again grow its
share of broadcast (SOB) which s our share
of television advertising spend to 47.4%.

We are also performing strongty online
through the ITV Hub, the digital home for

all our channels and services, which helps ITV
reach younger audiences. Online consumption
{viewing), which measures how long viewers
are spending online, was up 42% and long-
form video requests were up 24% driving a
33% increase in online revenue. We also
delivered significant growthin our pay
revenues as we increase the reach of

our broadcast content digitally.

In 2016, Broadcast & Online revenues were
down 1% at £2,132 million (2015: £2146
million) with adjusted EBITA down 3% at £642
million (2015. £659 million) which reflects 3%
declinein highly geared NAR and 23% growth
in Online, Pay & Interactive.

Grow an International content business
Growing a scaled international content
business in the key genres that travel is central
to our strategy as an integrated producer
broadcaster. AsITV creates, owns and

siodey 6eeas

manages more content, our channels

and digital services provide a platform

to showcase our programmes before
distributing them across multiple platforms
in the UK and internationally.

Global dermand for high-quality content

from both broadcasters and platform owners
remains strong. Capitalising on this demand,
we continue to strengthen our position as the
UK's largest commercial production company;,
aswell as creating an increasingly
international business with production bases
in America, the Netherlands, France, Germany,
the Nordics and Australia. Half of our revenues
are generated outside the UK and we have
become a top independent producer in the
US and Europe.

Overall, TV Studios performed strongly,
although ITV America was impacted by the
phasing of deliveries. We continue to build

a large portfolio of successful series and
formats across the key genres that return
and travel internationally, namely drama,
entertainment and factual entertainment.
ITV delivered around 7,800 hours of content
in 2016 including many new and returning
scripted programmes, such as Victoria,
Poldark, Vera and The Good Witch selling to
over 100 countries. ITV also had 80 formats
sold internationally including The Voice, Hell's
Kitchen and The Chase. We are also making a
number of selective investments in digital
content creation as we look to develop our
expertise in ‘digital first’ content.

ITV Studios delivered 13% growthin total
revenues to £1,395 million (2015: £1,237
million} and 18% growth in adjusted EBITA

to £243 million (2015: £206 million) driven

by acquisitions. Organic revenues (excluding
prior year acquisitions and foreign exchange
movements) were down 7% driven
predominantly by ITV America which was
impacted by the lumpy nature of programme
deliveries, However, we have a strong creative
pipeline of new and returning programmes
with 228 new commissions and 188
recommissions, which wilt help drive a return
to good organic revenue growth in 2017,

7
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Chief Executive's Review continued

Building a global pay and

distribution business

As a creator, owner and distributor of
high-value sought after programmes, ITVis
well positioned to exploit the opportunities
that arise from the changes in digital media
and consumer behaviour. With over 40,000
hours of content, TV is continually exploring
and experimenting with new ways to
distribute our content to broadcasters and
platform owners, both free and pay, while
also seeking new opportunities to extend the
reach of our content directly to the consurner.

We have recently announced the creation of
a joint venture with the 8BC to create BritBox
US, an ad-free subscription service offering

the very best content from both broadcasters.

BritBox US will Launch in the first half of 2017
and will feature recent series and classics.
BritBox gives ITV access 1o the fast growing
Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD)
market in the US. In time we will look to
roilit out further internationally.

We are also increasingly distributing
near-to-broadcast or first broadcast rights
to over-the-top (OTT) platforms across
territories and currently have around 200
programrme supply agreements with Netflix,
Amazon and Hulu.

18

Global Entertainment, the distribution arm
of ITV Studios, delivered 14% revenue growth
to £179 million (2015: £157 million) as we
continue to drive value from the investment
we have madein creating and owning the
rights to quality content with international
appeal We are building a strong and balanced
portfolio of scripted and unscripted
programmes and formats in the key genres
that travel internationally and we are using
our strong cash flows not only to create and
fund new content but also to acquire
third-party rights.

Outlook for 2017 and beyond

While the economic outlook remains
uncertain, TV s now a much more balanced
and resilient business and we expect to see
good growth in non-NAR in 2017 with our
Online, Pay & Interactive and ITV Studios
businesses perforrming well. iTV Family NAR
is expected to be down 6% in the four months
to the end of April,impacted by the ongoing
economic uncertainty, however over the futl
year we expect to cutperform our estimate
of the television advertising market.

We continue our tight control on costs to
ensure we are operating as efficiently as
possible and maximising investment inour
high-quality programming. We are on track to
deliver £25 million of overhead cost savingsin
2017, and due to the absence of any major

5 Gold Rings is a new entertainment
pragramme produced by Talpa Media. The
farmat is selling well internationally and will
be broadcast onITVin 2017

sporting event, the network programme
budget (NPB) will be £25 million tower in 2017
whilst maintaining the strength and depth of
our schedule.

We remain committed to our strategy

of rebalancing and strengthening ITV and
building a global content business of scate
and we see clear opportunities to invest for
further growth across the business both
organically and through acquisitions. We will
continue to Invest behind our core Broadcast
& Online business, further developing the

ITV Hub, and the launch of Britbox US willbe a
significant step forward in growing our digital
distribution assets. We will increase our
investment in ITV Studios, particularly our US
scripted business, to strengthen further and
grow our creative capabilities,

Our rabust balance sheet and strong
underlying cash flows allows us todo

so white at the same time delivering
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

i Pictured: Behind-the-scenas on
i returning drama Cotd Feet, produced

{ byITv Studios UK.
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i Pictured{eft toright: The Jeremy Kyle Showis a daily

i talk show and has been on ITV for over ten years, it
eaches 5 5 million viewers a week, Coronation Street
¢ isinits 57thyear on [TV and 1s Britain's longest running

} soap driving huge audiences weekly.

Our responsibility

Building a responsible business that benefits all stakeholders

The success of our strategy depends not just on our operational
efficiency, but also on the way we interact with our stakeholders,
the environment and the wider community. ITV's social purpose is
to grow our business in a responsible way, using the reach of our
channels to create change for good. As well as complying with our

Our responsibility priorities

Our responsibility strategy focuses on three priorities: people,
planet and partnerships. Each of our priorities highlights the risks
and opportunities that are most relevant to us, and we have made
four commitments under each, that incorporate our main assets
and business operations.

legislative and regulatory requirements we recognise that our

actions can have an impact and our reach can positively influence
society. We therefore work to identify issues that are matenal to
ITV and matter to our stakeholders.

Priority Laveraging Leveraging Respansible business How we work
our reach our people day-to-day with others
AV A4 AV

People Inclusive programming Inclusive workforce Inclusive culture inclusive access to
To ensure cur programmes To ensure our workforce To build awareness and programmes and services
portray the diversity of reflects the diverse make-up capacity and create a culture To work with our supply chain
modern society by the people of modern society that attracts, develops and to encourage inclusivity
on-screen and the editorial retains the best talent standards and to make sure
content. possibte and enables our services are accessibie.

everyone to be therr best.

Planet Greener programming Greener workforce Greener footprint Greener partners
To ensure gur programmes To build the awareness and To minimise gur direct To work with our value chain
communicate responsible capacity of our workforce to environmental footprint 10 encourage
environmental messaging have a positive impact on the of energy, water and waste environmentally responsible
through the editonal content, Environment, I Our aperations. standards and behaviours.
directly or indirectly

Partnerships Empowering charities Empowering our workforce  Empowering our viewers Empowering communities
and causes Toemnpower ourworkforceto  Touse our prograrmmes at To inspire and engage our
Touse gur mass audience give back, through time and the heart of popular culture local communities to make
reach and influence to raise skills, to support local to raise awareness of pressing apositive difference.
awareness or donations for communities and causes. social topics andinspire
national and international change
causes,

People Planet

Reflecting the diversity of modern society is the right thing to do,

it helps give our programmes mass appeal by attracting the largest
possible audiences which is essential to our success as anintegrated
producer broadcaster. We strive to ensure diversity in our on-screen
programming and in our workforce, ensuring that we're relevant
and accessible to all.

Gender split
Board of Directors
®
6 2
75% ’ 25%
Semormanagement’ ..........................................
83 i 63
56.8% 43.2%
Kﬁ.;;:l:;;':'oloyees’ .......
481% i 51.9%
341 3,390

We have a responsibility to understand and minimise our own
impact on the environment and an opportunity to influence
positively our industry and audiences. Through our reach and value
chain, we have the chance to create long-term change by bringing
environmental awareness and sustainable behaviour into the heart
of popular culture. See page 101 for our greenhouse gas disclosures.

Partnerships

We believe partnerships mean collaborating with others to make
a positive contribution to society. Through a combination of our
on-air appeals and campaigns, along with local community
engagement, we're committed to inspiring, engaging and
empowering our stakeholders to make a difference.

Further information

We aim for continuous improvement in our Responsibility strategy,
actions and performance. More information on our responsibility
initiatives can be found online.

() itvresponsibility.com

1 Anemployee who s a director of a subsidiary of the Company or wha has responsibility for
planning, directing or controlling the activities of the entrty or a strategically sigrificant part of it

2 Employee gender split 1s based on total headcount at 31 December 2016
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Pictured: Cold Feetreturned to [TV
after a 13 year hiatus and was the most
watched drama on ITVin 2016 with an
average of 8.2 million viewers across

i the series.
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Strategic
Priority 1:
Maximise audience and revenue

share from free-to-air broadcast
and VOD business

The media environment in which we operate is
constantly changing and our Broadcast business remains
strong, adaptable and ready to take advantage of the
opportunities that arise. [TV, through its commercial
channels, offers unique scale and breadth reaching
around 80% of the television owning population every
week. At the same time, the ITV Hub, the digital home
for all our channels and services, is growing rapidly
helped by the significant growth in audience appetite
for Video on Demand (VOD).

@ See page 22 for more
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Strategic Priority 1 continued

As a result there continues to be significant
demand for advertising on our family of
broadcast channels and on the ITV Hub,
which generates substantial profit and cash
to reinvest across ITV. Additionally, as an
integrated producer broadcaster, our
channels provide an irmportant platform to
showcase ITV Studios content, providing it
with a proven track record before exploiting
it internationally.

Remalning responsive to a changing
media environment

Traditional linear television viewing remains
resilient despite significant changes in the
market and in the availability and delivery
of content. On average viewers watch 212
minutes of television a day, whichis a similar
level to 216 minutes in 2015. The majority of
television viewing is live at an estimated 81%
as television continues to have the power to
bring audiences together. VOD is growing
rapidly althoughit still only accounts for 7%
of total viewing. Meanwhile, PVR viewing, at
12%, has remained relatively constant over
the last few years.

Three key attributes lie at the heart of
ITV's successful Broadcast proposition:
its first class distribution and reach across
broadcast and OTT platforms; owning the

for all key audiences; and providing
advertisers with creative access to the
biggest and most effective marketing
platformin the UK.

Strong viewing and online performance
ITV performed strongly on-screen in 2016
with rmain channel SOV up 3% and TV family
S0V up 1% with programmes supplied by both
ITV Studios and independent producers. We
aired seven out of the top ten new dramas;
the most watched scapin Coronation Street;
the most watched sporting event in England
vs. Iceland, during the 2016 European Football
Championships and the most watched
current affairs programme with our coverage
of the EU Referendum Debate. On-screen
successes included a range of new dramas,
such as Victoria, The Durrells, Marcella and
the return of Cold Feet. Our sporting schedule
has perfarmed strongly, particularly the Six
Nations Rugby Championships and the
Eurcpean Football Championships, as has our
daytime schedule including Good Morning
Britain, This Morning and Loose Women, We
also continue to drive significant audiences
with Caronation Street and Emmerdale,
which are the two largest soaps, and with

our returning brands such as Vera, Endeavour,
Britain's Got Talent, I'm a Celebrity... Get Me
Qut Of Herel, Saturday Night Take Away,

rights to high-quality, must have corttent, The Chase and Tipping Point.
23m+
mobile
downloads
Available on
17 27
isterad
re?gers . platforms
50
over % one year on viewingup
of the UK's16-24 420
yearolds are A
registered 2076
users

Delivered

1bn+

video requests

in2076
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We continue to target key demographics
through our digital channels and the [TV Hub
and have seen a very significant increase in
our younger audiences, with 16-34 SOV up
25% on ITV2 helped by the successful launch
of American Dad and Family Guy as well as
the return of Love Istand.

ITV3 and ITV4 have not performed as well
aswe had hoped. ITV3 was impacted by the
launch of new free digital drama channels
and the allocation of some of our
programming exclusively to ITV Encore,
andITV4 was affected by the loss of the
Europa League and the Champions League.
Improving their performance is a focus

for 2017,

Looking ahead we believe that around
E1billion is the appropriate programme
budget for ITv's family of channels to ensure
we continue to deliver standout content that
drives the scale and breadth of the audiences
that advertisers demand.

The programme budget will be £25 million
lawer in 2017 than 2016 at around £1,025
million due to the absence of a major sports
tournament. We have a strong slate across
key genresincluding new programmes The
Halcyen, Good Karma Hospital, Prime Suspect
1973, Lethal Weapon, Little Big Shots, The
Voice, The Voice Kids, Dance Dance Dance,

5 Gold Rings, The Nightly Show and horse
racing, and returning prograrnmes including
Victoria, Cold Feet, Broadchurch, Unforgotten,
Safe House, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of
Herel, Britain's Got Talent, Saturday Night
Takeaway, The Chase and the Six Nations
Rugby Championships.

TheiTV Hub one yearon

ITV's online business has grown rapidly

over the last few years andis contributing
meaningful revenue to the Group, growing the
overall ITV audience and advertising revenues.
The ITV Hub, which was launched last year,
was a major step forwardin the quality,
innovation and ease of use of ITV's online
services. It is now available on 27 platforms,
the app has been downloaded over 23 million
times and it has 17 million registered users.

It drives very significant volurnes of viewers
both for simutcast viewing and catch up and

is growing faster than the BBC iPlayer.
Long-form video requests continue to grow
strongly up 24% with over 1billion requests
rmadein 2016 Online viewing consumption,
which measures how long viewers are
spending online, increased 42%.
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The ITV Hub also helps ITV reach valuable
younger audiences, Over 50% of the UK's
16-24 year old poputlation are registered
users of the ITV Hub as younger audiences
increasingly use it for simulcast viewing as
well as catch up. Programmes suchas ITV2's
very successful Love Island, delivered record
VOD viewing via the ITV Hub.

The ITVHubis more thanacatchup TV
service. In 2016, it featured previews and
premieres, such as Marcella and The Secret,
as well as original commissions around the
European Football Championships. Looking to
2017, there will be more short and long-form
original content, including The V Room, The
Voice's switchover show as well as content
from AwesomenessTV, the global youth
brand we have formed a partnership with
for exclusive UK television and VOD rights.

We will also be using the insight we gain
from our 17 million registered users to
develop more targeted advertising on the
ITV Hub and to increasingly drive viewing
through personalisation.

ITV's strong advertising proposition
driven by our uniquae offering

While potitical and economic uncertainty has
led to more cautious behaviour by advertisers,
ITV's unique ability to deliver mass audiences,
as well as more targeted demographics
across the family of channels and the ITV Hub,
has enabled us to again increase our SOB to
474%.In 2016 1TV delivered 99% of all
commercial audiences over five mitlion and
95% of all audiences over three million. SOV
provides an overall measure of viewing
performance, but because advertisers are
buying scale and breadth of audience, SOV

is not necessarily a direct indicator of
advertising performance,

i Picturedleft to night: Celebrity Juice is a celebrity
comedy programme inits 16th series on(TV2,

i When Ant & Dec Met the Prince was watched by
i 77 million viewers and had a 28% SOV

ITV Commercial Audiences

Television remains the most efficient and
effective advertising mediurm for advertisers
to achieve mass simultaneous reach and,

as viewing and advertising becomes more
fragmented, the scale of advertising that
television, and particularly ITV, delivers
becomes increasingly valuable. The cost

of advertising is similar to 2004 levels and,
compared to0 many other advertising media,
it remains good value, especially given the
reach and scale it delivers.

Maximising the value of our airtime and
ourbrands

ITVis also focused on maximising the value
of its airtime and driving new revenue
streams through sponsorship, interactivity
and branded content. TV utilises the core
assets of its strong brand and reputation,
unique commercial relationships and quality
production capability to deliver a wide variety
of marketing solutions. We have developed
many innovative sponsership and licensing
deals including: Aunt Bessies for 'm A
Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Herel; Domino’s
Pizza for The Voice and William Hill for ITV
Racing. We have also produced branded
content solutions with our new service

ITV AdVentures for a number of customers,
including Suzuki in Saturday Night Takeaway,
Matalan and | Am TeamGB.

andey JjGeens

Developing ITV's digital broadcast assets
Live television continues to demonstrate

a growing relevance as viewers increasingly
connect through social media. To drive
viewing and enhance engagement with our
content, we are further developing our social
rmedia assets across our international
portfolio of programmes. We have 147
YouTube branded channels delivering over
14 billion views, 32 million Facebook
followers, 22 million Twitter followers and
28 programme apps including Love Island,
Dance, Dance, Dance, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Here!, horse racing and The Voice. Our
digital engagement has grown significantly
and in 2016 we received around 100 million
votes across our entertainment shows
primarily via our programme apps.

2017 and beyond

We remain committed to our integrated
producer broadcast model, and key to that

is maintaining the strength and scale of cur
Broadcast & Online business. We have started
the year well with main channel SOV up 4%
and ITV family SOV up 3% for the first six
weeks of 2017.

As the viewing and advertising landscape
continues to fragment, the scale of our linear
audiences become increasingly valuable and
we will also continue to drive significant and
growing value from our digital assets, most
significantly the ITV Hub.

We expect ITV NAR to be down 6% over
the first four months of 2017, impacted
by the current economic uncertainty,
although over the full year we expect to
again outperform our estimate of the
television advertising market.

23



Strategic Report P Strategy and Operations

Pictured: The Voice from Talpa Media, 15 one of the

biggest selling entertainment formats in the wortd.
i Itis broadcastin more than 180 countries with the
i format produced locallyin 3 countires.
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Strategic
Priority 2:

Grow an international
content business

Growing a scaled international content business is also
central to our strategy as an integrated producer
broadcaster. As ITV creates and owns more content,
our channels provide a platform to showcase our
programmes before distributing them across multiple
platforms in the UK and internationally.

@ See page 26 for more
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Strategic Priority 2 continued

Growing gtobal demand for content

The strong global demand for content

from broadcasters and platform owners
provides a significant opportunity for ITV
Studios. We estimate that the global content
market is growing at about 5% per annum,
with some genres such as drarma growing
more rapidly than others. To capitalise on this,
our strategy remains to develop, own and
manage content rights in genres that return
and travel internationally — namely drama,
entertainment and factual entertainment.

As well as strong demand from broadcasters,
we are seeing significant demand from a
variety of OTT platforms who want library
and close-to-broadcast content rights as
well as ‘digital first’ content.

Studios revenue growth £m
£1,395m

Studios adiuste_d— EBITA groﬁth £m
£243m

Fast growing, international producer
of scale

Since 2010 we have almost doubled the
number of hours of content we produce.

In 2016 we produced around 7,800 hours
of content, through cur 60 labels, supplying
over 234 channelsin 10 countries. ITV is
becoming an increasingly scaled and
international business: we are the number
one commercial producerin the UK and a
leading producer in Europe and the US, with
50% of total Studios revenues coming from
outside the UK.

In 2016 1TV Studios total revenues grew 13%
to £1,395 miilion {2015: £1,237 million) and
adjusted EBITA increased 18% to £243 million
(2015: £206 million), driven by the acquisitions
we have made.

ITV Studios has three production divisions
~ITV Studios UK, ITV Americaand TV Rest
of World (RoW) and across these businesses,
ITV agreed 228 new commissions and 188
recommissions in 2016,

The US and UK are the dominant creative
markets, with the LS the largest exporter of
scripted content and the UK the world leader
for exported formats. Over the last few years
we have built scale in these key markets,
organically and through acquisitions, and we
now have a significant portfolio of successful
series and formats that travel,

ITV Studios UK performed strongly with
overall revenues up 14% at £626 million
(2015: £547 million) and with good growth
in sales to ITV and to other UK Broadcasters,
Our off-ITV revenues have grown by 20% as
we have continued to strengthen and grow
the business. Our deliveries to other UK
broadcasters inciuded Poldark, Nw and
Witness for the Prosecution for the BBC,
The Jump and Come Dine with Me for
Channel 4, Hotel Inspector for Channel 5
and Agatha Raisin for Sky.

Overall, we have seen 13% growth in revenues
to [TV with programmes such as Victoria, Cold
Feet, Tutankhamun, Saturday Night Take
Away, The Chase, The Next Great Magician
andI'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Here! all
delivered in 2016. We have again grown TV
Studios UK's share of original content
cormmissions on ITV main channel to 63%.

ITV America's revenue was down year-on-year
by 27% to £235 million (2015: £320 milliony),
predominantly as a result of three shows we
had in 2015 which have not returned in 2016.

They are Mell's Kitchen, which has been
commissioned for two series in 2017 and
Texas Rising and Best Time Ever, which are
not returning. We detivered the second series
of two US dramas, The Good Witch and
Aquarius. We have alsc benefited from the
delivery of a high volume of programmes
from our stable portfolio of unscripted series,
including Pawn Stars, American Restoration,
Alone, Rich Kids of Beverly Hills and First 48
and new commissions, including American
Grit, Killing Fields and Millionaire Matchmaker.

Across ITV RoW, we have seen very significant
growth with revenues up 67% to £355 million
(2015: £213 million) driven by Talpa Media.
Our production bases in Australia, Germany,
France, the Netherlands and the Nordics
produce original content as well as local
versions of ITV Studios formats. We now
produce 14 different formats in three or
maore of our production territories, for
example; Corme Dine With Me, The Chase,
The Voice from Talpa Media and Love Island.

Talpa Media is performing well and continues
to develop many new formats including
Dance, Dance, Dance, CannonBall and 5 Gold
Rings which are all selting well. It has atso had
the benefit of a four-year licensing
agreement for The Voice of China.

Across [TV RoW, we have delivered a number
of new and returning commissions including
The Voice in the UK and USA, The Chase in
Australia, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of
Herelin Australia and Germany, Come Dine
With Me in Denmark, Sweden and Germany
and The Price of Beauty in Denmark and
Sweden. In Norway TV has delivered its first
drama, Aber Bergen, with the second series
already commissioned. In Australia, ITV has
had a particularly successful year with a new
management team in place and now
produces for all the major television channels.

Investing in content with

internationat appeal

To continue growing internationally we must
keep expanding our portfolio of successful
series and formats that return and can be
distributed globally. We have a strong mix of
programimes across genres and alsc across
their content life cycle, which balances our
risk and financial exposure. Since 2010 our
total hours produced has increased by 90%,
our drama hours have increased by 370%,
entertainment hours by 109% and factual
hours by 189%.
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Demand for drama is growing strongly, as
standout, original content becomes brand
defining for both broadcasters and OTT
players. To capitalise on this, we are looking
to expand our global scripted business and
develop a strong portfolio of international
and returning drama, particularly in the US.
We are strengthening our development and
creative capabilities internally and have
invested in a number of producer
development relaticnships — we now have
around 20 projects in development in the US
with broadcast networks, cable networks and
OTT platforms,

Recent successes include a number of US
drama commissions which will deliver in 2017
- aten part drama Somewhere Between, for
ABC, Sun Records for TNT and a pilot for ABC,
Snowpiercer, through Tomorrow Studios.

With the acquisition of Talpa Media we have
significantly strengthened our capability in
entertainment and formats. Across our
businesses we have grown a solid portfolio
of high volurne and high margin formats that
travel internationally and which we produce
in many of our production bases. These
include The Voice, The Voice Kids, Pawn Stars,
Come Dine with Me, I'm A Celebrity... Get Me
Out Of Herel, Hell's Kitchen, Keeping the
Nation Alive, The Chase, 5 Gold Rings, This
Time Next Year, Big Star's Little Star and

Love Island.

Key new and
returning scripted
programmes

Key new and
returning
entertainment
programmes

i Pictured left toright: Poldark has been sold to

{ around 90 countries; The Chase 1s aninternationatly
i popular gameshow. it is the biggest daytime

i programme in the UK and is produced by

i ITY Studios in five countries with 31 format

i salessinceit launched in 2009

Investingin our digital

content capabilities

Through building our digital assets and
content we are increasingly able to engage
with younger audiences.

While demand from traditional broadcasters
continues to be strong we are also seeing an
increasing demand from OTT platforms for
original long-form content, secondary rights
and short form digital content,

We are distributing more content to OTT
players through Global Entertainment as well
as co-producing and jointty commissioning a
number of programmes with OTT platforms.
We currently have over 200 prograrmme
supply agreements in place with the major
OTT platforms, including co-producing
Robozuna, an original kids cartoon for Netflix
and Harlots, which we are co-producing for
Hutu in the US and ITV Encore in the UK

To further expand our digital assets we are
increasing our exposure to new types of
content, particularly youth focused
programming, and new types of distribution.
In 2016 we made an investment with Sky in
Ginx TV, an eSports channel for the UK and
international markets, We also agreed a
partnership with global youth content
company AwesomenessTV and made
minority investments in two ‘digital first’
youth content studios in the US, New Form

and Rocket Jump, all of which helps to
improve [TV Studios content capabitity as well
as provide new programming for the ITV Hub.
Thisis as well as our existing investments

in US digital content companies Believe
Entertainment Group and Indigenous Media.

2017 and beyond

We have astrong international pipeline

of new and returning programmes and
brands. Our UK and US pipeline of scripted
programmes has never been stronger and we
have a very good slate of new entertainment
shows coming through this year. This gives us
confidence that in 2017 we wilt deliver good
organic revenue growth and we have already
secured over £150 million more revenue than
at this point last year. However, with increased
investment, particularly in US scripted and the
reversal of the one-off benefit of the The
Voice of Chinain 2016, 1TV Studios profitsin
2017 are likely to be broadly in line with 2016.

ITV is now a global business and going
forward we aim to use our scale to grow
our market share and expand the number
of networks and OTT players we work with,
particularly in the US, We will further
strengthen our creative capability, both
organically and through partnerships and
acquisitions, as we continue to reduce our
reliance on the UK market.
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Pictured: Love Island is a reality programme produced by
ITV Studios UK. It had huge success on-screen and ontine,
averaging 1.3 mullion viewers on ITV2 across the series
and around 1 milbon requests on the ITV Hub per episade.
64% of the linear audience were 16-34s Internationally,
Love Island has been broadcast in 15 countries with the
format being produced by ITV Studios in three countries.
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Strategic
Priority 3:
Build a global pay and
distribution business

The environment in which we operate is constantly
evolving and we are seeing significant changes in
digital media and consumer behaviour.

ITV, as a creator, owner and distributor of sought
after content, is well positioned to take advantage
of the opportunities that arise from these changes as
we seek to further monetise our content.

ITV continues to explore and trial new ways, both free
and pay, to distribute content to broadcasters and
platform owners as well as directly to consumers.

@ See page 30 for more
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Strategic Priority 3 continued

Building our pay offeringin the UK

and internationally

As we look to build our pay offerings we

are developing arange of SVOD services

to target direct to consumer pay revenues,
We have recently announced the creation
of a joint venture with the BBC, through 8BC
Worldwide, to create BritBox US, an ad-free
SVOD service offering unrivalled content from
both broadcasters. ITV already has a strong
advertising VOD proposition in the ITV Hub
but the launch of BritBox gives us access to
the fast growing SVOD market in the US,

BritBox US, which is a direct to consumer
service, will launch in the first half of 2017
with the most comprehensive SVOD
collection of British content available in the
US. The service will feature drama premieres
never seen before in the US, a selection of
soaps and series that will be available

24 hours after their UK broadcast, and a
collection of British classics. [TV and BBC
each have a 40.5% voting share, while US
cable network AMC has a 19% non-voting
minority interest.

Over the last few years we have also

established a number of smaller pay
propositions. We now own a controlling
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stake in Cirkus, a best of British SVOD service
in Sweden, Norway, Finland and lceland which
will shortly launch in Germany on Amazon.
Cirkus has developed a second SVOD service,
Curig, due to launch in Norway in 2017, which
is focused on high-quality docurnentaries.
We have also set up [TV Essentials, an online
service for expats availabte in 13 countries
and ITV Choice, a general entertainment
channel for emerging markets available

in 100 countries.

We are continuing to develop ITV Hub+, our
ad-free subscription version of ITV Hub. In
2017 we will rofl out ITV Hub+ onto more
platforms and we have already added new
functionality, such as download on i0S
devices for off-line viewing.

Looking ahead it is our intention to roll out our
best of British SVOD services internationally
through BritBox and our other SVOD services,
taking advantage of the significant global
demand for UK content and changing

viewing habits.

Further developing our pay revenues
ITV's pay revenues again grew strongly as we
continue to earn revenue from pay television
through licensing our channels and content
across multiple platforms.

In the UK our pay business includes deals with
Sky and Virgin for our HD digital channels and
catch-up VOD, ITV Encore for Sky and a deal
to make ITV's content available through Sky's
connected platforms. We also agreed a new
deal with Vodafone to carry ITV's free-to-air
{FTA) channels and VOD for their customers,
as well as with TV Player to carry ITV's

FTA channels,

Expanding our global distribution natwork
Global Entertainment, the distribution arm
within ITV Studios, delivered revenue growth
of 14% to £179 million in 2016 (2015: £157
millicn) as we continue to drive value from
the investment we have made in creating
and owning rights to quality content with
international appeal. Excluding the benefit
of foreign exchange, Global Entertainment
grew 6% to £166 million.

Global Entertainment revenue growth £ém
£179m

{TV's distribution business has over 40,000
hours of television and film content that we
distribute globally to over 3,500 broadcasters
and platforms. in 2016 we continued to
enhance our distribution network, benefiting
fromITV Studios' continued grawth,
increased rights ownership both withiniTV
Studios and with third parties and strong
network relationships, setling to around 190
countries around the world. Through our
ongeing investrment in ITV Studios, we are
building an extensive and balanced portfolio
of scripted and unscripted programmes in
the key genres of drama, entertainment

and factual entertainment. We are using our
strong cash flows not only to fund and create
new content from ITV Studios, but also to
invest in third-party producers and therr
content from all over the world, such as
Harlots and Schitt's Creek.
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Qur scripted programmes such as Victoria,
Poldark, Endeavour, Vera and The Good Witch,
are all selling to over 150 countries. Qur
entertainment and factual entertainment
programmes also continue to sell well,
including titles such as Come Dine With Me,
The Voice, The Voice Kids, The Chase, Hell's
Kitchen, Autopsy and River Monsters.

In 2016 we sold BO different formats around
the wortd, 24 of which were produced by
ourselves or other producers in three ar
more countries.

We are increasingly doing multi-year and
multi territory deals with OTT platforms
including Netflix, Amazon, Hulu and arange
of smatler platforms. As well as library deals,
we are distributing close-to-broadcast or first
broadcast rights to these OTT platforms
across territories. We currently have over 200
content supply agreements in place, including
Thunderbirds Are Gal series one and two for
Amazon in the UK, US, Germany and India, as
well as The Good Witch, Mr Selfridge and
Poldark for Netflix.

We are also co-producing and jointly
commissioning a number of programmes
with OTT platforms, including Robozuna
for Netflix and Harlots for Hulu.

i Pictured left to nght: Big Star's Little Staris a
primetime entertainment programme on [TV

i The format s selting well internationally with six
format sales in 2016; Endeavour is a detective

i based drama produced by Mammoth Screen,

¢ ithas beensold to 180 countries internationally

Retransmission fees

We are continuing to drive the debate around
the implementation of retransmission fees
in the UK to ensure that we are fairly
compensated for our investment in content
for the main channel when it is carried on pay
TV platforms. We see the publication of the
Digital Economy Bitl proposing the repeal of
Section 73 as animportant step forward in
achieving retransmission fees.

2017 and beyond

As we continue torebalance ITV and
diversify our revenue streams, we are
further developing our pay and distribution
business to drive more value from our
investmentin content and reflecting the
changes in the way people are consuming
content. We are exploring new ways

i Pictured right: Thunderbirds Are Gol has been

old to over 100 countries which includes a

pan-territory deal with Amazon.

to package and sell our content to take
advantage of demand for quality contentin
the UK and internationally frormn consurmers,
broadcasters and platform owners.

A particular focus for 2017 will be the

launch of BritBox US and in time we will

look to further roll out our SVOD services
internationally as we continue to explore even
more ways to drive value from our content.
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Performance Dashboard

Demonstrating continued progress against our strategic priorities.

Key
Performance This section focuses an the results and performance of the Group. ' Ad!usted EBITA
Indicators | On the following pages you will find disclosures explaining the { + Adjusted EPS )
across all y Group’s results for the year, segmentat information, exceptional Pt Profit to cash conversion
iterns, taxation and earnings per share. i + Non-NARrevenue

three i Employee engagement
priorities
Strateqic priority 2016 performance

- Share of broadcast up to 474%in 2076
1 - ITV main channel up 3% and 1TV Family SOV up 1%

+ ITV delivered 29% of commercial audiences over five million and 95% of audiences
Maximise audience over three million
and revenue share from + Delivered most watched soap, factual programme and sporting event
free-to-air broadcast + Aired seven of the top ten new dramas
and VOD business + ITV2and ITV3 largest digital channelsin the UK

- Long-form video requests up 24% and online viewing up 42% on the ITV Hub

« Over 23 million downloads of TV Hub app and 17 million registered users, including over 50%
of 16 to 24 year olds

- Significant digital engagement with around 100 million votes across our big entertainment
shows primarily via our programme apps

2

Grow an international
content business

» ITV Studios again delivered good growth with total revenue up 13% including acquisitions

» Produced and delivered around 7,800 hours of original content, almost double since 2010

» |TV Studios’ share of ITV main channel cutput increased to 63%

+ 20% growth in Off-ITV production revenue in the UK

» Continued investment in creative pipeline with 228 new commissions and 188 recommissions

+ 50% of ITV Studios total revenue generated outside the UK

- Atop indie producer in Europe and the US

« Co-producing and jointly commissioning a number of programmes with OTT platforms

+ Selective investments in ‘digital first’ content businesses including New Form, Rocket Jump
and Ginx

3

Build a global pay and
distribution business

+ Announced new joint venture with the BBC, BritBox, our $VOD service in the US

» Cirkus expanded to Germany on Amazon

- ITVEssentials and ITV Choice SVOD platforms continue to deliver our content to expats
and emerging markets

- Development of the ITV Hub+, ITV's ad-free subscription version of the ITV Hub

» Aleading European distributor of content with over 40,000 hours of content

- Strong drama content including Victoria, Poldark, Endeavour and The Good Witch all selling
to over 100 countries

- B8O different formats sold around the world, including 24 formats made in three or more
countries, 14 of wihich are produced by ITV Studios in three or more countries

= Multi territory and multi year content deals with OTT platforms, with over 200 programme
supply agreementsin place
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¢ Pictured left toright 24 Hoursin A&E is amedical

i documentary produced by The Garden, part of

ITV Studios UK, for Channel 4 and 1s inits eleventh series;
! Grantchester 1s areturning drama for ITV averaging

§ 71million viewers across series twa in 2076,

Focus for 2017 Key Performance Indicators

- Continue to strengthen on-screen viewing in key demographics « ITV Family SOV

» Furtherinvest in our content, channels and brands to maintain our unique scale  » TV Family SOCI

» Grow our share of total television and VOD advertising - ITV Family share of broadcast

« Continue to maximise the value of our prograrmme brands through sponsorship, - Percentage of commercial audiences
interactivity and brand extensions over three million and over five million

+ Further invest in the quality and distribution of the ITV Hub to drive valuable « Total long-form video requests
online audiences

« Develop new and more targeted advertising opportunities
- Enhance engagement with our shows online with social media
and programme apps

« Further expand our digital assets and capabilities to increase our exposure
to youth focused content and distribution (®seepage 20 for more on
Strategic Priority 1
= Build further scale internationally « Number of new commissions for ITV Studios
+ Continue to develop intellectual property in key creative markets to exploit « Percentage of ITV output from ITV Studios
growing worldwide demand
+ Build a pipeline of programemes across key genres, particularly scripted
+ Develop more 16 to 24 focused content
« Attract and retain key Creative talent
+ Continue to look at acquisitions, investments and talent deals
@ See page 24 for more on
Strategic Priority 2
» Launch of BritBoxin the US + Totallong-form video requests

+ Focus on the further roll out of BritBox internationally » Number of new commissions for ITV Studics
+ Launch Curio SVOD service in Norway
+ Further enhance the capabilities and distribution of TV Hub+
+ Continue to trial direct to consumer pay opportunities
- Further grow our international distribution network with high-quality content
= Maximise the use of our strang cash flows to finance the production of
high-profile dramas that return and travel internationally
« Investin developing third-party distribution deals
« Secure retransmission fees in the medium term

@ See page 28 for more on
Strategic Priority 3
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Alternative Performance Measures

The Strategic Report includes both statutory and adjusted measures,the latter of
which, in management’s view, reflects the underlying performance of the business
and provides a more meaningful comparison of how the business is managed and
measured on a day-to-day basis.

Our APMs and KPIs are aligned to our strategy and together are used to measure the performance of our business and form the basis of the
performance measures for remuneration.

Adjusted results exclude Key adjustments for Adjusted EBITA, profit before tax and EPS
certain items because if Adjusted EBITA is calculated by adding back exceptional items and high end production tax credits to
included, thase items could EBITA. Further adjustments, which include amortisation of intangible assets acquired through business
distort the understanding of combinations and net financing costs, are made to remove their effect from adjusted profit before tax
our performance for the year and EPS. The tax effect of all these adjustments is reflected to calculate an adjusted tax charge. These
and the comparability adjustments are detailed below.
betweaen periods.
Production The ability to access tax credits, which are rebates based on production spend, is
tax credits fundamental to our Studios business when assessing the viability of investment in

green-lighting decisions, especially with regards to high-end drama. ITV reports tax
credits generated in the US and other countries (e.g. freland, Hungary, Canada and
South Africa) within cost of sales, whereas in the UK tax credits for high-end drama
must be classified as a corporation tax item. However, in our view all tax credits relate
directly to the production of programmes. Therefore to align treatment, regardless
of production location, and to reflect the way the business is managed and measured
on a day-to-day basis, these are recognised in adjusted EBITA.

Exceptional  This includes acquisition related costs (further detail below), reorganisation and

items restructuring costs, non-recurring legal costs, gains or losses on disposal of non-core
assets and impairment of intangible assets. These items are excluded to reflect
performance in a consistent manner and are in line with how the business is
managed and measured on a day-to-day basis. They are typically gains or losses
arising from events that are not considered part of the core operations of the
business or are considered to be one-off in nature. We alsc adjust for the tax
effect of these itemns. Note 2.2 includes further detail on exceptional items.

Acquisition related costs

We structure our acquisitions with earnouts or put and call options, to allow part of the
consideration to be based on the future performance of the business as welt as lock in
creative talent. Where consideration paid or contingent consideration payable in the
future is employment linked, it is treated as an expense {under accounting rules) and
therefore ona statutory basis is part of our reported results. However, we exclude all
consideration of this type from adjusted profit after tax and adjusted EPS as, inour
view, these iterns are part of the capital transaction. Page 44 of the Financial and
Performance Review explains this further.

Restructuring and reorganisation costs

These arise from Group-wide initiatives to reduce the ongoing cost base and improve
efficiency in the business. They are non-recurring costs and because of their size and
nature, are excluded from our adjusted measures.

Amortisation Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets acquired through business

and combinations is not included within adjusted earnings. As these costs are acquisition-

Impairment  related, and in line with our treatment of other acquisition-related costs, we consider

ofintangible them tobe capital in nature and they do not reflect the underlying trading performance

assets of the Group. Amortisation of software licences and development is included within
our adjusted results as management consider these assets to be core to supporting
the operations of the business.

Net financing Net financing costs are adjusted to reflect the underlying cash cost of interest for the

costs business providing a more meaningful comparison of how the business is managed and
funded on a day-to-day basis. The adjustments made remove theimpact of mark-to-
market on swaps and foreign exchange, imputed pension interest and other financial
gains and losses, which do not reflect the relevant interest cash cost to the business.

A full recongiliation between our adjusted and statutory results is provided on the
following page.
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Reconciliation between statutory and adjusted results

2016 2016 2016 2015 2015 2015
Twelve months to Statutory Adjustments Adjusted Statutory Adjustments Adjusted
31December — on a contiruing basis £m £m £Em £m £Em £m
EBITA" B57 28 885 B42 23 865
Exceptional items (operating)? (164) 164 - (109) 109 -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets? (89) 77 (12) (67) 58 (9)
Operating profit 604 269 873 666 190 B56
Net financing costs* {51 25 {26) 31 18 (13)
Gain on sale of non-current assets and subsidiaries
{non-operating exceptional items) - - - 6 {6) -
Profit before tax 553 294 847 641 202 843
Tax® (100) 60) {160} (139) (38) (177)
Profit after tax 453 234 687 502 164 666
Non-controlling interests (4) - () {7) - (7)
Loss from discontinuing operations {net of tax) (W) 1 - - - -
Eamings 448 235 683 495 164 659
Shares {million), weighted average 4,010 - 4,010 4,006 - 4,006
EPS (p} 1.2p 17.0p 12 4p 16.5p

1. £28milon adjustment relates to production tax credits which we consider to be a contribution to production costs and working capitat n nature rather than a corporate tax item

2 Exceptionalitems largely relate to acquisition costs, primarily employment Linked consideration, as well as restructunng costs and pension curtalment cost

3. £77mitlion adjustment refates to amortisation on acquisition related intangible assets We indude only amortisation on purchased ntangibles such as software within adjusted PBT
4 E25 milion adjustment i1s primanty for non-cash interest cost. This provides a more meaningful comparison of how the business 1s managed and funded on a day-to-day basis.

5 Taxadustmentsare the tax effects of the adjustments made to reconale PBT and adjusted PBT

Other alternative Performance Measures

Total revenue Adjusted net debt

As an integrated producer broadcaster, we look at the total revenue Net debt (as defined in Note 4.1)is adjusted for all our financiat
generated in the business which includes internalrevenue, whichisthe  commitments. This better reflects how credit rating agencies look at
sale of ITV Studios programmes to Broadcast & Online. Our broadcast  our balance sheet. A reconciliation between net debt and adjusted net

channels are a significant customer for ITV Studios and selling debtis provided below.
programmes to Broadcast & Online is an important part of our
strategy asit ensures we own all the rights. 2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m
A reconciliation between external revenue and total revenue is Net debt (637) (319)
provided below, Expected contingent payments on
acquisitions (328) (303)
2016 2015 Net pension deficit (328) {176)
Twelve months to 31 December £m fm n
External revenue (Reported) 3,064 2977 Operatingleases (344) (346)
internal supply 463 n Ad{usted net debt {1,637) {1,144)
Total revenue (Adjusted) 3,527 3,383 Adjusted net debt to adjusted EBITDA 1.8x 1.3x
Reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA 0.7x 0.4x
Net pension deficit

This is our defined benefit pension deficit under IAS 19 adjusted for other pension assets, mainly gitts, over which the pension scheme
holds a charge, held by the Group as security for future unfunded pension payments of four former Granada executives.
A full reconciliation is included within Note 3.7,

Profit to cash conversion

This is our measure of cash generation used for working capital management. It is calculated as adjusted cash flow as a proportion of
adjusted EBITA. Profit to cash conversion is based on adjusted measures to reflect the cash generation of our underlying business after
operating capex, excluding the effect of exceptional items, non-cash expenses such as depreciation and share based payments.
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Key Performance Indicators

We have defined our KPIs to align our performance
and accountabitlity to our strategy.

Adjusted
EBITA

Defmition
This is the key profitability measure used across the whole business.
Earnings before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITA} is before exceptional
iterns and has been adjusted to include the benefit of production tax credits,
It reflects our performance in a consistent manner and in line with how the
business is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis.

These KPis are the key
measures of success and
cover all three strategic
priorities. Our KPis have
not changed over the year.

1epPuURL

Our strategic priorities

Maximise audience
and revenue share from

free-to-air broadcast and e e o e e s e s 6 e e e 6 om s e e e e % s e e e
VOD business Adjusted Definition

Grow aninternational EPS Adjusted EPS represents the adjusted profit for the year attributable to
content business equity shareholders. Adjusted profit is defined as profit for the year

Build a global pay and attributable to equity shareholders before exceptional items, impairment of
distribution business intangible assets, amortisation of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations, net financing cost adjustments and tax adjustments
relating to these items. It reflects the business performance of the Group in
a consistent manner and in line with how the business is rnanaged and
measured on a day-to-day basis.

Profit Definition
to cash Profit to cash conversion represents the proportion of adjusted EBITA
R converted into a measure of adjusted cash flow {defined as cash generated
conversion from operations before exceptional itemns less cash related to the
acquisition of operating property, ptant and equipment and intangible
assets).

This primarily reflects the effectiveness of cur working capital management
and capital expenditure control. Our aim is to keep profit to cash conversion
as high as possibie.

Non-NAR Dafinition
revenue Non-NAR reflects all ITV revenue, both internal and external, except NAR

(spot advertising revenues), Ontine, Pay, interactive, Sponsorship, SDN and
[TV Studios revenues are all included within Non-NAR, with the key drivers of
growth being Online, Pay and ITV Studios.

Growing rnon-NAR is key to the strategy as we aim to rebalance the business
away from our reliance on television advertising revenue.

Employee Definition
engagement Continuing to develop a creative, cornmercial and global organisation
g9ag requires high-quality employees who are engaged in the wark that they do,
and are committed to the strategy.

Employee engagement measures pride in the work we do, pride in working
for ITV and also what we say about our pregrammes and services.

WDUCUL-UON
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Performance

In 2016 adjusted EBITA increased by £20 million or 2% as a

result of a 3% increase in total external revenue and our continued focus on costs.
Revenue growth was primarily a result of a 23% increase in high margin Online, Pay &
Interactive revenues and a 13% increase iniTV Studios revenue driven by acquisitions,
the UK business and Global Entertainment. This was partially offset by adecline in
NAR of 3%.

Group EBITA margin remained flat at 29%.

Performance

Adjusted EPS increased by 3% from 16.5p to 17.0p. This s higher than the
corresponding increase in adjusted EBITA of 2% as a result of a lower adjusted
effective tax rate in the year of 19% (2015: 21%).

Performance

Profit to cash has increased in the year to 97% and reflects our continued tight
management of working capital balances and our disciplined approach to cash and
costs.

Performance

Non-NAR revenue increased by 11% in 2016 as we continue to rebalance the business
away from a reliance on NAR. We delivered strong growth in ITV Studios revenues and
in Online and Pay revenues. Non-NAR revenues were 53% of total revenue which has
increased significantly since 2009 when it was 40%.

Performance

Employee engagement was once again high at 50% which is above the benchrnark
score for companies of a similar size and nature to ours of 83%. The participation rate
was 80%.

Our strategic priorities
Maximising
Growing
Building

Jsodsy yGearens
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Key Performance Indicators continued

ITV Family Definition » o .
Share of To help deliver Strateglc F’I’IOflty 1through maintaining a strong and healthy Broadcast & Online
. N business, ITV Family SOV is a key indicator of this. ITV Family SOV is the total viewing audience over
viewing the year achieved by ITV's Family of channels as a proportion of total television viewing, including
the BBC Family. ITV aims at least to maintain the TV Family SOV.

Abmens

v Fam“v Share of g.rftmitcilo? ing Strategic Priority 1 and maintaini iti leadi ial
H = art of detivering »trategic Pnonty 1 and mamntaining our position as a lea ing commercia

commercial Impacts broadcaster 1s to have a strong ITV Family share of commercial impacts (SOCD. SOCl is the trading
currency in the television advertising market, and since it only covers commercial television it does
not include the BBC. This is the share of total UK television commercial impacts which is delivered
by 1Tv's family of channels. Animpact is one viewer watching one 30 second commercial. We aim
to maximise our SOCL SOCI provides an overall measure of viewing performance, however because
advertisers are buying scale and breadth of audience, SOCI is not necessarily a direct indicator of
advertising performance.

ITV Family Share Definition
ITW's share of UK television spot advertising revenue is known as its share of broadcast.

of broadcast To maxirnise revenue from our free-to-air business, which is a key component of Strategic
Priority 1, we aim to continue to maximise our share of broadcast and to outperform the UK
television advertising market.

It 1s increasingly difficult to measure the total television advertising market as all broadcasters
have different definitions and inctude other sources of revenue, such as sponsorship and VOD in
their estimates of television advertising. Our SOB has always been based on our estimate of the
pure spot advertising market, excluding sponsorship, VOD and for 2016 going forward, we also
exclude all broadcaster's self promotion revenues on their own channels because this year has
seen a significant increase which further distorts the external spot market.

Total long-form :.k:nnhnf trateqy i imi di hare f fi broadcast and
. y part of our strateqy is to maximise audience share from qur free-to-air broadcast an
video requests increasingly from our VOD business.

Long-form video requests is a measure of the total number of our videos requested across all
platforms onwhich the ITV Hub is available and therefore provides a key measure of haw much
of our content is being viewed online. A long-form video is a programme that has been broadcast
on television and is available to watch online and on demand in its entirety.

Number of new ge:nl_ltior; tegic Priority 2 tracking the perf f th ti | pipedi d thy

P o deliver Strategic Priority 2 tracking the performance of the creative renewal pipeline and the
CommlS!‘:lOnS for number of new commissions won is a key indicator. This figure includes programmes shown both
ITV Studios on ITV and on other broadcasters, and both in the UK and internationally.

Percentage of Definition
ITV* output from As anintegrated producer broadcaster, part of our strategy is to use our broadcast channels as a

'_’ platforrm for ITV Studios content where we aim to make them famous and then sell them around
ITV Studios the world.

The proportion of the total spend en original commissions on ITV transmitted in the year, delivered
by 1TV Studios demonstrates this and our aim 15 to increase TV Studios' supply of programmes to
ITV to allow us to deliver against all three of our Strategic Priorities.

* TVmam channel only.
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commercial audiences over five million and 95% over three million.

Our strategic priorities
Maximising
Growing
Building

Performance

ITV Family SOV grew 1% in 2016 to 21.4%. Within this, the ITV main channel saw

an increase of 3% benefiting from the Six Nations Rugby Champicnships and the
European Football Championships along with strong performances in Drama,
Entertainment and Daytime. The digital channels were down 4% in the year mainly
across ITV3 and ITVA. ITV2 viewing amongst 16-34s continues to grow, up 25% in the
year and it remains the most popular digital channel in the UK based on SOV,

ITV also continues to deliver mass audiences and in 2016 delivered 99% of all

Performance

ITV Farnily SOCI declined by 1%, with the main channel up 3%. The digital channels SOCI
was down 6% and was impacted by the launch of a number of new free-to-air digital
channeis at the end of 2015 and first half of 2016. In addition, ITV2 is now more
targeted towards younger viewers with SOC| amongst 16-34s up 24% in the year

Performance

In 2016 we gained market share again, increasing our share of broadcast to 47.4%
which includes UTV and excludes self promotion by all broadcasters. 2015 share of
broadcast excluding self promotion, would have been 46.8% rather than 46.1%.

We have again gained share as a result of our unique ability to deliver mass audiences
across the key demographics to our advertisers and more targeted demographics on
our digital channels, as well as the benefit of UTV.

Performance

Long-form video requests were up 24% in 2016 10 1,025 million views supported by our
continued investment and focus on the ITV Hub, meobile apps and simulcast offering,
Online consumption, which is the measure of how long viewers are spending online, is
animportant indicator of online performance and this increased by 42% in 2016

Performance

There was strong growth in the number of new commissions for ITV Studios in 2016,
up 37% to 228. 102 of these new commissions have corme from the UK business, with
the remaining 126 coming from our international businesses.

We continue to invest in our creative pipeline buitding on our existing portfolio of
programmes and formats. We are particularly focused on the genres that can return
and travel, namely drarna, entertainment and factual entertainment,

Performance

The percentage of ITV output from ITV Studios increased to 63% in 2016 driven
by new dramas in the year. Many of these ITV Studios programmes broadcast in
2016 have now been distributed around the world including Victoria, Cold Feet,

Thunderbirds Are Go!, The Chase and I'm A Celebrity... Get Me Out Of Here!

39

uodsyibeyens



Strategic Report P Parformance and Financials

Financial and Performance Review

The benefit of rebalancing the business is evident in these results with
growth in non-NAR revenue delivering a good performance and making

ITV a more resilient business.

66

We continue to be highly
cash generative which,
together with our ongoing
focus on costs, places us in

a strong position to continue
to invest in opportunities

to grow the business and
deliver sustainable returns
to shareholders

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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The strategy we set out a number of years ago was to rebalance
the business and reduce our reliance on spot advertising. This
strategy is the right strategy for ITV and the progress we have
made is clearly evident in our performance for 2016, delivering
3% external revenue growth and 3% increase in adjusted EPS, in
a year where spot advertising revenue declined 3%. We continue
to be highly cash generative which, together with our ongoing
focus on costs, places us in a strong position to continue to
invest in opportunities to grow the business and deliver

returns to shareholders.

Twelve months to 31December -ona 2016 2015 Change Change
continuing basis £m £m fm %
NAR 1,672 1,719 {47} (3)
Total non-NAR 1,855 1,664 191 "
Total revenue 3,527 3383 144 4
Internal supply (463) [CL)) g2 13
Group external revenue 3,064 2972 92 3
Adjusted EBITA 885 865 20 2

Group adjusted EBITA margin 29% 29%

Adjusted EPS 170p 165 0.5p 3
Adjusted diluted EPS 70p 163p 07 4
Dividend per share 7.2p 6.0p 12p 20
Special dividend 5p 10p -

Net debt as at 31 December {637) {319) 318y -

The statutory profit before tax and EPS from the Consolidated
Income Staternent is below. A full reconciliation between our
statutory and reported results is included in the Alternative
Performance Measures section.

2016 2015 Change Change
Twelve menths to 31December £m £m £m %
Profit before tax 553 641 {88) {14)
EPS M2p 124p  (1.2p (10}
Diluted EPS MIp 123p (12p (10)

TotalITV revenue inCreased 4% to £3,527 million (2015: £3,383 million),
with external revenue up 3% at £3,064 million (2015: £2,972 million).
NAR declined by 3% to £1,672 million (2015: £1,719 million) of fset by

a 1% growth in non-NAR revenue to £1,855 million {2015: £1,664
million). Non-NAR now accounts for 53% (2015: 49%) of total revenue.

Growth in high margin Online, Pay & Interactive revenue combined with
the growth in ITV Studios and our continued focus on costs, delivered a
2% increase in adjusted EBITA to £885 million (2015: £865 mitlion) with
the adjusted EBITA margin maintained at 29%. Adjusted EPS grew 3%
10 17.0p (2015: 16.5p) white statutory EPS declined by 10% to 11.2p
(2015: 12.4p). Statutory EPS declined due to higher exceptional costs,
principally employment linked consideration for our acquisitions
{primarily Talpa Media) whichis included within reported earnings.

In addition there were higher restructuring costs associated with

our 2017 cost savings and higher armortisation of acquired intangible
assets as a result of owning Talpa Media for a full 12 months. These
adjustments are explained over the following pages.
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We remain focused on balance sheet efficiency and working capital
management. Our profit to cash ratio remained strong at 97% and

we ended the period with net debt of £637 million (31 December 2015:
net debt of £319 million) after the acquisition of UTV, the ordinary and
special dividend payments and pension deficit contributions.
Increasing net debt is in Line with our objective of gradually increasing
our balance sheet leverage over time whilst maintaining the financial
flexibility to continue te invest in the business.

Cost managermnent rermains a key priority and we are on track to
deliver the previously announced £25 million reduction in overheads in
2017 across the business, This together with our strong balance sheet,
our clear strategy and a more balanced business gives us the flexibility
to meet the opportunities and challenges ahead.

Adjusted EBITA tracker
Broadcast & Online
Twelve months to 31 December -ona 2016 2015 Change Change
continuing basis £m £m £€m %
NAR 1,672 1,719 (47) (3)
Online, Pay & Interactive
revenue 231 188 43 23
SDN external revenue 67 64 3 5
Other commercial income 162 175 {13) (7)
Broadcast & Online
non-NAR revenue 460 427 33 8
Total Broadcast & Online
revenue 2132 2146 (14) [Q)]
Total schedule costs (1,050} (1,045) (5) -
QOther costs (440) (442) 2 -
Total Broadcast & Online
adjusted EBITA 642 659 (17) (3)
Adjusted EBITA margin 30% 3%

Broadcast & Online revenue declined by 1% to £2,132 million (2015:
£2146 million) with the decrease in NAR largely offset by strong
growth in Online, Pay & Interactive.

podey 3Beieas

Broadcast & Online revenue tracker

Against a backdrop of uncertainty created by the EUreferendum,
{TV Family NAR decreased by 3% to £1,672 million (including UTV)
{2015: 1,719 miltion). This decline was less than the decline in our
estimate of the television advertising market which excludes
broadcaster’s self-promotion, sponsorship and VOD revenue, and
therefore we again took rmarket share to increase our SOB to 47.4%.
Despite the overall fall in NAR we have seen a number of categories
hold or increase spend year-on-year, such as Entertainment & Leisure,
with increased bookmakers spend around the European Football
Championship, Cars, Cosmetics and Toiletries, and Publishing and
Broadcasting. Digital brands continue to spend on television to build
brand awareness. Retall, Finance and Food have seen declines with
supermarkets and traditional banking decreasing spend across the
year. Excluding supermarkets, Retail was up 4% year-on-year.

2016 advertising category analysis
® Retall 20%

® Entertainment & Leisure 10%
® Finance 9%

® Food 8%

® Cosmetics & Tolletries 79%

® Cars & Car Dealers 6%

@ Publishing & Broadcasting 6%
® Airlines, Travel & Holidays 5%
® Telecommunications 4%

® Household Stores &%

® Other 21%

1
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Financial and Performance Review continued

As expected, the phasing of NAR was different in 2016 reflecting the
timing of major sporting events and a backdrop of uncertainty driven
by the EU referendum. The first and second quarter were both flat
with strong comparatives in Q1 2015, with a weaker April and May
being offset by & strong June as a result of the Euro Football
Championships. The third quarter was down 4% impacted by the
Rugby World Cup comparatives.in 2015 with the fourth quarter down
6% as increased political and economic uncertainty caused advertisers
1o behave more cautiously.

Looking to 2017 we expect the first four months to the end of April to
be down around 6% and as ever the phasing of NAR will be different
across the year. Over the full year we again expect to outperform the
television advertising market.

On-screen we performed strongly with ITV Family SOV up 1% and

a 3% increase in ITV main channel SOV. Going forward we remain
focused on our viewing perforrmance and continuing to deliver both
mass audiences and key dernographics which are highly dernanded
by advertisers.

Online, Pay & interactive revenue continued to show strong growth,
up 23% to £231 million (2015: £188 million) reflecting further growthin
both our online advertising and pay businesses. Audience demand for
VOD remains strong as does the demand for online advertising, which
supported by our strong on-screen propasition, helped drive a 24%
increase in long-form video requests and a 42% increase in
consumption on our OTT service the ITV Hub. Interactive revenue

was broadly flat, with daytime competitions and entertainment
programmes performing well.

As we continue to build our digital business we will be launching our
SVOD service BritBox in the US in the first half of 2017. The service is
ajoint venture with the BBC to provide the Best of Britishcontent to
subscribers. BritBox US is expected to break even within a couple of
years. ITV’s share of total joint venture losses/profits will be
recagnised within results from Vs and Associates,

SDN external revenue, which is generated fromiicence sales for DTT
Multiplex A, increased 5% to £67 million {2015; £64 million}. This was
driven by the full year impact of the 15th stream which was launched
in August 2015 and the 16th stream launched in May 2016

Other commercial income includes revenue from programme
sponsorship, media sales, which relates to commission earned by ITV
on sales of airtime for the non-consolidated licensees (UTV until
acquisition and STV), as well as revenue from these licensees for ITV
content. Other commercial income was down year-on-year at £162
million (2015: £175 mitlicn) as a result of a reduction in airtime sales
commission and revenue from UTV following ITV's acquisition of the
business in February 2016.

Schedule costs were broadly flat year-on-year at £1,050 million (2015:
£1,045 million) with higher spend on drama offset by lower spend on
sports rights with the absence of the Champions League. Looking into
2017 we expect our total annual programming budget to be around
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£1,025 million which includes the previously announced £25m
reduction as there is no major sporting event. We expect the
prograrmme budget to be weighted to the first half of 2017 driven by
the timing of spend on entertainment and drama programrmes and
will be broadly flat year-on-year for the first hatf.

Other costs in Broadcast were flat year-on-year as we continue to
rmaintain a tight control on costs across the business,

Overall Broadcast & Online adjusted EBITA was down 3% at £642
million (2015: £65% million) with the strong growth in Online, Pay &
Interactive more than offset by the decline in the advertising market.
This has led to & 1% reduction in the adjusted EBITA margin to 30%
(2015: 31%).

ITV Studios

2018 2005 Change Change
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m £m %
Studios UK 626 547 79 14
ITV America 235 320 (85) (27)
Studios Row 355 213 142 &7
Global Entertainment 179 157 22 14
Total Studios revenue 1,395 1,237 158 13
Total Studios costs {1,152y (1,031) (121) {12)
Total Studios adjusted
EBITA* 243 206 37 18
Studios adjusted EBITA margin 17% 17%
* Includes the benefit of production tax credits

2016 2015 Change Change
Twelve months to 31December £m £m £fm
Sales from ITV Studios
to Broadcast & Online 463 471 52 13
External réevenue 932 826 106 13
Total Studios revenue 1,395 1,237 158 13

ITV Studios total revenue grew strongly up 13% to £1,395 million (2075:
£1,237 million) driven by Studios UK, Glabal Entertainment and our
acquisitions, as we continue to builld scale in creative content markets
and strengthen our international portfolio of programmes that return
and travel. Total organic revenue, which excludes our current and prior
year acquisitions, was down 3%, and excluding foreign exchange
movements as well, it was down 7%. This was primarily due to TV
America being impacted by two large shows not returning and the
timing of one of our key shows. Good performances by the UK and
Global Entertainment helped offset some of this crganic decline. Qur
resultsinclude a full 12 months of our prior year acquisitions, Twofour
Group, Mammoth Screen and Talpa Media alt of which have delivered
key programmes during the year

Itisin the nature of our business that not all programmes will return
for another series and the timing of programme deliveries will vary.
However, since 2070 ITV Studios has shown good organic growth
{excluding all currency and all acquisitions) at 4% compound annual
growth rate.
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Reflecting our growth and increasing scale in key production markets
in Europe and the US, 50% of ITV Studios total revenue in 2016 was
generated outside the UK. As our Studios business grows
internaticnally, foreign currency movements have an increasing
impact on our results. On a constant currency basis, which assumes
exchange rates remained consistent with 2015, ITV Studios revenue
for 2016 would have been £75 million lower and adjusted EBITA would
have been £12 million lower as a result of a stronger US dollar and euro
during the year.

Total Studios UK revenue was up 14% to £626 million (2015: £547
million) with 13% growth in internal revenue and 20% increase in
external revenue driven by organic growth of 6% and the acquisition
of Twofour Group and Mammoth Screen in 2015, Programming sales
to ITV Broadcast benefited from new drama deliveries including
Victoria, Cold Feet and Tutankhamun along with returning
entertainment programmes Saturday Night Takeaway, Love Island
and 'm A Celebrity... Get Me Cut Here! Off-ITV revenue grew strongly
with successful deliveries including The Jump, The Job Interview and
Raised by Wolves all for Channet 4, Poldark, Moorside and Witness for
the Prosecution for BBC and Agatha Raisin for Sky.

ITV America's total revenue declined 27% to £235 million (2015: £320
million) with organic revenue, excluding acquisitions and foreign
exchange, down 35%. This decline was predominantly driven by three
shows — Texas Rising and Best Time Ever not returning and the phasing
of Hell's Kitchen which did not deliver in 2016 but will return for two
seriesin 2017 Our acquisitions continue to deliver new and returning
programmes, including Alone, Kilting Fields, Pawn Stars and Fixer
Upper. Other successful non-scripted deliveries within ITV America
during the year included American Grit, Tiny House Nation and The
Real Housewives of New Jersey. Our returning scripted drarmas, The
Good Witch and Aquarius also aired during 2016 with The Good Witch
already recommissioned for a third series in 2017, Aquarius has not
been recommissioned for 2017, but we are confident we canreplace it
with our upcoming slate of new programmes, including three dramas;
5un Records, Somewhere Between and a pilot of Snowpiercer, as we
build our US scripted business.

Studios ROW total revenue was up 67% to £355 million (2015: £213
million), with organic revenue down 1%. We benefited from 12 months
of Talpa Media, which was acquired on 30 April 2015 and has
significantly strengthened our position as a leading international
producer and distributor. Talpa Media performed strongly in 2016 and
alsa benefited from a four-year ticensing agreement for The Voice of
China. We also saw good growth in Australia and Denmark from
producing UK formats. 2016 deliveries included I'm A Celebrity... Get
Me Out Of Here!l and The Chase in Australia and Germany and The
Voice Kids and Come Dine With Me in Denmark. We have a strong
pipeline of new and returning formats, many of which have been
produced by our acquisitions Talpa Media and Twofour Group, which
we will be producing in a number of our key production territories
including; The Voice, This Time Next Year, Love Island, 5 Gold Rings
and Big Star's Little Star.

Jiodey nbeynns

Global Entertainment revenue increased 14% in the period to £179
million (2015. £157 million), with revenue excluding foreign exchange
up 6% as we continued to grow our portfolio of programmes and
formats to distribute internationally. Revenue growth was supported
by our strong programme slate including Victoria, Poldark, Mr
Selfridge, Coronation Street, Thunderbirds Are Gol, Aquarius, Hell's
Kitchen and The Chase. We have 10 programmes sold to over 100
countries and 80 different formats we seltinternationally. We have
also increased distribution of our content to OTT providers including
Amazon, Netflix and Hulu both in the UK and internationally.

Reflecting the strong revenue growth in ITV Studios, adjusted EBITA
increased 18% to £243 million (2015: £206 million). The adjusted EBITA
margin remains unchanged at 17%. In 2016 we invested £160 million in
scripted content, which is a similar level to 2015, We finance our
larger-scale scripted projects through our strong underlying cashflows.
The production cost is partly funded by the initial sale of the seriesto a
broadcaster, while the deficit (the difference between the cost and
what the broadcaster pays), is recovered through distribution revenue
from selting the finished product globally to other broadcasters and
platforms. We balance our financial exposure through building a
portfolio of programmes, with successful international dramas
offsetting the risk that we will not recover the full deficit on

every show.

Overall, ITV Studios continued to deliver many creative successes

in the year, The ongoing investment we are making in our creative
pipeline will build upon our existing strong portfolio of programmes
and formats and help manage the fluctuations we experience
because of the phasing of deliveries. 2017 will see the delivery of many
new and returning entertainment and drama programmes and asa
result we expect to return to good organic revenue growth over the
full year, although the first half will be impacted the timing of
deliveries, ITV Studios currently has over £150 million more revenue
secured for 2017 than it did this time last year, Adjusted EBITA will he
broadly flat year-on-year due to our ongoing investment in scripted
content and the reversal of the one-off benefit of The Voice of China
in 2016.

ITV Studios total revenue tracker
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Acquisitions — 2012 to 2016 (undiscounted)

Additional Expected Totat Total
Initial consideration future expected Expected fmaximum
consideration paidin 2016 payments*  consideration® payment consideration**
Company Geography Genre {E£m) {&m) {Em) Em) period (Em)
2016
Uty UK &lreland Broadcast TV 100 - - 100 100
Total for 2016 100 - - 100 100
Total for 2012-2015 Content 760 3 328 1,091 2016-2021 1,805
Total 860 3 328 1,191 1,905

* Undiscounted and adjusted for foreign exchange Al future payments are performance related Of £328 million expected future payments, £158 million has been recorded

onthe balance sheet todate

** Undiscounted and adjusted for foreign exchange, including the initial cash consideration and excluding working capital adjustrnents

Acquisitions

0On 29 February 2016 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest
in UTV Limited, which owns the television assets of the former UTV
Media PLC, for £100 million. This further strengthens [TV's free-to-air
business and, as we have integrated it into ITV it enablesus torun a
more efficient network. On 30 Novernber 2016, ITV completed the
€10 mitlion sale of UTV freland to Virgin Media Limited.

We continue to look at potential acquisitions and partnerships as we
further build scale in our international content business. Since 2012
we have acquired a number of content businesses in the UK, US and
creative locations across Europe, developing a strong portfolio of
programmes that return and travel. As we have grown in size and
expanded our network relationships and distribution capability, this
has helped to strengthen our creative talent and build our reputation
as a leading European producer and distributor and leading unscripted
independent production cormpany in the US.

We have strict criteria for evaluating potential acquisitions. Financially,
we assess ownership of intellectual property, earnings growth and
valuation based on return on capital employed and discounted cash
flow. Strategically, we ensure an acquisition target has a strong
¢reative track record and pipeline in content genres that return and
travel, narmely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment, as
well as succession planning for key individuals in the business.

We generally structure our deals with earnouts or with put and
call options in place for the remainder of the equity, capping the
maximum consideration payable. By basing a significant part of
the consideration on future performance in this way, not only can
we lock in creative talent and ensure our Incentives are aligned, but
we also reduce our risk by only paying for the actual, not expected,
performance delivered over time. We believe this is the right way
0 structure our deals as we should not pay upfront for future
performance and should incentivise and reward delivery by the
business over time

The majority of earnouts or put and call options are dependent on
the seller remaining within the business, the most significant of which
is for Talpa Media whereby the total maximum consideration, including
the initial payment, is up to €11 billion which is contingent on Talpa
Media continuing to deliver significant profit growth to 2022 as well
as John de Mol's continued commitment to the business during

this time, Under the deat structure, because all future payments

L4

and €150 million of the initial consideration are directly related to
John de Mol rernaining with the business, these payments are treated
as employment costs and therefore on a statutory basis are part of
our reported results. However, we exclude therm from adjusted profits
and adjusted EPS as an exceptional iter, as in our view for the reasons
set out above, these items are part of capital consideration reflecting
how we structure our transactions. This is consistent with our
treatment of all costs of this type.

The table above sets out the initial consideration payable on our
acquisitions, our expected future payments based on our current view
of performance and the total maximurm consideration payable which
is anly payable if exceptional compound earnings growthis delivered.

We closely menitor the forecast performance of each acquisition and
where there has been a change in expectations, we adjust our view of
potential future commitments.

Total expected consideration for all our acquisitions has increased

by £128 million since 31 Decemnber 2015, primarily as a result of our
acquisition of UTV Limited and future payments denominated in
foreign currency. As at 31 December 2016 the amount recorded on the
balance sheet was £158 million of our total expected future payments.

In 2017, around £120 million will be payable on our acquisitions,
primarily relating to Talpa Media of which €100 million is due, subject
to audit, in March 2017.

Foreign Exchange Sensitivity

As our Studios business grows internationatly, the performance of
the business becomes increasingly sensitive to movements in foreign
exchange rates, primarily with respect to the US dollar and euro.

The following table highlights ITV's sensitivity to translation resulting
from a 10% appreciation/depreciationin sterling against the US dollar
and euro, assurming all other variables are held constant. An
appreciation in Sterling has a negative effect on revenue and adjusted
EBITA, a depreciation has a positive effect.

Adjusted
Lurrency Revenue (Em)  EBITA(Em)
UsDollar o . +50-60 +8-10
Euro +25-30 +3-4
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Net financing costs Exceptional items

2016 2075 2016 2015
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m Twelve manths to 31 December £m £m
Financing costs directly attributable Operating exceptional items:
to loans and bonds (22) (13}  Acquisition retated expenses (131 (88)
Cash-related net financing costs 3 (3}  Reorganisation and restructuring costs (14) {13)
Amortisation of bonds 1)) —  Pension curtaitment (19) -
Adjusted financing costs (26) (13)  other - (&)
Mark-to-market on swaps and (164) (109)
foreign exchange C)] ) Non-operating exceptional items - 6
Imputed pension interest ) (19)  Total exceptional items (net) (164) {103)
Unrealised foreign exchange and other
net financial losses (17) (4)
Net financing costs (51) @1 Total exceptional items in the year were £164 mitlion (2015:£103

Adjusted financing costs increased to £26 million (2015: £13 million)
primarily due to 12 months of the seven year €600 million Eurobond
issuedin September 2015 and new facility fees.

Net financing costs were £20 million higher in 2016 at £51million
(2015: £31 million) primarily due to £17 million increase in the expected
future payments on our acquisition portfolio. These relate to those
deals structured with a put and call option for the remainder of the
equity which are not dependent on the seller remaining within the
business. The imputed pension charge decreased as a result of lower
interest rates.

Profit before tax

Adjusted profit before tax, after amortisation and impairment of
intangibles and financing casts, was broadly flat at £847 million (2015:
£843 million). Statutory profit before tax decreased by 14% at £553
million {2015: £641 million), primarily a result of the exceptional items
described below, an increase in net financial losses within net financing
costs and a fult 12 months amortisation of the intangible assets
acquired in the purchase of Talpa Media, particularly The Voice.

million). Operating exceptional items principally relate to acquisition
related expenses which are mainly performance based employment
linked consideration, primarily £99 million for Talpa Media which

has delivered in line with its first earnout hurdle and will receive
€100 million, subject to audit, in March 2017. Reorganisation and
restructuring costs includes £14 million of restructuring and
redundancy costs across the business in relation to our £25 mittion
overhead cost savings for 2017, The pension curtailment is as a result
of the closure of the defined benefit pension sections of the ITV
Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual.

Tax

Adjusted tax charge

The total adjusted tax charge for 2016 was £160 million (2015: £177
million), corresponding to an effective tax rate on adjusted PBT of 19%
(2015: 21%} which is broadly in line with the standard UK corporation
tax rate of 20% (2015- 20.25%). We expect this effective taxrate to

be sustainable in the medium term. The adjustments made to
reconcile the tax charge with the adjusted tax charge are the tax
effects of the adjustments made to reconcile PBT and adjusted PBT,
as discussed earlier.

2016 2015
Profit before tax (PBT) Twelve months 1o 31 December £m £m
2015 2o laxcharge (100) (139)
Twelve months to 31 December - on a continuing basis £m £m Production tax credits (28) (23)
Profit before tax 553 641 Charge for exceptional items (15) ®
Production tax credits 28 23 Chargein respect of amortisation of
Exceptional items (net) 164 103  intangible assets* {11) {4)
Amartisation and impairment of Charge in respect of adjustments to net
intangible assets* 77 58 financing costs {6) (3)
Adjustments to net financing costs 25 18 Adjusted tax charge {160) (177}
Adjusted profit before tax 847 843  Effective tax rate on adjusted profits 19% 21%

* Inrespect of intangible assets arising from business combmations

* Inrespect of ntangible assets ansing from busimess comiinations Also reflects the cash
tax benefit of tax deductions for US goodwill
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Financial and Performance Review continued

Cash tax

Cash tax paid in the year was £90 millicn (2015: £117 miltion), the
majority of which was paid in the UK. The cash tax figure is net of
production tax credits receivedin the year, The cash tax payable is

lower year-on-year because of the timing of the receipts of tax credits.

A reconciliation between the tax charge for the year and the cash tax
paid in the year is shown below.

2016 2015
Twelve manths te 31 December £m £m
Tax charge (100 (139)
Temporary differences recognised
through deferred tax {13) 29
Prior year adjustments to current tax {10) (9}
Current tax, current year {123) {119)
Phasing of tax payments — UK 5 (1)
Phasing of tax payments — overseas 5 (1}
Production tax credits - timing
of receipt 7 (14)
Cash tax impact of allowable UK
pension payments 16 18
Cash tax paid _(90) {n7)
Tax strategy

ITV is a responsible business, and we take a responsible attitude to tax,
recognising that it affects all of our stakeholders. In order to allow
those stakeholders to understand our approach to tax, we have
published our Global Tax Strategy which is available on our

corporate website.

(&) www.itvple.com
We have four key strategic tax objectives:

1. Engage with tax authorities in an open and transparent way in
order to minimise uncertainty

2. Pro-actively partner with the business to provide clear, timely,
relevant and business focused advice across all aspects of tax

3. Take anappropriate and balanced approach when considering
how to structure tax sensitive transactions

4. Manage ITV's tax risk by operating effective tax governance
and understanding our tax control framework with a view to
continuously adjusting our approach to be compliant with our
taxobligations

Our tax strategy is aligned with that of the business and its
commercial activities, and establishes a clear Group-wide approach
based on openness and transparency in all aspects of tax reparting
and compliance, wherever the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
Within our overall governance structure, the governance of tax and
tax risk is given a high priority by the Board and Audit and Risk
Cornrrittee, including through the operation of the Tax & Treasury
Committee. The ITV Global Tax Strategy as published on the ITV plc
website is compliant with the UK tax strategy publication requirement
setoutinPart 2 Schedule 19 Finance Act 2016.
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EPS - adjusted and statutory

Overall, adjusted profit after tax was up 3% at £687 million (2015
£666 million). After non-controlling interests of £4 million {2015:£7
rnillior), adjusted basic earnings per share was 17.0p (2015: 16.5p), up
3% whichis higher than the growth in adjusted EBITA of 2% due toa
decrease in our adjusted effective tax rate in the year to 19% (2015:
21%). The weighted average number of shares was broadlyin line at
4,010 million 2015: 4,006 million). Diluted adjusted EPS in 2016 was
17.0p (2015: 16.3p) reflecting a weighted average dituted nurnber of
shares of 4,029 (2015 4,035).

Adjusted EPS p

Statutory EPS declined by 10% to 11.2p (2015: 12.4p) primarily as
aresult of higher employment linked consideration (largely Talpa
Media), which is included within reported EPS but as in prior years,

is excluded from adjusted EPS as in our view these costs are part of
capital consideration. In addition there were higher restructuring costs
associated with our 2017 cost savings and higher amortisation of
acquired intangibles assets from a full 12 months of Talpa Media.

A full reconciliation between statutory and adjusted EPS s included
within the Alternative Performance Measures section,

Statutory EPS p

Dividend per share

In 2074, the Board made a commitment to grow the full year ordinary
dividend by at least 20% per annum to 2016 to achieve a more normat
dividend cover of between 2.0 and 2.5x adjusted earnings per share.

in line with this policy and reflecting ITV's good performance in 2016,
the Board is proposing a final dividend of 4.8p which equates to a full
year dividend of 7.2p, which gives a cover of 2.4x. We have delivered
average annual growth of 27% in the ordinary dividend over the last
three years.
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Reflecting ITV's strong cash generation and the Board's confidence in
the business, the Boardis proposing a special dividend of 5p per share
worth just over £200 million, bringing the total special dividends since
2012 to almaost £1.2 billion.

Locking ahead the Board is committed to a long-term sustainable
dividend policy. Ordinary dividends will grow broadly in line with
earnings, targeting dividend cover of around 2x adjusted earnings
per share over the medium term. ITV has £1.7 billion of distributable
reserves at 31st December 2016 available immediately to support
the dividend policy.

Dividend per share p (ordinary)

Free cash flow

0 2015
Twelve months to 31 December £m £m
Adjusted cash flow 862 788
Net interest paid (20) {9)
Adjusted cash tax {126) (127}
Pension funding (80) (90)
Free cash flow 636 562

Cash generation
Profit to cash conversion

2016 2015
Twelve months 1o 31December £m £m
Adjusted EBITA 885 865
Working capital movement (20} (72)
Depreciation N 27
Share-based compensation and
pension service costs 10 17
Acquisition of property, ptant and
equipment and intangible assets (44) {49)
Adjusted cash flow 862 788
Profit to cash ratio 97% 91%

Note- Except where disctosed, management views the acquisition of operating property,
plant and equipment and intangibles as necessary ongoing investment in the business

ITV continues to be highly cash generative reflecting our ongeing
tight management of working capital balances and our disciplined
approach to cash and costs. This is particularly important when there
is wider politicat and economic uncertainty and places us ina good
position to continue to invest across the business and deliver
sustainable returns to our shareholders.

In the year we generated £862 million (2015: £788 mitlion) of
operational cash from £885 mitlion (2015: £865 million) of adjusted
EBITA, which equates to a strong profit to cash ratio of 97%

{2015. 91%).

To facititate our working capital management, we have agreed a
£100 miillion non-recourse receivables purchase agreement (free of
financiat covenants) which gives us the flexibility to access additional
liquidity when required. At the 31st December, £35 million of
receivables were sold under the purchase agreement.

Note- Adjusted cash tax of £126 miilion s total cash tax paid of £20 million exciuding receipt
of production tax credits, which are included within adjusted cashflow from operations, as
these production tax credits relate directly to the production of programmes

After payments for interest, cash tax and pension funding, our free
cash flow remained strong in the period, up 13% to £636 million
(2015: £562 million).

Overall, after dividends (ordinary and spedial), acquisition related costs,
debt repayments and strategic investrments, particularly into ‘digital
first’ businesses, we ended the year with net debt of £637 million,
compared to net debt of £796 million at 30 June 2016 and net debt of
£319 million at 31 December 2015. Qur cash generation was weighted
towards the second half of 2016 due to the payment of the special
dividend and the acquisition of UTV, both of which were paid in the
first half of 2016.

Net debt tracker
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Financial and Performance Review continued

Funding and liquidity

Debt structure and liquidity

Our balance sheet strength, together with our strong free cash flow,
enables us to continue to invest in opportunities to grow the business
and make returns to our shareholders. To preserve our financial
flexibility we have put a number of new facilities in place. We have
increased our Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) from £525 million to £630
million and extended it for a further five years to 2021 {with the option
to extend to 2023). We have also increased our bilateral financing
facility from £175 million to £300 million, which is free of financial
covenants. This, along with our two bilateral loans which total £250
million and mature in 2017 (but may be extended untit 2018 at ITV's
opticn), provides us with sufficient liquidity to meet the requirements
of the business in the medium tolong-term, The RCF and bilaterals
have the usual financial covenants for these type of financing which
are detaited in note 4. OF the total £1,180 million facilities in place,
£250 million was drawn down at 31 Decemnber 2016.

Qur policy is to maintain at least £250 million of available liquidity at
any point.

Leverage

Our objective is to run an efficient balance sheet. We believe
maintaining leverage below 1.5x reported net debt to adjusted EBITDA
will optimise our cast of capital. At 31December 2016, reported net
debt to adjusted EBITDA was 0.7x (2015: 0.4x). Our priority is to invest
to drive organic growth and make acquisitions in line with our strateqic
priorities as we find the right opportunities to do so. We will balance
this investment with attractive returns 1o shareholders where we
have surplus capital.

We also look at an adjusted measure of net debt, taking into
consideration all of our other debt-like commitments including

the expected, undiscounted contingent payments on acquisitions,
the pension deficit under 1AS 15 net of gilts held as security against a
proportion of those liabilities and the undiscounted operating lease
commitments which mainly relate to broadcast transmission
contracts and property. This adjusted leverage measure better
reflects how the credit rating agencies look at our balance sheet.
At 31 December 2016 adjusted net debt was £1.637 mitlion (31
December 2015: £1,144 mitlion) and adjusted net debt to adjusted
EBITDA was 1.8x (31 December 2015: 1.3x).

Financing

We are financed using debt instruments and facilities with arange of
maturities. In December 2016 we issued a new €500 million Eurobond
at a coupon of 2,00% which was swapped into sterling using a number
of cross currency interest rate swaps. The net sterling interest rate
payable on these swaps is ¢. 3.5%. The net sterling proceeds from the
bond of £425 million were primarily used to refinance existing debt,
including the £161 millicn bond that matured in January 2017, and will
be used to pay the first tranche of the Talpa Media earnout due in 2017,

Net debt

206 2015
At 31December £m £m
Gross cash 561 294
Gross debt {1,198) {613}
Net debt (637) (319)
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Borrowings at 31 December 2016 were repayable as follows:

Amount repayable £m Maturity
£161 million Eurcbond 161 Jan 2017
£100 million Bilateral Loan 100  Jun 2017/2018
€600 million Eurobond 508 Sep 2022
€500 million Eurobond* 425 Dec 2023
Finance leases 4 Various
Total debt repayable on maturity** 1,198

*  Net of E2 million Cross currency swaps
** In addition to above we have a £150 rullion bilateral loan which was drawn down at 31
Decernber but was affset by depasit on account

At 31st December, the £630 miullion RCF was undrawn,

Ratings

We are rated investment grade by two ratings agencies: BBB- (positive
outlook) by Standard and Poor's and Baa3 (stable cutlook) by Moody's
Investor Services. The factors that are taken into account in assessing
our credit rating include our degree of operational gearing, exposure
to the economic cycle, as well as business and geographical diversity.
Continuing to execute our strategy will strengthen our position
aqainst all these metrics.

Foreign exchange

As ITV continues to grow internationally, we are increasingly exposed
to foreign exchange on our overseas operations. We do not hedge our
exposure to revenues and profits generated overseas, as this is seen
as an inherent risk, We may elect to hedge our overseas net assets,
where material. To date we have hedged a significant portion of the
euro net assets arising frormn the Talpa Media acquisition,

ITV is aiso exposed to foreign exchange risk on transactions we
undertake in a foreign currency. Our policy is to hedge a portion of
any transaction that is either a firm commitment for up to five years
forward or a highly probable forecast for up to 18 months, depending
on the level of certainty we have on the final size of the transaction.

Finally, ITV is exposed to foreign exchange risk on the retranslation

of fareign currency loans and deposits. Qur policy is to hedge such
exposures where there is an expectation that any changes in the value
of these iterns will result in a realised cash moverment over the short
to mediurn term.

The foreign exchange and interest rate hedging strategy is discussed
and approved by the ITV plc Board and implemented by our internal
Tax and Treasury Committee who oversee governance and approval

of Tax and Treasury related policies and pracedures within the business.

Pensions

The net pensian deficit for the defined benefit schemes at

31 December 2016 was £328 million {31 Decemnber 2015 £176 million
excluding UTV pension scheme). The increase reflects a rise in pension
lizbilities following a significant decrease in corporate bond yields
along with anincrease in rarket expectations of long-term inflation.
The overall increase in liabilities has more than offset the deficit
funding contribution and increase in asset values. The net pension
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deficit includes £39 million of gilts which are held by the Group
as security for future unfunded pension payments of four former
Granada executives. A full reconciliation is included within Note 3 7.

Following the acquisition of UTV Limited in February 2016, the assets
and liabilities of the UTV defined benefit pension scheme (whichis ina
surplus of £1 million} are included within the Group net pension deficit
at 31 Decemnber 2016,

Actuarial valuation

The tast actuarial valuation was undertaken in 2014. On the basis
adopted by the Trustee, the combined deficits as at 1 January 2014
amounted to £540 million.

The Trustee isin the process of undertaking a full actuarial valuation
of all sections of the Scherme as at 1 January 2017 which we expect to
agreein late 2017 or early 2018,

Net pension deficit tracker

Closure to future accrual

In Decernber 2016, following a mermber consultation, the Group
decided to close the defined benefit sections of the {TV Schemne to
future benefit accrual with effect from 28 February 2017, The benefits
of these members will become subject to statutory increases from
the date of closure until retirement, rather than the capped
pensionable salary that previously applied. This change has resulted in
aone-off £19 million non-cash curtailment charge which is included
within exceptionals.

Deficit funding contributions

The Group continues to make deficit funding contributions in line
with the most recent valuation in order to eliminate the deficits in
each section.

yiodey sj6eenys

The total defict funding contribution for 2016 was £80 miltion, 2 £10
million reduction on 2015, This contribution is expected to remain at
£80 million in 2017, Further details are included within Note 3.7,

Subsequent events
Eurobond repayment: On 5 January 2017 ITV repaid the £161 million
Eurobond as it matured.

Gurney Productions LLC. On & February 2017, the Group exercised
the call option to acquire the remaining 38.5% interest of Gurney
Productions LLC.

London Property Strategy: On 21February 2017, 1TV announced that
following an extensive review of its London property requirements,
it Intends to seek planning permission to redevelop its South Bank
site and build a new London horne. The teams currently located in
the South Bank site will be relocated to various sites during the
redevelopment period. As aresult of the review, ITV is also proposing
to close The London Studios (TLS) business and use studio capacity
in the external market to meet our future business needs.

Acquisitions: On 28 February 2017, we announced the acquisition of
65.05% of Tetra Media Studios SAS, the French production business.

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Risks and Uncertainties

As a producer and broadcaster ITV’s business carries a number of
risks which we manage through our risk management framework.

This risk management framework sets out
our processes for identifying, reviewing
and managing our risks and is regularly
assessed and adapted as the Company,
industry and macro environment evolves.
Our continuing success is dependent on
how well we understand and manage

our risks.

Our approach, whichis consistent with
previous years, covers risks at all levels of
the organisation:

« Principal risks:

- Highimpact, Low Likelihood (HILL)
risks — of low inherent likelihood but
where there would be major
consequences were the risk to
materialise

~ Strategic risks — would impact the
successful execution of the strategy

- Operational or process level risks
- embedded into everyday activity within
the organisation

Risks are primarily controlled through the risk
management process. The Board has carried
out arobust assessment of the Principal risks
facing the Company and details of these are
set on out on the following pages. Mitigating
actions have been identified for all of the
Principal risks. Each Strategic risk has been
mapped to at least one of the three key
Strategic Priorities and, where possible,
assigned key risk indicators. Where
appropriate, the key risk indicators are
aligned to our key performance indicators
(KPIs) on pages 36 to 35. All Principal risks

are owned by at least one member of the
Management Board.

In line with our Risk Management Framework,

the Management and Divisional Boards have
reviewed [TV's Principal risks and
uncertainties. While these potential risks are
predominately unchanged, the Board feels
the potential risk of a sustained cyber/viral
attack should be viewed as a HiL L risk rather
than a Strategic risk. The Board believes that
this better reflects the nature of this risk
because media companies in particular have
faced increased frequency and sophistication
of cyber-attacks
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Risk appetite

The Board is responsible for setting the level
of risk the Company is willing to take in line
with our strategy. There are clear approvals
frameworks in place and we continue to
develop our approach to ensure that the
business understands the Board's risk
appetite and ensure they understand
tolerance {evels and track the key risk
indicators to help manage each risk.

Three lines of defance

We continue to enhance our three lines of
defence model and develop our approach to
rnanaging risks. The business divisions own
their risks and the shared service functions
support thernin managing the risks. Internal
Audit provide assurance as to the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems. in areas which face
day to day operational risk, we are continuing
to develop our three lines of defence model
and to move our approach to risk away from

a rules and process driven system to a cultural
people driven sclution which we believe
encourages a focus on prevention rather than
reaction to failure. A new Leading Risk training
programme is now in place for ITV Studios

production management which will continue
to be developed and introduced to other
areas of the business.

Risk culture

Throughout the year we have continued to
focus on and strengthen our risk culture. The
Operational Risk Steering Group considers
ethical behaviours, governance and
compliance with our Code of Conduct. We
aim to have an open cornmunication culture
where information is shared andissues are
escalated as appropriate.

Assurance

Internal Audit provide objective assurance as
to the effectiveness of the Group's systems
of internal control and risk management,
reporting to the Management Board,
Divisional boards and the Audit and

Risk Committee.

The internal audit plan is driven from ITV's

risk management framework. Internal Audit
review the auditable elerments of the HILL,
Strategic and operational risks and this review
infarms the areas and topics that internal
Audit focus on.
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Risk management framework

Our ongoing process for risk identification, review and management is set out below.

Board

Sets strategic objectives

Identifies and evaluates Principal risks and uncertainties

= Setsour strategy onrisk and establishes tolerance levels and risk appetite
« Ensures arobust and appropriate risk management framework is in place
- Continually monitors the risk management and internal control systems

Management and Divisional
Boards

Operational Risk
Steering Group

Audit and
Risk Committee

With support from the Divisional
Boards the Management Board has
responsibility for:

+ the developrment and operation of the
risk management framework and for
the operation of our systems of internal
control. This includes:

- risk identification and assessment and
establishing controls and procedures
to monitor and mitigate risks.

- assessment and review of financial
controls, policies and procedures to
ensure risks are identified and the
processes and procedures arein
accordance with and aligned to
the strategy.

- reviewing and monitoring the
effectiveness of internai controls and
putting in place remedial plans where
controls are weak or there are
opportunities forimprovement.
Serious control weakness {if any) is
reported to the Board and action
taken as appropriate,

- routinely reviewing and challenging
risks and mitigations.

The Operational Risk Steering Group has
responsibility for:

+ considering and setting actions for pan
ITV risks and for ongoing menitoring of
those actions.

+ reviewingincident reports and other

statistics.

reviewing policies and processes to

ensure they remain fit for purpose.

« identifying and reporting emerging risks.

+ identifying and resolving issues.

-

Risk areas in scope of the group and sub
committees that deal with specific risk
areas are set out in the governance
framework on page 72.

The Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee attends meetings of the
Operational Risk Steering Group
periodically.

The Audit and Risk Committee has
respaonsibility for:

» overseeing and advising the Board on
strategic risk exposures and future
mitigation strateqgy.

« reviewinginternal controls and their
effectiveness,

- reviewing the effectiveness of the
risk management framework.

« conducting indepth reviews of high
risk business areas or processes.

- reviewinginternal audit actions
and management responsiveness
to the findings.

Details of risk reviews undertaken during
the year are set out in the Audit and Risk
Committee report on page 68.

Operation and Assurance — three lines of defence

1 Business divisions

2 Shared service functions

3 Internal audit

The business divisions own the
management of their risks and are
responsible for:

- identifying and reporting kocal risks.

- maintaining risk registers and business
continuity plans where appropriate.

- reviewing and implementing
mitigating actions

» Support the business divisions in
managing risks.

» Provide assurance as to the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk
management systems.
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

High Impact, Low Likelihood Risks (HILL)

There is a major collapse
ininvestment values or
amaterial change in
liabilities leading to an
impact on the pension
scheme deficit,

As a result of macroeconomic
changes there can be material
movements in the Group's
defined benefit pension
scheme.

+ For exarnple if the Bank of
England announces further
Quantitative Easing this may
change gilt yields and corporate
bonds rates, increasing the
scheme’s liabilities.

- Orifthereis anunexpected

world event thatimpacts

property values and/or
impacts share prices.

Potential Risk Key Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Directlon
M | ITV loses its credit status « Thereis arepeat of the » The business is cash generative and working capital
a or lines of funding with 2008/0% financial crisisas a management remains a key focus.
2 | existinglenders or there result of amajor bank collapse, | . [TV has abalance sheet policy to maintain adjusted net
& | is an event that impacts or there is a similar financial debt below 1.5x adjusted EBITDA and have available
= | financial arrangements/ outcome as aresult of an liquidity headroom of at least £250 million.
availability of credit. unexpected world event. « [TV has a £630 million Revolving Credit Facility with a

number of core relationship banks and £250 million of
financial covenant free facilities.

« The relatively low levels of ITV debt and our two
investment grade ratings mean ITV confinues to have
gooed access to both bank and bond financing.

There is reguiar communication between TV and the
pension trustees.
+ The pension scherme’s assets are invested in a diversified
portfolio, with a sigrificant amount of the fund held
in bonds.
« ITV has worked with the pension trustees tolimit
the potential deficit by a series of asset backed
arrangernents. Further, it has taken some mortality risk
out of the scherne with a longevity swap and hedged a
portion of inflation and interest rate variability.

1euonesado

A significant event removes
anumber of the key
management team from
the business on a long-term
or permanent basis.

Thereis a sustained
cyber/viral attack causing
prolonged system denial
or major reputational
damage, for example the
ability to broadcast our
channels or the availability
of ITVHub or ITV loses a
significant volume of
personal or sensitive data.

« In the ardinary course of
business activities there will be
times when the Management
Board are in one location or
travel together as a group.

- Withincreasingly sophisticated
technology, the risk of a cyber/
viral attack has increased
across the world.

= We are higher risk as a result
of operating in a public
environment.

+ Thereis abusiness resilience plan in place which includes
succession plans or norminated replacements for all key
positions within the Company.

+ We continue to improve our ability to monitor, detect
and respond to cyber threats internally and through
partnerships with specialist security organisations.

+ Mandatory online training madules, awareness

campaigns and simplified information security policies

have been implemented for employees.

There are disaster recovery and incident management

plans in place for high-risk areas of the business to help

deliver a rapid and flexibte response, These are kept
under review by the Audit and Risk Committee.

-
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Qur strategic priorities Risk direction (after mitigation)
Maxirmising Increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the same
Building Reduced risk
High Impact, Low Likelihood Risks (HILL)
Potential Risk Key Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
E An event with public » Through the Broadcasting « [TV has a crisis management policy and process in
T | interest that causes and Studios businesses, the place and is increasing emphasis on its development
£ | significant reputationat Company operates in a public and application.
& | and brand damage. environment.
5
3
There is a major healthand | « As the Company expands this + ITV has a centrat health and safety team and health
safety incident that results may result in an increase in and safety policies and procedures are in place, with
in a significant loss of production hours, and the appropriate training for employees where required.
human life, Cormpany could produce certain As we continue to expand internationally these will
types of programming which be kept under review.
have higher inherent risks. « Regular inspections are undertaken at all sites alongside
a programme of appropriate health and safety audits.
A major incident results in + ITV's broadcast technology « Arisk register of broadcast operations, including key
ITV being unable to continue chainis complex and risk can outsourced functions, is in place and reviewed on a
with scheduled broadcasting rmaterialise within ITV or with reguiar basis.
for a sustained period. third parties responsible for « Major incident scenario testing takes place bi-annually.
servicing the broadcast « Anincident management process has been agreed and
supply chain. fuli disaster recovery plans are in ptace.
There is a significant « 1TV could be affected if thereis | « 1TV regularly communicates with appropriate groups
or unexpected change in a change in UK media or and its legal panel and Ofcom to monitor potential
regulation or legislation. intellectual property regulation policy, legal and regulatory developments.
or legislation; for example if
there is a change in advertising
restrictions inkey categories.
+ Highlighted below are key risks
as a result of European Union
membership referendum,

Impact of exiting the European Union

As a result of UK European Union membership referendum, any  Inaddition, given the reciprocal nature of worldwide trade deals,

macro uncertainty may have a knock on impact to the overail there could also be knock on changes to UK legislation affecting

health of the UK television advertising market. broadcasting and intellectual property laws. For example, there
ray be pressure to weaken obligations to purchase original

Further there could be wider changes in regulation or legislation content made in the UK or to broaden exceptions from intellectuat

within the markets in which we operate. While the potentiat property protection,

changes and the impact of any such changes will remain unknown

for a while, ITV could, for example, be affected by changes to; The likelihood or extent of any impact is currently unknown but
going forward we will closely monitor and evaluate any potential

« EU broadcasting legislation and/or rutes around EU market areas of risk.

access, for example potential barriers against UK companies
selling programming to, or investing in, EU companies;
- indirect taxation, direct taxation or transfer pricing regulation;
+ restrictions to free movement of our staff.
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

Strategic risks

Potential Risk

Key Drivers

Mitigating Factors and Risk Directlon

There is a major decline in

» The current economic

» Growing non-NAR in areas such as TV Studios and

the previous year (2015: 89%).

-
3’ advertising revenues and environment is uncertain Online, Pay & Interactive, remains a key part of the
=2 | TV does not build which may impact demand for strategy.
% | sufficient non-NAR revenue advertising. However ITV has « 1TV continues to focus on cash and costs, ensuring the
2 | streams to mitigate the made significant progressin Company has adequate financial liquidity and balance
rt | financial impact of this rebalancing the business and sheet ﬂexib][itv to continue to invest,
decline. 53% of our total revenue
comes from sources other
than TV spot advertising.
The television market - The current platform mix » 1TV continues to support free platforms, including
moves significantly between free-to-air and linear YouView, to keep free-to-air strong.
towards pay televisionas a pay televisionis around 50% - ITV looks at and evaluates the opportunities for
preferred modet, each and has remained at this expanding its existing pay services and other pay
negatively impacting ITV's level over recent years. offerings.
free-to-air revenue. « ITV explores other platforms to understand viewing
habits and what people are prepared to pay for.
A faster than expected - Theway people are consuming | «+ The business continues to develop the ITV Hub VOD
shift to VOD or ather new television is changing and services, maximise the distribution of the TV Hub and
technologies, such as viewers are spending more grow its VOD advertising business.
internet enabled TVs or time watching online. However | . TV monitors the market for new technology and where
online only services, causes it remains a small percentage appropriate explores how ITV can participate.
a sustained loss of of total viewing at around 7% » ITV continues to invest around £1billioninits
advertising revenue. (2015 internal estirmates}. programme budget.
9 ITV fails to evolve its - Employing the best creative, - ITV constantly reassesses the business to create a
@ | organisational structure commergial and management fit-for-purpose organisation,
S | and culture to ensure that talentis key to our success. » Strategic focus on working across the business to embed
g’ | itiscapable of delivering - Failing to create the right and strengthen the culture of ‘One ITV' way of working.
= | continued growth from culture to attract and retain « ITVinvests in training and development for all key
g new bUSIN!SS:Si or revenue this talent increases this risk. colleagues in the business.
wn streams and fails to attract, | Employee engagement is = Succession plans are in place for all key positions within
g | develop and retain key critical and we continue to the Company.
§ | creative, commercialand monitor it through our
g | management talent with employee survey. This orce
& | the skills required for the again showed very high
@ ongoing business. engagement at 90%, up an
Q
)
=]
o
N
@
w
w
m
v
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Our strategic priorities

Maximising Increased risk
Growing Risk stayed the same
Building Reduced risk

Risk direction (after mitigation)

Strategic risks

Potential Risk

Key Drivers

Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction

$3553304d PUB 34N3ONAS ‘vonesiuebig

There is significant loss of
programme rights or ITV
fails to identify and obtain
the optimal rights
packages.

ITV fails to create and own
a sufficient number of hit
programmes/formats
across its international
portfolio of content
companies.

ITV fails to properly
resource, financially,
creatively and
operationally, the new
growth businesses, in
particular online

and intemational content.

ITV remains heavily reliant
on legacy systems, which
could potentiaily restrict
the ability to grow the
business. These systems
and processes may not he
appropriate for non-
advertising revenue or
international growth.

- Thereisincreased competition
for high-quality programme
rights as broadcasters and
platform owners demand
brand defining cantent.

+ Asanintegrated producer
broadcaster, ITV produces a
significant proportion of the
broadcast schedule itself.In
2016 this increased to 63% of
the main channel's original
comMmissions.

« [TV maintains gocd
relationships with independent
producers to ensure it has
opportunities to acquire quality
content.

+ Qur ability to create and own
hit programmes depends on
the quality of our content
business.

» ITVis the largest commercial
producerinthe UK and a
leading independent non-
scripted producer in the US
and Europe.

« Qur strategy is clear and we
remain focused on delivering
against our three strategic
prioritiesin the areas where
we can deliver most growth
as we continue to rebalance
the business.

« Our system requirements
change as we continue to
rebalance the business, grow
new revenue streams and
become increasingly
international.

» ITVis focused onboth protecting and exploiting existing
rights and ensuring that future rights generated accrue
tolTV.

» ITV has a detailed model to evaluate the value of
third-party rights to ensure it only buys rights that make
2CONOMIC sense.

- ITV invests in creating and owning quality content
through ITV Studios.

« ITV maximises opportunities for ITV Studios to create
successful shows by investing in the creative pipetine and
focusing on programmes and genres that can return and
travel internationally, i.e. drama, entertainment and
factual entertainment, as evidenced by our increased
investment in scripted content.

« ITvisfocused enhiring and retaining the nght key
creative talent.

+ Talent management plans have been developed and
reviewed to ensure adequate succession planning
acrossiTv.

« ITV continues to embed and strengthen the culture of
‘One ITV way of working.

- Lessons fromrecent investments are captured through
post-acquisition reviews.

+ System requirements are kept under review with
business growth and system modernisation projects
implemented as appropriate

- Amodernisation planis in place for the legacy systems
which remains under constant review and development
to ensure technology systems meet the needs of the
business.

+ Cyberrisk mitigations in relation to all of our systems are

set out on page 52.

This is kept under review by the Audit and Risk

Committee.
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Risks and Uncertainties continued

Our strategic priorities
Maximising
Growing

Building

Risk direction (after mitigation)
Increased risk
Risk stayed the same
Reduced risk

Strategic risks

resilience within its core
systems, processes,
platforms and technology
infrastructure.

the right plans and procedures
in place. Thisis taken very
seriously at ITV and the
adequacy and robustness of ocur
plans are reviewed and tested.

Potential Risk Key Drivers Mitigating Factors and Risk Direction
alA significant high-profile » AsabroadcasterITVhas « 1TV has ongoing modernisation projects to ensure
0 | incident or series of events sighificant prominence and transmission and distribution technologies are fit-for-
E4 e.g. asystem failure,a therefore is exposed to the risk purpose,
9 | technologyissue, ora of a high-profile incident. » There are disaster recovery and incident management
,g major regulatory breach plans in place in high risk areas of the business to help
< | that causes significant deliver arapid and flexible response.
reputational and/or - ITV proactively manages its broadcast chain partners and
commercial damage. suppliers to ensure the risk of incidents and regulatory
breach is minimised,
ITV fails to ensure ~ The key to business continuity « Disaster recovery plans are in pltace with tests conducted
appropriate business is having an appropriate risk periodically on business critical systems.
continuity planning and management framework and
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Viability Statement

Annually the Board assesses ITV's prospects and risks at its June
strategy day. Amongst other topics, the Board reviews the five
year financial plan which is based on our Strategic Priorities.

However, in its assessment of viability the Board reviewed the
planning horizon and is of the view that a three-year period to
31December 2015 continues to be most appropriate. The factors
the Board considered in adopting this timeframe are as follows:

» Visibility over ITV's broadcast advertising business is relatively
short term, as advertising remains cyclical and closely linked to
UK economic growth;

« The commissioning process and life cycle of programming gives
ITV Studios division more medium-term outlook. However, while
non-returning brands are replaced with new commissions, over
time there is less visibility as programmes can experience
changes in viewer demand or come to a natural expiration;

Technology in the media industry continues to change the
demand for content and also how it is consumed;

- Pension funding, which is one of ITV's key funding obligations,
is also agreed triennially with the Trustees of the pension scherne;
and

+ ITV's business model does not necessitate investment in
targe capital projects that would require a longer-term
planning horizon.

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board and signed on its behatf by:

Adam Crozier
Chief Executive

When considering the longer term viability of ITV, the Board has
reviewed each of ITV's Principal risks and uncertainties and, taking
into account current operational and financial performance, hasin
particular analysed the impact of:

« Broadcast & Online experiencing a significant and sharp
downturn, similar to the 2008/09 financial crisis, with regards to
advertising revenues, but in this case with no immediate recovery.
This scenario is cautious as recessions in the advertising market
have historically not exceeded a two-year period and have
recovered following the downturn;

« Anumber of key programme brands within ITV Studios
are not recommissioned. While the scheduling decisions of
commissioners are made in advance, a number of key shows
could come to an end at the same time; and

A significant change in ITV's pension funding obligaticns,
following the triennial valuation in 2017 resulting in doubling
the deficit funding payments.

The review involved flexing the underlying strategic forecast for the
above impacts, both individually and concurrently and no specific
mitigations were assurned. The underlying strategic forecast
assumed: business as usuat capital spending, the ongoing availability
of the financing facilities (as ITV remains within the covenants,
current bank facilities have more than three years maturity
remaining and all bond repayments due in this period have been
refinanced); and that the Group maintains the stated dividend policy.

Based on the results of this review, the Board has a reasonable
expectation that ITV wilt be able to continue in operation and

meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-year period ending
31December 2019, The assessment has been made with reference
to ITV's strategy and the current position and prospects.
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Chairman’s Governance Statement

In the Governance section

This section of the Annual Report contains a statement from your
Chairman and information about the Directors and Management
Board. it explains our governance structure and corporate
governance compliance and includes reports from the Audit and
Risk and Remuneration Committees and the Directors’ Report.

Sir Peter Bazalgette
Chairman

Dear shareholder,

1 was delighted to be appointed your Chairrnan in May 2016 andlam
particularly pteased that governance at ITV is strong as this is essential
to protect shareholders’ interests and ensure that we can build and
sustain the long-term success of the Company.

The Board continues to work closely with the executive team

and offers support and robust challenge conducted in a spirit of
openness, trust and transparency. The Board is a relatively small but
has talented, high-performing and experienced members who are
close to the business.

Over the past few years we have undertaken a continuous evaluation
process carefully considering the Board’s composition so that there

is a balanced and diverse combination of creative, cornmercial and
financial talent and experience enabling the Board to add the right
value as the business strategy is executed. Across ITV, we work to
ensure that the diversity of modern society is reflected at all levels

of the business including on the Board so that we have an appropriate
balance of skills and experience, Further details about diversity are set
out onpage 66 and page 99 and further information about the
evaluation process is set out on page 66.

I am very pleased that in January this year the Board was unanimous
inits decision to appoint Salman Amin as a Non-executive Director.
Salman has considerable expertise and knowledge in marketing,
advertising and media planning having worked for S C Johnson,
PepsiCo and Procter & Garnble and as such will broaden the

Board’s perspective of the wider international market. He is
currently undertaking a comprehensive induction programme,

ttis our policy to appoint Non-executive Directors for a three-year
period and then consider reappointment on an annual basis following a
robust performance evaluation. At the AGM in May 2017 John Ormerod
will reach the ninth anniversary of his appeintment. The Board has

! deliberated carefully and has decided to ask John to continue as
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee for an additional year

to enable us to ensure an appropriate successor is in place who has
sufficient time as 2 member of the Committee before he steps down.

66

We are proud of our culture
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Andy Haste will be stepping down as Chairman and a member of the
Rernuneration Committee following the AGM in May He will remain
a Non-executive Director and Senior Independent Director. We are
pleased that Mary Harris has agreed to become Chair of the
Rernuneration Cormmittee, having served on the Comrmittee since
May 2016. As a consequence Mary will be looking to reduce some

of her existing commitments over the coming months,

We carefully review Directors’ other commitments to ensure

that they have sufficient time to dedicate to our business. Details

of appointment dates and length of tenure for each director can

be found on page 65. All Directors are required by the Company's
Articles of Association to be elected by shareholders at the first AGM
following their appointment by the Board. Subsequently, all Directors
are subject to annual re-election by shareholders as recommended by
the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code).

ITVis a diverse business and to ensure appropriate governance it is
important that we have the right culture with the right people and
attitudes that encourages integrity and transparency. ITVis a talent
business and ensuring that we employ great people and allow them
creative freedomin the context of tight financial discipline is crucial
10 OUr SUCCess.

There are various ways that we as a Board consider and gauge the
culture of the business. We undertake a number of site visits and have
regular formal and informal meetings and discussions with senior
executives and other colleagues across the business. Since becoming
Chairman | have visited the majority of the regional news rooms, our
production centres in Salford and Leeds and our businesses in New
York and Paris., In addition, | hold reqular round table discussions with
colleagues and engage regularly with Senior Executives. This continues
regularly as part of our annual board and committee programme. This
helps the Board understand the cultural strengths and any weaknesses
in the business that may need to be addressed with management.

The Audit and Risk Committee also keep compliance with internal
control processes under review to help assess behavioural culture
across the business.

We are proud of our culture and that our colleagues enjoy working

at and are proud to work for TV and are fully engaged with the
business. This is borne out through rigorous, regular surveys designed
to gauge employee morale and attitudes. In addition, we have a robust
process that enables colleagues to speak up if they have any concerns.
We know that colieagues trust this process and are not concerned
about using it.

The Board meets regularly for scheduled Board and Committee
meetings and has a number of informal meetings to consider specific
issues. Each year we hold a two-day off-site strategy meetingwhere
we consider recent and upcoming changes in our business
environment, the risks and impacts of such changes on our business
and how we might meet these challenges. A brief summary of the
matters considered by the Board during the year and our focus for
2017 is set out on page 65

BURLIBAOD

Our shareholders are important to us and we remain committed to
maintaining regular open dialogue and effective communication with
you. We believe that continued engagement is highly beneficial to all
parties as it helps to build a greater understanding of our investors’
views, apinions and concerns.

As alisted company, ITV is required to report on how it has complied
with the principles of governance set out in the Code The Board
considers that during 2016 the Company has complied fully with the
provisions of the Code. Further information on corporate governance
and a schedule setting out how we comply with the Code canbe found
on our website.

(@) www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

A copy of the Code is available on the FRC website.

@ www.frc.org.uk/Our-Waork/Codes-Standards/Corporate-governance

Sir Pater Bazalgette
Chairman

1March 2017
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Board of Directors

Committee membership
(® General purpose
(&) Audit and Risk

(W) Nomination

@ Remuneration

@ Full biographies can be found on our website.
www itvple.com/fabout/board-of-directors

®®
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| sir Peter Bazalgette, Chairman

; Appainted: June 2013 (Chairman from May 2076)

! Key areas of prior experience: Media consultant, digital media investor and former television producer

' Current external appointments: Member of Advisory Board for YouGov pic and Bartle Bogle Hegarty.

; Previous experience: President of the Royal Television Society; Chairman of the Arts Council of England;

i Non-executive Director of Nutopia; Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

i and member of the Audit Committee of YouGov plc; Non-executive Director of Mirriad Ltd, DCMS, Rightster,

! Critical Information Group plc and Channel Four Television Corp; Trustee of DebateMate; Chairman of the
ENO and Endernol UK, Deputy Chairman and Director of the National Film and Television School; Adviser to

l Sony Music's television divisiorn; Chairman of the UK production business of Sony Pictures Television Inc;

I' Chief Creative Officer at Endermol Group BV and Endemol Entertainment UK Limited.

Adam Crozier, Chief Executive

Appointed: April 2010

Key areas of prior experience: Business turnaround and change management, advertising.
Current externat appointments: Non-executive Director of Whitbread PLC from April 2017.
Previous experience: Non-executive Director of G4S plc, Debenhams plc and Camelot Group plc;
Chief Executive of the Royal Mail Group; Chief Executive of the Football Association; Joint Chief
Executive of Saatchi & Saatchi Advertising.

lan Griffiths, Group Finance Director

| Appointed: September 2008

Key areas of prior experience: Corporate finance and financial restructuring.

Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of DS Smith Plc.

Previous experience: Group Finance Director and other senior finance roles within Emap plc;
Manager in audit and corporate finance at Ernst & Young,

Satman Amin, Non-executive Director

Appointed: January 2017

Key areas of prior experience: General management, marketing, advertising and media planning.
Current external appointments: Chief Operating Officer, Global Commercial Division,

S Johnsen and Seninc.

Previous experience: Chief Operating Officer, North America, SC Johnson and Son Ing; various positions
at Pepsico including: Chief Operating Officer, Purchase; President, PepsiCo UK and Ireland; other marketing
and various positions within brand management, personal care, paper preducts and food in the US, Saudi
Arabia, Germany and Switzerland at Procter & Gamble.
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. Roger Faxon, Non-executive Director

: Appointed: October 2012

Key areas of prior experience: Broad cormmercial, digital and mediarights experience, development of

: business strategy and finance.

i Current external appointments: Chairman of Mirriad Advertising Ltd; Non-executive Director of Pandora
! Media Inc; Director of The John Hopkins University.

! Previous experience: Director of EMi Group Global Limited and EMI Group plc; Chief Executive Officer of

L EMI Group Limited; Chairman and CEO of EMI Music Publishing; Director of the Songwriters Hall of Farne; L
. other appointments at the American Society of Composers and Authors and Lancit Media Entertainment

§ Ltd in the US; Chairman of VIVA Television in Germany and Channel V Networks in Asia.

FIURLIIAOD

Mary Harris, Non-executive Director
Appointed: July 2014
l Key areas of prior experience: Business management consulting, sales and marketing, mergers and
1 acquisitions, media, television and interactive media investrments and digital rights management.
! Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Reckitt Benckiser Group PLC; Non-executive
. Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee for J.5ainsbury plg; Member of the supervisory
: board of Unibail Rodamco SE.
. Previous experience: Member of the supervisory board of TNT Express NV, TNT NV, Scotch and Soda NV
i and Irdeto BV; Partner at McKinsey & Company, Amsterdam; various positions worldwide with McKinsey &
_ Company, Maxwell Entertainment Group, Pepsi Cola Beverages and Goldman Sachs & Co.

" Andy Haste, Senior independent Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

- Appointed: August 2008

i Key areas of prior experience: International and emerging markets, change management,

i restructuring and business turnaround.

i Current external appointments: Chairman of Wonga Group Limited; Senior Independent Deputy

| Chairman of the Council of Lioyd’s.

. Previous experience: Group Chief Executive of RSA Insurance Group plc; Chief Executive of AXA Sun
¢ Life plc; Director of AXA UK plc (life and pensions}; President and Chief Executive Officer of GE Capital
I Global Consumner Finance UK, Western Europe and Eastern Europe; President of the US Consumer Credit
© Business and Senior Yice President and Head of the US Consumer Loan Products Division of National
! Westminster Bank.

Anna Manz, Non-executive Director

Appointed: February 2016

Key areas of prior experience: Strategy and finance and financial planning.

Current external appointments: Group Finance Director at lohnson Matthey plc; Governor

at Haberdashers’ Aske's School Elstree.

Previous experience: Various appointments at Diageo plc including; Group Strategy Director, Regional
Finance Director Asia Pacific, Group Treasurer, Finance Director Global Marketing, Sales and Innovation;
: other finance roles at Quest International, Unilever and ICI.

John Ormerod, Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

Appointed: January 2008

Key areas of prior experience: Finance, developing strategy and growth.

Current external appointments: Non-executive Director of Constellium NV; Non-executive Director

angd Chairman of the Audit Committee of Gemalto NV.

Previous experience: Non-executive Chairman of First Names Group Limited, Tribal Group plc, Merlin

: Claims Service Holdings Limited; Senior Independent Director of Misys plc; Trustee of The Design Museum
and The Roundhouse Trust; Non-executive Director and Chairrman of Audit Committee of Computacenter
plc: Non-executive Director, Negative Equity Protection Holdings Lirnited, Millen Group Limited and BMS

. Associated Limited; Member of Audit and Retail Risk Control Committees of HBOS plc; Chairman Wailbrook

' Group; Chairmar: of the Audit Committee for Transport for London; Practice Senior Partner at Deloitte &

i Touche; Regional Managing Partner at Arthur Andersen.
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Management Board

@ Full biographies can be found on our website:
www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors
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5 Julian Bellamy, Managing Director, ITV Studios

: Appointment to the Board: February 2016

! Previous experience: Jullan Joined ITV in 2014 as Managing Director of the Studios business in the UK

E and was promoted to Managing Director of ITV Studios in February 2016, Julian's previous roles included

¢ Creative Director and Head of Commissioning at Discovery Networks International, Head of Programming
i at Channel 4 and prior to that he ran BBC3 and E4. He also spent time as Channel 4's Head of Factual
1E Entertainment and was a commissioning editor of Channel 4 News and Current Affairs.

Mary Fagan, Group Communications and Corporate Affairs Director

Appointment to the Board: January 2011

Previous experience: Mary joined ITV from the Royal Mail Group, where she was Corporate and
Government Affairs Director from December 2003. A senior city and business journalist with more than
20 years' experience, Mary's previous roles included Deputy City Editor of the Sunday Telegraph, Industrial
Correspondent for the Independent and City Reporter at the Evening Standard.

Andrew Garard, Group Legal Director and Company Secretary

Appointment to the Board: Novernber 2007

Previous experience: Andrew joined ITV as Group Legal Director in 2007 and teok on the additional role

1 of Company Secretary in 2009. He is also on the board of ITN, and responsibte for rights management, the

| ITV archive and Corporate Responsibility. Previously Andrew was a Partner in the corporate department of
LeBoeuf Larnb's London office. Prior to this, Andrew was Group General Counsel and Company Secretary at
Cable & Wireless plc where he was a mernber of the Group Executive responsible for Global Legal. Prior to
that he was Global Head of Legal and Deputy General Counsel of Reuters Group plc in the UK, and before
that, General Counsel Asia.

Kevin Lygo, Director of Television

Appointment to the Board: August 2010

Previous experience: Kevin joined ITV as Managing Director, ITV Studios in 2010 and became Director
of Televisionin February 2016. Kevin's previous roles included Director of Television and Content at
Channel 4, Director of Programmes at Channel 5 and a number of positions at the BBC, including
Head of Independent Commissioning for Entertainment.
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. David Osborn, Group HR Director
Appointment to the Board: October 2014
i Previous experience: David joined ITV as the HR Director for ITV Studios in May 2011, and was appointed
! to the Management Board in October 2014 as Group HR Director, responsible for delivering the Group's
| People Strategy. David gained previous experience in both the UK and internationally whilst working in
% a vartety of businesses including EMI Music, Vodafone, Visa Europe and Marks & Spencer.

g Simon Pitts, Managing Director, Online, Pay TV, Interactive and Technology

1 Appointment to the Board: January 2011

I Previous experience: Simon joined ITV in 2000 and has held arange of roles across corporate strategy,

' general management, digital media, policy and requlation, and public affairs. He took on his most recent

i role in December 2014 with a remit to grow [TV's Online, Pay TV and Interactive businesses alongside

1 continued leadership of the Technology team. He also has responsibility for SDN, sits an the boards of ITN
i and YouView andis a Trustee of the Royal Tetevision Society. Before ITV Simon worked in the European

; Parliament in Brussels where he specialised in mediaissues.

E Keily Williams Managing Director, Commercial

| Appointment to the Board: December 2014

Previous experience: Kelly joined ITV in August 2011 as Group Commercial Director and joined the
Management Board as Managing Directar, Commercial in December 2014, He is also Chairman of Thinkbox,
sits on the BARB Strategy board and is Vice Chairman of the Advertising Association. Before joining TV,

i Kelly was the Sales Director at Channel 5 and prior to that held various positions at UKTV, Sky and

Thames Television.
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Corporate Governance

Our Governance structure

Board

AN

Audit and Risk Committee
See the Audit and Risk Committee report
on page 68,

Disclosure Committee

Executive Directors and other

senior managers

Meets to ensure compliance with the
continuing obligations under the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules.

N

Remuneration Committee
See the Rernuneration Report on page 75.

General Purpose Committee

Executive Directors

Meets as required to conduct business within
clearly defined lirnits set by the Board.

Nomination Committee

Chairman and Non-executive Directors
Meets to review the structure, size, and
composition of the Board, including skills,
knowledge and experience. Identifies and
nominates for Board approval candidates
to fill Board vacancies, and considers
succession planning for Directors and other
Senior Executives. Considers and reviews
any conflicts of interest that may be
reported by the Directors.

Tax and Treasury Committee
Group Finance Director and
other senior managers

Meets to consider and approve tax and
treasury related matters in respect of
corporate transactions or other activities.
Monitors compliance with tax and treasury
related policies and procedures.

Matters reserved for the Board and Committee terms of reference are available on our website: www.itvpic.com/investors/governance

Management Board

Meets to consider and approve strategy and operational plans, monitors operating and financial performance,

and assesses and manages risk.

N £
Y

ITV Studios Board ITV Broadcast Board Operational Risk Business Resillence
Executive Directors Executive Directors and Steering Group Response Team
and Senior Executives Senior Executives of Manages and considers Acts as tactical response
of divisional business. divisional business, a number of existing and teamin the event of an

emerging operational risks incident, supporting the
Meets to consider and Meets to consider and and ensures that the business Management Boardin

approve operational matters,
and assesses and manages
risk in relation to the

Studios business.

approve operational matters,
and assesses and manages
risk in relation to the
Broadcast business,

addresses them appropriately
including in relation to:

Health & Safety, Child
Protection, Business Resilience,

Data Protection, Insider Dealing,

Whistleblowing, Anti-Bribery
& Corruption, Information
Security, Fraud, Technology
and Cyber risk.

dealing with a crisis. Develops
business arearesponse plans,
testing programmes and
incident reporting.

~N L
v

Programme Compliance
Advisory Group

Manages and considers issues
andrisks in relation to the
programme compliance
framework, the interactive
business and regulation

N L
AV

Corporata Responsibility
Board

Manages the direction and
delivery of ITV’s Responsibility
Strategy including in relation
to diversity and inclusion,
environment, communities
and social causes. See page 19.
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Board and Committee meetings

The number of meetings held during the year and attendance of Directors is set out in the table below. The Board agrees an annual schedule of
matters it wishes to consider at each of its meetings and those of its committees. The schedule ensures that all relevant matters are considered
and receive appropriate attention. Meetings are normally held at one of the London sites or one of the regional or international offices, Board
meetings are structured around the following areas:

« Operational and functional updates

« Financial updates

» Strategy and progress against Strategic Priorities

+ Risk management framework, key risk areas and risk appetite
» Other reporting and items for approval

Sentor Executives and other colleagues are regularty invited to attend meetings for specificitems. In addition to formal Board and Committee
meetings, meetings take place between.

+ Board members and Management Board members
+ Chairman and Non-executive Directors
+ Senior iIndependent Director and Non-executive Directors (without the Chairman present)

Our focus during 2016 and some of our plans for 2017 are set out below:

2016 2017
European Union Referendum issues International expansion of ITV Studios
Broadcast strategy and changes to commissioning International roll-out of SVOD strategy
Development of creative talent pipeline Impact of exiting the European Union
Review of the North American market London property strategy

Digital platform markets and strategy
Viewing trends, including younger viewers
International content strategy

Cnline, Pay and SVOD strateqgy

Board and Committee membership and attendance
Board and Committee membership and attendance at scheduled meetings in 2016 is set out below.

Nomination Remuneration Audit
Board Committee  Committee  Committee
Date of Tenure at
appontment 31 December Contract
Status Notes tothe Board 2016 YiM renewal date 10 1 6 6
Independent
Sir Peter Bazalgette Chairman 1 1June 2013 3/7 1June 2019 10 1 6 -
Adam Crozier Executive 2 26 April 2010 6/8 nfa 10 - - -
Roger Faxon Independent 31 October 2012 4/2 31 0ctober 2017 10 1 - -
lan Griffiths Executive 2 9 September 2008 8/4 n/a 10 - - -
Mary Harris Independent 3 28 July 2014 2/5 28 July 2017 10 1 4 6
Independent
Andy Haste SID 11 August 2008 8/5  11August 2017 10 1 6
Anna Manz Independent 5 1February 2016 0/11 1 February 2019 9 1 - 5
Independent
Archie Norman Chairman 4 5 January 2010 n/a n/a 3 1 2 1
John Ormerad Independent 18 January 2008 8/11 18 January 2017 10 1 6 [

Sir Peter Bazalgette was appomted as Chairman with effect from 12 May 2016,
Executive Threctors have rolling service contracts that provide far 12 months’ notice on either side
. Mary Harrs was appointed to the Remuneration Committee with effact from 12 May 2016 and two of the scheduled meetings were held prior to her appomntment
Archie Narman stepped down as Chairman and from the Board on 12 May 2016
Anna Manz was appointed to the Board with effect from 1 Februirary 2016 and one of the scheduled Board meetings was held prior to her appointment She was also appointed to the
Audit Committee with effect from 1 May 2016 and one of the scheduled meetings was held prior to her appointment
During 2016 there was full attendance of Directors and Cornmittee members at Board and Commuittee meetings

ot o=

[+)]
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Corporate Governance continued

Terms of engagement for the Non-executive
Directors are available on our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

During the year the appointments of John
Ormerod, Andy Haste and Roger Faxon were
extended for a further 12 manths.

During the year the Board used executive
search firm Zygos to assist with the search
process for a Non-executive Director with
experience in the advertising industry and
with an understanding of the future dynamics
in the advertising sales and broader digital
arenas. Following a rigorous search process
Salman Amin was appointed as aNon-
executive Director with effect from

9 january 2017.

Board effectiveness

Experience and independence
Biographical details for the Directors are set
out on pages 60 and 61 with rmore detailed
biographies available on our website,

@ www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

The Board is of the view that the Non-
executive Directors are independent in both
character and judgement. They constructively
challenge and help develop proposals on
strategy, scrutinise the performance of
management in meeting agreed goals

and objectives, and monitor the reporting

of performance.

The Board works well together,

bringing strong, independent, balanced
judgement, knowledge and experience toits
deliberations. Each Non-executive Director
has appropriate skills and experience so that
their views carry significant weight in the
decision making.

There are job descriptions in place for each

of the Chairrman, the Chief Executive, and the
Senior Independent Director which have been
agreed by the Board. These are available on
our website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

Evaluation

Internal

The work of the Board Committees is
reviewed annually with the support of Group
Secretariat. The evaluation takes the form of
interviews with Board and Cormnittee
members eliciting feedback on a wide range
of topics. In addition input is sought from the
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Executive Directors, other relevant senior
executives and external advisers.

Output is reported to the relevant Chairman
and areport of actions is subrnitted to the
Committees and actioned as appropriate.

External

During 2016 the Board continued its
ongoing effectiveness review facilitated

by the external firm YSC. The review was
aimed at evaluating progress and identifying
how the Board can best add value as our
strategy develops The evaluation comprised
the following:

» Individual interviews

« Observation of Board sessions

+ Discussions with Senior Executives

« Interview with the Company Secretary
= Access to key Board papers

Ininterviews the Board members were

asked to give their views on the chaltenges
facing ITV and what this means for the Board.
They were also asked to comment on the
strengths and weaknesses of the Board in
relation to these needs. Board members
who had participated in the earlier review
were also asked to reflect upon any changes
since then,

A report detailing analysis and
recommendations was compiled which
was discussed with the Board as a whole
and feedback was provided to individual
Board mernbers together with additional
development sessions.

It was noted that despite IT\'s recent
success there was a need to ensure that the
factors underpinning this success continued
to work productively. The Board needs to be
sensitive to creating conditions for keeping
and attracting talented senior executives to
ensure stability and continuity. In view of the
dynamic nature of the external environment
and the impact of technological change on
the industry the Board needs to maintain
perspective on opportunities and challenges
whilst developing a clear view of its risk
appetite and the extent to which successin
the next phase will require the exploration
of new paths and a greater appetite for risk.

Overall the Board was perceived to be
extremely strong and composed of seasoned
and experienced individuals who operatein a
professional and disciplined manner. The
culture of the Board was felt to be cpenand
positive but also challenging. Board members

feel they have a great connection with the
business and are used effectively outside
of Board meetings.

The Board is perceived to handle regulation
and governance in an effective and efficient
manner as well as creating time for the
discussion of broader strategic and

cultural matters.

Board tenure
The current board tenure is shown in the
diagram below.

Succession planning and diversity
Succession planning

The Board has agreed a succession planning
framework which it regularly reviews to
ensure that:

« Boardtenureis appropriate angd
encourages fresh thinking and new ideas

+ The Boardis sufficiently diverse but most
impartantly has the appropriate mix of
generalist and specialist skills

» Non-executive Directors have the
appropriate level of independence, from
the executive and each other

This year both John Ormerod and Andy Haste
will have served more than six years on the
Board. The Board continues to believe that
they bring a wealth of knowledge and
experience to their deliberations and provide
a valuable contribution within their roles. At
the AGM in May 2017 John Ormerod will reach
the ninth anniversary of his appointment.
The Board has deliberated carefully and has
decided to ask him to continue as Chairman
of the Audit and Risk Committee for an
additional year to enable us to ensure an
appropriate successor is in place and has
sufficient time as a member of the
Committee before he steps down.

Diversity

it is our policy to retain a strong but relatively
small board bringing a balance of in-depth
commercial and creative experience.

The Company has an Equal Opportunities
policy which is followed throughout the
organisation - further information is set out
on page 99. It continues to be the Board's
intention to increase the diverse make-up
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and representation of its members as
opportunities arise, but given the size of
the Board specific formulaic targets are
not appropriate.

Induction, training and development

The Company has a policy and programme
for induction and continuing professional
development of Directors. On appointment,
each Director takes part in a comprehensive
induction programme.

During their period in office, the Directors
are continually updated on the Group's
businesses and the comnpetitive and
regulatory environments in which they
operate. This is done through:

« Updates and papers which cover changes
affecting the Group and the market in
which it operates meetings with senior
executives across the Group and
key advisors
Reqular updates on changes to the legal
and governance requirements of the
Group and in relation to their own
position as Directors
» Presentations given at Board and
Cormmittee meetings on business
matters and technical update
sessions from external advisors
where appropriate

Key stages of the induction programme are:

Stage 1

Provision of documents

Duties of a Director, Board procedures,
Board and strategy papers and corporate
governance

Stage2

Meetings with Chief Executive and
Group Finance Director

Business overview, strategy, current
trading and key commercial issues

Stage 3

Visits to UK and international locations
and meetings with colleagues at all
levels of the business as appropriate.

During 2016 the Directors visited a number
of different sites. Sir Peter Bazalgette and
Roger Faxon visited the ITV Studios office
in the US, and Sir Peter Bazalgette visited a
numbrer of news rooms across the UK and
the ITV Studios office in Paris.

As part of the YSC board effectiveness
process individual development is considered
and plans put in place. Executive Directors
may accept external appointrments as Non-
executive Directors of other companies and
retain any related fees paid to them. Details
of positions held and fees received by
Executive Directors in 2016 can be found

on page 87

Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches a high priority to effective
communication with shareholders and has
regular and open dialogue withinvestors. The
Board believes that continued engagement
with shareholders is beneficial to both ITV
and its stakeholders as it helps to build a
greater understanding of investors’ views,
opinions and concerns. Adam Crozier, lan
Griffiths and the Director of Investor
Relations meet with many institutional
investors throughout the year to keep them
updated on the Company's performance
against our strategy. These range from
one-to-one meetings to group presentations
including the Full Year and Interim results

and the AGM. Specifically, following the Full
Year and Interim results one-to-one meetings
are held with our largest institutional
investors. The Board is kept up to date with
reqular feedback as part of the wider
reporting programme.

The Chairman and Senior independent
Director also respond to shareholder queries
and hold meetings where appropriate.

The Company maintains a programme

of engagement with the investment
community, including results presentations,
briefings to brokers and other sales forces
and attendance at a number of investor
conferences. Presentations given to the
investment community are available to
download from our website.

(&) www.itvple.comvinvestors

We regularly seek feedback on the perception
of the Company amongst shareholders and
the investor community more broadly via
our corporate brokers Investor comments
are fed back to the Board and its committees
regularly and the Investor Relations team
provides the Board with monthly updates
which include details on stock market
movements, shareholder register, analyst
forecasts and selected news on the

media sector.

Private shareholders represent more than
93% of our shareholders holding 3% of our
shares, We encourage shareholders to
register their email addresses to receive
information from usin a timely manner.

The AGM will be held on Wednesday,
10 May 2017 (further details can be found
on page 189).

At the AGM shareholders are invited to meet
the Directors prior to and after the formal
proceedings. At the meeting the Chairman
and Chief Executive will review the Group's
current trading which is followed by a question
and answer session, Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue
and alt resolutions are taken on a poil. Voting
can be done online or using a form of proxy.
The level of votes lodged on each resolution is
made available on aRegulatory Information
Service and on the Company's website as soon
as possible after the meeting. In 2016 the
meeting was attended by 125 shareholders.
Details of voting at the 2016 meeting

is available on our website.

(@) www.itvplc.com/investors/shareholder-
information/agm
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Audit and Risk Committee Report

In the Audit and Risk Committee section
The purpose of this report is to highlight
areas that the Committee has reviewed
during the year. We report to shareholders
on the significant financial reporting issues
and judgements made in connection with
the preparation of the Company’s financial
statements. Also highlighted is how the
Committee has assisted the Board in
reviewing the Company’s internal control
and risk environment. We explain what
the Committee has done to review

the effectiveness of ourinternal and
external auditors.

John Ormerod
Chairman,
Audit and Risk Committee

; Dear shareholder,

: On the following pages we set out the Audit

; and Risk Committee's report for 2016 which
provides an overview of the areas considered
i by the Committee during the year.

{ During the year the Board reviewed and

! refreshed its thinking on the Company's

! approach to risk management. The Board

| decided that it would be useful for the

! Committee to provide greater input on the
| risk management process. As aresult, the

| Board has expanded the remit of the

| Committee ta include risk and changed its

I terms of reference accordingly.

The Committee received detailed updates
from a number of executives who own key
business risks which enabled us tounderstand
how risks which could impact our strategic
objectives are being managed and mitigated
within the business.

in line with our Auditor Independence policy
we have changed our external audit partner.
Whilst there is no requirement to do sowe
have as a matter of good governance also
had achange in lead partner for our
outsourced internal audit function,

Looking ahead, with a change in audit
partners, we have an opportunity to review
our overall assurance and risk management
processes. Inaddition, as our strategy evolves
and the business diversifies we will continue
to develop our approach to new revenue
streams and our international operations,
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of its business

During the year the FRC's Audit Quality
Review team reviewed our external auditor’s
{KPMG) audit of our 2015 financial
statements. We have discussed the report
with KPMG and the Audit Quality Review
team. The review identified three areas for
improvernent in the audit which KPMG will
make in future years. Overall we found the
results of the review reassuring with noissues
identified which we considered cast doubt on
the fundamental quality of our audit or which
raised issues about our financial reporting.

We were delighted that Anna Manz joined
the Committee on 1May 2016. Anna takes
our membership to four independent
Nor-executive Directors. She brings broad
financial and commercial experience from
her executive roles. The skills and experience
of the members of the Cornmittee remain
strong and we have had a productive and
effective year,

Further informaticn on corporate governance
and a schedule setting out how we comply
with the Code can be found on our website
www.itvplc.com. We seek to respond to
shareholders’ expectation of audit committee
reporting and welcome feedback from them.

John Ormarod
Chairman, Audit and Risk Committee

1March 2017

'ITV continues to develop its control
environment in response to the
increasingly international nature
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Who is on the Committee

The Committee is composed entirely
of Non-executive Directors.

vThe Committee members have between them awide range of
business and financial experience. The Committee considers that
John Ormerod and Anna Manz have recent and relevant financial

The current members are: experience for the purposes of the Code. Anna Manz is Group
= John Ormerod (Chairman) Finance Director of Johnson Matthey and brings executive finance
« Mary Harris skills to the Committee deliberations.
« Andy Haste It details of G i i P
. Anna Manz @appointed 1 May 2016) fr[:e t:l;cs; ;:p:;t:ggance at Committee meetings can be found on
Ourrole
NS

The main role of the Cormmitteeis to:

- monitor the integrity of published
financial infermation and review
significant financial reporting issues
and judgements;

provide advice to the Board on whether
the Annual Report and Accounts are fair,
balanced and understandable and the
appropriateness of the going concern
staternent and the longer term viability
staternent;

assist the Board to establish and articulate
overall risk appetite and oversee and

advise the Board on strategic risk exposures
and mitigations;

review the risk identification and assessment
processes and undertake deep dives of high
risk business areas or processes;

review the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management processes;

monitor and review the effectiveness and
independence of the internal audit function;

provide advice to the Remuneration
Commuttee on financial reporting matters
andrelated judgements and risk
management as they affect executive

remuneration performance objectives;
and

review the quality and effectiveness of
the external audit and the procedures
and controls designed to ensure auditor
independence.

Following each meeting the Committee
communicates its main discussion points
and findings to the Board.

} Septeamber

yg—

« Emerging and business
specific risk reviews

+ Year-end planning
« Distributable reserves
planning

-
Meetings
h Y  —
February } May } July
Year-end financial - Half-year financial + Half-year report
reporting issues reporting issues + KPMG review
and judgements and judgements conclusions
Fair, balanced and - External Audit strategy and findings
understandable reviews { . Internal Audit
Viability Staternent independence
verification and evaluation
KPMG audit
conclusions and findings
Audit opinion

« KPMG interitn controls
review findings

- Review effectiveness
of internal audit and
following years plan

In addition to Committee members the Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financial Controller, Group Legal Director, Head of
Internal Audit, Director of Treasury, Director of Tax and the external audit partner regularly attend meetings. The Committee members meet
regularly with the external auditor and internal audit without executives present.

Annual review

An annual review of the performance of the Committee
was conducted for the year. In addition to feedback from
members of the Committee, input was sought from the
Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Financial
Controller, external auditors, Internal Audit and

the Chairman of the Board.

Overall, the review concluded that the Committee is
responding appropriately to its terms of reference and

hvd

will continue to develop its role. Priorities for this year
willinclude appointing a successor to John Ormerod,
developing our risk management processes and
streamlining some of our administration procedures to
free up time to cover a wider agenda.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be accessed on
our website.

® www.itvplc.comfinvestors/governance
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Our focus in 2016

In planning its own agenda, and reviewing the audit plans of the internal and external auditor, the Cormmittee takes account of significant issues
and risks, both operational and financial, likely to impact on the Company's financial statements. The Committee also addresses specific queries
referred to it by the Board or Remuneration Committee.

During 2016 there were no topics where there was significant disagreement between management, our external auditor and the Committee,
or unresolved issues that needed to be referred to the Board. Set out in the tables below is information on the key matters considered during
the year.

Regular reviews and recurring transactions
The fotlowing table summarises the regular reviews and activities undertaken by the Committee. Sorne of these areas may require the
application of judgement by management or have underlying complexity.

Financial « Financial results announcements - Auditor engagement and fees External
disclosure » Annual Report and Accounts « Auditor independence and objectivity audit
and = Accountingjudgements and estimates « Auditor Independence policy
judgements « Developmentsin financial reporting {including non audit fees)
+ Fair, balanced and understandable = Auditplans
= Viability Statement {page 57) = Auditor performance and effectiveness
- Significant failings and weaknesses « Key areas of judgement
» Going concern
\5 » Goodwillimpairment <|,
(note 3.3, page 140) r
( - Tax{note 2.3, page 126)
- Deal debt (see below)
» Pension accounting (note 3.7, page 148)
+ Deficit financing (see below)
- Revenue recognition (IFRS15)
- Appropriateness of Alternative
Performance Measures (page 34)
Internal + Internal Audit independence and - Principal risks and uncertainties Risk
control effectiveness and risk mitigations
- Internal Audit plan 2017 - Effectiveness of the
- Effectiveness of internal controls risk ranagement process
- Post acquisition reviews + Cyber security (page 52)
(Talpa Media BV} + Technology modernisation (page 56)
« Whistleblowing process + Health and Safety risk management
+ Material litigation (page 53)
\| + Insuranceprogramme J

f + Fraud controls Further information on aur risk
L ur
» Anti-bribery controls management framework can be
- Treasury policy and reports found on pages 50 to 57,
= Taxand Treasury, and Disclosure
Committee review
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Most of the topics mentioned above are relevant to all businesses, However, matters specific to ITV include:

« Deal debt: this is where managerment reviews the over and under delivery of advertising value to agencies. The Committee reviews
management's approach and method of determining the provisions required for under delivery.

« Deficit financing: as part of our strategy to expand our content portfolio, significant investment in high end drama is made.
The Committee reviews the accounting implications, including revenue recognition and recoverability of the amounts invested.

In both cases the Committee agreed with management's approach and their conclusions.

Complex discrete transactions
The Group completed certain transactions during the period that were in line with strategy but could have been considered cutside the

normal course of business. The Committee carefully reviewed these transactions to ensure that the judgements applied by management
were reasonable and any complex accounting guidance followed correctly,

Talpa signed a four year deal to
license ‘The Voice of China'in
January 2016.

Whilst ITV has done similar
multi-year deals for intellectual
Property (IP) and content, this
was by far the most material,
and therefore the accounting
treatment was examined

in detail.

See also note 21, page 120.

hadbeenmet
The following points were noted:

« The format IP was delivered, and
is fully available for exploitation,
and

» Nomaterial performance
abligations are expected of
Talpa in future years.

As aresult of the above key points,
together with the fulfilment of all
other revenue recagnition criteria,
management considered it most
appropriate for the format revenue
for all four years (the life of the
contract) to be recognised in full
in2016.

Area of focus Financial reporting and judgement Actign taken by Committee Qutcome
Revenue Talpa: contract for The Committee assessed whether  The Committee considered
recognition ‘The Voice of China’, the revenue recognition criteria management’s report on the

accounting and agreed with the
assessment that revenue was
recaognised appropriately, in
accordance with IFRS and ITV
accounting policies.

KPMG also presented their view
on the matter to the Committee,
noting consistent conclusions on
the appropriate revenue
recognition for this contract.

Fa
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Other matters

in addition to financial reporting matters the following topics were reviewed:

Area of focus issue Action taken by Committee Outcome

Cyber security Cyber security is an increasing risk The Committee undertook a Completed and planned mitigations
as our business develops new review of the cyber security risks were reviewed and assessed. The
revenue streams and direct to andstrategy and changes to Committee was content with progress
consumer propositions. reflect the ever changing and will continue to monitor and review

cyberthreat. this area.

Technology Legacy business systemsarebeing  The Committee reviewed the Completed and planned mitigations

modernisation modernised to reduce anumberof  programme of work to modernise were reviewed and assessed. The
key business risks. legacy business systems, Committee was content with progress

and will continue to monitor and review
thisarea.

Health and Fotlowing an internal audit of site The Committee has kept the In areas which face day-to-day

Safety specific health and safety mitigation actions under regular operational risk we are continuing
management a number of review and is satisfied with the to develop our three lines of defence
mitigating actions were progress to date. model and te move our approach to
recommended and considered, risk away from arules and process

In addition a general group wide driven system to a cultural people
health and safetyrisk assessment  driven solution which encourages
was requested and was considered  and focuses on prevention rather
in January 2017. than reaction to failure.
The Committee will continue to
monitor and review this area.

Tax Strategy In accordance with Finance Act The Cornmittee has reviewed ITV's Tax Strategy was approved by
2016 the Company is required to the strategy produced by the board on 26 January 2017 and is
publish its Tax Strategy. management and recommended avaitable to view on our website at

it for adoption to the Board. www.itvplc.com.

Bond Issue The Company proposed issuing a The Committee reviewed the The bond was successfully issuedin
€500 million Eurobond for general  bond issue documents andrelated  Decermber 2016 and was hedged in
corporate purposes and financing disclosures. In addition they accordance with agreed policies.
activities such asrepayment ofthe  discussed the related treasury
£161 million bond issue in January policy decisions such as foreign
2017, and earn out payments due exchange hedging.
on acquisitions, primarily Talpa.

Gurney Productions LLC, a subsidiary of the Group: Before the Group initiated legal proceedings against the sellers, who held a 38.5%
membership interest in Gurney Productions LLC, the Board considered advice received from US Counsel and the evidence supporting the

alleged breaches of contract and their fiduciary duties, as well as self-dealing and fraudulent concealment, and agreed with the conclusions
drawn and proposed actions suggested by management In 2017 the Committee plans to consider whether any improvements in procedures
and controls might have identified and mitigated the issues sooner and how any lessons learned can be applied to other acquired companies.
Further information is in Note 5.3, page 172).

Risk management and Intarnal Controls

Risk managermnent

The Committee continued to consider the process for managing risk within the business and assisted the Board in relation to compliance with
the Cade and development of the risk appetite framework. During the year the Committee terms of reference were extended so that the
Committee could provide greater input on the Company's approach to risk management. Further information on our risk management
process and detalls of our Principal risks and uncertainties is includedin the Strategic Report on pages 50 to 56.

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal control and for regularly reviewing the effectiveness of those systems.
The Committee assists the Board in reviewing the systems of internal control. The prirmary responsibility for the operation of these systemsis
delegated to management. Such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaternent or loss. Key
ontrol procedures are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk,
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As part of ourinternal control process the strategy is reviewed and approved by the Board. The Group performs a comprehensive annual
strateqy review and a rolling five-year financial planning exercise. The five-year plan feeds into the annual budget cycle. The Executive Directors
review formal forecasts, detailed budgets, strategies and action plans and the Board approves the overall Group budget as part of its normal
responsibilities. The results of operating units are reported monthly, along with an update of the Group’s performance against strategic KPis
and cash. Actual results are compared to budget and forecasts, and key trends and variances are explained and analysed.

Assurance

The Committee satisfies itself that internal controls are operating throughout the year principally based on a programme of internal audit
reviews, reviews of the effectiveness of internal controls including fraud and anti-bribery and through a suite of automated analytics which
monitor financial transactions in our systems. In addition to the internal audit programme, there are a number of exception reports that cover
transaction processing. For those subsidiaries not covered by exception reporting software, a monthly self assessment takes place whichis
subject to independent internal review.

Our Auditors
Internal auditor

The Group's internal audit activity is cutsourced to Deloitte who report directly to the Committee. The Committee continues to believe that
cutsourcing offers access to the wide range of skills and resources in the various geographies required and endorses its continuing use. The
Committee keeps under review the internal audit relationship with Deloitte and the procedures to ensure appropriate independence of the
internal audit function is maintained. During the year there was a change to the lead partner to bring a fresh perspective and approach and
continue to bring robust challenge. The effectivenass of internal audit 1s assessed over the year using a number of measures that include (but

are not limited to):

+ an evaluation of each audit assignment completed using feedback from the part of the business that has been audited; and
» ahigh level annual review that is completed by obtaining feedback from senior management in each division.

At the start of the year the Committee considered and approved the internal audit plan, that included audits across the Group as well as
assurance over live projects. During the year the Cormnmittee reviewed findings frorm these internal audit reports, the actions taken to
implernent the recommendations made in the reports and the status of progress against previously agreed actions. All internal audit reports

are available to the Cormmittee.

Extemnal auditor

The Group's external auditor is KPMG. The table below summarises the process followed to manage the relationship and audit process.

carefutly the scope of planned
work and the assessment of risk
and materiality onwhichit is
based. In particular, through
the Committee Chairman, the
Committee participatesin

the negotiation of the audit fee
to ensure that there is an
appropriate balance between
the scope of work and the cost
of assurance. The Committee's
aim is to support a robust and
effective audit and strong
reporting lines to the
Committee

The Committee agrees the
terms of engagerment, audit and
non audit fees and reviews
progress and results throughout
the year.

tender in 2012 and applying

the BIS guidance on the EU Audit
rules the next mandatory
tender would be for the 2023
financial year.

The Committee continues to
monitor audit quality to ensure
arobust and effective audit.

During 2016 there was a rotation
of audit partner. Following a
robust selection process by
management and the
Committee, our new partneris
Paul Sawdon.

We cormply with the provisions
of the Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use

of Competitive Tender and Audit
Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014,

the objectivity and independence
of our auditor through:

» focus on the assignment and
rotation of key personnel;

+ theadequacy of audit
resource; and

+ policies in relation to non
audit work.

During the year we updated our
Auditor Independence policy to
comply with EU legislation. A
copy of the policy is avaitable on
our website at www itvplc.com.

Fees paid to KPMG for 2016 are
set out in Note 21 on page 124.
Non-audit fees amounted to
34% of the audit fee, Significant
advice related to employment
taxinthe UK,

Engagement Audit tendering and rotation Independence, objectivity L Reappointment
and fees r]
The Committee considers We undertook a competitive The Committee seeks to ensure During the year the Committee

considered the performance
and audit fees of our auditor,
and the levet of non-audit work
undertaken, and recommended
to the Board that a resolution
for the reappointment of KPMG
for a further year as the
Company's auditor be proposed
to shareholders at the AGM

in May 2016. The resolution
was passed and KPMG was
reappointed.

The Committee has
recornmended the
reappointment of KPMG at
the AGM on 10 May 2017,
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

External Audit effectiveness and quality
The Committee follows the review programme below to satisfy itself of external audit effectiveness and quality.

February # May H July r November
- Audit scope and materiality « Audit Plan and Strategy « Feesandindependence » Auditor Independence policy
« Independence and objectivity || + Engagement - Audit Quality Review focus (reviewed every two years)
» Confirmation of work areas +  Audit fees - final
performed and other
significant risks
= Re-appointment

Audit quality is reviewed throughout the year and in 2016 the Committee used the Finandal Reporting Council's (FRC) Audit Quality Practice Aid
help structure its review of audit quality. When making its assessment of audit quality, the factors the Committee focused on included:

External audit quality reports The audit strateqgy for the year addressed thematic concerns that the FRC had highlighted.

Auditor interaction with Reviewing the auditor’s understanding of business progress against the strategy and emerging industry
management themes, as well as the auditor's discussion with management on key corporate transactions.

Auditors own view of £nquired with regards to:

effectiveness

- their audit methedology and its effective application to ITV;

their robustness of challenges and findings on areas which require management judgement;

« whether there had been aninternal peer review of the ITV audit and what the findings were; and
- the experience of the senior members of the audit tearn.

Further in its assessment of audit quality the Committee took into account:

- the detailed audit strategy for the year, including the coverage of emerging risks;

« Group materiality and component materiality;

+ how the auditor communicated any key accounting judgements and conclusions, and
+ feedback from management of the performance of the auditor.

There were no significant findings from the evaluation this year and the Committee considers the external audit to have been robust
and effective,

The Committee also considered the FRC Audit Quality Review feedback from their review of our 2015 audit and agreed with KPMG the
changes in audit procedures they will make and how we will support their implementation.
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Remuneration Report

In this report

The purpose of this report is to set out for shareholders the
proposed revised policy relating to directors’ pay required to be
submitted to shareholders for approval at least every three years
and to update you on how we have applied the current policy for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016. The report also aims
to demonstrate how our Remuneration Policy is aligned to aur
strategy, supports the retention of the Executive Directors and
rewards them for strong performance.
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ITV continues

to make significant
progress in growing,
strengthening and
rebalancing the business
away from its reliance on
television advertising

Andy Haste
Chairman,
Remuneration Committee

BIUBULIBADY

Dear shareholder,

On the following pages we set out:

¢ « the Annual Report on Remuneration {pages 75 to 88) which includes

this letter and will be subject to an advisory vote at our Annuat
General Meeting (AGM) on 10 May 2017; and

+ our revised Remuneration Policy (pages 89 to 97) which we will
be asking our shareholders to formally approve at the AGM.

2016 performance
As discussed in the Strateqic Report, iTV continues to make significant
progress in growing, strengthening and rebalancing the business away

; fromits reliance on television advertising. We continue 10 believe that
. this is the right strategy for the business, Adjusted EPS has grown by

¢ 844% since 2009 and although 2076 has seen a softening in the

¢ advertising market as a result of the economic uncertainty we have

¢ delivered revenue growth of 3% and adjusted EBITA of £885m (2015:

£865my). In addition, 53% of our total revenue now comes from sources

' other than traditional spot advertising.

While uncertain external economic factors will clearly have animpact
* on our business, we remain focused on our original vision and are

confident that our strategy, focused on three key Strategic Priorities,
remains appropriate for the long-term.

Performance measures for our Annual Bonus Awards and Long-Term
Incentive Plan (LTIP) are closely aligned to our KPIs (set out on pages
36 to 39) and Alternative Performance Measures (APMs). Our KPIs
have been defined to align our performance and accountability to our

[ strategy. The KPis are the key measures of our success and cover all of
. our Strategic Priorities, Details of our APMs and the reconciliation
i between statutory and adjusted results is set out on pages 34 to 35

Performance against KPIs which are aligned to our Bonus and LTIPis
set out below:

2016 2015
Adjusted EBITA £885m  £865m
Profit to cash conversion 97% 91%
Adjusted EPS 17.0p 16.5p
Family SOV . 214%  N2%
Total non-NAR growth 1M1% 25%

In addition, over the past few years we have included a cost-saving
target in our Annual Bonus Awards to ensure that management
focuses on streamlining the business.

2016 remuneration outcomes

While the Company has continued to perform well, particularty
in a challenging external environment, we did not achieve the
ambitious profit target set internally at the start of the year.
However, the targets for cost savings and profit to cash
cornwersion were achieved in full,
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Remuneration Report continued

As reported last year the weighting of the personal performance
target was reduced from 40% to 25% of the bonus opportunity.
When considering the bonus payout levels for the Executive Directors
the Committee took account of the excellent delivery against targets
which included the cost saving target that was fully achieved, the
increase in Family SOV demonstrating the underlying health of the
brand and the strength of the rmain channel and strong growth in
non-NAR.

As aresult, the Committee agreed the total bonus payout levet

for both Executive Directors at 40%, 15% on financial and 25%

on personal performance opportunity which paid out in full. This
reflected the excellent delivery against the individual targets which
were set to balance the financial targets. The Committee was
conscious that this out-turn was higher than the out-turn for the
financial element, but felt it was appropriate given the overall results
and good performance in delivering cost savings, managing cash,
viewing performance and rebalancing the business. The Committee
concluded that the out-turn produced a resuit which was, overall, fair
and did not apply any discretion to adjust it. Further information and
details of the bonus targets for 2016 are set out on page 81.

During the year, awards made under the LTIP in 2014 reached the end
of their performance period and will vest at 80% with the Family SOV
elermnent not vesting despite the improvement in 2016. In line with our
phased approach to the introduction of holding periods 50% of the
vested amount becomes exercisable in May 2017 and the remainder
in May 2018. Details are set out on page 82

The Committee considers the total pay of the Executive Directors to
be a fair reflection of their overall contribution to the success of the
business, The Committee has not exercised any discretion during the
year or felt it appropriate to call on malus and claw-back provisions.

Remuneration Policy review

During 2016, we undertook a review of the Remuneration Policy for
the Executive Directors in preparation for the AGM in 2017 when the
existing policy will reach its third anniversary and require resubmission
to shareholders.

Objective of the review

The principal objective of the review was to ensure that the
remuneration framewark remains aligned with the strategy of
the business and continues to incentivise the Executive Directors
to deliver exceptional performance for shareholders.

We believe that our existing remuneration framework remains fit for
purpose, is aligned with the strategy of the business andis linked to our
key KPIs. The Committee therefore does not consider it appropriate to
rmake significant changes to our policy at this stage as we are satisfied
that our remuneration framework promotes long-term alignrment witt
shareholders and does not encourage undue risk taking. We will keep
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under review emerging best practice in the light of the Executive
Remuneration Working Group final report (which proposed replacing
traditional LTIPs with non-performance restricted stock awards) but
do not, currently, consider this appropriate

Surmmary of key changes
The proposed adjustments to the remuneration framework for
Executive Directors include the following:

- Base salary and benefits cap — we are introducing a formal cap
on base salary and on the overall cost of benefits. These do not in
any way form an aspiration and we do not envisage any change
in practice as a consequence; they simply reflect the latest
regulatory guidance.

» Performance measures - we will continue to ensure that
performance measures are closely aligned with our strategy.
The measures continue to be appropriate but the nature of our
business continues to change which may require us to consider
the measures in future, To ensure we can retain the link to our
strategy as it evolves we have included more flexibility to change
performance measures for new awards. This is In line with existing
market practice.

Remuneration policy implementation in 2017

Details of how the Committee proposes ta implement the policy,
if approved, in 2017 are set out on page S4. Bonus targets and
performance conditions for LTIP awards to be made in 2017 have
been setin line with the proposed Remuneration Policy and have
been aligned closely with our strategy.

The Executive Directors did not receive an increase to base salary
frorn 1 January 2017, This is in line with the approach taken for the
wider emnployee population.

Principles considered when setting remuneration

The media market in which ITV operates is particularly competitive.
We aim to balance the need to attract and retain high-quality taient
essential to the Company’s success with the need to be cost-effective
and to reward exceptional performance. The Remuneration Policy
balances these factors, while taking into account the prevailing best
practice and a fair outcome for investors.

A significant proportion of the remuneration package is tied

to the achievement of stretching performance conditions, that
align remuneration with our strategy to deliver strong business
performance and create shareholder value. Individuals should
be rewarded for success and performance measured over clear
timescales. The remuneration package is focused on rewarding
sustained long-term performance and aligning executives with
the sharehotder experience.
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When considering the out-turn for annual bonus awards

the Committee ensures that bonuses do not lead to adverse
environmental, social or governance issues or encourage bad
behaviour. ITV takes these issues seriously and further information can
be found on our Responsibility website at wwwiitvresponsibility.com
and in the Strategic and Governance reports.

Shareholder views

Details of voting on rermmuneration resolutions at the AGM in May 2016
are set out on page 84 for which we were pleased to receive strong
investor support. We will make available the results of the voting at
the AGM to be held in May 2017 shortly after the meeting.

We seek to respond to shareholders’ expectations of remuneration
reporting and would welcome feedback. Where we are proposing
to make any significant changes to the ongoing operation of the
Remuneration Policy we shall seek shareholders’ views and take
these into account.

After just over six years as Chairman of the Committee | will
be stepping down following the AGM in May 2017 and lam
very pleased that Mary Harris will succeed me as Chair. | will
remain as a Non-executive Director and Senior Independent
Director for the time being.

Andy Haste
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

1March 2017

Throughout this report we make reference to Strategic Priorities.
For reference these are as detailed in the tables below.

For awards made in 2016 and 2017

Target
Maximise audience and revenue from free-to-air
and VOD business
Grow an international content business

Build a global pay and distribution business

Further information on each of the above is set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 21to 33.

For awards made up to and including 2014
Target
(@) Create alean, creatively dynamic and fit-for-purpose

organisation
(@ Maximise audience and revenue share from our existing

free-to-air Broadcast business
@  Drive new revenue streams by exploiting our content

across multiple platforms, free and pay
@  Build a strong international content business

Further information on each of the above is set out in the 2016
Strategic Report available on our website.

(@) www.itvplc.com/finvestars

SIURUISADY)
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Remuneration Report continued

Who is on the Committee

The Committee is composed entirely of
Non-executive Directors. The current members are:

« Andy Haste (Chairman)
- Sir Peter Bazalgette

- Mary Harris

« JohnOrmerod

Full details of attendance at Committee meetings can be
found on page 65.

Our role

—

The main role of the Committee is to:

« review the ongoing appropriateness, relevance and effectiveness of the
Remuneration Policy including in relation to retention and developrment;

propose to shareholders changes 1o the Remuneration Policy and approve
its implementation for the Executive Directors, Management Board ang
other Senior Executives (together the Senior Executive Group) taking into
account arrangements for the wider employee group. Details on
employee remuneration can be found on page 123,

« approve the design of the Company’s annual bonus arrangements
and Long-Term Incentive Plans, Including the performance targets that
apply for the Semor Executive Group, and

« determine the award levels for the Senior Executive Group based on
performance against annual benus targets and long-term incentive
conditions.

Following each meeting the Committee communicates 1ts main
discussion points and findings 1o the Board. Regular discussion topics
are set aut below

Meetings

January

P TR

© ctober

jg—

« Financial performance ||+ Bonustargets agreed |] » Market update » Reward framework » Bonus payout « Bonus framework and
update for current year « Financiat performance|| 2ndcurrent trends forecasts targets
- Indicative bonus - LTIP awards and update « Consideration of « Internal Audit process {| - Terms of reference
outcomes and payout targets agreed for remuneration in the review review
tavels current year wider emmployee + Review of
+ Indicative LTIP + Rernunerationreport group remuneration
performance and review consultants
vesting levels - Compliance with the « Annual pay review
« Pay review outcomes Remuneration policy
and changestoSenior || . Compliance with
Executive Group shareholding
« Adwvisor independence guidelines
« mnternal Audit review
of outcomes

fon C

In addition to Committee members the Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group HR Director, Director for Pensions and Reward
4 dvisor FIT !

L

and Indep it

gularly attend meetings.

Annual review

An annual review of the perfarmance of the Committee was
conducted for the year. In addition to feedback from mernbers
of the Committee input was alsc sought from the Chief
Executive, Group Finance Director, Group HR Directer and

F{* Remuneration Consultants, the independent advisor to
the Committee,

Overall the review concluded that the Committee is responding
appropriately toits terms of reference and will continue to

N

develop its role. Priorities for this year willinclude a smoath
transition of Committee Chairman and consideration of
wider membership.

The Committee’s terms of reference can be accessed on
our website,

(S) www.itvplc.com/investors/governance
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Annual Report on Remuneration

The sections of the Annual Report on Remuneration that have been audited by KPMG are pages 80 to 84, and page 86 (from and including
Directors’ Share Interests) to page 88.

Remuneration Policy in 2017
The following section provides details of how the Remuneration Policy will be implemented in 2017

Executive Directors
Salary
There has been no change to Executive Directors' base salaries with effect from 1January 2017 and these remain as follows

1.January 1January

0% 2016
£000 £000 % Change
Adam Crozier 941 941 0
lan Griffiths 575 575 [¢]

Salary increases for Executive Directors followed those of the wider employee population. For 2017, an increase of 1.5% was paid to employees
earning less than £100,000 per annum.

Taxable benefits and pension
These will be provided in line with the Remuneration Policy and no changes are envisaged.

Bonus {cash and shares)

Awards made to Executive Directors through the bonus will be paid twe-thirds in cash and one-third deferred into shares under the Deferred
Share Award Plan (D5A). The proposed performance measures and weightings for awards are detailed below and remain unchanged from 2016.
The Board considers the actual targets for 2017 to be commercially sensitive at this time and we envisage including equivalent disclosures to
those included in respect of the 2016 bonus in next year’s report.

Performance measure Strateglc target Maximum
Adjusted ITV plc EBITA (before exceptional items) 50%
Profit to cash conversion 10%
Cost savings 5%
Individual targets 25%

Share awards

The proposed performance measures and targets for awards to be made in 2077 are detalled below.

Under the LTIP rules, the maximum annual award that can be granted in any financial year 1s 350% of salary This is to allow the Committee
flexibility when recruiting Executives and to ensure the longevity of the plan. There is currently no intention to grant awards at this level.
Awards in 2017 will be made to the Executive Directors with a value of 225% of salary.

Threshold vesting for all targets is 20% with vesting between threshotd and maximum (100%} on a straight-line basis. Farnily SOV has an
additional vesting threshold of 75% for performance of 21.36%. When assessing performance against this target, the Committee will also
have regard to the health of the main {TV channel. Each measure is also subject to an underpin that the cumulative EPS is at least 56.3 pence,

Performance measure Strategic target Welghtings Threshold Maximum
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 56.3p 64.2p
Family SOV 20% 20.2% 216%
Total non-NAR growth 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
international production revenue 10% 5% growth pa 15% growth pa
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% growth pa

Shares that vest will be subject to a two-year holding period.

79

DURLIIALY



Governance P Annual Report on Remuneratior

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Non-executive Directors

There was no increase ta Non-executive Director fees from 1January 2017 as set out below.

1January 1January
2017 2016
3 £ % change
Chairman (all-inclusive fee)’ 450,000 500,000 0
Board fee 65,054 65,054 )
Additional fees for:
Senior Independent Birector 25,000 25,000 0
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman 20,000 20,000 o
Audit and Risk Committee member 5,371 5371 0
Remuneration Committee Chairman 20,000 20,000 0
Remuneration Carmmmittee member 5,371 5,371 Q
1 SirPeter Bazalgette was appointed Chairman on 12 May 2016 2016 total is for the previous Chairman
2 Details of Committee membership can be found in the Governance sectron on page 65.
Remuneration policy applicationin 2016
The following section provides details of how the current Remuneration Policy was implemented in 2016.
Executive Directors
The table below sets outin a single figure the total rernuneration for both Executive Directors for the financial year.
Bonus
Salary Taxable benefits {cash and shares) Share awards Pension Total
2016 2015 016 2015 2016 2015 20162 20151 2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adam Crozier 941 918 1% 19 677 1586 1,571 1129 235 229 3443 3881
lan Griffiths 575 561 14 15 380 879 960 619 144 140 2,073 2,214
1,57 1,479 34 34 1,056 2465 2,531 1748 379 369 5516 6,095

-

In the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts part of the amount shown was the indicative vesting value of the 2013 PSP awards that were subject to performance conditions measured 10

31December 2015 The figures shownan the table above represent the subsequent value received on the vesting date of 29 March 2016 UsiNg the share price on that day (240.98 pencel,

atotal decrease of £141.625,

2. The amount shawn is the ndicative value of the 2014 LTIP awards that were subject to performance conditions measured to 31 December 2016 The vatue was calculated using the
average share price for the final quarter of 2016 (178 pence) 50% of these shares are subject to a one year holding period
3 The aggregate emoluments for atl directars as required under Schedule 5.(512008/410) is the total remuneration shownin the table abiove less share awards, plus the total emolument

figures for Non-executive Directars shown on page 83, £3,908k.

Further informationin relation to each of the elements of remuneration for 2016 set out in the table above is detailed below. An explanation
for 2015 is set out in detail in our 2015 Annual Report and Accounts, which can be found on our website.

(&) www.itvplc.com/investors
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Salary
Executive Directors’ base salaries were increased by 2.5% with effect from 1 January 2016 in line with those of the wider employee population.

Taxable benefits
The benefits provided to the Executive Directors include the cost of private medical insurance and car-related benefits.

Bonus {cash and shares)

Annual incentives are provided to Executive Directors through the bonus, with one-third of any award deferred into shares under the
Deferred Share Award Plan (DSA). The performance conditions that apply to the bonus are set on an individual basis and are linked to the
Company's corporate, financial and strategic priorities. This enables the Committee to reward both annual inancial performance delivered
for shareholders, and performance against specific financial, operational or strategic objectives set for each Executive Director, which are
closely linked to the strategic priorities of the business. As stated inlast year's report, the weighting on personal performance was reduced
for 2016 from 40% to 25% of the total bonus opportunity. Payments and deferrals in respect of the financial year are set out below,

% of maximurm  Value deferred

bonus nto shares Value paid
opporturity under the DSA incash Total vatue
earned
Adam Crozier 40% £225,828 £451656 £677.484
lan Griffiths 40% £126,506 £253,0M £379,517

Percentage of maximum bonus opportunity earned for 2015 was 96% and 95% for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths respectively
When considering performance outcomes, the Committee looks to ensure the outcomes align with overall business performance.

The majority of the bonus (75%) was based upon the achievernent of corporate and financial targets, with payout determined in accordance
with pre-set target ranges subject only to the usual adjustments to exclude the impact of material in-year acquisitions and disposals, significant
unbudgeted initiatives and currency movements,

The remainder of the bonus {25%) was based upon the Committee's assessment of the contribution each Executive Director has made to the
overall strategy through the delivery of specific targets. Both Executive Directors had a number of common objectives aligned to our Strategic
Pricrities. The Strategic Report sets out mare detail of the Company’s achievements in the year.

In a year which brought the EU referendum result, the subsequent market uncertainty and a 3% decline in NAR the Executive Directors
responded swiftly and robustly to the resulting business impact. They instigated prompt cost savings and provided strong leadership which has
resulted in a record adjusted profit for the Company. The Executive Directors delivered well on their original objectives and also on some new
ones developed in response to the changed market conditions:

+ Adam Crozier oversaw a refreshed broadcasting strateqy, resulting in SOV growth both for the Company’s main and family of channels.
There was once again strong growth in ITV's Online, Pay and interactive businesses. The Group’s global business was driven forward, with
vertical integration of value from the Talpa acquisition and the announcement of BritBoxin the USA.

= lan Griffiths supported ITV Studios and ITV Broadcast to develop their international businesses and creative performance and secured
agreerment to ITV's London property strategy.

In the circumstances and noting that alt of these targets were fully achieved along with full delivery of other personal measures, the Committee
agreed that a 100% pay out against personal measures was appropriate as explained in the Chairman'’s letter on page 75. The Committee also
confirms that, where relevant, it also considered environmental, social and governance factors in considering the overall outcome,
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Inorder to reflect best practice, the Cornrittee has provided disclosure of the corporate and financial targets used for 2016, together with
performance against those targets and the resulting level of payout as set out betow.

Performance required Performance Payout level Strategic
Performance measure Weighting Threshold Target Max achieved target
Adjusted ITV plc EBITA {before exceptional items) 60%  £506m £94Im £971m £885m 0%
Profit to cash conversion 10% 78.5% 83.5% 88.5% 97% 100%
Cost savings 5% £162m  £18.2m  £202m  £289m 100%

Performance against the personal targets as noted above (25% weighting), resutted in payouts of 100% of the maximum against these targets for Adam Crozier andlan Griffiths Up ta 20%
15 payabie for thresheld and up to 60% for target performance.

Share awards

\We are required 1o show share awards in the remuneration table on page 80 according to the year in which the performance period for each
performance condition carme to an end. 100% of the awards made in 2014 under the LTIP were subject to performance ¢onditions measured to
31 December 2016, The indicative value of these awards is set out below.

Value at

Value at Number 31December Changein

Number pf award date of shares 20162 share price since

shares awarded £ vesting' £ award date
Adam Crozier 1,103,543 2,025,000 882,835 1,571,448 {3.0)%
lan Griffiths 674,387 1,237,500 539,510 960,327 (3.00%

1 The vesting figures shown in the table above reflect 80% of the total award that met performance conditions on 31 December 2016 50% will becorne exeraisable on 30 May 2017,
and the remaining 50% will become exercisable after a one year holding penad on 30 May 2018

2 Theshare pnice used ta value the shares at 310ecember 201615 the average share price for the final quarter of 2016 (178 pence) The share price used to calculate the nurmber of shares
under award was 183 5 pence (the average of the share pnce on each of the 27,28 and 29 May 2014)

When considering performance outcomes the Committee looks beyond formulaic results to ensure the outcomes align with overall business
performance. in the circumstances, the formulae were applied without adjustment.

Details of the performance achieved for the 2014 LTIP awards are below. A gateway condition of minimum curnulative adjusted EPS (37.1 penice)
was met before any portion of the award could vest.

Performance

Performance measure Strategic target Weighting Targets achieved Payout Level
Cumulative adjusted EPS @ 50% 377p = 20% vesting

42.3p = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 47.p 100%
Farnily SOV @ 20%  Maintain at 23.05 = 20% vesting

23.51% (+2% growth) = 100% vesting

Vesting on a proportionate basis between 21.36% 0%
Tetal non-NAR growth [©]O)] 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

‘10% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 15.27% 100%
International production
Revenue for 2016 @ 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

15% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 31.52% 100%
Ontine, Pay &
Interactive Revenue €Y 10% 5% growth pa = 20% vesting

18% growth pa = 100% vesting

Vesting on a straight-line basis between 25.13% 100%
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Pension

The Executive Directors are not part of an ITV pension scheme but receive a cash allowance in tieu of pension with a value of 25% of base salary.
Payments were reviewed and increased in 2013 to ensure they were market competitive. The cash allowance does not form part of the base
salary for the purpose of determining incentives.

Non-executive Directors
The table below sets out in a single figure the total remuneration for Non-executive Directors for the financial year.

Fees Taxable benefits ! Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

- Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Sir Peter Bazalgette 2 312 69 2 2 314 71
Roger Faxon 65 63 8 5 73 68
Mary Harris 3 74 66 8 7 82 73
Andy Haste 115 T4 1 2 5 16
Anna Manz 4 63 - 1 - 63 -
Archie Norman 5 184 500 - 3 184 503
John Ormerod 90 B89 2 2 92 91
903 901 22 psl 923 922

o

The amounts disclosed in the table above redate to the reimbursement of taxable relevant travel and accommaodation expenses for attending Board meetings and related business
The vatue disclosedis inclusive of tax ansing on the expense, whichis settled by the Company
. Peter8azalgette was appointed Chairman on 12 May 2016
Mary Harris was appointed to the Rermuneration Commuittee on 12 May 2016,
. Anna Manz was appointed to the Board on 1February 2016 and to the Audit and fisk Commuttee on 1May 2016
Archie Norman stepped down from the Board on 12 May 2016

[ I o P N

LTIP awards made in 2016
0On 29 March 2016 awards were made under the LTIP to both Executive Directorsin the form of nil-cost options, subject to performance over
the period to 31 December 2018.

% salary Number of Value at Performance
Award date awarded options award date period ends Vesting date Release date
Adam Crozier 29 March 2016 225 878,481 £2117138 31 December 2018 29 March 2019 29 March 2021
lan Griffiths 29 March 2016 225 536,850 £1,293,806 31December2018 29 March 2019 29 March 2021

The number of nil-cost options was calculated using the average share price over the three-day period prior to the award date (241 pence)

The LTIPwas introduced in 2014 following a remuneration review and subsequent approval by shareholders at the 2014 AGM. The holding
periods were phased in over the first two annual awards made in 2014 and 2015, with 100% of the awards made in 2016 subject to a two-year
holding period. The shares that vest under the 2016 award wili not release until March 2021

The Committee sets targets for the LTIP taking into account external forecasts, internal budgets, business priorities, and risks and uncertainties.
Targets are set to be appropriately stretching in this context, with maximum performance set at a level which is considered to be the delivery of
exceptional performance. The awards made in 2016 are subject to performance measures and targets as set out below. Awards will be subject
to aninitial cumulative adjusted EPS performance gateway equal to that required for threshold performance (54.6 pence) before any portion of
the award can vest.

Performance measure Strategic target Weighting Threshold Maximum
Cumulative adjusted EPS 50% 54.6p 62 4p
Family SOV 20% 20.2% 21.6%
Total non-NAR growth 10% 5% growth pa 10% growth pa
International production revenue 10% 5% growthpa 15% growth pa
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue 10% 5% growth pa 18% growth pa
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Threshold vesting for all targets is 20% with vesting between threshold and maxirum (100%) is on a straight-tine basis. Farnmity SOV has an
additional vesting threshold of 75% for performance of 21.2%. When assessing performance against this target, the Committee will also have
regard to the health of the main ITV channel.

Other Disclosures
Payments to past Directors or for loss of office
No payments were made during the year.

Committee membership and advisors
The Directors who were members of the Committee when matters relating to the Executive Directors’ remuneration for the year were
considered, are set out on page 65.

The Committee obtains advice from various sources in order to ensure it makes informed decisions. The Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director are invited to attend Committee meetings as appropriate. No individual is involved in decisions relating to their own remuneration,

The Group HR Director is the main internal advisor and provides updates on remuneration, employee relations and human resource issues
FIT Rermuneration Consultants acted as the independent advisor on remuneration policy and the external remuneration environment during
2016 and provided advice on benchmarking, shareholder consultation and long-term incentive arrangements. Total fees for the advice provided

to the Committee during the year amounted to £103,154 (exclusive of VAT and expenses) which were charged on their normal terms.

The Committee has formally reviewed the work undertaken by FIT for the Committee and is satisfied that the advice they have received has
been objective and independent. FIT is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and abides by its Code of Conduct.

Shareholder voting
At the AGM held on 12 May 2016, votes cast by proxy and at the meeting in respect of the Executive Directors’ rernuneration were as follows:
Voting for Voting ag
Number of Number of
Resolution shares % shares % Totalvotescast  Votes withheld
Annual Remuneration Report 3,002,101,203 96.15 120,053,675 3.85 3122154878 51538,304

The Remuneration Policy was approved at the AGM held on 14 May 20114 for a three-year period. Yotes cast by proxy and at the meeting were as
follows:

Voting for Voting agalnst
Number of Number of
shares % shares % Totalvotes cast  Votes withheld
Remuneration Policy 2,272,594,109 96.04 93,825,641 396 2,366,419,750 366,266,825
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Historic performance

The graph below shows the TSR performance of the Company against the FTSE 100 index over the eight-year period to 31December 2016.

Chief Executive remuneration

The table below provides a summary of the total remuneration received by the Chief Executive over the last eight years, including details of the

annual bonus payout and long-term incentive award vesting levelin each year.

Long-term

incentive

Total award

remuneration Bonus % of vesting %X of

£000 maximum maximism

2016 Adam Crozier 3443 40 80
2015 Adam Crozier 3,881 96 75
2014 Adam Crozier 4,842 94 75
2013 Adam Crozier 8,399 93 87
2012 Adam Crozier 2915 91 12
20M Adam Crozier 258 88 -
2010 Adam Crozier (for the eight month period served) 1,350 95 -
2010 Johin Cresswell (for the four month period served) 661 83 -
2009 Michael Grade 2,583 4 —

The long-term incentive award vesting percentage relates to the proportion of the award that met performance conditions in the relevant

financial year The 2015 numbers have been amended to reflect the actual value of the LTIP on vesting.

The table below provides details of the percentage change in the base salary, benefits and bonus of the Chief Executive between 31 December

2015 and 31 December 2016 compared to the average percentage change for other employees.

% change

% change in % changen nbonus

Notes base salary benefits payment
Chief Executive 1 2.5% (1.66) (57.29)
All employees 23 51% (3.67) (13.37)

1 Benefits nctude the cost of medicat insurance and car-related benefits
2. Asthe majonty of employees are based in the UK, overseas empioyees have not been included

3 The percentage change in benefits is the average change for all employees (excluding the Chief Executive) with any of the same benefits as the Chief Executive
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Spend on pay
The table below shows pay for all employees compared to other key financial indicators.
2016 2015

Notes £m £m % Change
Emplayee pay 1 419 400 4.75
Ordinary dividend 261 208 2548
Special dividend 402 251 6015
Employee headcount 2 6,121 5,558 1013

1 Employee payis the total remuneration paid to all colleagues across ITV on a full-time equivalent basis More detail 15 set out on page 123.

2 Employee headcount is the monthly average number of calleagues across ITV on a full-time equivalent basis. Mare detailis set out onpage 123.

3. There were no share buy-backs during either year

Directors’ share interests

Sharehotding guidetines

The Committee continues to recagnise the importance of Directors being shareholders so as to align their interests with other shareholders,

Shareholding guidelines are in place, which encourage Executive Directors to build up a holding of (TV ple shares based on a percentage of base
salary. 50% of the requirement must normally be obtained within three years of appointment and the remainder normally within five years,

% of salary % of salary
held at

required undet
shareholding 31December
guidelines 2016
Adam Crozier 400 446
lan Griffiths 200 473

The share price used to value the shares as at 30 December 2016 was 206 pence The shares inctuded in the calculation are shares held inthe ndividual’s own name and the net of
tax shares hetd under the 20114 DSA which are not contingent on continued employmert (awards made from 2015 are contingent on continued empioyment andwill not formapart
of the requirement

Where the value of shares required to be held increases as a result of a salary increase (or an increase In the relevant percentage), the Executive
Directors will have three years from such increase to achieve compliance. The Committee rmay change the guidelines so long as they are not,
overall, in the view of the Committee, less onerous.

Non-executive directors are currently required to use 25% of their annuat fees, after statutory deductions, to acquire shares in the Company,
The shares are purchased quarterly and held until they retire from the Board. From 2017 it is proposed that this will change so that (unless they
are unable to retain their fees) they are all required to build and then maintain a hatding of 100% of their base fee over the six years from the
date of appointment to the Board.

Interestsin shares
The figures set out below represent shareholdings in the ordinary share capital of ITV plc beneficially owned by Directors and their family
interests at 31 December 2016.

31December 3 December

2016 2015
Sir Peter Bazalgette 197,108 13,685
Adam Crozier 1,909,263 2,241,233
Roger Faxon 21,910 15,835
lan Griffiths 1,254,554 1,754,554
Mary Harris 12,028 6,138
Andy Haste 125,446 109,222
Anna Manz 31,588 -
Joha Crmerad 168,407 153,898

Anna Manzwas appomted to the Board on 1February 2016

There were no changes in Directors’ interests in shares between the end of the financial year and 1March 2017,
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Executive Directors’ non-executive directorships
with specific approval of the Board, Executive Directors may accept external appointments as non-executive directors of other companies
and retain any related fees paid to them,

During the year the Executive Directors retained fees for the directorships set out below.

2016

Compary £000

Adam Crozier G4S plc 25
lan Griffiths DS Smith plc 55

Adamn Crozier stepped down from the board of G45 plc on 27 May 2016

Service contracts and loss of office
Executive Directors
Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notice on either side. There are no special provisions that apply in

the event of a change of control.

Notice period from Notice penod from Compensation provisions

{late of appointment Nature of contract Company Director for earty termination

Adam Crozier 26 April 2070 Rolling 12 manths 12 months None
lan Griffiths 9 September 2008 Rolling 12 months 12 months None

A payment in lieu of notice, including base salary, contractual benefits and contractual provision for an income in retirement, may be made if:

- the Company terminates the employment of the Executive Director with immediate effect, or without notice; or
« terrnination is agreed by mutual consent.

With the exception of termination for cause or resignation, Executive Directors will be eligible for a bonus award prorated to reflect the
proportion of the financial year for which they were employed and subject to performance achieved, provided they have a minimum of
three- months service in the bonus year.

Non-executive Directors

Each Non-executive Director, including the Chairman, has a contract of service with the Company. Non-executive Directors will serve for

an initial term of three years, subject to election and annual election and re-election by shareholders, unless otherwise terminated earlier by
and at the discretion of either party upon cne month's written notice {12 months for the current Chairmany). After the initial three-year term
reappointment is on an annual basis.

All Non-executive Directors are subject to election or re-election at the AGM in 2017, Details of unexpired terms are set out in the table on
page 65.

The Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company's registered office.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Outstanding interests under share schemes
The following tables provide details of Directors’ interests in outstanding share awards.

Share  Share price
At At price used at date of Dateof
1 January Awarded Vested Exarcised Lapsedin 31 December for award vestng release/exercise
Notes 2M6 inyear In year n year n year 06 {pence) (pence) inyear
Adam Crozier
DSA
29 March 2016 3,6 - 219406 - - - 219,406 241.0
27 March 2015 197,741 - - - 197,741 256.7
28 March 2014 240,534 - - - ~ 240,534 194.5
28 March 2013 346,228 - 346,228 346,228 - - 129.5 24098 29 March 2016
LTip
29 March 2016 5] -  B/84®1 - = - 878481 241.0
27 March 2015 804,636 - - - B04,636 256.7
30 May 2014 4 103,543 - - - - 1,103,543 183.5
PSP
1March 2013 5 624,647 - 468,485 468485 156,162 — 1217 24098 29 March 2016
lan Griffiths
DSA
29 March 2016 3,6 - 11,628 - - - 121,628 241.0
27 March 2015 112186 - - - 12186 256.7
28 March 2014 122,269 - - - - 122,269 194.5
28 March 2013 175,851 - 175891 175,891 - - 129.5 24098 29 March 2016
LTip
29 March 2016 6 - 536,850 - - - 536,850 241.0
27 March 2015 491,722 - = - 491,722 256.7
30 May 2014 4 674,387 - - - - 674,387 183.5
PSP
1March 2013 5 342,549 - 256912 256912 85637 - 1211 24098 29 March 2016

1 Noawards are outstanding that have vested but have not been exercised.

2. There are no performance conditions attaching to the DSA

3 DSAawards made in 2016 for 2015 performance are included in the remuneration table on page 80

4 LTIP performance conditions were met in 2016 (80%) 50% wilt become exeraisable on 30 May 2017, the remainder on 30 May 2018 The indicateve value at 31 Decernber 2076
sincluded in the rémuneratign table on page B0 and is described anpage 82

o L

under the DSA,

~

. PSP performance conditions were met in 2015 (75%) and the value is ncluded in the remuneration table on page 80
The face value of awards granted in the financiat year were £2,117,138 and £1,293,806 under the LTIP for Adam Crozier and lan Griffiths respectively, and £528,768 and £293122

Performance condrtions that apply to the outstanding awards under the LTIP arg set out in the table below

QG LR 15T WeLTIR
Threshold
Strateqic target Weighting vesting  Threshold  Maximum Threshold Maximum  Threshold Maximum
EPS Gateway [©]) 371p 45.7p 54.6p
Cumulative adjusted EPS @ 50% 20% 371p 42.3p 457p 52.2p 546p  624p
Family SOV [)] 20% 20% 2305% 23.51% 22% 22.44% 20.2% 21.6%
Annual non-NAR growth @®  10% 20% 5% 10% 5% 10% 5% 10%
International production revenue growth @ 10% 20% 5% 15% 5% 5% 5% 15%
Online, Pay & Interactive revenue growth @ 10% 20% 5% 15% 5% 18% 5% 18%
Curnulative adjusted Cumulative adjusted Cumulative adjusted
EPS years 2014 1o 2016 EPS years 2015 to 2017 EPSyears 2016 ta 2018

Vesting between threshold and maximum (100%} 1s on a straight-line basis for all targets except SOV which vests at 75% with a
straight-line vesting from each threshold and maximum
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Remuneration Policy

The tables below summarise the main elements of the remuneration package for Directors and will be effective from the date approved

by shareholders in 2017 and will appty until shareholders next consider and vate on the policy.

Executive Directors
Purpase and link Maximum potential
Fixed elements to strategy Operation payment Performance metrics Proposed changes
Base Reflects thendwviduals  Reviewed annually Ordinarity salary None, although Introduce a formal cap
salary skills, responsibilities and paid monthlyin increases will be in overallindividual and on salaries, thisis a cap
and experience cash. Consideration line with the average business performance and not an aspiration.
Supports the is typically given to a increase awarded to is considered when
reugfutment and range of factors when other employees inthe setting and reviewing
etention of £ e determining salary Company. Increases salaries.
TEtention oTi-xeculiv levels, including: may be made above
Directors of the calibre -
required to deliver th Personal and thislevel to take
bequn trat vert t:' ce sonatand d account of individual
USINESS S ? _egv wi ) in ompany-wide crcumstances, which
the competitive media performance. .
. . may include
market. - Typical pay levelsin
relevant markets for » Increase insize or
each executive whilst scope of the role or
recognising the nead responsibility,
for an appropriate - Increase toreflect
premium to attract the individual’s
and retain superior development and

talent, balanced
against the need

to provide a cost-
effective overall
rerruneration
package.

The wider employee
pay review.

performance inrole.

No salary will exceed

£1:13 million {being 120%

of the CEO's current
salary) as further
increased by RPf over
the Life of the policy.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Additional benefits
may also be provided n
certain circumstances,
if required for business
need. For exarmple

{but notlimited to),
relocation expenses,
housing allowance and
education support

crrcurmstances and the
overall cost to
the business,

The overall cost of
benefits will not exceed
£100,000 (£300,000 1N
the case of a director
required torelocate
between countries)

1 any year.

In addition, the
Company may
reimburse relocation
expenses and/ or
provide for tax
equalisation
arrangements.

Purpose and link Maximum potential

Fixed elements to strategy Operation payment Performance metrics Proposed changes

Provision To provide competitive Executives can choose The maximum None No change

for an post-retirement 1o participate in the ITV contributions or cash

income in benefits or cash defined contribution allowances for the

. t allowance asa scheme, receive a cash Executive Directors are

retiremen frarnework 1o save allowance or receive 25% of base salary.

for retirement. paymentsinto a
ersonal pensionora
Supports the cpombinat'i)on thereof.
recruitment and
retention of Executive Contributions are set
Directors of the calibre as a percentage of
required to deliver base salary.
the business strategy
within the competitive post-retrement
media market. benefits donot form
part of thebase salary
for the purposes of
determining incentives,

Benefits Ensures the overalt The Company provides Setat a level which the None Intreduce a formal cap
package Is competitive arange of market Committee considers on benefits; this s a cap
and provides financial competitive benefits to be appropriately and not an aspiration
protection for mecluding travel related positioned taking into Permit relevant
employees and their benefits, pnvate medical  account typical market N
families insurance and other levels for comparable pl‘OtEC'llon for

insurance benefits. roles, ndividual expatriate execulives,
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Purpose and Link Maximum potential
Variable elements to strategy Operation payment Performance metrics Proposed changes
Bonus and Incentvises executives Measures and targets The maximum bonus Performance measures No material changes
DSA and colleagues to are set annually based opportunity for any and targets are set by
achieve key strategic on business plans at the Executive Director will the Committee each
outcomes onan start of the financial not exceed 200% of year based on corporate
annual basis. year and pay-out levels salary The current objectives closely linked
Focus on key financial are det_ermlned by'the bonus opportunities to‘thg Strateg_ic
metrics and objectives Committee following are 180% of salary for F‘non_tles and individual
(o delver the business the year-end based Adam Crozier and 165% contributions, The
on performance of salary for lan Griffiths.  majority of the bonus
strategy. against objectives Increases above the opportunity will be
The element . current opportunities, based on the corporate
compulsority deferred :::Ideob:c:r'lt:[?dri:;lélts up !:0 the masrmurm and finanFial Measures.
into shares rewards Annual bonus ! umit, may be made The rem?lncler of the
delivery of sustained calculations that are to t_ake account of bonus will be based on
long-term performance, basad o the financial |nd!wdualcr_rcumstances, Perf(?rmance against
provides alignment results for the year are which mayinclude: ll'IdIVIdl.{al ar}dfo.r
with tﬁe share;nolder audited by Internal Audit - Increaseinsize or strategic objectives
se:ssgretr;cteh:r:etention and reviewed by the scope of the role Up to 20% of the
of executives Audit and Risk or responsibility. maximum opportunity
' Committee before « increasetoreflect will be received for

consideration by
the Committee

The Committee

has the discretion

to amend the bonus
pay-out should any
formulaic assessment
of performance not
reflect a balanced view
of overall business
performance for

the year

Not more than
two-thirds of the bonus
is delivered in cash with
the balance deferred
into shares under the
DSA normally for a
period of three years.

During the deferral
period share awards
may be reduced or
cancelledin certain
crcumstances, Further
detail is provided on
page 96.

Dividends are paid to
participants on the
deferred shares during
the deferral peniod.

the individual’s
development and
performance in
theirrole

threshold performance.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Purpose and link Maximum potential
Variable elements to strategy Operation payment Performance metrics Propased changes
LTIP Incentivises executives Awardsaremadeunder  Ourcurrent operational — The Committee may Consistent with market
to deliver performance the LTIP rules. practice s to make set such performance practice, greater
which s aligned to the Awards are narmath awards of 225% of conditions on LTIP flexibility to set relevant
business strategy over aly salary each year. awards as it considers performance conditions
the longer term and the madg annually with appropnate (whether for new awards.
creation of shareholder ves?tng dependent on Under the LTIP rules, the financial o
value bus.mess performance maxirmurn annual aw?rd non-financial and
during the performance  that may be grantedin whether corporate,
Acts as aretention tool penod. The any financial year is dwisional or indivi dlu al).
to retain the executives performance period will ~ 350% of salary. ’
required to deliver the be not less than three The Committee has
business strategy. years, ather thann sought to set measures
exceptional which are closely linked
circumstances. to the Company's
The Committee fman_c_lal and strategic
has discretion to amend prlor_ltles and will
N N continue to do so.
the final vesting level
should any formulaic The proportion of
assessment of each element of the
performance not reflect award that will vest for
abalancedview of the threshold performance
business performance against a metric witl be
during the performance not more than 20%.
period Performance
Awards wilt be required periods rmay be over
to be held for an such periods as the
additionat two-year Committee selects at
holding period after the grant, which will not be
end of the performance less (but may be longer)
penod. than three years.
Dividends are earned on
deferred shares during
the holding period.
During the holding
period awards may be
reduced or cancelledin
certain circumstances.
Further detail 1s
provided on page 96.
SAYE Provides all Executive Directors are Participation limits are None No changes.
emplovyees, Including entitled to participate as per the rules of the
Executive Directors in the plan on the plan and i accordance
the opportunity to same basis as other with HMRC limits.
voluntarily Invest in employees,
Company shares.

Should the Company choose to mplement a tax efficient all-employee share participation plan (for example a SIP) the Executive Directars would be eligible to partiopate in accordance with
any shareholder approved pian rules and HMRC timits
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Legacy arrangements

The Committee may make any remuneration payments and payments for {oss of office (including exercising any discretions available to it in
connection with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not in line with the Remuneration Policy set out above. This would apply where
the terms of the payment were agreed before the policy came into effect or at a time when the relevant individual was not a director of the
Company and the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a director of the Company.

Malus and claw-back

Malus and claw-back provisions may be operated at the discretion of the Committee in respect of any cash and deferred share elements of
the bonus and awards made under the LTIP. Under malus, unvested share awards (including any LTIP shares subject to a post vesting holding
period) can be reduced {down to zero if considered appropriate) or be made subject to additicnal conditions. Claw-back allows for repayment
of bonuses previously paid and/or shares previously received following vesting. Malus/claw-back can be operated up to four years following
the start of the relevant bonus year for bonuses, and up to six years from the relevant date of grant for LTIP awards. The circumstances in
which the operation of these provisions may be considered from time to time and currently include material misstatement of results, gross
misconduct or fraud.

Performance measures and target setting

The annuat bonus is assessed against both financial and individual targets determined by the Committee. This enables the Committee 1o
reward both annual financial performance delivered for shareholders, and performance against specific financial, operational or strategic
objectives set for each director, which are closety linked to the Strategic Priorities of the business.

The Committee sets targets for the long-termincentive plans taking into account external forecasts, internal budgets and business priorities.
Targets are set to be appropriately stretching in this context with rmaxirmurn performance being set at a level which is considered to be the
delivery of exceptional performance.

When considering performance outcomes the Committee will look beyongd formulaic results to ensure the outcomes align with the overall
business performance.

Non-executive Directors
The table below summarises the main elements of remuneration for Non-executive Directors:

Caomponent Approach of the Company Maximum potential payment
Chairman fees The Committee determines the fees of the Charman and The aggregate fees (together with any shares and/er
sets the fees at alevel that is considered to be appropriate, benefits including the reimbursement of travel and other
taking into account the size and complexity of the business expenses - if subject to taxation - and an amount to meet
and the expected tirme cormnrmitment and contribution of any tax arising on such expenses) of the Chairmanand of
the rote. Non-Executive Directors will not exceed the imit from
time to time prescribed within the Company’s Articles
of Association (currently £1,500,000 p.a).
Non-executive The Board determines the fees of the Non-executive As above.
fees Directors and sets the fees at a levelthat is considered to
be appropriate, taking into account the size and complexity
of the business and the expected time commitment and
contribution of the role.
Fees are currently structured as a basic fee with additional
fees payable for membership and/or chairmanship of a
committee or other additional responsibilities but may
be restructured within the overall limits.
Benefits Addional benefits may also be providedin certain As above.
circumstances, if required for business purposes. This
includes the reimbursement of any travel expenses
{and associated tax on those expenses)

a3
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Remuneration Policy continued

Application of the Remuneration Policy

The chart below provides an indication of the level of remuneration that would be received by each Executive Director under the following three
assumed performance scenarios.

Below threshold | Fixed elements of remuneration only — base salary, benefits and pension
performance
On-target Assumes 60% pay-out under the annual bonus
Performance Assurmes 20% pay-out under the LTIP (aligned with threshold performance)
Maximum Assumes 100% pay-out under the annual bonus
performance Assumes 100% pay-out under the LTIP

Notes:

1 Thescenarios do not nclude any share price growth assumptions or take INto account any didends that may be pard

2 Fixedpay s the salary as at 1.January 2017, pension 1s 25% of salary, and the value of benefits s equivalent to that ncluded in the remuneration table on page 80
3 Annual bonus is based on180% of salary for Adam Crozier and 165% of salary for lan Griffiths,

4 LTIP amount is based on 225% of satary for both Executive Directors
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Recruitment Remuneration
When agreeing the components of a remuneration package for a new Executive Director, the Comrmittee will apply the principles
detailed below.

The package will be competitive to attract and retain the most suitable candidate for the job.

Where possible, the Committee will always seek to align the remuneration package with the Remuneration Policy outlined above.
However, where appropriate, elements of the package may be outside of this policy to meet the circumstances of the individual upon
recruitment The Committee will ensure that the arrangernents are in the best interests of both ITV and its shareholders and remain
subject to the overall variable pay limits set out below.

Ongoing In determining an appropriate remuneration structure and levels, the Committee will take Into account all relevartt factors to
remuneration ensure they are able to recruit the most approprate candidate for the job and that the arrangements are in the best interests of
both ITV andits shareholders The Committee will typically seek to align the ongoing remuneration package with the ongoing
Remuneration Policy outlined on pages 89 to 97.

Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the caps contained within the Remuneration Policy for fixed pay do not apply to new recruits
{whetherinternal or external), atthough the Committee does not currently envisage exceeding these caps in practice.

The maximum level of varable remuneration which may be granted to a new director upon appointment (excluding any buy-out
awards for forfeited remuneration) will not be greater than 550% of salary (the sum of the maximum bonus and maximum new
LTIP opportunities).

Buy-out awards | TheCommittee may make awards to buy out' a candidate's remuneration arrangements that are forfeited as aresult of leaving

for forfeited their previous employer.

remuneration Indoing so, the Committee will take account of relevant factors including any performance conditions attaching to the forfeited
awards, the likelihood of the awards vesting and the form and tirning of the awards The Committee will typically seek to make
buy-out awards on a comparable basis to those that have been forfeited but, particularly where the performance period s
subistantiatly complete, may reflect such conditionsin some other way such as through a significant discount to the face value
of awards forfeited. Exceptionally, where necessary, this may include

a guaranteed or non-prorated annual bonus in the year of joining.

in exceptional circumstances, the Committee may grant a buy-out award under a structure notincluded in the
policy but that is consistent with the principles set out above (any may rely upon Listing Rule 9.4.2in structunng
such a buy-out).

The Committee will take all relevant factors into account (including the candidate’s location, the calibre of the individual, externalinfluences,
internal relativities and the overall business context) when determining the new remuneration package and seek to ensure that no more is
paid than necessary.

In the Remuneration Report following the appointment, the Committee will fully exptain to the shareholders the remuneration package for

the appointed individual and the rationale for such arrangements and will display such information on the ITV plc website and announce via
arequlatory information service as soon as practicable following the appointment.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Service contracts and loss of office
Executive Directors

Executive Directors have rolling service contracts that provide for 12 months notice on either side. Fora new joiner, the contract may
commence with a notice period of up to two years reducing to the standard 12 months over time. There are no special provisions that apply
in the event of a change of control.

A payment inlieu of notice, including base salary, contractual benefits and contractual provision for an income in retirement may be made if:

« the Cornpany terminates the employment of the executive withimmediate effect, or without due rotice; or
+ termination is agreed by mutual consent,

The Company may also make a payment in respect of outplacement costs, legal fees and the cost of settling any potential claims where

appropriate.

With the exception of termination for cause or resignation {unless the Committee determines otherwise), Executive Directors will be eligible for

abonus award prorated to reflect the proportion of the financial year for which they were employed and subject to the performance achieved,
provided they have a minimum of three moniths service in that bonus year.

The treatment of shares awarded under the DSA and LTIP on termination are set out below.

Good leaver

Mutuai agreement

Other clrcumstances

Change of control

DSA

Injury, ilLheaith, disabitity
or transfer of undertakings
Awards retease In full at the
leaving date.

For other good leaver reasons
awards release at the end of
the deferral period unless the
Committee decides to release
the shares earlier,

The Committee has the right
to exercise its discretion as to
the extent to which awards, If
any, may release, for example
where someoneis asked to
leave because of achange in
circumstances outside of
their control,

Awards lapse.

Awards release In full at
effective date of change.

LTIP

During the
performance
period

Injury, ill health or disability,
redundancy, retirement or
transfer of undertakings, or
otherwise at the discretion
of the Committee.

Awards are typically prorated
for tirme served and subject

to achievernent of the
performance conditions during
the performance period

Awards pecome exercisable at
the end of the holding period
untess the Cormmittee decides
torelease the shares earler,

The Committee has the nght
to exercise its discretion to
apply good leaver treatment,
for example where someone
is asked to leave because of
achange in circurmstances
outside of their control

Awards lapse.

Outstanding awards would
normally vest and becormne
exercisable subject to
satisfaction of performance
conditions and capped based
on the time in the performance
penod since grant, subject

to the discretion of the
Commuttee,

LTIP

During the
additional
holding period

Awards become exercisable at
the end of the holding period
unless the Committee decides
to release the shares earlier

Awards become exercisabte at
the end of the holding period
unless the Cornmittee decides
to release the shares earliet,

For resignation, awards
become exercisable at the end
of the holding period unless the
Committee decides to release
the shares earlier

In the case of misconduct
awards will lapse.

Awards become exercisable at
the effective date of change.
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Non-executive Directors

Each Non-executive Director, including the Chairman, has a contract of service with the Company. Non-executive Directors will serve for an
initial term of three years, subject to election and annual re-election by shareholders, unless otherwise terminated earlier by and at the
discretion of either party upon one month's written notice (12 months for the Chairman).

The director’s service contracts and letters of appointrment are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office,

External appointments
With specific approval of the Board, Executive Directors may accept external appointments as non-executive directors of other companies and
retain any related fees paid to them.

Employment conditions elsewhere in the Company
When setting the policy for directors’ remuneration, the Committee considers the pay and employment conditions of employees elsewhere in

the Company.

The Company does not consult direc tly with employees in respect of determining the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. However, the Committee
does receive general feedback from employees via the HR function as part of the output from the employee engagement survey and receives a
report on employment practices elsewhere in the Company.

Sharehalder views

The Committee maintains regular and transparent communication with shareholders. We believe that it is important to regularly meet with our
key shareholders to understand their views on our remuneration arrangements and what they would like to see going forward. We welcome
feedback from shareholders at any time during the year.

Where we are proposing to make any significant changes to the ongoing operation of this Remuneration Policy we shall seek major
shareholders’ views and take theseinto account.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2016. The Directors’' Report required under
the Companies Act 2006 comprises this report and the entire Governance section including the Chairman's Governance Statement.

Articles of Association
Unless expressly specified to the contrary, the Articles of Association may only be amended by special resolution of the shareholders.
The Articles are available on our website,

@ www.itvplc_com/investors/igovernance

Auditor

During the year the Audit and Risk Committee considered the performance and audit fees of the external auditor, and the level of non-audit
workundertaken, They recommended to the Board that a resolution for the reappointment of KPMG LLP for a further year as the Company's
auditor be proposed te shareholders at the AGM in May 2017,

Change of control
No person holds securities in the Company carrying special rights with regard to control of the Company.

All of the Company's share schemes contain provisions relating to a change of controt. Qutstanding awards and options would normally
vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions and proration for time
where appropriate.

Certain of the Group’s bonds/borrowing facilities have change of control clauses whereby the issuer can require ITV to repay/redeem bonds
in the event of a change of cantrol. The Company is not aware of any other significant agreerments to which itis party that take effect, alter
or terrninate upon a change of control of the Company.

Directors
Appointments: A table showing Directors whao served in the year can be found on page 65. Biographies for Directors currently in office can
be found on pages 60 and 61and on our website.

(3} www.itvplc.com/about/board-of-directors

Non-executive Directors are appointed for an initial three-year period and annually thereafter, In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance

Code, each Director will retire and submit himself or herself for election or re-election at the AGM on 10 May 2017,

Detail on compensation for loss of office can be found in the Remuneration Report on page 84,

Conflicts of interest: The Board has delegated the authorisation of conflicts to the Nomination Committee and has adopted a Conflicts
of Interest Policy. The Board has considered in detail the current external appointments of the Directors which may give rise to a situational
conflict and has authorised potential conflicts where appropriate. This authorisation can be reviewed at any time but wili always be subject
to annual review. The Board is confident that these procedures operate effectively.

Contracts of significance: No Director had any interest in any contract with the Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

Powers: The powers of the Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Articles and a schedule of Matters Reserved for the Board
can be found on our website,

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance
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Dividends
The Board has proposed a final dividend and a special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of these and other dividends paid
for the year are as follows:

2016 2015
Interirn dividend 2.4p 1.9p
Final dividend 4.8p 41p
Total ordinary dividend 7.2p 6.0p
Spedial dividend 5.0p 10.0p
Total dividend payment 12.2p 16.0p

The final dividend and special dividend for 2016 will be paid on 25 May 2017 to shareholders on the register on 28 April 2017 The ex-dividend
dateis 27 April 2017.

Employees

Disability: The Company has been certified a ‘Disability Confident’ employer by the Department for Work and Pensions and gives fulland
fair consideration to the employment of people with a disability or long-term health condition in accordance with the Equality Act 2010.
Our employment and recruitment policies are based on equal opportunities and non-discrimination. ITV is a member of ‘Diversity Jobs',
which connects people to employers who place high importance on a diverse staff population. The Company provides tailored measures
to ensure colleagues are fully supported and that reasonable adjustments are made. We are committed to ensuring that all training, career
development and promotional opportunities are accessible and inclusive to all colleagues with a disability.

The Company's commitment around the disability agenda extends beyond our legal obligations and we partner with a variety of specialists
to drive best practice. Further inforrmation can be found on cur Responsibility website.

@ www.itvresponsibility.com

Diversity: Qur goal is to reflect modern society through our programmes, channels, workforce and services, ensuring we are relevant and
accessible to all It's integral to our business aims to reflect, represent and appeal to the breadth of communities that characterise modern
society. The Company has four strategic commitments to diversity: inclusive programming, inclusive workforce, inclusive culture and inclusive
access to programmes and services. The Company has a number of policies to support this, for example the Code of Conduct, Equal
Opportunities Policy and Social Partnership framework for programme-makers. The Corporate Responsibility Board is responsible for

the implementation plans to deliver on these commitments and embed practices into the business.

Further information can be found on our Responsibility website,

@ www.itvresponsibility.com

Engagement: Attracting and retaining talent is critical to our success. ft is therefore in our interest to ensure that we provide the appropriate
rewards and opportunities for development so that colleagues feel engaged with the Company.

In 2016 the Management Board led a series of roadshows across the business. This gave colteagues an cpportunity to feed back their thoughts
and concerns about the business. Engagement was reinforced through forums such as the intranet, reqgular soft and hard-copy newsletters
and briefings between management and their teams. These channels enabled colleagues to understand the financial and economic factors
affecting the Company's performance, how their role contributed towards the execution of the strategy and how they could benefit from
Company success through involvement in employee share schemes and information on their rights and benefits,
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To further promote colteague engagement, the Company has a network of Ambassadors who are nominated and elected by their colleagues
to represent each part of the business. These Ambassadors share the views of colleagues with the business, enabling us to understand ways to
make [TV a better place t0 work. The Ambassadors also keep colleagues up to date with what is going an acrass the business.

We have continued to measure and listen to colleagues through employee surveys. This year, in line with best practice, we changed the way we
measured engagement globally by including additional questions in order to capture a more rounded picture. 90% of ernployees said they were
proud to work for ITV (2015: 89.33%), and the score for total engagement was 83%.

Remuneration: When the Company reviews pay it takes a number of factors into consideration, including the need to stay competitive.
Our focus on cash and costs remains incredibly impaortant for the future health of our business. We need to balance our business and financial
commitments with our continuing investment in our programming and people.

The Company continues t0 be committed to ensuring colleagues earn at least the Living Wage or greater. Where appropriate we have agreed
additional increases. On 1st January 2017, all eligible colleagues received a pay increase of 1.5% (2016: 3.0%), with ail those on a full-time
equivalent basic salary of £100,000 or above receiving no salary increase, including the Executive Directors.

In addition a bonus arrangerment extends to all our colleagues, providing a comprehensive incentive framework which rewards everybody
when the Campany is successful. The all-colleague banus award for 2016 was paid at £1,300 {2015: paid in full at £1,500).

The Company also operates a successful and popular Save As You Earn scheme that encourages voluntary investment in Company shares and
a package of voluntary benefits, which provides valuable cost savings for both colleagues and the Company,

Information about remuneration for the Directorsis included in the Rernuneration Report on pages 75 to 88.
Succession planning: When planning succession within the Company consideration is given to emergency cover together with medium

and long-term succession and this is reviewed annualty by the Nomination Committee. There is particular emphasis on growing the internal
leadership pipeline through the launch of the following key programmes:

Executive Next generation potential Management Board successors, giving them an opportunity to develop their management potential
Developm ent and gain a greater understanding of the business

Programme

Developing Delegates selected from across the business identified as a result of the performance review process Content

Future Leaders ircludes understanding what it means to be aleader at ITV, how to manage performance effectively, coaching skills
Programme and change management.

A comprehensive portfolio of development courses and workshops is in place for all colleagues which address common development needs

Greenhouse Gas emissions
The Company is required to report annually on the quantity of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions in tonnes emitted as a result of activities for
which itis responsible.

All data for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 is disclosed below for direct and indirect (electricity consumption) emissions. More
information on how we minimise our environmental impact can be found on our Responsibility website.

(@) www.itvresponsibltity.com

Indicator 2016 2015
Total gross CO,e emissions 26,984 (tC0.e) 31196 (1COL)
Scope % Direct emissions 7,793 (tC0,e) 8,294 {tCO.L)
Scope 2: Indirect emissions 19,191 (tCO.e} 22,902 (tCO.€)
Total revenue £3,527m £3,383m
Ernissions per unit/£m revenue 7.7 {tCO,e) 9.2 (tCC.e)

Source; Mitie Energy anatysis of ITV data
The errussions data covers our global operations Thelatest conversion factors from the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strateqy were used to calculate enmssions in tonnes of
carbon drioxide equivalents 34% of our data set is based onestimated data Estimates are calcutated from previous consurnption trends and published benchiviarks
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As 90% of our greenhouse gas emissions are generated within our UK operations we have concentrated our efforts this year in our oldest
buildings by starting to replace the ageing infrastructure with more efficient plant. In the last year we have seen a 12% reduction in energy

use at our main site in Leeds as the replacement programme has delivered benefits. We have been able to reduce energy use in our Birmingham
studio by almost 20% by replacing the air conditioning with a more efficient systern and have reduced cur gas consumption in London by 10%
by conducting a review of buitding operations and varying the operating hours of the heating plant. Further investment in 2017 should deliver
continued steady reductions.

Health and safety

The health and safety of our colleagues, contractors and those participating in our productions is always a high priority. The significant loss of
human life as the resuit of a major incident has been identified as a Principal risk to the organisation, The Company's professional Health and
Safety team continue to develop and refine our management systemn to ensure it meets the specific risk profile of the business and embeds
the ownership of risk with business owners.

In 2016 we rolled out a Leading Risk programme with the leadership teams in iTV Studios UK, supported by a research project being undertaken
in collaboration with the London School of Economics te give us a greater understanding of risk taking betiefs and behaviaurs within our
production business

We will build on this in 2017 across our International business and we and will continue to underpin our Health and Safety Management system
with three key principles:

» People are the solution.
+ Safetyis about positive outcomes.
+ Safetyis a moral responsibility.

Performance indicators - UK

2016 2015°
Non Non

Staff Staff Total staff Staff Total

Lost time accidents reported under RIDDOR" 4 1 5 5 7 12

Specified injuries reported under RIDDOR? 2 2 4 il 8 9
Performance indicators - international

Austratia France Germany Talpa USA Finland  Norway Sweden Denmark

Serious injuries sustained at work by staff 2015 o o o o 3 0 o 4] 0

or people directly involved in gur activities' 2015° 0 0 1 - 1 0 O 0 0

1 Thisindicates acadents that have led to peopte beng unable to undertake therr normal role for seven days or longer

2 Specified injuries in this context means injuries such as broken bones {pot fingers or toes), amgputation, serious burns, loss of conscousness caused by a head injury or Inpatient
hospitalisation These are reported if they were caused by our work activity.

3. Reported data excludes Mammaoth, TwoFour and Talpa as these were not integrated into the ITV Health and Safety Management system n the year ended 31December 2015

Due to differing local legislative reparting requirermnents figures for tost time accidents have not yet been integrated into the TV Health and Safety Management System

Insurance and indemnities
The Company maintains liability insurance for its Directors and officers that is renewed on an annual basis. The Company has also entered into
deeds of indemnity with its Directors and other Senior Executives A copy of the indemnity can be found on our website,

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/governance

The Company operates a pension scheme that provides retirement and death benefits for colleagues. Qualifying pension scheme indemnity
provisions, as defined in Section 235 of the Companies Act 2006, were in force for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and remain in
force for the benefit of each of the directors of ITV Pension Scheme Limited. These indemnity provisions cover, to the extent permitted by
law, certain losses or tiabilities incurred as a director of ITV Pension Scheme Limited.
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Listing rule 9.8.4 disclosures
There are no disclosures to be made other than that the trustee of the [TV Employees’ Benefit Trust (EET) waived their rights to receive
dividends on shares held by therm which do not relate to restricted shares held under the ITV DSA.

Political contributions

Itis the Company’s policy not to make cash contributions to any political party. However, within the normal activities of the Company’s national
and regional news-gathering operations there may be occasions when an activity might fall within the broader definition of ‘political
expenditure’ contained within the Cornpanies Act 2006. Shareholder authority for such expenditure was given at the 2016 AGM. However,
during 2016 the Group made no payments falling within this definition {2015: nil).

Report and Accounts disclosures
Financial risk management: The Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the Principal risks facing the Company, including in
relation to its business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity. Details of our risks and associated mitigations together with details

of our approach to risk management are set out on pages 50 to 57.

Note 4.3 to the accounts on page 161 gives details of the Group's financial risk management policies and related exposures. This is deemed to
form part of this report.

Future developments: Our strategy is set out in the Strategic Report.

Going concern: The going concern statement is set out on page 116. This note is deemed to form part of this report.

Subsequent events: Details of post balance sheet events are set out in the Strategic Report on page 49 andin Note 5.3 on page 172.

Research and Development: Relevant information is set out in the Strategic Report.

Share capital .
Issued: At the date of this report there were 4,025,409194 ordinary shares of 10 pence each inissue, all of which are fully paid up and quoted

on the London Stock Exchange.

Purchase of own shares: The Directors have the authority to purchase up to 402 5 million of the Company’s ordinary shares. The authority
remains valid until the AGM in 2017 or 10 August 2017,if earlier.

Restrictions: There are no restrictions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company other than those which may be imposed
by law from time to time. In accordance with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules (DTRs), Persans Discharging Managerial
Responsibility are required to seek approval to deal in ITV shares. The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of securities and/or voting rights.

Rights: The rights attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares are set out in the Artictes of Association.
Share Schemes: Details of employee share schemes are set cutin note 4.7 The Cornpany's EBT is funded by loans to acquire shares for the
potential benefit of employees. Details of shares held by the EBT at 31 December 2016 are set out on page 171. During the year shares have been

released from the EBT in respect of share schemes for employees. The trustee of the EBT has the power to exercise all voting rights in relation
to any investment {including crdinary shares) held within the EBT.
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Substantial shareholders
Information regarding interests in voting rights provided to the Company pursuant to the DTRs is published on a Regulatory Information Service
and on the Company's website.

As at 1 March 2017, the information in the table below had been received, in accordance with DTRS, from holders of notifiable interests {voting
rights) in the Company's issued share capital. It should be noted that these holdings may have changed since notifted to the Company. However,
notification of any change is not required until the next applicable threshold is crossed.

% interest
% interest Nature of n Iﬁnancial Total number of shares
wishares interest inshares  instruments Nature of interest in financial instruments  orinterest in shares
Liberty Global Incorporated Limited 8990 Direct - - 398,515,510
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. and its group 495 Indirect 0.01 Equity swap 201,233,569
Blackrock Inc. 341 Indirect 308 Securities lending 284,240,487
0.56 Contract For Difference
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. 0.07 Indirect 027 Stock Loan (physical) 826,553,051
2019 Swap (cash) Contract

For Difference {cash)
Over The Counter option
{physical or cash)

The number of shares is based on announcements made by each relevant shareholder using the Company’s issued share capital at that date.

103



Governance P Directors' Report

Directors’ Report continued

The Directors consider that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's and the Group’s
position and performance, business model
and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed or pages 60 and 61,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge:

= the Group accounts, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the EU, give a trug and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit of the Group; and

« the Strategic and Directors’ Reports include
a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the
position of the Group, together with
adescription of the Principal risks
and uncertainties that it faces.

In accordance with Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Directors confirm
that, sc far as they are each aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor is unaware; and each
Director has taken all steps that they
ought to have taken as a Director in order
to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that
the Company's auditor is aware of

that information.

The Board has conducted a review of

the effectiveness of the Group's systems

of internal contrals for the year ended

31 December 2016, in the opinion of

the Board, the Company has complied with
the internal control requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code throughout the
year, maintaining an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating, and minimising risk.
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance
with applicable law and requlations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent company financial
statements for each finandat year, Under that law they are required to prepare the Group
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law
and have elected to prepare the parent company financial staternents in accordance
with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and parent company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the
Group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required:

- toselect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- tomake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
« for the Group financial statements, to state whether they have been prepared

in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;
« for the parent company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the parent company financial statements; and
to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presurne that the Group and the parent company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the parent company’s transactions and disciose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company and enable them to
ensure thatits financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to thern to safequard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irreqularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing
aStrategic Report, Directors’ Report, Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance
Statement that comply with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislationin
other jurisdictions.

By order of the Board

lan Griffiths

Group Finance Director
1March 2017

ITV ple

Registered number 4967001
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Financial Statements

In this The financial statements have been presented in a style that attempts to make them less complex
saction and more retevant to shareholders. We have grouped the note disclosures into five sections: ‘Basis of
Preparation’, ‘Results for the Year', '‘Operating Assets and Liabilities’, ‘Capital Structure and Financing
Costs’ and ‘Other Notes'. Each section sets out the accounting policies applied in producing the relevant
notes, along with details of any key judgements and estimates used. The purpose of this format is to
provide readers with a clearer understanding of what drives financial performance of the Group.
The aim of the text in boxes is to provide commentary on each section, or note, in plain English.

In this Notes to the financial statements
section Rules 1o explain 4 particular featur

explanations and additionat disclos

Report and the financial statenents,
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to the

Members of ITV plc Only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1, Our opinion on the financial statemaents is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of ITV plc for the year ended 31 December 2016 set out on pages T0 to 188. in our opinion.

= the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2016

and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

= the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Intermatianal Financial Reparting Standards as adopted

by the European Union;

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101

Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

+ the financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the group

financial staterments, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
2. Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the risks of material misstatement, in decreasing order of audit significance,

that had the greatest effect on our audit, were as follows:

The risk

Our response

Net Advertising Revenue ('NAR") £1,672 million (2015: £1,719 million) Risk vs 2015: 4 »,
Refer to page 71 (Audit Cornmittee report), page 120 (accounting poticy) and pages 121 and 122 (financial disclosures)

The majority of (T\'s advertising revenue {NARY is subject to regulation
under Ofcom’s Contract Rights Renewal system (CRR'), CRR works by
ensuring that the annual share of TV advertising that will be placed
with ITV by each advertising agency can change in relation to the
viewing figures for commercial television that it delivers. The CRR
system, the pricing of the annual contractual arrangements with
advertising agencies and the details of each advertising campaign,
together with the related processes and contrals, are complex and
imvolve estirmation.

In particular, the pricing mechanisrn means it is possible for a
difference to arise between the price received by ITV for an advertising
campaign and the value it delivered, mainly as a resutt of the actual
viewing figures being different from the agreed level Where the
Group has over-delivered viewers this is referred to as a ‘deal credit’,
or a‘deal debt’ where delivery has fallen short. Rather than the price
paid for that campaign being adjusted, these differences are noted for
each agency and then taken account of when agreeing either future
campaigns or the annual contract. A net deal debt position with an
agency is recorded in ITV's accounts, as a liability. Net deal credit
positions are not recognised,

NAR is therefore considered a significant risk due to:

+ The number and complexity of contractual agreements with
advertising agencies;

+ The complexity of the systems and processes of control used to
record revenue; and,

* The level of estimation involved in determining the deal debt liability
at the period end.

Our procedures included:

* Testing of controls, assisted by our own IT specialists, including those
over: segregation of duties, input of annual deal terms with agencies,
input of individual carmpaigns' terms and pricing, comparison of
those terms and pricing data against the related contracts with
advertising agencies; linkage to transmission/viewer data, and the
system generated calculation of deal debt for each campaign;

* Analysing revenue based on our industry knowledge and external
market data, following up variances; and

+ Challenging the year-end deal debt position based on comparison
with custorners’ correspondence and agreed terms of business.

We also assessed the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the accounting policies on revenue recognition.
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The nsk

Our response

Other revenue streams {{Non-NAR revenue”) £1,392 million (2015: £1,253 mitlion) Risk vs 20%5: v
Refer to page 71 (Audit Committee report), page120 (accounting policy) and pages 121 and 122 {finandial disclosures)

Non-NAR revenue includes revenue from: programme production,
the sale of programme rights, transmission supply arrangements and
the Online, Pay & Interactive division within the Broadcast segment.

Recognition of revenue is driven by the specific terms of the related
contracts and is considered to be a significant risk as the terms of
the contracts are varied and can be complex, with the result that
accounting for the revenue generatedin any given period can require
individual consideration and judgement. Due to the contractual
nature of these revenue streams, the focus of cur work is on the risks
associated with significant one-off contracts.

Our procedures included:

+ We considered the Group’s revenue recognition policies against the
relevant accounting standards; and

= For higher value revenue contracts entered into during the year,
we considered whether revenue had been recognised in accordance
with the contractual terms in the correct accounting period, given
the requirements of the relevant accounting standard.

We also assessed the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the accounting policy on revenue recognition.

Defined benefit pension scheme obligations £367 million (2015: £176 million) Risk vs 2015: 4

Refer to page 70 (Audit Committee report), page 148 (accounting policy.

and pages 148 to 156 (financial disclosures)

Significant estimates are made in determining the key assumptions
used in valuing the group's post-retirement defined benefit
obiigations. When making these assumptions the Group takes
independent actuarial advice relating to their appropriateness.

Following an analysis of the membership data carried out for the
related longevity swap, the Group updated its mortality assumptions
in the year which had an impact on the abligations at the year-end.

The Group also closed the TV Pensions Scheme for future benefit
accrual with effect from 28 February 2017.

The valuation of the defined benefit obligations is considered a significant
risk given the quantum of the pension deficits, the developrments related
to the schermnes in the year, and given that a small change in assumptions
canhave a material financial impact on the Group.

Our pracedures included:

= Challenging the key assumptions applied in determining the Group's
pension obligations, being the discount rate, inflation rate and
mortality/life expectancy, with the support of our own actuarial
specialists;

+ This included a comparison of these key assumptions against
extemally derived data; and

* Testing the methodology applied in determining the revised
mortality expectation by comparing the conclusions of the Group's
analysis with our own analysis formed using extermally derived data.

We also considered the adequacy of the group's disclosures in respect
of the sensitivity of the deficits to these assumptions,

We continue to perform procedures over acquisition accounting and royalty accruals. We have not assessed these as risks that had the greatest
effect on our audit for the reasons explained below and, therefore, they are not separately identified in our report this year:

Acquisition accounting is not separately identified in our report this year

as the Group did not enter into any complex transactions in the year.

Royalty accruals are no longer considered a significant risk reflecting further improvement in controls in the year and the overall size of the

balance by comparison with the Group’s Net Asset position.
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3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiatity for the group financial statements as a whole was set at £35 mitlion 2015: £29 mitlion), determined with reference to a benchmark
of group profit before tax normalised to exclude the one-off pre-paid employment linked remuneration charge and pension curtailment cost
disclosed in note 2.2, £623 million, of which materiality represents 5.5% (2015 £.6% of group profit before tax).

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding million £1.7 mitlion (2015: £1.5 million),
in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds,

Scoping and coverage

The Group's principal operations are in the United Kingdorn. The Group audit team performed the audit of the core UK operations {comprising
Braadcast and Onling, the UK Studios, Global Entertainment and the central functions) as if they were a single aggregated set of financial
information using materiality of £25 million {2015: £25 million). The group team perfonmed procedures on the items exduded from normalised
group profit before tax. This year Talpa Media BV, in the Netherlands, was also scoped in for Group audit purposes as a full scope audit. The work on
Talpa Media B.V. was performed by a cormponent auditor as instructed by the Group, induding the assessment of relevant risks and determination

of the information to be reported back The Group audit team set the materiality of £5 million for this component,

The Group team visited the component in Netherlands, including to assess the audit risk and strategy, and held several tetephone conference
meetings with the component audit team. At this visit and in these meetings, the findings reported to the Group team were discussed in more
detail, and any further work required by the Group team was then performed by the component auditor,

Although rot in-scope for Group reporting purposes, in agreement with the Audit Committee, specified risk-based audit pracedures were also
perfarmed on two entities in the US by component auditors simultaneously with the audit of the in-scope operations. The Group audit team
set the materiality for specified audit procedures at £5 million for these US cornponents. Together the above audit and these specified audit
procedures covered 90% (2015: 92%) of group revenue, B3% {2015: 94%) of group profit before taxation, and 90% (2015: 88%) of total

group assets.

&, Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 is unmodified
N our opinion:

« the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial staternents.

Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and from reading the Strategic
Report and the Directors' Report:

+ we have not identified material misstatements in those reports; and

* in our opinion, those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,
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5. We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

= the Directors’ viability statement on page 57, concerning the principal risks, their management, and, based on that, the Directors’ assessment
and expectations of the group’s continuing in operation over the 3 years to 31 December 2019; or

= the disclosures in note 1 of the financial statements concerning the use of the going concern basis of accounting.

6. We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to raport by exception

Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have identified other
infermation in the annual report that contains a matenal inconsistency with either that knowledge or the financial staternents, a material
misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to report 1o you if:

« we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audit and the Directors’ statement that they
consider that the annual report and finandial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s position and performance, business model and strategy; or

= the Audit Committee Report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee,
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statermnents and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review:

« the Directors’ statements, set out on pages 104 and 57, in relation to going concern angd longer-term viability; and

+ the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 64 to 67 relating to the company’s compliance with the eteven provisions of the
2014 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities.

Scope and responsibilities

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 104, the Directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. A description of the scope of an audit of financial
statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.froorg.uk/auditscopeukprivate. This report is made solely

to the company’s members as a body and is subject to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published on our
website at www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeukco2014a, which are incorporated into this report as if set out in fult and should be read to provide
an understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions

Paul Sawdon (Senior Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

1 March 2017
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Income Statement

2016 2015
Far the year ended 31 December Note £m £m
Revenue 21 3,064 2972
Operating costs {2,460) ___(2306)
Operating profit 604 666
Presented as:
Eamnings before interest, tax, amortisation (EBITA) before exceptional items 21 857 842
Operating exceptional items 22 (164) (109)
Amortisation of intangible assets 33 (89) (67)
Operating profit 604 666
Financing income 4.4 2 )
Financing costs 4.4 {53) 3
Net financing costs 44 (57 30
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) 22 - 5
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments (exceptional items) 2.2 - 1
Profit before tax 553 641
Taxation 23 (100) _{139)
Profit from continuing operations 453 502
Loss after tax for the pericd from discontinued cperation 25 (1) -
Profit for the year 452 502
Profit attributable to:
QOwners of the Company 448 495
Nan-controlling interests 46.6 4 7
Profit for the year 452 502
Eamings per share
Basic earnings per share 24 M2p 124p
Diluted earnings per share 24 1.1p 123p
£amings per share from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 2.4 n2p 12.4p
Diluted earnings per share 24 1.1p 12.3p
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2016

2015

For the year ended 31 December Note £m £m
Profit for the year 452 502
Other comprehensive income:

Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss

Revaluation of available for sale financial assets 464 1 ()
Net loss on cash flow hedges 46.3 ) -
Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations (net of hedging) 463 46 10
iems that will never be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes 37 (248) 91
income tax charge on items that will never be reclassified 23 40 {19)
Other comprehensive (cost)/income for the year, net of income tax {163) 81
Total comprehensive income for the year 289 583
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Company 285 576
Non-controlling interests 466 4 7
Total comprehensive income for the year 289 583

m
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

216 015
As at 31 December Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 32 244 239
Intangible assets 33 1,624 1,500
Investments in joint ventures, associates and equity investments 35 76 30
Derivative financial instruments 43 1 8
Distribution rights 31.2 N 29
Other pension asset 37 39 -
Deferred tax asset 23 17 -
2,032 1806
Current assets
Pragramme rights and ather inventory 31 406 373
Trade and other receivables due within one year 313 526 531
Trade and other receivables due after more than one year 313 39 33
Trade and gther receivables 5658 564
Current tax receivable n 13
Derivative financial instruments 4.3 8 1
Cash and cash equivalents A1 561 294
1551 1,245
Current liabilities
Barrowings 42 {165} el
Derivative finandial instrurments 4.3 & (5)
Trade and other payables due within one year 314 (960) (786)
Trade payables due after more than one year 315 {57} {48B)
Trade and other payables {1,017 {834)
Current tax liabilities (76} {69)
Provisions 36 {19} {28)
{1280) 847
Net current assets el 258
Non-current liabilities
Borrawings 4.2 (1,035) 602
Derivative financial instruments 4.3 (s} (6
Defined benefit pension deficit 3.7 (367 (176)
Deferred tax liabilities 23 (70) 79
Other payables 315 (63) 89)
Provisions 36 (&) (5
(1,548) (957)
Net assets 755 1,147
Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company
Share capital 4.6.1 403 403
Share premium 461 174 174
Merger and other reserves 462 p7s) 221
Translation reserve 46.3 79 35
Available for sate reserve 46.4 7 6
Retained earnings 465 {162) 275
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 72 114
Non-controlling interests 33 33
Total equity 755 1147

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 1March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

lan Griffiths
Group Finance Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable 1o equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Avaitable Non-
Share Share  andother Translation for sale Retained controlling Total
capital premum reserves reserve reserve earmings Total Interasts equity
Note £ £m €m £€m £m £m £m €m £m
Balance at 1 January 2016 403 174 pry) 35 6 275 1114 33 1147
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Profit - - - - - 448 448 4 452
Other comprehensive income/(cost)
Revaluation of avaitable for sale
financial assets - - - - 1 - 1 - 1
Net loss on cash flow hedges - - - [P4] - - {2 - 2
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (net of hedging) - - - 46 — - 46 - 46
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit
pension schermes 37 - - - - - (248) (248) - (248)
Income tax charge on other
comprehensive income 23 - - - - - 40 40 - 40
Total other comprehensive income - - - 44 1 (208) {163) - (163}
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 44 1 240 285 4 289
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions
10 owners
Equity dividends - - - - - {663) {663) (] {667)
Movements due to share-based
compensation 47 - - - - - 10 10 - 10
Tax on items taken directly to equity 23 - - - - - {4) {4) — {4)
Purchase of own shares via employees’
benefit trust 47 - - - - - (20) {20) - {20)
Total contributions by and distributions
to owners — — — - — {677) (677) (4) (681)
Total transactions with owners - - - - - 677) &77) () (687)
Balance at 31 December 2016 46 403 174 pz4) 79 7 (162) 722 33 755

"3
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity continued

Attributable ta equity shareholders of the parent company

Merger Avallable Non-
and other Translation for sale Retained controllng Total
resenses reserve reserve earnings Total interests equlty
Note £m £m £m £m £m £&m £m
Balance at 1 January 2015 28 25 7 77 104 50 1064
Totat comprehensive income for
the year ) B
Profit - - - 495 495 7 502
Other comprehensive income/{cost) .
Revaluation of available for sale
financial assets B - - U - M - (V]
Exchange differences on translation of
fareign operations {net of hedging) - 0 - - 10 - 10
Remeasurement gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 37 - - - 9N N - 18
Reclassification of revaluation reserve
on disposal of property, plant and
equipment ) - (&) - - 4 - - -
Income tax charge on other
comprehensive income 23 - - - {19) (19) - {19)
Total other comprehensive income (4) 10 {1 76 81 - 1
Total comprehensive income for
the year (4) 10 (U} 571 576 7 583
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity _ o L . o o o
Contributions by and distributions
to owners o _ _ . —
Equity dividends - - - - (459)  (459) (5 (464)
Movements due to share-based
compensation . 47 - - - 14 14 - 14
Tax oniterns taken directly to equity 23 - - - 5 __ 5 = 5
Purchase of own shares via ermployees’
benefit trust Y - - - 33) (33) - (33)
Total contributions by and distributions
10 owners - - - (473) (473) (5) {478)
Total transactions with owners - - - (B73) {473) {5) (478)
Changes in non-controlling interests® 34 B3 - - - 6] {19) 22)
Balance at 31 December 2015 46 n 35 6 275 1114 33 1,147

(3) Movernents reported in merger and other reserves include a put option for the acquisition of non-controlling mnterests.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2016 2015

For the year ended 31 December Note £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 21 870 827
Cash flow relating to operating exceptional items:

Operating exceptional items 22 (164} (109)

Prepaid employment linked consideration 34 - (109)

Increase in exceptional payables il 60

Decrease in exceptional prepayments and other receivables 66 36
Cash cutflow from exceptional items (@ (122)
Operating cash flow from discontinued operation 25 (6) -
Cash generated from operations 837 705
Defined benefit pension deficit funding {80} (80)
Interest received 38 25
Interest paid on bank and other loans (58) (34)
Net taxation paid (90) (117)

(190) 216)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 647 489
Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking, net of cash acquired 3.4 (97) {406)

Prepaid emptoyment linked consideration 34 - 109
Net consideration paid (97) (297)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 28
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (29) (33)
Acquisition of intangible assets (15) (16}
Acquisition of investments (41) (14)
Loans granted to associates and joint ventures ) )
Net proceeds from sale of assets held for sale 25 10
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries, joint ventures and available for
sale investments - 1
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities {174) (333
Cash flows from financing activities
Bank and other loans - amounts repaid (655) {447y
Bank and other loans — amounts raised 1177 797
Capital element of finance lease payments (6) @
Equity dividends paid (663) {459)
Dividend paid to minority interest (4) [&)]
Purchase of own shares via employees’ benefit trust 20) 33)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (171) (154)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 302 2
Cash and cash equivalents at 1January 4.1 294 297
Reclassification of gilts to other pension assets 37 {39) -
Effects of exchange rate changes and fair value movements 4 (5)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 44 561 294

5
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation

116

In this This section sets out the Group's accounting policies that relate to the financiat
section statements as a whaole. Where an accounting policy is specific to one nate, the policy
is described in the note to which it relates. This section also shows new EU endorsed

accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, and whether they are
effective in 2016 or later years. We explain how these changes are expected to
impact the financial pasition and performance of the Group.

The financial statements consolidate those of ITV plc (the Company’) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the ‘Group) and the Group's interests in associates and jointly controlled entities. The Company is domiciled in the
United Kingdom

As required by European Union Law (IAS Requlation EC 1606/2002) the Group's financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRSY), and approved
by the Directors.

The financial statements are principally prepared on the basis of historical cost. Where other bases are applied these
are identified in the relevant accounting policy.

The parent company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS107).

Going concern

At 31 December 2016 the Group was in a net debt position. The Group's strong balance sheet and continued generation
of significant free cash flows has enabled further investment as well as the payment of a special dividend. The Group
has also sought to gain further efficiencies in the balance sheet and maintain the flexibility to invest in the business by
issuing a new Eurgbond (see section 4 for details on capital structure and financing).

The Group continues to review forecasts of the television advertising market to determine the impact on [TV's liquidity
position. The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance,
show that the Group will be able to operate within the level of its current available funding.

The Group alse continues to focus ondevelopment of the non-advertising business, and evaluates the impact of
further investment against the strategy and cash headroom of the business,

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in operation for at least twelve months from the date of this report. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt the gaing
concerm basis in preparing its consolidated financial statemenits.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and available for sale investments

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Group. Control exists where the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity in order to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potentiat voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are taken into account.

Ajoint venture is a joint arrangement in which the Group holds an interest under a contractual arrangement where
the Group and one or more other parties undertake an econoric activity that is subject to joint control. The Group
accounts for its interests in joint ventures using the equity method. Under the equity method the investment in the
entity is stated as one line itern at cost plus the investor's share of retained post-acquisition profits and other changes
in net assets.

Anassaciate is an entity, other than a subsidiary or joint venture, over which the Group has sigrificant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in, but not control or jointly control, the financial and operating
decisions of an entity, These investments are also accounted for using the equity method.

Investments where the Group concludes it does not have significant influence are deemed 'available for sale”. These
investrments are held at fair value unless the investment is a start-up business, in which case it is valued at cost and
assessed for impairment.
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Current/non-current distinction

Current assets include assets held primarily for trading purposes, cash and cash equivalents, and assets expected tobe
realised in, or intended for sale or use in, the course of the Group's operating cycle. All other assets are classified as non-
current assets,

Current liabilities include liabilities held primarily for trading purposes, liabilities expected to be settied in the course
of the Group's operating cycte and those liabilities due within one year from the reporting date. All other liabilities
are classified as non-current liabilities.

Classification of financial instruments
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group are classified into the following financial statement captions in the
statement of financial position in accordance with 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:

» Loans and receivables - separately disclosed as cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables;

« Avaitable for sale financial assets - measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

+ Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or koss — separately disclosed as derivative financial instruments in
assets/liabilities and induded in non-current other payables (contingent consideration); and

+ Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - separately disclosed as borrowings and trade and other payables

Judgement is required when determining the appropriate classification of the Group's financial instruments.
Details on the accounting policies for measurement of the above instruments are set out in the relevant note.
Where unconditional rights to set off financial instruments exist, the Group presents the relevant instruments
net in the staterment of financial position.

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets and tiabilities

The Group recognises & financial asset or liability when it becomes a party to the contract. Financial instruments
are no longer recognised in the statement of financial position when the contractual cash flows expire or when
the Group no longer retains control of substantially all the risks and rewards under the instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits with a maturity of less than or equal to three months
from the date of acquisition and cash held to meet certain finance lease commitments. The carrying value of cash and
cash equivalents is considered to approximate fair value. Cash and cash equivalents that has a charge executed over it
is excluded from cash and cash equivalents,

Foreign currencies
The primary economic environment in which the Group operates is the UK and therefore the consolidated financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling ('£).

Where Group companies based in the UK transact in foreign currencies, these transactions are translated into pounds
sterling at the exchange rate on the transaction date. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
Iinto pounds sterling at the year end exchange rate. Where there is a movement in the exchange rate between the date
of the transaction and the year end, a foreign exchange gain or loss is recognised in the income staterment.

Hedge accounting is implemented on certain foreign currency firm commitrments, which allows for the effective
portion of any foreign exchange gains or losses to be recognised in cther comprehensive income {note 4 3),

Where a forward currency contract is used to manage foreign exchange risk and hedge accounting I1s not applied,
any movement in currency is taken to the income statement,

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated into pounds sterling at the exchange rate
on the date of the transaction

The assets and liabilities of Group companies outside of the UK are translated into pounds sterling at the year end
exchange rate. The revenue and expenses of these companies are translated into pounds sterling at the average
monthly exchange rate during the year. Where differences arise between these rates, they are recognised in the
translation reserve within other comprehensive income.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 1: Basis of Preparation continued

Exchange differences arising on the translation of the Group’s interests in joint ventures and associates are recognised
in the translation reserve within other comprehensive income.

On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, an interest in a joint venture or an associate, the related translation reserve
is released to the income statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's
accounting policies. It also requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, with revisions recognised in the period
wwhich the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgernent or cormptexity are set out below and in more detail in the related notes:

* Revenue recognition {(note 2.1)
+ Business combinations (note 3.3 and note 3.4)

In addition to the above, the areas involving the most sensitive estimates and assumptions that are significant to the
financial statements are set out below and in more detail in the retated notes:

+ Defined benefit pension (note 3.7)
* Taxation (note 2.3)
+ Testing of goodwill impairment (note 3.3)

New or amended EU endorsed accounting standards
The table below represents new or amended EU endorsed accounting standards relevant to the Group's results that
are effective in 2016.

Actounting Standard Requirement

IAS 38 Intangible The armendments clarify acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisationintroducing
Assets and arebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation or depreciation

IAS 16 Property, Plant methods is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome when revenue and the

and Equipment consumption of the economic benefits of the asset are highly correlated.

IAS 27 Separate The amendments allow the use of the equity method in separate finandal statements, and
Financial Statements _ apply to the accounting not only for associates and joint ventures, but also for subsidiaries.

IAS 11 Joint The amendments require business combination accounting to be applied to acquisitions of
Arrangements interests in & joint operation that constitutes a business,

IAS 1 Presentationof  Amendments to dlarify various standards including IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale

financial statements  and Discontinued Cperations, IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 8 Operating Segments,
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, IAS 24 Related Party
Disclosures and IAS 38 Intangible Assets.

Annual Improvements  Amendments to clarify various standards including IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
to IFRS 2012 - 2014 and Discontinued Operations, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, 1AS 19 Employee
cycle Benefits and IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

Based on the Directors’ analysis the amendments outlined above do not have a material impact on the Group's
financial position or performance for the year ended 31 December 2016,

The Directors also considered the impact on the Group of other new and revised accounting standards, interpretations
or amendments that are currently endorsed but not yet effective, There are none that are effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 that are expected to have a significant irnpact on the Group's resuits.

18
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IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is effective 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 will require the Group to identify
distinct promises in contracts with custamers that qualify as ‘performance obligations'. The price receivable from
customers must then be allocated between the performance obligations identified.

Aninitial assessment of impact on the Group’s perforrmance has been performed on material revenue streams.

The impact is not expected to be material for Broadcasting revenues. Studios revenues are mainly comprised of
production and distribution revenue streams. No material impact is expected on the production revenues. Further
detailed analysis on licensing and merchandising revenues is ongoing to assess whether contracts include dynamic

{e.g. continued cbligation to update content over the license period) or static perfarmance obligations, which will aid

in determining whether revenue should be recognised over the license period or at a point in time. The impact on those
revenue streams is expected to be limited.

The Directors anticipate adopting IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018, When it is adopted, IFRS 15 can be applied either on a fully
retrospective basis, requiring the restatement of the comparative periods presented in the financial statements, or
with the cumulative retrospective impact of the standard applied as an adjustment to equity on the date of adoption.
When the latter is applied disclosure of the impact of IFRS 15 on each line item in the financial statements is required,
The Directors currently intend to apply the cumulative effect method.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments is also effective 1 January 2018. Based on the initial assessment of the impact,
the Directors are currently not expecting the application to significantly impact the Group’s current accounting
or hedging activities.

IFRS 16 Leases is effective 1 January 2019 and has not been endorsed by the EU. IFRS 16 will change lease accounting
for lessees under operating leases. Such agreements will require recognition of anasset representing the right to use
the leased item and a liability for future lease payments. Lease costs (such as property rent) will be recognised in the form
of depreciation and interest, rather than operating cost. The detailed assessment of impact on the Group's performance

is ongoing, the adoption is likely to have a material impact on the presentation of the Group's assets and liabilities.

M9
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 2: Results for the Year

In this
section

This sectien focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the
following pages you will find disclosures explaining the Group’s results for

the year, segmental information, exceptional items, taxation and earnings

per share,
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Accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Revenue is stated exclusive of VAT and equivalent sales taxes, and comprises the sale of progducts and services

to third parties. Judgement is required when determining the appropriate timing and amount of revenue that can

be recognised, specifically around whether there is a firm contract and that the service has been provided, and if so,
whether there is a fixed or reasonably determinable price that is reasonably certain will be collected. Complexity in
advertising revenue recogrnition is driven by intricate automated and manual processes involved in rmeasuring the value

delivered to the custormer

Revenue is recognised when the Group has transferred both the significant risks and rewards of ownership and control,
and the amount of revenue ¢an be measured reliably. Revenue recognition criteria for the Group's key classes of

revenue are recognised on the following bases:

Applicable segment Class of revenue Recognition criteria
Broadcast & Online Advertising (NAR) on transmission
Video on Demand (VOD) as audience targets are met
Spansarship across periad of transmission of the sponsared
programme or series
Pay over the term of the contract or for the expected
revenue per subscriber or download
Participation (interactive & as the service is provided or event occurs
Brand Extensions)
Studios Prograrnme production on delivery of episode and acceptance by the

customer

Programme distribution rights

when the contract Is signed and content is available
for exploitation

Format and licences

at the paint in time when the license is transferred
and the customer is able to use and benefit from
the licence; over the license period if continued
involvernent of the Group is required

Digitak: Archive

on delivery of content (one-off) or over the contract
period in a manner that reflects the flow of content
delivered (top-up)

120



TV plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

The results for the year aggregate these classes of revenue into four significant categories:

2016 2016 2015 2015
£m % of total £m % of total
NAR
Broadcast & Online 1,672 47% 1,719 51%
Non-NAR
Broadcast & Online 460 427
ITV Studios. Productions 1,089 1,045
1TV Studios: Distribution 306 192
Total Non-NAR 1,855 53% 1,664 49%
Total revenue from continuing operations 3,527 100% 3,383 100%
Segmental information

Operating segments, which have not been aggregated, are deterrnined in a manner that is consistent with how the business
is managed and reported to the Board of Directors. The Board is regarded as the chief operating dedision maker.

The Board considers the business primarily from an operating activity perspective. The reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 are therefore Broadcast & Online and ITV Studios, the results
of which are outlined in the following tables:

Broadcast

& Ondine ITV Studios* Consolidated

2006 06 2018

£m £m £m

Totat segment revenue 2,143 1,395 3538
Intersegment revenue - {463) (463)

Revenue from extemal customers including discontinued operations 2143 932 3,075
Less: Discontinued operations {note 2.5) (1 - (L)

Revenue from extemal customers 2,132 932 3,064

Adjusted EBITA including discontinued operations** 636 243 879
Less: Operating loss from discontinued operations (note 2.5) {6) - {6)

Adjusted EBITA** 642 243 885

Broadcast

& Online TV Studios* Consoldated

2015 2015 2015

£m £m £m

Total segment revenue 2146 1237 3383
Intersegment revenue - @1y @1

Revenue from external customers including discontinued operations 2,146 826 2972

Less: Discontinued operations - - -

Revenue from external customers 2146 826 2972

Adjusted EBITA including discontinued operations** 659 206 865

Adjusted EBITA from discontinued operations** = - -

Adjusted EBITA** 659 206 865

*  Revenue of £320 million 2015 €389 mutlion) was generated in the US during the year; the US represented £346 million

(2015 £314 million} of non-current assets at year end.
= Adjusted EBITA 1s before exceptional items and includes the benefit of production tax credits, it is shown after the elimination

of intersegment revenue and costs. This measure represents the continuing operations.
Intersegment revenue, which is earned on arm's length terms, is generated from the supply of ITV Studios programmes
to Broadcast & Online for transmission primarily cn the ITV Network, This revenue stream is a measure which forms
part of the Group's strategic priority of building a strong international content business, as producing and retaining
rights to the shows broadcast on the ITV Network benefits the Group further from subsequent international content
and format sales,

In preparing the segment informaticn, centrally managed costs have been allocated between reportable segrments
on a methodology driven principally by revenue, headcount and building occupancy of each segment, This is consistent
with the basis of reporting to the Board of Directors.

g’y

SIUBLIAINS [PUNLl]



Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 2: Results for the Year continued

122

The Group's principal operations are in the United Kingdom. Revenue from external customers in the United Kingdom
15 £2,370 million (2015: £2,275 million}, and revenue from external customers in other countries is £694 million
(2015: £697 million). The Financial and Performance Review provides further detail on ITV's international revenues.

There is one media buying agency (2015: two) acting on behalf of a number of advertisets that represent the Group's
major customers, This agency is the only customer which individually represents aver 10% of the Group's revenue.
Revenue of approximately £552 million (2015: £576 million) was derived from this customer., This revenue is attributable
to the Broadcast & Online segment.

Broadcast & Online

The Group operates the largest commercial famity of channels in the UK and delivers content through multiple
platforms, In addition to linear television broadcast, the Group delivers its content on the TV Hub, pay platforms,
and through direct content deals. Content commissioned and scheduled by this segment is funded primarily by television
advertising, where revenue is generated from the sale of audiences for advertising airtime and spensorship.

Cther sources of revenue are from: online advertising; HD digital channels on pay platforms (e.q. Sky and Virgin); SDN
revenue (which generates licence sales for DTT Multipiex A); and participation revenue (which includes interactive sales
from competitions) and the 1TV Choice subscription service in other countries.

1TV Studios
ITV Studios is the Group's international content business, creating and producing programmes and formats that return
and travel, namely drama, entertainment and factual entertainment.

ITV Studios UK is the largest commercial producer in the UK and produces programming for the Group’s own channels,
accounting for 63% of ITv main channel spend on comrmissioned programmiing. Programming is also sold to other UK
broadcasters such as the BBC, Channel 4 and Sky.

ITV America is the leading unscripted independent producer of content in the US and is growing its scripted presence
by increasing investment irt high-profile dramas straight to series.

TV Studios atso operates in five other intemational locations being Australia, Germany, France, the Netherlands (primarily
Talpa) and the Nordics, where content is produced for local broadcasters. This content is either locally created IP or formats
that have been created elsewhere by ITV, primarily in the UK and the Netherlands. ‘

Global Entertainment and Talpa Global, ITV's distribution businesses, license ITV's finished programmes and formats
and third-party content internationally, Within this business we also finance productions both on and off ITV to acquire
global distribution rights.

Adjusted EBITA

The Directors assess the performance of the reportable segments based on a measure of adjusted EBITA. The Directors
use this measurerment basis as it excludes the effect of transactions that could distort the understanding of the Group's
performance for the year and comparability between periods. See the Financial and Performance Review on pages 34
to 35 for the detailed explanation of the Group's use of adjusted performance measures.

A reconciliation from adjusted EBITA to profit before tax is provided as follows:

2016 2015
£m m
Adjusted EBITA 885 865
Production tax credits {28) (23)
EBITA before exceptional items from continuing operations 857 B42 !
Operating exceptional iterms {164) (109)
Amortisation of intangible assets (89) 67}
Net financing costs (51) (31
Gain on sale of non-current assets (exceptional items) - 5
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments {exceptional iterns) - 1
Profit before tax from continuing operations 553 641
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Cash generated from operations
A reconciliation from profit before tax to cash generated from operations before exceptional items is as follows.

2016 2015
£m £m
Cash flows from operating activities 7 )
Profit before tax o ) . 553 641
Gain on sale of subsidiaries and investments (exceptionalitems) L - M
Gain on sale of non-current assets {exceptional items) o o - (5}
Net financing costs B ) S - | 3
Operating exceptional items o 164 108
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment . . o £ s
Amortisation of intangible assets _ 89 67
Share-based compensation and pensign service Costs 10 17
(Increase)/decrease in programme rights and other inventory, and distribution rights (35) 4
_ (Increase}inreceivables __(56) 27
increase/{decrease) in payables 63 {42)
Movement in working capital (28) (59)
Cash generated from operations before exceptional items 870 827
Operating costs
Staff costs
Staff costs before exceptional items can be analysed as follows:
2016 2015
£m £m
Wages and salaries o o o . 33 38
Social security and other costs o N . 46 43
Share-based compensation (seenote 47) o 10 1
Pension costs 27 25
Total staff costs 419 400
Less: staff costs allocated to productions (147) (137)
FTEE staff costs (non-production) 272 263

Exceptional staff costs are disclosed separately in note 2.2

The number of full-time equivalent ernployees (FTEE) (excluding short-term contractors and freelancers who are
predominantly allocated to the cost of productions), calculated on a weighted average basis, during the year was:

2016 2015

Broadcast & Online 2,087 2109
ITV Studios 4,034 3449
6,121 5558

The increase in full-time equivatent employees in 1TV Studios is primarily driven by the full year effect of acquisitions
completed in 2015.

Details of Directors’ emoluments, share options, pension entitlements and long-term incentive scheme interests are
set outin the Rernuneration Report. Listed Directors’ gains on share options for 2016 are set outin the 1§V plc entity
financial statements.

Depreciation
Depreciation in the year was £31million (2015: £27 million), of which £13 million (2015: £14 million) relates to Broadcast
& Online and £18 million (2015: £13 million) to TV Studios.
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Operating leases
The total undiscounted future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are due for payment
as follows:
2016 Transponders Property Total
Within one year 28 19 47
Later than one year and not later than five years 129 59 188
Later than five years 92 7 109
249 95 344
2015 Transponders Property Total
Within one year 34 17 51
Later than one year and not later than five years 1 48 159
Later than five years 15 21 136
260 86 346

The Group's operating leases relate 1o transponder assets, offices and studio properties. The Group holds transmission
supply agreements that require the use of transponder assets for a period of up to ten years with payments increasing
aver time, limited by specific RPI caps. These supply agreements are classified as operating leases, in accordance with
the Group's policy on leases detailed in note 3.2.

Property leases run for termns ranging from five to twenty years, depending on the expected operational use of the site. Leases
may include break dlauses or options to renew (options to renew are not included in the commitments table). Lease payments
are generally subject 10 market review every five years to reflect market rentals, but because of the uncertainty over the
amount of any future changes, such changes have not been reflected in the table above. None of the lease agreements
include contingent rentals.

The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable subleases at the year end
are £1million (2015: £1 million).

The total operating lease expenditure recognised during the year was E47 million (2015: £51 million) and total sublease
payments received were £1 million (2015: £2 million).

Audit fees

The Group engages KPMG LLP (KPMG) on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where their expertise
and experience with the Group are important and are in line with Group’s policy on auditor independence.

Fees paid to KPMG and its associates during the year are set out below:

2016 2015

£m £m

For the audit of the Group's annual accounts 06 06
For the audit of subsidiaries of the Group 06 04
Audit-related assurance services 0.2 0.2
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 1.4 1.2
Taxation advisory services 0.2 01
Other assurance services DA 0.3
Total non-audit Services 03 0.4
Total fees paid to KPMG 1.7 16

There were no fees payable in 2016 or 2015 to KPMG and associates for the auditing of accounts of any associate
or pension scheme of the Group, internal audit services, services relating to corporate finance transactions entered
into or proposed to be entered inte, by or on behalf of the Group or any of its associates.

Fees paid to KPMG for audit and other services to the Company are not disctosed in its individuat accounts as the Group
accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.
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Accounting policies
Exceptional items as described above are disclosed on the face of the income statement.

Subsequent revisions of estimates for items initially recognised as exceptional are recorded as exceptionalitems
in the year that the revision is made. Gains or losses on disposal of non-core assets are also considered exceptional
due to their nature and impact on the Group’s underlying quatity of earnings.

Exceptional items
Operating and non-operating exceptional items are analysed as follows:
2016 w5
(Charge/credit Ref £m £m
Operating exceptional itemns:
Acquisition-related expenses A {131 (88)
Reorganisation and restructuring costs B {14} (13)
Pension curtailment cost C {19) -
Legal related costs - (8)
Total net operating exceptional items {164) {109)
Non-pperating exceptional items:
Gain on sale of non-current assets D - 5
Gain on sale and impairment of subsidiaries and investments E - 1
Total non-operating exceptional items - 6
Total exceptional items before tax {164) (103)
Tax on exceptional items 15 8
Total exceptional items net of tax (149) (95)

A - Acquisition-related expenses

Acquisition-related expenses of £131 million indudes £110 million (2015: £78 million) relating to performance-based,
employment linked costs to former owners mainly in relation to Talpa Media. The remaining £21 mitlion 2015 £10 mitlion)
is primarily comprised of integration costs and professional fees fmainly finandiat and legal due diligence). See note 3.4 for
further details on acquisitions.

B - Reorganisation and restructuring costs
In 2016 £14 million (2015: £13 million) of costs were incurred as a result of a Group-wide commitment to reduce the
overhead cost base by £25 million. This cost was primarily comprised of redundancy.

C - Curtaitment cost

In 2016, following a member consultation, the Group decided to close the ITV Pension Scheme to future henefit accrual,

resulting in a cne off non-cash curtailment cost of £19 million (see note 3.7 for further detail).

D - Gain on sale of non-current assets

In 2015 a £5 mitlion gain on sale of non-current assets arose primarily as a result of the sale of a freehold property and

related assets in Manchester

E - Gain on sale and impairment of subsidiaries and investments
The gain of £1 million in 2015 relates to a historical disposal.
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2.3 Keeping This section sets out the Graup's tax accounting policies, the cureent and deferred tax
Taxation it simple charges or credits in the year ich together make ap the total tax e or credit

in the income statement). a reconcliation uf protit before tax to the ccharge for

Accounting policies

The tax charge for the period is recognised in the income statement, the staterment of comprehensive income and
directly in equity, according to the accounting treatment of the related transactions. The tax charge comprises both
current and deferred tax_ The calculation of the Group's tax charge involves a degree of estimation and judgement in
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be futly determined until a resolution has been reached by the
relevant tax authority.

the period and the moverents in deferred tax assets and liabilities

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment
in respect of previous years.

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of the additional taxes that are likely

to become due, which require judgernent. Amounts are accrued based on management's interpretation of specific tax
law and the likelihood of settlement. Where the final tax cutcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes,

The following temporary differences are not provided for:

« the initial recognition of goodwill;

« the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business
combination; and

» differences relating to investrments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to utilise the temporary difference. Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefore, involves judgement regarding the
timing and level of future taxable income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed net to the extent that they relate to taxes levied by the same authority
and the Group has the right of set-off,
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Taxation — Income statement
The total taxation charge in the income statement is analysed as foltows:

2016 2015
£m £m

Curvent tax. \ _

Current tax charge on profit before exceptional items (134) {125)
Current tax {charge)/credit on exceptional items i 5]
e (123) {19)
Adjustments to prior periods 10 9
(113) QY]

Deferred tax:

_ Origination and reversal of temporary differences o 18 (20}
Deferred tax {charge)/credit on exceptional items o 4 2
Impact of change in the statutory tax rate 1 2)

] o 3 (20)

Adjustments to prior periods {10) {9
13 {29)

Total taxation charge in the income statement (100) {139)

In order to understand how, in the income statement, a tax charge of £100 million (2015: £139 million) arises on a profit
before tax of £553 million {2015: £641 million), the taxation charge that would arise at the standard rate of UK
corporaticn tax is reconciled to the actual tax charge as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Profit before tax 553 641
Notional taxation charge at UK corporation tax rate of 20% {2015: 20.25%) on
profit before tax . am (130
Non-taxable income/non-deductible expenses . o (25) 23)
Other taxes . I U -
Current year losses not recognised - ) (73] -
Impact of overseas tax rates ) S 10 4]
impact of changes in tax rates 1 @
Production tax credits 28 23
Total taxation charge in the income staterment {100) (139)

Non-deductibte expenses are expenses that are not expected to be allowable for tax purposes. Similarly non-taxable
income is income that is not expected 1o be taxable.

Adjustments to prior periods primarily arise where an outcome is obtained on certain tax matters which differs from
expectations held when the related provision was made. Where the outcome is more favourable than the provision
made, the difference is released, lowering the current year tax charge. Where the outcome is less favourable than our
provision, an additional charge to current year tax will occur. This year there is no net impact of prior year adjustments
in the total tax charge, The current tax charge includes a £10 million credit relating to prior years, and the deferred tax
credit includes an equal and opposite £10 million charge.

The impact of overseas tax rates reflects the fact that sorme of our profits are earned in territories other than the UK,
and taxed at rates different to the UK corporation tax rate. This year losses arising in higher taxed jurisdictions, which
we recognise through deferred tax, give rise to a reconciling benefit.

The UK corporation tax rate has been enacted to fall to 19% from 1 April 2017 and 17% from 1 April 2020 (this
supersedes the originally enacted reduction to 18%}). The carrying value of UK temporary differences at the balance
sheet date has been adjusted accordingly. This has given rise to a charge of £5 million {2015: £1 million) of which

£1 million is recognised as a credit in the income statement and £6 million as a charge in other comprehensive income.

The Production tax credits included within the reconciliation above are UK High-End Television (HETV) tax credits and
Children's Television tax credits, which are part of a group of incentives provided to support the creative industries, The
ability to access these tax credits is fundamental when assessing the viability of investment decisions in the production
of high-end drama and children’s programmes. Under IFRS these production tax credits are reported within the total
taxation charge in the income statement, however ITV considers them to be a contribution to production costs, and
therefore working capital in nature, and excludes them from its adjusted tax charge, including them instead within
Adjusted EBITA.
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The effective tax rate is 18.1% (2015: 21.7%), and is the tax charge on the face of the income statement expressed

as a percentage of the profit before tax. In the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the effective
tax rate is comparable to the standard rate of UK corporation tax (20% in 2016 and 20.25% in 20°15). As explained

in the Financial and Performance Review, the Group uses an adjusted tax rate to show how tax impacts total adjusted
earnings in a way that is more aligned with the Group's cash tax position.

This year the current year moverment on origination and reversal of ternporary differences (exduding exceptional items} is a
aredit of £18 million, compared with a charge of £20 miillion in 2015. The main reasons for this change are the recognition of
tax losses in our overseas businesses, and the unwinding of deferred tax liabilities as intangible assets are amortised.

Taxation - Other comprehansive income and equity

As analysed in the table below, a deferred tax credit of £40 million on actuarial movements on pensions has been
recognised in other comprehensive income. A deferred tax charge of £6 million has been recognised in equity in respect
of share based payments.

A current tax credit of £2 million has also been recognised in equity in relation to share based payments.

Taxation - Statement of financial position
The table below outlines the deferred tax assets/{liabilities) that are recognised in the staternent of financial position,
together with their movernents in the year:

At Recogrised in At

1 January the mcome  Recognised in Business Foreign 31 December

2016 Reclassification staternent OCl and equity acquisitions Exchange 2016

£m £m £m £m £fm £m £m
Intangible assets {107} 14 15 - {10 (12} {94)

Programme rights 1 - - - - - 1

Pension scheme deficits 1 1 8 40 - - 34

Tax losses 4 - 23 - - 3 30
Share-based cornpensation T (5) {4) {6) - - (4)
Other temporary differences 5 (10) (13) - - (2) {20)
(79) - 13 34 (10} (11 (53)

At Recogrised in At

1 January the income Recognised in Business 31December

2015 statement  OCland equity  acquisitions 2015

£m £m £m £m fm

Property, plant and equipment {0 1 - - -
Intangible assets (15) (10) - {76) (107

Programme rights 1 - - - 1

Pension scheme deficits 36 {16) (19) - 1

Tax losses 7 3) - - 4

Share-based compensation 14 U] 2 - n

Other temporary differences 1 - - 4 5
43 29) (24} 72 79

At 31 December 2016, total deferred tax assets are £65 million (2015: £22 mitlion) and totat deferred tax liabilities
are £118 million (2015: £101 million). After netting off balances within countries, there is a deferred tax liability of
£70 million and a deferred tax asset of £17 million 2015: net deferred tax liability of £79 million) recognised in the
Consolidated Staterment of Financial Position.

The deferred tax balances relate to:

= property, plant and equipment temporary differences anising on assets qualifying for tax depreciation
« temporary differences on intangible assets, including those arising on business combinations

+ programme rights — temporary differences on intercompany profits on stock

« pension scheme deficit temporary differences on the IAS 19 pension deficit

« temporary differances arising from the timing of the use of taxlosses

+ share-based compensation temporary differences on share schemes and

+ other temporary differences on pravisions and other items
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2.4
Earnings
per share

The deferred tax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted to reflect the current tax benefit
obtained in the current year following the employer contributions of £93 million to the Group’s defined benefit pension
scheme. The adjustment in other comprehensive income to the deferred tax balance primarily relates to the actuarial

loss recognised in the period.

A deferred tax asset of £377 million (2015: £399 million) in respect of capital losses of £2.215 rillion 2015: £2,215 million)
has not been recognised due to uncertainties as to whether a capital gain will arise in the appropriate form and relevant
territory against which such losses could be utilised. For the same reasons, deferred tax assets of £19 million (2015: £15 million}
in respect of overseas losses that time expire between 2017 and 2027 have not been recognised.
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The calculation of Basic EPS and Adjusted EPS, together with the diluted impact on each, is set out below:

Earnings per share
2016 2015
£m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of [TV plc 448 495
Less: Loss for the year from discontinued operations ()] -
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV plc
from continuing operations 449 495
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — miltion 4,010 4,006
Earnings per ordinary share and from continuing operations M.2p 12.4p
Loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -
Diluted earnings per share
2016 2015
£m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV plc
from continuing operations 449 495
Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue — multion 4,010 4,006
Dilution due to share options 19 29
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,029 4,035
Diluted earnings per ordinary share and from continuing operations Mp 12.3p

Diluted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations
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Adjusted earnings per share
2016 2015
Ref £m £m
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of ITV plc 448 495
Exceptional items {net of tax) A 149 95
Less: Loss after tax for the period from discontinued operations {1 -
Profit for the year before exceptional items
from continuing operations 598 590
Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets 2] 66 54
Adjustments to net financing costs C 19 15
Adjusted profit from continuing operations 683 659
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue - million 4,010 4,006
Adjusted eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 17.0p 16.5p
Adjusted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - -
Diluted adjusted earnings per share
2016 2015
£m £m
Adjusted profit from continuing operations 683 659
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue — million 4,010 4,006
Dilution due to share options 19 29
Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue - million 4,029 4,035
Diluted adjusted eamings per ordinary share and from continuing operations 17.0p 163p

Diluted adjusted loss per ordinary share from discontinued operations - =

Details of the adjustments to earnings are as follows:

A, Exceptional items (net of tax) £149 million (2015: £95 million)
Calculated as total exceptional items of £164 million (2015: £103 million) net of related tax credit of £15 million
{2015: £8 million). See note 2.2 for the detailed composition of exceptional items of £164 million,

B. Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets of £66 million (2015: £54 million)

Calculated as total amortisation and impairment of £89 million (2015: £67 miltion), less amoartisation of software
licences and development of £12 million 2015: £9 million), net of related tax credit of £20 million 2015: £13 million).
This is then adjusted to recognise a £9 million cash tax benefit arising from goodwill on US acquisitions, which for
tax purposes is amortised over a 15-year period (2015: £2 million).

C. Adjustments to net financing costs £19 million (2015: £15 miltion)

Net financing costs are adjusted for mark-to-market movements on derivative instruments, foreign exchange
and imputed pension interest charges of £25 million {2015: £18 million) net of related tax credit of £6 million
(2015: £3 million).
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25 Keeping
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Manageinent agreed 1o sellUTV Ireland Liniited to Virgin Media on 17 July 2016
The sate comipleted on 30 Novernber 2016 and the assets and
liabilities ¢ lassified a5 a disposal group held-for-sale have been dispased of. See

section 3.4 for further details,

Results of discontinued operations

2016 2075
£m £m
Revenue o T N o T 1 -
Expenses {17) -
Operatingloss e -
Taxation R
Loss after tax ©) -
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 5 -
Tax on gain on sale of discontinued operations - -
Loss for the period (L] -
Eamings per share
Basic loss per share - -
Diluted loss per share - -
Cash flows from (used in) discontinued operations
2016 2015
£m £m
Net cash used in operating activities o —i_ﬁ__ ___‘--. - T B (&) S ?
Net cash from investing activities 10 -
Net cash flow for the period 4 -
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In this This section shows the assets used to generate the Group’s trading

section performance and the liabilities incurred as a result. On the following pages
there are notes covering working capital, non-current assets and liabilities,
acquisitions and disposals, provisions and pensions.

Liabilities relating to the Group's financing activities are addressed in section 4.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown in note 2.3.
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3.1.1 Programme rights, other inventory and commitments
Accounting policies
Rights are recognised when the Group controls the respective rights and the risks and rewards associated with them.

Programme rights and production costs not yet utilised are included in the statement of financial position at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. In assessing net realisable value for programmes in production, judgement is required
when considering the contracted sales price and estimated costs to complete,

Broacdcast programme rights

Acquired programme rights {which include filrs), and sports rights, are purchased for the primary purpose of breadcasting
on the ITV Family channels, including VOD and SVOD platforms. These are recagnised within current assets as payrnents
are made or when the rights are ready for broadcast. The Group generally expenses these rights through operating costs
over anumber of transmissions reflecting the pattern and value in which the right is consumed.

Commissions, which primarily comprise programmes purchased based on editorial specification and over which
the Group has some control, are recognised in current assets as payments are made and are generally expensed
to operating costs in full on first transmission, Where a commission is repeated on any platform, incremental costs
associated with the broadcast are included in operating costs.

In assessing net realisable value for acquired and commissioned rights, the net realisable value assessment is based on
estimated airtime value, with consideration given to whether the number of transmissions purchased can be efficiently
played out over the licence period.

The Broadcast programme rights and other inventory at the year end are shown in the table below:

2016 2015

£m £m

Acquired programme rights 157 m
Commissions 69 61
Sports rights 27 30
253 202
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Broadcast programme commitments

These are operating commitments in respect of programming entered inta in the ordinary course of business with
programme suppliers, sports organisations and film distributors in respect of rights to broadcast on the ITV network.
Commitments in respect of these purchases, which are not reflected in the statement of financial position, are due
for payment as follows:

06 05

£m E£m

Within one year 454 451
Later than one year and not more than five years 789 633
Mare than five years 12 141
1,355 1,225

Studios production costs

Production inventory comprises the costs incurred by ITV Studios in producding a programme, where the programme is
part way through the production process and not yet available for delivery to a broadcaster. They are recognised within
current assets at the production cost incurred, and are expensed in operating costs on delivery of episodes.

Also included here are dramas that that are typicatly more expensive to produce. The production cost of a dramais
partly funded by the commissioning network licence fee and tax credits, if available. The remaining deficit is funded
by the Group and is recovered by future distribution sales. Once the production is complete the deficit is classified
as a Distribution Right.

The Studios programme rights and other inventory at the year end are shown in the table below:

2016 2015
£m &m
Production costs 153 171
3.1.2 Distribution rights
Accounting policies

Distribution rights are programme rights the Group buys from producers to derive future revenue, principaily through
licensing to broadcasters. These are classified as non-current assets as these rights are used to derive long-term
economic benefit for the Group.

Distribution rights are recognised initially at cost and charged through operating costs in the income statement over
a period not exceeding five years, reflecting the value and pattern in which the right is consumed. Advances paid for
the acquisition of distribution rights are disclosed as distribution rights as soon as they are contracted. These advances
are not expensed until the programme is available for distribution. Up to that point they are assessed annually for
impairrment through the reassessment of the future sales expected to be earned from that title.

The net book value of distribution rights at the year end are as follows:

2016 5
£m £m
Distribution rights K] 29

The movement during the year comprises new rights acquired of £40 million (2015: £43 million) and amounts charged
to the income statement of £38 million (2015: £27 million).
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3.1.3 Trade and other receivables

Accounting policies

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the value of the inveice sent to the customer and subsequently at the
amounts considered recoverable (amortised cost). Where payments are not due for more than one year, they are
shown in the financial statements at their net present value to reflect the economic cost of delayed payment.
The Group provides goods and services to substantially all its customers on credit terms.

Estimates are used in determining the tevel of receivabtes that will not, in the opinion of the Directors, be collected.
These estimates include such factors as historicat experience, the current state of the UK and overseas economies and
industry specific factors. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is sufficient evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due.

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered to approximate fair value. During the year £35 millicr: of trade
receivable invoices were sold under a receivables purchase agreement (see note 4.2 for more details). Trade and other
receivables can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Due within one year:

Trade receivables s 328
Other receivables 39 37
Prepaid employment linked consideration (see note 3 4) il 55
Prepayrments and accrued income 151 m
526 531

Due after more than one year:
Trade receivables 12 8
Prepaid employment linked consideraticn (see note 3.4) - 18
Accrued income and other receivables 27 7
Total trade and other receivables 565 564

Prepaid employment linked consideration totalling £21 million (2015: £55 mitlion) relates to the acquisition of Talpa
Media in 2015 (see note 3.4 for details). This represents the portion of the initial consideration of €150 million that
is recoverable from the seller in the event he leaves within the initial two years following acquisition. This armount
ts amortised over the two years to 31 March 2077 and recognised as exceptional expense (see note 2.2).

£327 million (2015: £336 million) of total trade receivables that are not impaired are aged as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Current 299 308
Up to 30 days overdue 19 17
Between 30 and S0 days overdue 6 8
Over 90 days overdue 3 3
327 336

The balance above is stated net of a provision of £4 million (2015: £5 rniltion) for impairment of trade receivables. Of the
provision total, £3 riilion relates to balances overdue by more than 90 days {2015; £4 million) and £1 rillion relates to
current balances (2015. £1million).

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables can be shown as follows:

2016 2015
£Em £m
At 1 January 5 7
Charged during the year 3 3
Unused amounts reversed (4) (5}
At 31 December 4 5
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3.1.4 Trade and other payables due within one year

Accounting policies

Trade payables are recognised at the value of the invoice received from a supplier. The carrying value of current and
non-current trade payables is considered to approximate fair value, Trade and other payables due within one year
can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Trade payables Fal 65
VAT and social security 61 n
Other payables 2 177
Accruals 332 289
Deferred income 205 184
960 786

Other payables include £105 million (2015: £3 million) of acquisition related liabilities due n 2017, of which £72 million s
employment linked contingent consideration and £33 million is payable to sellers under put options agreed on acquisition.

3.1.5 Trade and other payables due after more than one year
Trade and other payables due after more than one year can be analysed as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

Trade payables 57 48
Other payables 63 B9
120 137

Trade payables primarily relate to film creditors for which payrment is due after rmore than one year. Other payables include
the non-current portion of acquisition related liabilities of £53 mitlion (2015: £82 rmillion), of which £38 million is employment
linked contingent consideration and £15 million is payable to sellers under put options agreed on acquisition,

3.1.6 Working capital management
Cash and working capital management continues to be a key focus. During the year the cash outflow from working
capital was £28 million (2015: outflow of £59 million) derived as follows:

2016 2015

£m £m

(Increase)/decrease in programme rights and other inventory and distribution rights (35) 4
{Increase) in receivables (56) [F4)}]
Increase/{decrease) in payables 63 (h2)
Working capital outflow (28) {59}

The working capital cutflow for the year excludes the impact of balances acquired on the acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year (see note 3.4).
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Accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprnent are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Certain items
of property, plant and equipment that were revalued to fair value prior to 1 January 2004 (the date of transition to IFRS)
are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the revalued amount less depreciation up to the date of transition.

Leases
Finance leases are those which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

Determining whether a lease is a finance lease requires judgement as to whether substantially atl of the risks and
benefits of ownership have been transferred to the Group. Estimates used by management in making this assessment
include the useful economic life of assets, the fair value of the asset and the discount rate applied to the total
payments required under the lease. Assets held under such leases are included within property, plant and equiprment
and depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Outstanding finance lease obligations, which comprise the principal plus accrued interest, are included within
borrowings. The finance element of the agreements is charged to the income statement over the term of the lease
on an effective interest basis.

All other leases are operating leases, the rentals on which are charged to the income statement on a strafght-line basis
over the lease term (see note 2.1 for further details of operating lease commitments).

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The annual depreciation charge is sensitive to the estimated useful
iife of each asset and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The major categories of property, plant and
equiprment are depreciated as follows:

Asset class Depreciation policy

Freehold land not depreciated

Freehold buildings up to 60 years

Leasehold improvements shorter of residual lease term or estimated useful life
Vehicles, equipment and fittings * 3 to 20 years

*  Equipment includes studic production and technology assets.
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Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment that is subject to depreciation is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Indicators of impairment may include
changes in technology and business performance.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment can be analysed as follows:

Freehold land  Improvements to leasehold Vehicles, equipment
and buildings land and buildings and fittings Total
" Finance )
Long Short Owned leases
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost L
At 1 January 2015 120 &7 17 237 % 457
Additions - - 1 37 - 38
Disposals and retirements (31) {1 — {10) - (42)
At 31 December 2015 89 66 18 264 16 453
Additions R L - 28 - 33
Foreign exchange = 6 - - 6
Reclassifications - - = 3 & -
Disposals and retirements - - - 29) (13) (42)
At 31 December 2016 92 66 20 272 - 450
Depreciation o
At 1 January 2015 7 13 15 150 14 209
Charge for the year 1 2 - 24 - 27
Disposals and retirernents {12) {0 - (9) - (22)
At 31 December 2015 6 14 15 165 14 214
Charge for the year 1 2 1 27 - E]l
Fareign exchange s = - 3 - 3
Reclassifications I - 1 (] -
Disposals and retirements - - - {29 (13) (42)
At 31 December 2016 7 16 16 167 - 206
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 85 50 4 105 - 244
At 31 December 2015 83 52 3 99 2 239

Additions in the year includes £4 rillion (2015: £6 million) relating to assets owned by subsidiaries acquired during
the year.

Included within property, plant and equipment are assets in the course of construction of £19 million (2015: £16 million).

It 20186, the Group retired £42 miltion of assets from use with a net book value of £nil. In 2015, the Group disposed of
the Quay Street site and related assets in Manchester for £23 million, representing a gain on sale of £5 million.

In 2013 the Group acquired the freehold for the London Television Centre for £58 million, although the Directors' view
is that fair value of the property would be significantly higher than the carrying value.

Capital commitments
There are £4 miltion of capital commitments at 31 December 2016 (2015: £2 million),
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Accounting policies

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits that arise from assets that are not capable of being individually
identified and separately recognised. The goodwilt recognised by the Group has all arisen as a result of business
combinations. Gocdwill is stated at its recoverable amount being cost less any accumulated impairment losses
and is altocated to the business to which it relates.

Due to changes in accounting standards goodwill has been calculated using three different methods depending on the
date the relevant business was purchased.

Method 1; All business combinations that have occurred since 1January 2009 were accounted for using the acquisition
rmethod. Under this method, goodwill is measured as the fair vaiue of the consideration transferred (inctuding the
recognition of any part of the business not yet owned (non-controlling interests}), less the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all measured at the acquisition date. Any contingent consideration expected to
be transferred in the future will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date and recognised within other payables.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liabitity that is a finandial instrument is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement. The determination of fair value is based on discounted cash
flows. The key assumptions take into consideration the probability of meeting 2ach performance target and the
discount rate,

Where less than 100% of & subsidiary is acquired, and call and put options are granted over the remaining interest,

a non-controlling interest is initlally recognised in equity at fair value, which is established based on the value of the put
option. A cali option is recognised as a derivative financial instrument, carried at fair value. The put opticn is recognised
as a liability within other payables, carried at the present value of the put option exercise price, and a corresponding
charge is included in merger and other reserves Any subsequent remeasurernent of the put option liability is
recognised within finance income ot cost.

Subsequent adjustrnents to the fair value of net assets acquired can only be made within 12 months of the acquisition
date, and only if fair values were determined provisionally at an earliet reporting date. Thesa adjustments are
accounted for from the date of acquisition.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners and therefore no goodwilt is
recognised as a result of such transactions. Transaction costs incurred in connection with those business combinations,
such as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional fees, are expensed as incurred.
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Method 2: All business combinations that occurred between 1 January 2004 and 31 Decermnber 2008 were accounted
for using the purchase method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations (2004). Goodwill on those
combinations represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired and did not include the value of the non-controlling interest. Transaction costs incurred in connection
with those business combinations, such as legal fees, due diligence fees and other professional fees, were included in
the cost of acquisition.

Method 3: For business combinations prior to 1 January 2004, goodwill is included at its deemed cost, which represents
the amount recorded under UK GAAP at that time less accumulated amortisation up to 31 December 2003. The
classification and accounting treatment of business combinations occurring prior to 1 January 2004, the date of
transition to IFRS, has not been reconsidered as permitted under IFRS 1.

Other intangible assets
intangible assets other than goodwill are those that are distinct and can be sold separately or which arise frorn legal rights.

Within ITV there are two types of other intangible assets: those assets directly purchased by the Group for day-to-day
operational purposes (such as software licences and developrment) and intangible assets identified as part of an
acquisition of a business.

Intangible assets acquired directly by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Those separately
identified intangible assets acquired as part of an acquisition or business combination are shown at fair value at the
date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation.

The main intangible assets the Group has valued are formats, brands, licences, contractual arrangements, customer
contracts and relationships and libraries.

Each class of intangible assets’ valuation method on initial recognition, amortisation method and estimated useful life
is set out in the table below:

Class of intangible
asset

Amortisation method  Estimated useful life

Valuation method

Brands Straight-line 8to 14 years Applying a royalty rate to the expected future revenue over
the life of the brand.
Formats Straight-line up to 8 years Expected future cash flows from those assets existing at the
Customer Straight-line or  up to 6 years date of acquisition are estimated. If applicable, a contributory
contracts reducing balance charge is deducted for the use of other assets needed to
as appropriate exploit the cash flow. The net cash flow is then discounted
Customer Straight-line 51010 years  backto present value.
relationships
Contractual Straight-line uptoi0years  Expected future cash flows from those contracts
arrangements depending on existing at the date of acquisition are estimated. If applicable,
the contract a contributory charge is deducted for the use of other assets
terms needed to exploit the cash flow, The net cash flow is then
L _____ discounted back to present value.
Licences Straight-line Mto29years  Start-up basis of expected future cash fiows existing
dependingon  at the date of acquisition. If applicable, a contributory charge

term of licence

is deducted for the use of other assets needed to exploit the
cash flow. The net cash flow is then discounted back to
present value,

PSB licences are valued as a start-up business with only the
license in place.

Libraries and Sumofdigitsor upto20years initially at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated
other straight line as amortisation.

L appropriate o e
Software licences Straight-line 1to 5years Initially at cost and subsequently at cost less accumutated

and development amortisation.

Determining the fair value of intangible assets arising on acquisition requires judgement. The Directors make estimates
regarding the timing and amount of future cash fiows derived from exploiting the assets being acquired. The Directors
then estimate an appropriate discount rate to apply to the forecast ¢ash flows. Such estimates are based on current
hudgets and forecasts, extrapolated for an appropriate period taking inte account growth rates, operating costs and
the expected useful lives of assets. Judgerments are atso made regarding whether, and for how long, licences will be
renewed; this drives our amortisation policy for those assets.

The Directors estimate the appropriate discount rate using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets or businesses being acquired.

139



Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 3: Operating Assets and Liabilities continued

140

Amortisation

Amgrtisation is charged to the income statement over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives
are judged to be indefinite. Indefinite life assets, such as goodwill, are not amortised but are tested for impairment at
each year end.

Impairment
Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually for impairment and when circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired.

Other intangible assets are subject to amortisation and are reviewed for impaiment whenever events or changesin
circumstances indicate that the amount carried in the statement of financial position is less than its recoverable amount.

Determining whether the carrying amount of intangible assets has any indication of impairment requires judgement.
Any impairment is recegnised in the income statement.

Animpairment test-s performed by assessing the recoverable amount of each asset, or for goodwill, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) related to the goodwill. Total assets (which include goodwill) are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (‘cash-generating unit’ or CGU).

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair vatue less costs to sell and vatue in use, The value in use is based
on the present value of the future cash flows expected to arise from the asset.

In testing for impairment, estimates are used in deriving cash flows and the discount rates. Such estimates reflect
current market assessments of the risks specific to the asset and the time value of money. The estimation process

is complex due to the inherent risks and uncertainties associated with long-term forecasting. If different estimates

of the projected future cash flows or a different selection of an appropriate discount rate or long-term growth rate were
made, these changes could materially alter the projected value of the cash flows of the asset, and as a consequence materially
different armounts would be reported in the finandial statements.

Impairment losses in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed. In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Animpairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Intangible assets
Intangible assets can be analysed as follows:

Customer

Formats contractsand  Contractual Libraries Software
Goodwill andbrands retationships arrangements Licences and other  licences and Total
£m £m tm £m £m £m  development £m
Cost
At 1 January 2015 3627 201 385 10 121 97 B9 4,530
Additions 102 273 23 - - 1 15 414
Foreign exchange 15 7 3 — - 1 — 26
At 31 December 2015 3744 481 41 10 12 9% 104 4970
Additions 44 3 - - 55 - 13 115
Foreign exchange 47 51 9 1 - 4 - 112
At 31 December 2016 3,835 535 420 " 176 103 17 5197
Amortisation and
impairment
At 1January 2015 2654 77 347 5 90 57 71 3401
Charge for the year - 27 17 2 4 8 9 67
Foreign exchange - 1 1 - - - - 2
At 31 December 2015 2654 205 365 7 94 65 80 3470
Charge for the year - 44 16 2 6 9 12 89
Foreign exchange - 5 6 1 - 2 - 14
At 31 December 2016 2,654 254 387 10 100 76 92 3573
Net book value
At 31 December 2016 1181 281 33 1 76 27 25 1,624
At 31 December 2015 1,090 276 46 3 27 34 24 1,500
All intangible asset additions in the year, excluding software, are due to the acquisition of UTV Limited, as detailed in
note 3.4 (2015: four cornpanies acquired).
Goodwill impairment tests
The carrying amount of Goodwill for each CGU is represented as follows:
2016 2015
£m £m
Broadcast & Cnline 386 342
SDN 76 76
ITV Studios 719 672
11871 1,050

There has been no impairment charge for any CGU during the year (2015: £nil).

When assessing impairment, the recoverable amount of each CGU is based on value in use catculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates, specifically: pre-tax cash flow projections; long-term growth rates; and a pre-tax market
discount rate,

Cash flow projections are based on the Group's current five-year plan. Beyond the five-year plan these projections are
extrapoiated using an estimated long-term growth rate of 2% (2015: 2%). The growth rate used is consistent with the
long-term average growth rates for both the industry and the countries in which they are located and is appropriate
because these are long-term businesses.

The discount rate has been revised for each CGU to reflect the latest market assumptions for the risk-free rate, the
equity risk premium and the net cost of debt. There is currently no reasonably possible change in discount rate that
would reduce the headroom in any CGU to zero.

41

SUBLISINE [R]IURU|Y



Financial Statemems

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 3: Operating Assets and Liabilities continued

Broadcast & Online

The goodwill in this CGU arose as a result of the acquisition of broadcasting businesses since 1999, the largest of
which was the merger of Carlton and Granada in 2004 to form ITV pl, which was treated as an acquisition of Carlton
for accounting purposes. Broadcast & Online goadwill atse includes the gaadwill arising on acquisition of UTV Limited
in February 2016.

The main assumptions on which the forecast cash flow projections for this CGU are based include: the share of the
television advertising market; share of commercial impacts; programme and other costs; and the pre-tax market
discount rate.

The key assurnption in assessing the recoverable amount of Broadcast & Online goodwill is the size of the television
advertising market. In forming its assumptions about the television advertising market, the Group has used a
combination of long-term trends, industry forecasts and in-house estimates, which place greater emphasis on recent
experience. No impairment was identified. Also as part of the impairment review, a sensitivity of up to -10% was applied
to 2017 and -3% to 2018 with no subsequent recovery, again with no impairrment identified. The Directors believe that
currently no reasonably possible change in these assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

An impairment charge of £2,309 million was recognised in the Broadcast & Online CGU in 2008, as a result of the
downturn in the short-term outlook for the advertising market. The advertising market has substantially improved
since then however the impairment cannot be reversed. The impairment review set out above results in significant
headroom in excess of the 2008 impairment amount.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 10.4% (2015: 9 7%} has been used in discounting the projected cash flows.

SON

Goodwill was recognised when the Group acquired SDN (the licence operator for DTT Multiplex A) in 2005, it represented
the wider strategic benefits of the acquisition specific to the Group, principally the enhanced ability to promote Freeview

as a platform, business relationships with the channels which are on Multiplex A and additional capacity availabie from 2010.

The main assumptions on which the forecast cash flows are based are: incorme to be eamed from medium-term contracts,
the market price of available multiplex video streaims; and the pre-tax market discount rate, These assumptions have been
determined by using a combination of current contract terms, recent market transactions and in-house estimates of
video stream availability and pricing. No impairment was identified.

As part of the impairment review, sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with ng impairment identified
(2017: -10% growth, 2018: 0% growth). The Directors believe that currently no reasonably possible change in the
income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroomin this CGU to zero.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 11.7% (2015: 11.5%} has been used in discounting the projected cash flows,

ITV Studios :
The gooduwill for ITV Studios has arisen as a result of the acquisition of production businesses since 1999. Significant

balanices were created from the acquisition by Granada of United News and Media's production businesses in 2000 and

the merger of Granada and Carlton in 2004 to form ITV plc. TV Studios goodwill also inctudes all of the goodwill arising

from recent acquisitions since 2012, with the largest acquisitions being Leftfield in 2014, followed by Talpa and Twafour

Groupin 2015.

The key assumptions on which the forecast cash flows for the whole CGU were based include revenue (including

international revenue and the ITV Studics share of ITV output, growth in commissions and hours produced),

margins and the pre-tax market discount rate, These assumptions have been determined by using a combination !
of extrapolation of historical trends within the business, industry estimates and in-house estimates of growthrates

in all markets. No impairment was identified,

As part of the impairment review sensitivity was applied to the main assumptions with no impairment identified
(2017: -10% growth, 2018: 0% growth). The Directors believe that currently no reasonably possible change in the
income and availability assumptions would reduce the headroom in this CGU to zero.

A pre-tax market discount rate of 11.6% (2015: 10:1%) has been used in discounting the projected cash flows

There have been no changes to the ITV Studios CGU in the year and the Directors consider that a single ITV Studios CGU
continues to remain appropriate I
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Acquisitions

During the period, the Group completed the acquisition of UTV Limited, which has been included in the results of the
Broadcast & Online operating segment. The business fits with the strategy of strengthening the Group’s free-to-air
business and enables it to run a more efficient network, The following section provides a summary of the acquisition.

UTV Limited

0On 29 February 2016 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest in UTV Limited which, together with its 100%
subsidiary UTV Ireland Limited, owned the television assets of UTV Media plc. UTV is the market leading commercial
broadcaster in Northern Iretand, broadcasting ITV content alongside high-quality local programming. The strategic
rationale for the acquisition was to purchase the Northem lrish Channel 3 license.

UTV Limited launched a new dedicated channel for the Republic of Ireland in 2015 via its subsidiary UTV Ireland Limited.
Management concluded that the best prospect of delivering a strong and sustainable Irish broadcaster was to bring
UTV ireland under commion ownership with TV3.ITV therefore sold the company to Virgin Media, owner of TV3 on

30 November 2016, for consideration of €10million. Further details are incdluded innote 2.5,

Key terms:
The Group purchased the businesses for a cash consideration of £100 million.

UTV Limited acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on brands and licences of £58 million were identified and goodwill was valued at
£44 million. Goodwill represents the value placed on the opportunity to diversify and grow the business by the Group.
The goodwill arising on acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes, Other fair value adjustments have
been made to the opening balance sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Acquisitions in 2015
In 2015 the Group made four acquisitions, all of which are included in the results of the ITV Studios operating segment.

Talpa Media B.V.
On 30 April 2015 the Group acquired a 100% controlling interest in Talpa Media B.V. and its subsidiaries,

Key terms:
Cash ¢consideration of £362 million (€500 million) was paid at acquisition and the maximum total consideration for
100% of the business, including the initial payment, was £796 million (€£1,100 million, undiscounted). All future payments

are performance based.

The deal structure allows for a further £434 million (€600 million) payable after two, five and eight years, on the
achieverment of stretching performance targets for the business in the years following acquisition For these amounts
to be payable in the future, the deal requires the seller to remain with the business during the earnout period. Further,
if the seller leaves within the first two years following acquisition, €150 million of the initial consideration would be
refunded to ITV, While accounting standards determine that these payments are treated as an expense, even the
€150 million refundable, the Group considers these payments as capital in nature, and therefore expenses in relation
to these payments are excluded from adjusted profits as exceptional items.
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Talpa Media B.V. acquisition accounting:

intangibles, being the value placed on formats, brands, custorner contracts, non-compete arrangements and libraries,
of £276 million (€382 million) were identified and goodwill was valued at £41 million (€57 million). Goodwill represents
the value placed on the opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats produced by the Group, The goodwill
arising on acquisition is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other fair value adjustments have been made

to the opening balance sheet, though none of them are individuaily significant.

Twofour Group
On 24 june 2015 the Group acquired Boom Supervisory Limited, the holding company of Twofour Group.,

Key terms:

The Group purchased 100% of the Twofour Group for a cash cansideration of £55 million. Subsequently the sellers
subscribed to 25% of the share capital of the acquiring company. Put and call options have been granted over this
25% in Twofour Group; these aptions both being exercisable over the next three to five years. The transaction has
been accounted for on an anticipated acquisition basis and a non-controlling interest has not been recognised. The
maximurm total consideration, including the initial payrnent, is £280 million (undiscounted). These payments are
dependent on future performance of the business and linked to ongoing employment, therefare accounted for

as expense. The Group considers these payments as capital in nature, and therefore expenses in relation to these
payments are excluded from adjusted profits as exceptional items.

Twofowr Group acquisition accounting:

Intangibles, being the value placed on formats, brands, customer contracts, non-compete arrangements and libraries,
of £18 million were identified and goodwill was vatued at £50 million, Goodwill represents the value placed on the
opportunity to diversify and grow the content and formats produced by the Group. The goodwill anising on acquisition
is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. Other fair value adjustments have been made to the opening balance
sheet, though none of them are individually significant.

Other 2015 acquisitions

The Group made initial payments totalling £15 million for two smaller acquisitions, Cats on the Roof Media Ltd and
Mammoth Screen Ltd, with a view that these acquisitions will strengthen and complement ITV's existing position as

a producer for major television networks in the UK. The maximum additional consideration that the Group could pay is
£66 million (undiscounted). Goodwill totalling £11 million arising on these acquisitions is not expected to be deductible
for tax purposes.
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Effect of acquisition
The acquisitions noted above had the following impact on the Group assets and liabilities:
2016 2015
m utv Total
Consideration transferred:
Initial consideration (net of cash acquired) (Note A) 97 406
Less: consideration classified as prepaid employment linked consideration (Note B) - {109)
Total consideration 97 297
Fair value of net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 4 6
Intangible assets 58 297
Deferred tax liabilities (1) 71
Trade and other receivables 5 o
Trade and other payables (0] {138)
Net assets held for sale 4 -
Fair value of net assets 53 195
Goodwill 44 102
Contributions to the Group’s performance:
From date of acquisition
Revenue 27 185
EBITA before exceptionals {Note () 8 29
Proforma - January to December
Revenue 33 306
9 49

EBITA before exceptionals (Note )

Note A: Consideration for all acquisitions is net of cash acquired and estimated debt and working capital settlements. Cash acquired

during the year is £3 million 20115: £33 million),

Note B: In 2015 total consideration was net of employment linked consideration of £109 million (€150 mitlion). IFRS requires the

employment tinked consideration to be treated as remuneration. See note 3.1.4 for further detail of this prepayment.
Note C:UTV profit for the ten months from date of acquisition is £8 million and £9 million for January to December 2016, both excluding

the effect of discontinued operations. This represents UTV's contrnibution to Group profits. On a consolidated basis the acquisition
resulted in a reduction in ITV Non-NAR revenues previously eamed from UTV, which on a Group basis is offset by the reduction in

UTV's costs.
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35 Keeping The Group holds non controlling interests in @ number of difforent entities
Investments it simple Accounting for these investments, and the Grou cuf any profits and losses,
tepends on the level of controt orinfluence the Group is granted via its intere
Theth principal ty fnon olidatedhnvestiments are: jaint arrangements
% JOINL veniures or joint operations), associdtes and avdilable for sale investiients.

A Joint venture is an investbiment where the Group has joint control, with one ormore
third prarties, An associate s an entity over whic h the Group has significant influence
(Lo power Lo pdarticipate m the mv s tnancial and aperating decisions). Any
otherd STINeNT s i available for sate nvestiment

Accounting policies

For joint ventures and associates the Group applies equity accounting. Under this method, it recognises the investment
in the entity at cost and subsequently adjusts this for its share of profits or losses, which are recognised in the income
statement within non-operating items and included in adjusted profit. Where the Group has invested in associates by
acquiring preference shares or convertible debt instruments, the share of profit recognised is usually £nil as no equity
interest exists. Availabte for sale investments are held at fair vatue unless the investment is a start-up business, in which
case it is valued at cost and assessed for impairrent.

The carrying amount of each category of our investrments is represented as follows:

206 2015

£m £m

Joint ventures 4 1
Associates 60 18
Available for sale investments 12 1
76 30

The increase in the year is due to investment in New Form, a digital producer-broadcaster, and increased investment
inITV Tomorrow Studios, a scripted studio launched in 2014. Further smaller investments have been made in line with
Group’s strategy to grow the international content business.

Please refer to page 184 for the list of principal investments held at 31 Decernber 2016.
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36
Provisions

Keeping
it simple

&

Accounting policies

A provision is recoqgnised by the Group where an obligation exists relating to events
inthe past anditis probable tha

A provision 1s made where the Group is not certain how much cash will be required to
settte i liability, so an estimdte is require of
halding rties that are no longer in use

legal claims contracts the Group has

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising from past events, it is probable cash will be paid to settle it and the amount can be estimated
reliably. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows by a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as a financing cost in the income statement. The value of the provisionis determined based on assumptions
and estirnates in relation to the armount and timing of actual cash flows which are dependent on future events.

Provisions
The movements in provisions during the year are as follows:
Contract Property  Legal and Other
provisions provisions. provisions Total
£m £m £Em £m

At 1 January 2016 6 2 25 33
Additions - 1 _ 1
Utilised (6) - {4) (10)
Released - o) - ()
At 31 December 2016 - 2 21 23

Provisions of £19 million are classified as current liabilities (2015: £28 million). Unwind of the discount is £nil in 2016

and 2015.

Contract provisions cornprised onerous commitments on transmission infrastructure that were expected to be utilised
over the remaining contract period and onerous technology services contracts which would not be utilised.

Legal and Other provisions totalling £21 million (2015: £25 million) primarily relate to potentiat liabilities that may
arise as a result of Boxclever having been placed into administrative receivership, most of which relate to pension
arrangements. In 2011 the Determinations Panel of the Pensions Regulator determined that Financial Support
Directions {(FSDs) should be issued against certain Group companies, which would require the Group to put in place
financial support for the Boxclever Scheme. The Group is challenging this in the Upper Tribunal The process is ongoing
and aside from procedural issues there were no substantive case devetopments in the period. The Directors have
obtained leading counsel’s opinion and extensive legal advice in connection with the proceedings and continue to
believe that the provision held is appropriate. The reduction in provisions during the year was due to settlerment of
various other legal matters.
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3.7 Keeping In this note we explain the accounting policies governing the Groups’s pension
Pensions it simple scheme Tollowed by analysis of the cammponents of the net detined benefit pension
deficit,inctuding assumptions made, and where the related movemenis have been
misecd in the financial statements n addition have ptaced text boxes ta

% xplain some of the technical terms used in the disclosure

What are the Group's pension schemes?

There are t 1, A pensian schetnes A Befined Contribution” s waime tha

15 open to TV employees, and a number of ‘Defined Benehit' schemes that have heen
closed ton niesnbers O0C and vl lose to futare accrual in 20 In

o acquisition of L Litnited the Graocp took oveyr the DT Detined Benefit Sehene.

What is a Defined Contribution scheme?
be Nefined Cortribution” soene mowhes e thie Dot Didakes fixoed
e fund on ebialf of those enaployees that fuave elected Yo participate
| Far thed vetirement FTW has no farthers obligation to the participating
cinjiloyee and the reshe aned e Ot tatecbaath this type of scheme are
sied by The membiors vathoer thas the Coe s the member s responsibitity
Stnent decrsions relotmg to thesr retrement henedits

What is a Defined Benefit scheme?
I arDetined Bene it sonerae, et roe Yeash payiments during retirerent,
lue ot whict tependent onbactors sochas salary and length ot aervice
DL dakes Tontrbutons to the scheme, o sepanate foostee administeresd fued
That e consolidatedin i Stivancal statements Dot soreflocterbon the detined
Lenefit pension deficit e on the ca lidlated statement of financ il position,
Fois theresporsibility of the Trostee to manage e invest the assets ot the Scheme
Andits funedieg positieny The Trustee appointed according to the terms of the
Schene’s docurnentation, sequired to aot in the best interest of thie mvmbers
Al s respoosible for managing and inves ety ol The <chene and its
funding posimion

ln thye 0t of poorreturns the Geoap eeds to address this throdgh g combination
of increased levels ol contribution or by making adjustiments ta the scheme
Sehemes can e funded. where regular cash contributions are made by the employer
ntoa bund whinc hos mvested. orunfonded whoere no reqular imoney o assets are
reguired o be put aside 1o cover foture payiments,

Accounting policies

Defined contribution scheme

Obligations under the Group's defined contribution schemes are recognised as an operating cost in the income
statement as incurred. For 2016, total contributions expensed were £16 million (2015: £16 million).

Defined benefit scheme

The Group's obligation in respect of the Defined Benefit Scheme (the ‘Scheme? is calculated by estimating the amount
of future retirement benefit that eligible employees {members’) have earned in return for their services. That benefit
payable in the future is discounted to today's value and then the fair value of scherne assets is deducted to measure
the defined benefit pension deficit.

The liabilities of the Scheme are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid using the
‘projected unit’ method. This method is an accrued benefits valuation method that makes allowance for projected
earnings of members in the future up to retirement.
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These calculations are complex and are performed by a qualified actuary. There are many judgements and estimates
necessary to calculate the Group's estimated liabilittes, the main assumptions are set out later in this section,
Movements in assumptions during the year are called 'actuarial gains and losses’ and these are recognised in

the period in which they arise through the statement of comprehensive income,

The latest triennial valuation of the Scheme was undertaken as at 1 January 2014 by an independent actuary appointed
by the Trustee of the Scheme and agreed in early 2016. The next triennial valuation will be as at 1 January 2017 and is
expected to be agreed in late 2017 or early 2018. This will drive subsequent contribution rates.

An unfunded scherne in relation to four former Granada executives is accounted for under 1AS 19 and the Group is
responsible for meeting the pension cbligations as they fall due The unfunded scheme has additional security
cornpared to the ITV main scheme, in the form of & charge over giits held by the Group. The current Directors of ITV plc
recognise the legacy pension obligations should be honoured, but believe the additional security for the scheme is
inappropriate compared ta the security provided to the members of the ITV Pension Scheme. Following the Group's
unsuccessful attempt to remove the charge, the £39 million securitised gilts have been classified as other pension
assets, rather than cash/cash equivalents, to more fairly reflect the Group's net pension deficit.

In December 2016, following a member consultation, the Group decided to dose the ITV Pension Scheme to future
benefit accrual with effect from 28 February 2017, Members' benefits are no longer subject to a capped pensionable
salary, the benefits will be linked to statutory revaluation until retirement. This decision gave rise to a one off, non-cash
£19 million curtailment charge recognised in the year.

On 29 February 2016 the Group acquired 100% of the assets and liabilities of UTV Limited, including responsibility for

a defined benefit pension scheme. At acquisition the UTV Scheme had neither surplus nor deficit on an IAS 19 basis, and
had a surplus of £1 million as of 31 December 2016. Due to the size of the surplus the Directors present the results and
position of the UTV Scheme together with the existing ITV Schemes, The next triennial valuation will be as at 30 June
2017 and is expected to be agreed in 2018.

Unless otherwise stated, references to ‘the Schemes' within this note refer to the ITV Pension Scheme, the unfunded
scherme and the UTV Scherne cormnbined.

The defined benefit pension deficit
Net pension deficit of £328 million at 31 Decermnber 2016 (2015: £176 miillion) is stated after including the unfunded
scheme security asset of £39 miltion (2075: £nil).

The totals recognised in the current and previous years are:

2016 2015
€m £m
Total defined benefit scheme obligations {4,200) (3,446)
Total defined benefit scheme assets 3,833 3270
Defined benefit pension deficit (IAS 19) {367) {(176)
Other pensicn asset 39 —
Net pension deficit (328) {176)

The remaining sections provide further detail of the value of the Scherne's assets and liabilities, how these are
accounted for and the impact on the income statement.
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Defined benefit scheme obligations

Keeping What cause movements in the defined benefit pension obligations?
it 5imple 3 ot 1 the detined b fit obligation {the persion sthemie labitits
ar ertel are as follows

srrent service cost  the cost to the Grou L { efity parned
% Dy rerbers that relates to the members service in the current year, This is
t hargedd sperating casts in the ing om
Past service cost - is o ¢ Nange in prosent shenetits built ap by the
e rbers in the prion P can b po £ 0f 116041 H,"‘-‘lll'[HM_‘] froun ¢ hanies
to the exsting plan as aresult of ancagreerest be e TV and enpls
arestlt ot signilicant redhue tion by 1TV 0 e numi i emiplayees cn
plan o tailiment
Interest cost  the ponsion abligativnms prayablean the foture are discounted to the
L at year end. A d
today of the future cost The interest cost s the urmmdineg of one 1S o e et
o the present value of the obligation 1t beoadly derecmined Dy inultiplyineg tie
dhocount rote at the heginnineg of the perio {ue of the
ohlicyateonreluring Yhe pesriod Thie dise o . . Hptionexplained late
1 Ths section. TRS interest cost s e coiised thecugh et fingooinms) costsm the

Mo statediient (see note 00

Actuarial gains or losses - there are Broadly At oF g tuanial movernent s
Expetionoe adjtistinent it WG aring urnptions nkade wihen
estmrating the babilities and swhat las actually oocoreed, and adjustiments reselting

frommchanges i ac tuarial aesumptions e movernents in corporate hond il
Koy asstmptions are explamred et arl Later m this e tron Actuatial gaines on e
arerecagnised through other comprehensive incaime

Benefits paid - .any henefits paid out by the Scheme will reduce the obligation
One-off events  for nple the acquisition ol UTY Binited »e1 oot above

The movement in the present value of the Group's defined benefit obligation is analysed below:

26 2015

£m £m

Defined benefit obligation at 1 January 3,446 3687

Current service cost 7 8

Curtailment charge 19 -

Interest cost 131 126
Actuarial loss/(gain) 664 (217

UTV acquisition 98 -
Benefits paid {165) (158)

Defined benefit obligation at 31 December 4,200 3,446

Of the above total defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2016, £51 million relates to unfunded schemes
(2015: £46 million), including the scheme in relation to the four former Granada executives.
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Assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations

Keeping What are the main assumptions used to estimate the Scheme obligations?
it simple The main assumptions dre:

future salary lev

future pensionable salary level:
an estitmate of incred g ion payments

the life expecte :
the eff g Factors
the discount rate used 1o estimate the present day fair value of these obligations

How do we determine the appropriate assumptions?
The Grou 0s independent actuarial aclvice relating to the appropriateness of the
Assumptions used,

IERS requires that we estiniate a discount rate by reference to high-quatity
fixed income investments in the UK that rmatch the sstunated terrm of the
pension obligations

The inflation assumiption has Leen set by loaking ‘ence between the
HNpLion s
s have

Hlable on AL ratee
vhich mateh projed ) e Group’s estimdte of the
e term of the labibitiesis 1 (201515 years).

The principal assumptions used in the Scheme's valuations at the year end were:

2016 2015

Discount rate for:

Past service liabilities 2.60% 380%

Future service liabilities 270% 4.00%
Inflation assumption for:

Past service liabilities 335% 3.00%

Future service liabilities 3.20% 310%
Rate of pensionable salary increases

TV Pension Schemes N/A 0.50%

UTV Pension Scheme 3.75% N/A
Rate of increase in pension payment {LPI' 5% pension increases) 3.15% 2.90%
Rate of increase to deferred pensions (CPI) 225% 2.00%

1. Lirmited Price Index.

The table below reflects published mortality investigation data in conjunction with the results of investigations into the
maortality experience of Scheme members. The assumed life expectations on retirement are:

0% 2016 2015 2015
Retiring today at age 60 65 60 65
Males 271 224 280 232
Females 293 24,5 306 257
Retiring in 20 years at age 60 65 60 65
Males 28.8 239 300 250
Females 310 26.1 326 276

During 206 a review of the longevity of the Scheme pensioners was conducted and revealed lower life expectancy
than previously assumed. The net pension deficit is sensitive to changes in assumptions Those are disclosed further
in this section.
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Total defined benefit scheme assets

Keeping b Schermne holds assets across a number of differont dlasses which are mana
it simp[e by the Trustee, who oo s with the Group onchanges o its nvestment policy.

What are the pension Scheme assets?

AL ZYDecember 2076 the Scheme’s aosets weore invested in a diversificd portfolio
that cansestid 3 couity and debt secaritios, The tables below »e1 o
IO L ateories ¢

Froanciabinstriasnents ate in plac e inorcder T provide pootectian adaiiist ¢hanges
i rearket factors iinterest rat indhintlationy wehic i could act to increase the defined
benetit pension detcd These Bnancial instroments are ¢ Lassifivd as SCherne duys

Onier by instrunea e thg 1 . et e Sebente franyactedding 20317
toobtameprotes Sanaganst the effect ot moreases i the lile expectation of e
maperity of pensioner members at that date Undder the sarap the Trastec anreed
Tarmaka e determined poyieaentsincetarm for peyients tomeet the specitios
pre i obigations as they falldue nrespective of Bowe long the memibret s and
dependant live The ditforence i the et e ot e Palrearng
o prornent et e ted i the Schiene . B vedp i b valuation
cepton arrch e arket based aseantg 1osabmeguently adwsted Tog
chemgesmthe mark et te cepentanoy and snarket dise oot rates n hne anth
it b value

How do we measure the pension Scheme assets?
Detred bene it scheme assets areomeasared at their tair vatue ool cancbange doe
tothe tallo

® Interestneanie onsclee assets e s determomed bry onudtipdying the
fa it Cherne ansets by thie ¢ 1 Eate, Both Uikeen as of thio Begingiineg
af the year Thisae recogneed theaugh net binanomg eosts in the moome statement
Rutur on assets arises from dif ferene s, bt e e tUdlreT T and interesingon e
onSchome gesets and are recognised throtigh ather conprehensive reoioe
Limployers contributn are paidinto the Schere to e managed and invested
Benefits and adiministr ponses paid out by the Schemes will lower the
faii value of the

Sehene’s

The movement in the fair value of the defined benefit scheme’s assets is analysed below:

2016 2015
£fm £m
Fair value of Scheme assets at 1 January 3270 3341
Interest income on Scheme assets 126 116
Return/(loss) on assets, excluding interest income 416 (126}
Employer contributions 93 102
UTV acquisition 98 -
Benefits paid (165) (158)
Administrative expenses paid (5) (5)
Fair value of Scheme assets at 31 December 3,833 3270

The actual return on the Scherne's assets, being the sum of the interest income on Scheme assets and return on
Scheme assets, for the year ended 31 Decermnber 2016 was an increase of £542 mitlion (2015: decrease of £10 million).
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How are the Scheme’s assets invested?

At 31December 2016 the Scherne's assets were invested in a diversified portfolio that consisted primarily of equity
and debt securities, The Trustee is responsible for deciding the investment strategy for the scheme’s assets, although
changes in investment policies require consultation with the Group. The assets are invested in different classes to
hedge against unfavourabte movemnents in the funding obligation. When selecting the mix of assets to hold, and
considering their related risks and returns, the Trustee will weigh up the variability of returns against the target
long-term rate of return on the overall portfolio.

The fair value of the Scheme's assets are shown in the following table by major category:

Market value Market value
06 2075
Em £m
Liability hedging assets
Fixed interest gilts o 678 . 532
Index-linked interest gilts o 1135 914
Interest rate and inflation hedging derivatives (swaps and repos) 270 59
o _2083  54% 1,505 46%
Other bonds 784 20% 733 22%
Retum seeking investments _ _
Quoted equities ~ o 633 653
Infrastructure 95 68
Property _ 62 54
Hedge funds/alternatives prr] 196
- 1,012 7% 971 30%
Other investments
Cash and cash equivalents 183 o 86
Insurance policies B 42 -
Longevity swap fair value @) (65)
{46) {1%) 61 2%
Total Scheme assets 3833 100% 3270 100%

Included in the above are overseas assets of £1,304 million (2015: £1,198 million), comprised of quoted equities
of £565 million (2015: £564 million) and bonds of £739 million (2015: £634 million),

The Trustee entered a longevity swap in 2071 which provides cash flow certainty by hedging the risk of increasing life
expectancy over the next 70 years for 11,700 of current pensicners covering £1.7bn of the pension abligation. The fair
value of the longevity swap equals the discounted value of the projected net cash flows resulting from the contract
and has changed substantially over the year due to two key factors:

+ Areview of the longevity of pensioners covered by the swap which revealed lower life expectancy than previously
expected, This reduced the asset value by £127 million.

+ Areductionin the yields used to value the swap as falling vields adversely impact the fair value. This reduced the
asset value by £79 million.

153

SJUBWININIS |RPIURU|Y



Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 3: Operating Assets and Liabilities continued

Defined pension deficit sensitivities

Keeping Which assumptions have the biggest iimpact on the Scheme?

it simpte Itis important to note that comparatively simatlchanges inn the assumptions used miay
significant effect on the consolidated incorme statement and statement ot
Al position, This, Tivity" 1o change is analysed below to demonstrate how

% Al o i urmprions can have alarge inmpact on the estimation of the
detined benefit penson deticn

The Truste the imvestment maortality and inflation riske crsure the
obligations aremet as they fall due The investinoent stroate

obdigationrather than 1A detined pension defion sosuch the offec tiven

risk heeleging strategi LLration be Lot B Thes ot as Qnan e ountin
Those hedging strategices, initieant inopact o the raovementin the net pension
dedicit as assurptions change, ottsetting theinapacts on The obligation dise losed Delow

N preac tee e change s im one assuimption oy be acoompanied by ffae i ting changes m

arther asstrnplion {although this s not the e the
ASSURTR OIS Dy oo i Al The sane tirme s chacges i the nurket value of Schesne
assets b b oy on ey nol offaet the changes in assumptions

Changesin assaenptions have a ditferent levet of anpact as the value of the nes
proension defior flactuates, because the relationship betweon thenn s not lneas

The analysis below considers the impact of a single change in principal assumptions on the defined benefit obligation
while keeping the other assumptions unchanged and does not take into account any risk hedging strategies:

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on definad benefit obligation

Increase by 0.1% Decrease by £65 million T
Discountrate ~_Decrease by 0.1% Increase by £75 million

Increase by 0.1% Increase by £15 million o
Rate of inflation (Retail Price Index) Decrease by 0.1% Decrease by £15 million

Increase by 0.1% Increase by £10 million -
Rate of inflation {Consumer Price index)  Decrease by 0.1% Decrease by £10 million ~
Life expectations Increase by one year Increase by £130 million

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by extrapolating the impact on the defined benefit obligation
at the year end with changes in key assumptions that might reasonably occur.

While the Scherne's risk hedging strategy is aimed at a valuation basis, the Directors estimate that on an accounting
basis it would significantly reduce the above impact on the defined benefit obligation.

In particular, an increase in assumption of life expectations by one year would benefit from an estimated increase of
the value of the longevity swap by £100 million, reducing the net impact on the defined pension deficit to £30 million.

Further, the ITV Pension Scheme invests in UK Government bonds and interest rate and inflation swap contracts
and therefore movermnents in the defined benefit obligation are typically offset, to an extent, by asset movements.
This occurred during 2016 when both corporate and UK government bond yieids fell significantly and the market
expectation of future inflation rose. However, as corporate bond yields fell further than UK Government Band yields,
the impact on the defined benefit obligation exceeded the impact on the assets.
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Keeping What was the impact of movements on the Scheme’s assets and liabilities?
it simple The sections above describe how the Scheme obligations and assets are comprisec!
sured. The following section sets out the impact of various maovements and

on the Scheme on the Group's financial statements

&

Amounts recognised through the income statement
Amounts recognised through the income statermnent are as follows:

2016 2015
£m £m
Amount charged to operating costs:
Current service cost (4] ()]
Scheme administration expenses (5) {5}
12) (13)
Amount charged to net financing costs:

Net interest on defined benefit obligation {5) {10)
Amount charged to exceptional costs:

Curtailment cost {19) _
Total charged in the consolidated income statement {36) (23)
Amounts recognised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
The amounts recognised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income/(cost) are:

2016 2015
£m £Em
Remeasurement gains / (losses):

{Loss)/Return on scheme assets excluding interest income 416 (126}

Actuarial gains / (losses) on liabilities arising from change in:

- inflation experience Nn 48

~ financial assumptions {868) 169

- mortality assumptions 173 -

(664) 17
Total recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (248) 91

The £664 million actuarial loss on the Scherme’s liabilities was principally due to a decrease in bond yields over the year,
which has resulted in an increase in the liabilities. The £416 million gain on the Scheme's assets primarily results from

increases in the market vatues of gilts and swaps, which has led to assets outperforming expectations.
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Addressing the defined benefit pension deficit

Keeping The Group works closely with the Trustee 10 agree appropriate ke »f funding
it sjmp[e for the Scheme. Tl wol Agreeingd Sch le of Contributions at each triemnial
waltiatiom, wehich spiecifies the contabution rates for the employer and schemenenhers,

and the Contributinns are due. Aore AN setlng out the steps that will

% be taken to address a funding short fallis e 0

I ahe event thaet the Group's defined beoefit scheme is ina et liability position, the
[ree st Lake steps To anage the s of the deficit. Apart fron the funding
Ay N L e | o1 to the
Scheme, . ) ¢ ( T Centre T pesion
funehing

The levels of ongoing contributions to the Scheme are based on the current service costs (as assessed by the Scheme
Trustee) and the expected future cash flows of the Scheme. Normal employer contributions in 2017 for current service
(including administration expenses) are expected to be in the region of £6 million (2016; £12 million) and deficit funding
contributions in 2017 are expected ta be £66 million {2016: £66 million), assuming current cantribution rates cantinue
as agreed with the Trustee. The reduction in normal employer contributions for cumrent service is as a result of the
closure of the ITV Pension Scheme to future benefit accrual.

The Group has two asset-backed pension funding agreements with the Trustee and makes annual payments of
£71 million for 12 years from 2011 and £2.5 million, increasing by 5% per annum untit 2038. in 2017 a payment of
£14 million is expected as a result of those agreements,

IFRIC 14 clarifies how the asset ceiling should be applied, and in particular, how local minimum funding rules work. The
Group has determined that it has an unconditional right to a refund of surplus assets if the Schemes are run off until
the last member dies, on which basis IFRIC 14 does not cause any change in the balance sheet disclosures befare tax.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Section 4: Capital Structure and Financing Costs

In this This section outlines how the Group manages its capital structure and related
section financing costs, including its batance sheet liquidity and access to capital markets.

The Directors determine the appropriate capital structure of ITV, specifically,
how much is raised from shareholders (equity) and how much is borrowed frem
financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group’s activities bath now
and in the future, Maintaining capital discipline and balance sheet efficiency
remains important to the Group, as seen through the issuance of a new
Eurobond during the year. Any potential courses of action will take inte account
the Group’s liquidity needs, flexibility to invest in the business, pension deficit
initiatives and impact on credit ratings.

The Directors censider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least
twice a year ahead of announcing results and do so in the context of its ability
to continue as a going concern, to execute the strategy and to invest in
opportunities to grow the business and enhance shareholder value.

A Tax and Treasury committee acting under delegated authority from the
Board, approves certain financial transactions and monitors compliance with
the Group’s tax and treasury policies.
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. Keeping Netoash /| ts the Group's key measure used to evaluate total cash resources riet
Net debt it simple of the current autstanding debt.
Adjusted net by Group and mere closely reflects how

credit agencic aro . (. T¢ ve At the adjusted net de
e addd ¢ ounee ) 2 contingent FREeMTS 0N accuis
r :
1

erating lease commitments, A full

Cincleded i the Finanoial and

The tables below analyse imovernients in the components of net cash during the year:

Net cash flow Currency and

1Janvary and . non-cash 31 December

2016 acquisitions Reclassfications  mavements 2016

£m £m £m £m £m

Cash 238 304 - 7 549

Cash equivalents 56 (6) (39) 1 12

Total cash and cash equivalents 294 298 (39) 8 561
Loans and facilities due within one year {(5) 5 - (167 (167
Finance leases due within one year (6) 6 - () (4)
Loans and facilities due after one year (598) (525) - 88 {1,035)

Finance leases due after one year (4) - - 4 -
Total debt 613) 514) - 73) {1,200}

Currency component of swaps held against euro

denominated bonds - - - 2 2

Net cash/(debt) (319) (216) (39) {63) {637)
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Net cash flow Currency and

1 January and non-cash 31December

2015 acquisitions movements 2015

£€m £m £m £m

Cash 234 3 1 238

Cash equivalents 63 (6) 0] 56

Total cash and cash equivalents 297 3) - 294
Loans and facilities due within one year o 78 73 - )
Finance leases due within one year @ 7 {6) - (6)
Loans and facilities due after one year . (167 {433) (4) . (598)
Finance leases due after one year {10) - 6 {4)
Total debt (256) (353) (&) 613)
Net cash/(debt) 41 (356) (4) E19

Cash and cash equivalents

included within cash equivalents is £4 million (2015: £10 miltion), the use of which is restricted to meeting finance lease
commitments under programme sale and leasebacks (see note 4.2). During 2016 gilts of £39 million (2015: £39 million)
were reclassified to other pension assets. This was as a result of the outcome of legal action attempting to remove the
charging deed executed on these gilts in respect of the unfunded pension commitments of four former Granada
executives. Refer to note 3.7 for further details.

Loans and facilities dua within one year

At various periods during the year the Group drew down on the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) to meet short-term
funding requirements. All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year (2015: no outstanding short-term
funding). The maximum draw down of the RCF during the year was £500 million in May The maximum draw down
on the RCF during 2015 was £362 rillion.

The Group also had an unsecured £161 miltion Eurobond which matured in January 2017 and had a coupon of 6.125%.

Loans and loan notes due after one year

The Group has two bilateral loan facilities rmaturing in March 2017; both loans can be extended until 2018 at [TV's
option. The two facilities are a £100 million bilaterat loan that is fully drawn down as of 31 Decernber 2016, and

a £150 million bilateral loan with an unconditional right to set off with cash on deposit with the counterparty.
The £150 million arrangement is in a net £nil position.

In December 2016 the Group issued a seven-year €500 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.0% which will mature in
December 2023. The bond has been swapped back to sterling using a cross currency interest swap. The resulting fixed
rate payable is ¢. 3.5%. The proceeds of the bond were for general corporate purposes including the repayment of the
£161 million sterling bond which matured in January 2017 and settling the acquisition related liabilities due in 2017.

It September 2015 the Group issued a seven-year €600 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.125% which will mature
in September 2022. The bond refinanced the 12-month bridge loan facitity of €500 million used for the purchase of
Talpa Media in April 2015.
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Borrowings
and finance
leases
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Keeping The Group borrows money from financial institations in the form of bonds. bank

it simple

e Board-approved policies in place to manage the Group's financdal r
; cwhichimpactc v transactions andintere
cussedinnote 4.3, Credit and Hguidity v are discussed below

* Credit risk: the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty fails
1o meet it ntractual obligations and
* Liguidity r that the Group witl not be able tomeet its finandial

The Group is

is the armount the Group v .

calculated hased on the present value of future principal 4

discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting «

fair value is consistent with instruments valued under level 2in note 4.5

Accounting policies

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs, with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed. Under the amortised cost method the
difference between the amount initially recognised and the redermption value is recorded in the income statement
over the period of the borrowing on an effective interest rate basis.

Finance leases

Historically, ITV has entered into sale and leaseback agreements in relation to certain programme titles. Related
outstanding sale and leaseback obligations, which comprise the principal and accrued interest, are included within
borrowings. The finance related element of the agreement is charged to the income statement over the term of

the lease on an effective interest basis. Sale and leaseback abligations are secured against an equivalent cash balance
held within cash and cash equivalents,

Managing credit and liquidity risk

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of derivative finandial assets
{(see note 4.3), trade receivables (see note 3.1.3}, and cash and cash equivalents (note 4.1).

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, The majority
of trade receivables relate to airtime sales contracts with advertising agencies and advertisers. Credit insurance has
been taken out against these companies to minimise the impact on the Group in the event of a possible default and

is also taken out for other significant receivables. In December 20116 the Group signed a new £100 million non-recourse
receivables purchase agreement to replace the £75 million invoice discount facility. In Decernber 2016 £35 million
invoices were sold under the agreement (2015: £nit). The recervables in relation to those were derecognised and the
Group collected cash on behalf of the counterparty.

Cash

The Group operates investment guidelines with respect to surpius cash that emphasise preservation of capital. The
guidelines set out procedures and limits on counterparty risk and maturity profile of cash placed. Counterparty limits
for cash deposits are largely based upon long-term ratings published by the major credit rating agencies and perceived
state support. Deposits longer than 12 months require the approval of the Board.
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Borrowings

ITV is rated as investiment grade by Moody's and S&P. ITV's credit ratings, the cost of credit default swap hedging
and the absolute level of interest rates are key determinants in the cost of new borrowings for ITV.

Liquidity risk

The Group's financing policy is to fund itself for the medium to long-term by using debt instruments with a range
of maturities and to ensure access to appropriate short-term borrowing facilities with a minimum of £250 million
of undrawn facilities available at all times

Long-term funding comes from the UK and European Capital markets, while any short to medium-term debt
requirements are provided through bank credit facilities totalling £930 million (see below}. Management monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn bank facilities and cash and cash equivalents)
on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial ratios to assess any possible future impact
on credit ratings and headroom and takes into account the accessibility of cash and cash equivatents.

The Group has £630 million available funds through a Revolving Credit Facility {RCF) with a group of relationship banks.
This £630 million facility was amended and extended in December 2016, matures in 2021and is committed with
leverage and interest cover financial covenants. in addition, the Group has £300 miltion of financial covenant free
financing which runs to 2021. Both of these facilities were undrawn at 31 December 2016 (2015 no drawings).

Fair value versus book value
The tables below provide fair value information for the Group’s borrowings:

Book value Fair value
2016 2015 W06 2015
Maturrty £m £m £m £m
Loans due within one year
Other short-term loans Various - 5 - 5
£161 roillion Eurobond Jan 2017 161 161 162 168
Loans due in more than one year
Bilateral loan facility Jun 2018 100 - 100 -
£600 million Eurobond Sept 2022 508 437 529 445
€500 millicn Eurobond Dec 2023 427 - 431 -
1,196 603 1222 618
Finance leases
The following table analyses when finance lease liabilities are due for payment:
Minimum Minimum
lease 016 lease 2015
payments nterest Principal payments Interest Principal
m tm £€m £m £m £m
In one year or less 4 - 4 6 ~ 6
In more than one year but not
more than five years - - - 4 - 4
4 - 4 10 - 10

Finance leases principally comprise programmes under sale and leaseback arrangements. The net book value of
tangible assets held under finance leases at 31 December 2016 was £nil (2015: £1 million).
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4.3
Managing
market risks:
derivative
financial
instruments

Keeping What is a derivative?
it simple A derivative s a type of financial nstruiment typically used to manage risk. A derivati

value changes Je rates

nteresyr

&

: S X to coertain market risks, i1 accordang
ot i out in this note. the Group Mmanage
ke

Why do we need them?
The key miarket risks facing the Group are:

= Currency risk arising fron
i. translation risk, that is, the misk i the pe

statement risk’}; and
I transaction risk, that is. the
>ffect on the value of the Group's non-functional currency trading tash fHow
A non-fune E C 1ransaction in any currency ather than
the reporting g .
s Interest rate risk to the Groups artses fron significant changes in interest o
borrowings iss AT OF S dtofloating ra

How do we use them?
The Group mainty eraploys four types of derivative fimancial nstrumeots when
NrARAgINgG its curre e interesr rare risk:

o Foreign exchange swap contrdcts are derivative instrumients used to Redoe ncone
statement tr ( sing fronm short terminterc omyg
tlenoninat 210N Curren

ran=ac tion risk so they enabite the <
tixed rate on an coel future date:
INterest . o 1o Al g Ative instruments that exchange a fixed rate of
intorest fe Flovating reate Aal orone type of floating rate for another,
Andd are ised tonanac et red aned

e {ross-currency interest rat Are derivative nstruments used 1o exchange the
nrincipal andintersst oo ik debt instrument from one currency ta another,

Analysis of the derivatives tsed by the Group to hedge its exposure and the various
methods used to calculate their respective fair values are detailed in this sectic

Accounting policies

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with

the movernent recorded in the income statement, except where derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting.
In this case, the effective portion of a cash flow hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented

in the hedging reserve within equity. The cumulative gain or loss is later rectassified to the income staterment in the
sarme period as the relevant hedged transaction is realised, Derivatives with positive fair values are recorded as assets
and negative fair values as liabilities.
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Determining Fair Value

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined by using the difference between the contract
exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the reporting date. The fair value of interest rate swaps
is the estimated armount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the reporting date, taking
into account current interest rates and our current creditworthiness, as well as that of our swap counterparties,

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Group's interest rate derivatives. The valuation techniques use inputs
such as interest rate yield curves and currency prices/yields, volatilities of underlying instruments and correlations
betweeninputs.

How do we manage our currency and interest rate risk?

Currency risk

As the Group expands its international operations, the performance of the business becomes increasingly sensitive
to movements in foreign exchange rates, primarily with respect to the US dollar and the euro.

The Group's foreign exchange policy is to use forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge material non-functional
currency denominated costs or revenue at the time of commitment for up to five years forward. The Group also
hedges a proportion of highly probable non-functionat currency denominated costs or revenue on a rolling 18-month
basis (see ‘Keeping it simple box’ for explanation of non-functional currency transactions).

The Group ensures that its net exposure to foreign currency denominated cash balances is kept to a minimal level by
using foreign currency swaps to exchange balances back into sterling or by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
rates when necessary.

The Group also utilises foreign exchange swaps and cross-currency interest rate swaps both to manage foreign
currency cash flow timing differences and 1o hedge foreign currency denominated monetary items.

The Group’s net investments in overseas subsidiaries may be hedged where the currency exposure is considered to be
material. In 2015 the Group designated a portion of its eurc borrowings inta a net investment hedge against its euro
denominated assets following the acquisition of Talpa Media.

The following table highlights the Group’s sensitivity to transtation risk resulting from a 10% strengthening/weakening
in sterling against the US dollar and euro, assurning all other variables are held constant:

2016 - post- 2015 - post-
o i . tax profit 2016 - equity B tax profit - 2015 - equity
US dollar . £3million £32million  £10million _£63 million_
Euro £10 miltion  £11 miillion £8 million  £47Tmillion

The Group's sensitivity to translation risk for revenue and adjusted EBITA is disclosed in the Financial and Performance
Review on page 44. The key difference between the foreign currency sensitivity for adjusted EBITA and profit after tax
is the impact on the US dollar and euro denominated exceptional costs, including acquisition related costs, acquired
intangible amortisation and net financing cost.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate policy is to allow fixed rate gross debt to vary between 20% and 100% of total gross debt to
accommodate floating rate borrowings under the revolving credit facility.

At 31 December 2016 the Group’s fixed rate debt represented 92% of total gross debt (2015: 99%). Consequently a
1% movement ininterest rates on floating rate debt would impact the 2016 post-tax profit for the year by £2 million
(2015: £nil).

For financial assets and liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss, the movements in the year relating to
changes in fair value and interest are not separated.
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What is the value of our derivative financial instruments?
The following table shows the fair value of derivative financial instruments analysed by type of contract. Interest rate
swap fair values exclude accrued interest.

Assets Liabilities
At 31 December 2016 £m £m
Cutrent
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges 6 ()]
Fareign exchange forward contracts and swaps — fair value through profit or loss 2 2)
Non-current
Cross currency interest swaps - cash flow hedges - [(3)]
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps ~ cash flow hedges 1 {3)
9 {12)
Assats Liabilities
At 31 December 2015 £m £m
Current
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps ~ cash flow hedges - {4)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through profit or loss 1 {n
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - fair value through profit or loss 8 ]
9 (n
Cash flow hedges

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain foreign currency firm commitments and highly probably cash flows
where the undertying cash flows are payable within the next two to seven years. In order to fix the sterling cash
outflows associated with the commitments and interest payments - which are mairly denominated in AUD or euros —
the Group has taken out forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency interest swaps for the same foreign
currency amount and maturity date as the expected foreign currency outflow.

The amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the period all relates to the effective portion of the revaluation
loss associated with these contracts. There was less than £1mitlicn (2015: £1 million) ineffectiveness taken to the income
staternent and £5 million cumulative gain (2015 £6 million loss) recyded to the income statement in the year.

Onissuing the 2023 Eurobond, the Group entered into a portfolio of aross-aurrency interest rate swaps, which swapped the
eura principal and fixed rate coupons into sterling. As a result the Group makes sterling interest payments at a fixed rate.

Net investment hedges

The Group uses euro denominated debt to partially hedge against the change in the sterling value of its euro
denominated net assets due to movements in foreign exchange rates. The fair value of debt in a net investment
hedge was £168 million (2015 £141 million). A foreign exchange loss of £21 mitlion (2015: £2 million) relating to the net
investment hedges has been netted off within exchange differences on translation of foreign operations as presented
on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Interest rate swaps

Onissuing the 2017 Eurobond, the Group entered inta a portfolio of fixed to floating interest rate swaps and then
subsequently overlaid a portfolio of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result that interest was 100% fixed
on these borrowings. The timing of entering into these swaps locked in an interest benefit for the Group, resultingina
net mark-to-market gain on the portfolio
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Undiscounted financial liabilities

Keeping
it simple

with the amaounts
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Carrylng mnu-a-z:u:’ai.l Less than Between Between QOver
value cash flows 1year 1and 2years 2and5vyears 5 years
At 31 December 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings {1,196) {1338) {194) {119) (58) (967)
Trade and other payables {912) (912) (855) (48) (8) U]
Other payables — non-current {n () - {6) {4) (1)
Other payables — cormmitments on
acquisitions {158) (328)* (122) (56} {150) -
Derivative finandal instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps — cash flow hedges
Inflow 7 3 127 86 - -
Outflow {4) (10) (123) (87) - -
Cross currency swaps — cash flow hedges
Inflow - 497 10 10 30 447
Outflow (6) (542} 07 a7 (1) (457}
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps — fair value through profit or loss
Inflow 263 263 258 5 - -
Outflow (263) (263) (258) 5 - -
Interest rate swaps ~ fair value through profit
orloss
inflow - 13 13 - - -
Outflow - (6) (6) - - -
2280y  (2,624) (.167) (237) 241 (979
Total
Carrying  contractual Less than Between Between Over
value cash flows 1year Tand2years 2and5 years 5years
At 31 December 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings (613} (703) (30) (184) {28) {461)
Trade and other payables (834) (834) (786) (34) (14) -
Other payables - non-current (4) (4) - (1) (2 )
Other payables — commitments on acquisitions 85 (303)* (12) (108) (183) -
Derivative financial instruments
Cash flow hedges
Inflow 66 66 49 7 - -
Qutflow (70) {70) (53) {17 - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts and
swaps
Inflow 147 147 144 3 - -
Outflow (147) (147) (144 3 - -
Interest rate swaps
Inflow 8 22 9 13 - -
Outflow 6) (12) (6) ©) — -
{1,538) (1838) (829) (320) (227} (462)

*  Expected future payments depending on perforrmance of acquisitions, the tatal maximum consideration is discussed in the Financiat

and Performance Review.,
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4.4 Keeping This section details the interest incame generated on the Group's cash and other
Net ﬁnancing it simple finan assets and the interest expense incurred on borrowings and other
costs financial liabitities.

unrealised mark-to-market movements on interest rate and foreign exchange
derivatives, qains/losses md buybacks, net pension interest, interest and fair
vallie riovernents in acge ilities and other financing costs.

% Inreporting adjusted profit'. the Group adjosts net financing costs to exclude

Currationale for adjustments made to financing costs is set out in the Financial and
Perfarmand & Review.

Accounting policies

Net financing costs comprise interest income on funds invested, gains/losses on the disposal of financial instruments,
changes in the fair value of financial instruments, interest expense on borrowings and finance leases, unwinding

of the discount on provisions, unwinding of the discount on liabilities to non-controlling interest, foreign exchange
gains/losses, and imputed interest on pension assets and liabilities. Interest income and expense is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Net financing costs
Net financing costs can be analysed as follows:
2006 2015
£m £m
Financing income:
interest incoma 2 3
Change in fair value of instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss - 3
2 6
Financing costs:
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 25) W)
Net pension interest (see note 3.7) {5) (10}
Change in fair value of instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss (U] -
Foreign exchange loss {8) @
Other finance expense (14) 8
(53) {37)
Net financing costs (5% <31

Interest on financial liabilities relates to the interest incurred on the Group's borrowings in the year.

Other finance expense includes the amaortisation of facility commitrment and upfront fees as well as movements
in the estimated value of acquisition-retated contingent liabilities, which contributed to most of the 2016 expense.
This is where estimates of the future performance against stretch targets is reassessed, resulting in adjustments
to the related put option liabilities.
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45 Keeping The finandialinstruments included on the 1TV statement of finandial position

Fair value it simple are resd at eithier far value or amortised cost. The mcasurerment of ths fair
value ¢ an in snme ¢ ases i

hierarchy

ernal valudtions using ni Tinputs or miarket

% Ve sob The different valuation methods
‘hierarchies” and are dese ribed betows

Level 1
F it valties are measured using quated prices iunadjusted) in active narkets for
identical assets or labilitios.

ves aremeasured using inpuats, other than quoted peices indude hin
Leved Tothat e sabile bor th oo Liabyility enther dlivesc tly o mndired tly

Mterest 1ate swaps and options are accounted tor at thoeis fae value Dosed upon
tecmination prices Forward forengn exchange contrac s are accounted Torat the
ditterence hetween the contract exe hange tate and the queted forward excbange
Fate at the renorting date.

Level 3
dlues areamieasured usicg mputs tor the asset ar bty that are not based an
e narket data,

The tables below set out the financial instruments included on the [TV statement of financial position at ‘fair value’.

Falr value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 31 December I December 31 December
2016 2016 2016 2016
£m £m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Available for sale financial instruments
Other pension assets - gilts (see note 3.7} 39 39 - -
Available for sale investments (see note 3.5) 12 - - 12
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
__Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 2 - 2 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges 7 - 7 -
60 39 9 12
Falr vatue Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2016 2016 016
£m £m £m £m
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial liabilties at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration {1 - - (1)
__Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 3 - (3} -
Financial liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges (9) - (9 -
(3 - 12 L]
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Far value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
31December 31December 31December 31December
2015 2015 2015 2015
£m m £m £m
Assets measured at fair value
Available for sale financial instruments
Available for sale gilts (see note 4.1) 38 38 - -
Available for sale investments (see note 3.5) L - - 1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps 1 - 1 -
Interest rate swaps 8 ~ 8 -
58 38 9 1
Far value Level1 Level 2 Level 3
31 December 31December 31 December 31December
2015 2015 2015 2015
£m Em £m £m
Liabilities measured at fair value
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Contingent consideration (3) - - (3)
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps Q)] - ()] -
Interest rate swaps {6) - ) -
Financiat Liabilities at fair value through reserves
Cash flow hedges {4) - (4) -
(14 - n 3

Refer to note 4.3 for how we value interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency contracts. The available for sale

Investments are valued at cost and assessed for impairment,
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Keeping This section explains material movements recorded in shareholders” equity that are
it simple ) d 1erein the financial statements, The movernents in equity and
nee at 31 Decermber 2016 are presented in the consalidated statement of
o5 In l"qLHt\"_
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Accounting policies

Available for sale reserve

Available for sale assets are stated at fair value, with any gain or loss recognised directly in the available for sale reserve
in equity, unless the loss is a permanent impairment, when it is then recorded in the income statement.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company's shareholders or their payment.
4.6.1 Share capital and share premium

The Group’s share capital at 31 December 2016 of £403 million (2015: £403 rillion) and share premium of £174 million
(2019: £174 million) is the same as that of ITV plc Details of this are given in the ITV plc Company financial statements

section of this Annual Report.
4,62 Merger and other reserves
Merger and other reserves at 31 December 2016 include the following reserves:
2016 2015

N - . fm  Em
Merger reserves _ - %8 98
Capitalreserves . - - _ 2 _n2
Capital redemption reserves T .36 36
Revatuation reserves i o 2 2
Put option Liabilities arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 27 27)
Total 221 221
4.6.3 Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises:

+ all foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of the accounts of, and investments in, foreign operations;
and
» the gains or losses on the portion of cash flow hedges that have been deemed effective (see note 4.3).

4.6.4 Available for sale reserve
The available for sale reserve comprises all movements arising on the revaluation of gilts accounted for as available
for sale financial instrurmnents (see note 37)

4.6.5 Retained earnings

The retained earnings reserve comprises profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of £448 million
{2015: £495 million) and other items recognised directly through equity as presented in the consolidated staterment

of changes in equity. Other items include the credit for the Group's share-based compensation schemes and the charge
for the purchase of ITV shares via the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust, which are described in note 4.7,

The distributable reserves of ITV plc are disclosed in note viii to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements,
The Directors of [TV plc propose a final dividend of 7.2p per share and a special dividend of 5p per share.
See details on distributable reserves on page 182.
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4.7
Share-based
compensation
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4.6.6 Non-controlling interests
The movement for the year comprises:

+ the share of profits attributable to non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015: £7miillion); and
* the distributions made to non-controlling interests of £4 million (2015 £5 million).

Keeping The Group utilises share awaul 5S¢ hpme 5as pd(t ofits Pmplnw‘v remuneration

it simple packages, and theretore opers shar d compensation schemes,
namely the Deferred Sha ormance Share Plan (PSP}, Long Term
Incentive Plan {LTIP) and

% Atransaction will be cl

services from employe ¢ C Sit nstruiments, If
the Group indurs a liability based an rh. price or ve mu! ot the (mm[x ares then this
will also fall under a share based transac tion.

A description of each type of share-based payment arrangement that existed at any
time during the period are set out in the Apnuat Remuneration Report.

Accounting policies

For each of the Group's share-based compensation schemes, the fair value of the equity instrument granted is
measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period via a charge to the income statement with a carresponding
increase in equity.

The fair value of the share options and awards is measured using either market price at grant date or, for the Save As
You Earn scherne (SAYE), a Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the individual scheme.

Vesting conditions are limited to service conditions and performance conditians. For performance-based schemes,
the relevant Group performance measures are projected to the end of the performance period in order to determine
the number of options expected to vest. The estimate is then used to determine the option fair value, discounted

to present value. The Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest, including an
estimate of forfeitures at each reporting date. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, are recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Exercises of share options granted to employees can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new shares. No new
shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA. During the year all exercises were satisfied by
using shares purchased in the market and held in the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust.

Share-based compensation charges totalled £10 million in 2016 (2015: £14 million).
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Share options ocutstanding

The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group and their

weighted average exercise price:

2016 2015

Weighted Wweighted

Number average Nurnber average

of options  exercise price of oplions  exer(ise price

£000) {pence) (000} (pence)

Qutstanding at 1 January 40167 5563 51933 3297
Granted during the year — nil priced 7,351 - 6,744 -
Granted during the year — other 8,002 167.62 4,615 198.94
Forfeited during the year (255) 151.17 (30) 14365
Exercised during the year (12,293) 2881 (19,477) 16.65
Expired during the year (6,439) 109.25 (3,618) 18.77
Qutstanding at 31 December 36,533 67.86 40,167 55.63
Exercisable at 31 December 83 - 610 5317

The average share price during 2016 was 209.91 pence (2015: 254.24 pence).

Of the options still outstanding, the range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining contractual life of these

options can be anatysed as follows:

2016

Weighted 2015

average Weghted

Weighted remaining Weighted average

average Number  contractual average Nurnber remaining

exercise price of options Ue exercise price of pptions contractual Lfe

Range of exercise prices {pence) (pence) 000) (years) (pence) ('000) {years)

Nil - 215 189 - 25,910 179

20.00 - 4899 - - - - - -

5000-63.99 67.71 505 0.9 67.24 991 0.58

70.00-9999 - - - 7358 331 092

100.00 - 159.99 10259 185 192 10259 1,672 114

10.00 - 119.99 - - - - - -

120.00- 14999 131.44 193 216 13144 1175 152

150.00 - 199.99 167.37 13,251 1.87 17258 8,089 222

20000 - 24899 206.83 891 141 20683 2,054 2.52
Assumptions

DSA, LTIP and PSP options are valued directly by reference to the share price at date of grant.

The options for the SAYE scheme, an HMRC approved SAYE scheme, are valued using the Black-Scholes modet, using

the assumptions below:
Share prce Expected Gross dividend Risk-free

atgrant  Exercise price volatiity  Expectedufe yeld rate Far value
Scherme name Date of grant (pence) (pence) % {years) % % (pence)
3 Year 2 April 2015 25100 192.52 26.00 3.25 227 0.74 65.85
5 Year 2 April 2015 25100 19252 3200 525 227 114 80.81
3 Year 16 Sept 2015 249.60 206.83 2500 325 2.28 0587 55.71
5 Year 16 Sept 2015 249.60 206.83 30.00 5.25 228 138 7202
3 Year 29 March 2016 24330 187.79 25.00 3.25 300 0.41 56.64
5 Year 29 March 2016 24330 187.79 29.00 5.25 3.00 073 6594
3¥Year 16 Sept 2016 19540 157.46 3000 325 300 041 4697
5 Year 16 Sept 2016 195.40 157.46 31.00 5.25 3.00 0.73 5215
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Section 5:

party

transactions

Other Notes

Employees’ Benefit Trust

The Group has investments in its own shares as a result of shares purchased by the ITV Employees’ Benefit Trust (EBT).
Transactions with the Group-sponsored EBT are included in these financial statements and primarily consist of the
EBT's purchases of shares in [TV plc, which are accounted for as a reduction to retained earnings.

The table below shows the number of ITV plc shares held in the EBT at 31 December 2016 and the purchases/(releases)
from the EBT made in the year to satisfy awards under the Group’s share schemes:

Number of shares Nominal value
Scheme Shares held at {releasedy/purchased
1 January 2016 16,949,851 1,694,985
DSA releases (2,883,078}
PSP releases (6,200,608}
SAYE releases (3,003,419}
Shares purchased 9,553,378
31 December 2016 14,410,124 1,438,557

The total number of shares held by the EBT at 31 December 2016 represents 0.36% (2015: 0.42%) of ITV's issued share
capital The market value of own shares held at 31 December 2016 is £30 million (2015; £47 million),

The shares will be held in the EBT until such time as they may be transferred to participants of the various Group share
schernes. Rights to dividends have been waived by the EBT in respect of shares held which do not relate to restricted
shares under the DSA. In accordance with the Trust Deed, the Trustees of the EBT have the power to exercise all voting
rights in relation to any investment {including shares) held within that trust.

Keeping

it Simple undertakings, fixed asset investments and key management personnel.

To enable users of aur financial statements to form v about the effects

¢ he Growp's transac tions with
aned o crated year end trading batances.,

Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings
Transactions with joint ventures and associated undertakings during the year were:

2016 2015

£m £m

Sales to joint ventures 8 9
Sales to associated undertakings 10 13
Purchases from joint ventures 26 24
Purchases from associated undertakings 70 65

The transactions with joint ventures primarily relate to sales and purchases of digital muttiplex services with
Digital 384 Lirited.

Purchases from associated undertakings primarily relate to the purchase of news services from ITN.

All transactions with associated undertakings and joint ventures arise in the normal course of business on an arm's
length basis. None of the balances are secured.
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Section 5: Other Notes continued

The amounts owed by and to these related parties at the year end were:

2016 2015

£m £m

Amounts owed by joint ventures - 3
Amounts owed by assotiated undertakings 57 66
Amounts owed to joint ventures - 2
Amounts owed to assaciated undertakings - 5

Balances owed by associated undertakings largely relate to loan notes and production funding advanced to Tomorrow
ITV Studios for US scripted investment.

Amounts paid to the Group's retirerment benefit plans are set out in note 3.7

Transactions with key management parsonnel
Key management consists of ITV plc Executive and Non-executive Directors and the ITV Management Board.
Key management personnel compensation is as follows:

2016 2015

£m fm

Short-term employee benefits 8 9
Share-based compensation 2 6
10 15

52 Keeping Acontingent Lability o bability that & not sutficiently certain ta gualily for
contingent it simpLe VECOTINTICN sioitwhore uncertainty thay exist rogarding the outcome of
. p spae fudure evenis

liabilities .
There are contingent liabilities in respect of certain litigation and guarantees, broadcasting issues, and inrespect of
warranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses. None of these items are expected to have a
material effect on the Group's results or financial position.

53 Keeping

Subsequent it simple .

events of the new information. Such events can be categorised as adjusting ar non adjusting

% depending onwhether the condition sted at 31 December G non-adjusting
ovents are material, non: disclosure could influende the econamic decistons that

users the oi the basis of the finandal statements, Accardingly, for ecach material
cateqary of non-adjusting event alter the reparting period we diselosein this section
the nature of the event ard an estinnate of its finandal effect, or a statement that
such an estimate cannot bemade.

Eurobond repayment

On 5 January 2017 the £161 Eurobond matured and the Group repaid the capital amount. The related interest rate swap
contracts were settled at the same time. The repayment was financed using the €500 million Eurobond issued
inDecemnber 2016.

Exercise of Gurney Productions LLC call option
On 6 February 2017, the Group exercised the call option to acquire the remaining 38.5% membership interest of Gurney
Productions LLC.

The Group has initiated legal proceedings against the sellers for alleged breaches of contracts and their fiduciary duties,
as well as self-dealing and fraudulent concealment. The sellers dispute the allegations, the exercise and the value of the
call option, and they have counter-claimed for unspecified damages of at least $100 million, which the Directors believe
is cormpletely without merit.
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London Property Strategy
On 21 February 2017, the Directors announced the outcome of an extensive review of the Group’s London property
requirements, The Group intends to seek planning permission to redevelop its South Barnk site and build a new London home.

The teams currently located in the South Bank site will be relocated to various sites in London during the
redevelopment period.

As a result of the review of the Group's London property needs, the Directors are proposing to dlose The London
Studios (TLS} business and use studio capacity in the external market to meet our future business needs. The Group has
bequn a period of consultation with the employees affected by this closure.

Acquisition of Tetra Media Studios SAS

0On 28 February 2017, the Group announced the acquisition of 65.05% of the capital of the French production business
Tetra Media Studios SAS, The transaction is on a cash free / debt free basis, with put/call options to acquire the
remaining interest depending on future performance of the business. The acquisition was financed through the Group's
existing cash and debt fadilities.
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Section 5: Other Notes continued

5.4 Keeping Certain subsidiarios of the Group can take an exemption from Naving an quhit. Strict

Subsidiaries it simple criteria rust be et for this exemplion 1o be taken. and it must be agreed 1a by the
Directors of that subsidiary entity,

exempt

from audit %

Listed below are subsidiaries controlled and consolidated by the Group, where the Directors have taken the exemption
frormn having an audit of its financial statements. This exemption is taken in accordance with Companies Act s4794A

Company Number  Company Name Company Number Company Name

10058419 Back Productions Limited 1071346 BGSS Lirmited

10404493 Big Talk Bliss Limited 10496857 Big Talk Cold Feet Limited

10528766 Big Talk Diana Limited 10528592 Big Talk Living the Dream Limited

1891539 Broad Street Films Limited 2285229 Campania Limited

5078683 Carbon Media Limited 4159249 Cariton Content Holdirngs Limited

30mss8 Carlton Film Distributors Limited 1692483 Carlton Finance Limited

3984490 Carlton Food Network Limited 3307790 Carltoncc 103

3210452 Carlton Screen Advertising (Holdings} 3053908 Carlton Programmes Development
Limited Limited

2625225 Carltonco Forty Investments 3210363 Carltonco Ninety-Six

2852812 Cosgrove Hall Films Limited 33209058 DTV Limited

290076 Granada Group Limited 3962410 Granada Limited

3106798 Granada Media Limited 5344772 Granada Screen (2005) Limited

733063 Granada Television Overseas Limited 6914987 ITV (HC) Limited

10384774 ITV Bancroft Limited 4206924 ITV Beowulf Limited

1127149 ITV Breathless Limited 4209918 ITV Cilla Limited

4206900 ITV Cradle Limited 4159210 ITV Holdings Limited

4207680 ITV Horne Fires Limited 4206912 ITV J&H Limited

4206871 ITV Jericho Limited 4206927 TV JR Limited

8723446 ITV Lewis Limited 1003419 ITV Little Boy Blue Limited

10058180 TV Loch Ness Limited 8534385 ITV Lucan Limited

4206935 ITV Mcorside Limited 4033106 {TV Mr Selfridge Limited

3916436 ITV News Channel Limited 8554937 ITV Shetland Lirnited

4206897 fTV Spirit Limited 10528702 ITV Studics Newco 1 Limited

10031818 ITV T&B Limited 9499040 ITV Tennison Limited

9498177 ITV Top Class Limited 8586211 {TV Thunderbirds Limited

9499012 ITV Tut Limited 10384819 ITV Traumna Limited

5518785 Juice Music UK Limited 10058008 ITV Wagstaffe Limited

10528827 Mammaoth Screen (ENDS) Limited 10528851 Marnmoth Screen (City) Lirited

10031005 Mammoth Screen (Pol3) Limited 10491117 Mammoth Screen (NOK) Limited

9646520 Mammoth Screen (QV} Limited 10528763 Mammath Screen (Pol4) Limited

4201477 Morning TV Limited 10043079 Mammaoth Screen (WFTP) Limited

4206913 SOM (ITV) Limited
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Company Balance Sheet
2016 2016 2015 2015
As at 31 December Note £m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings lii 1861 1861
Derivative financial instruments vi 4 9
Deferred tax asset 2 2
1,867 1872
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 4,066 3,864
Derivative financial instrurments vi 10 6
Other receivables 19 16
Cash and cash equivalents 438 126
4,533 4012
Current liabilities
Borrowings v (161) -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings {2,856) (3,760)
Accruals and deferred income 22) 21)
Derivative financial instruments vi {10) {6}
(3.049) 3787)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 1,484 225
Total assets less current labilities 3,351 2,097
Non-curent liabilities
Borrowings v (1.035) (598)
Derivative financial instruments vi (9) {6)
{1,044) {604)
Net assets 2,307 1493
Capital and reserves
Share capital vii 403 403
Share premium viii 174 174
Other reserves vili 28 36
Retained earnings viii 1,702 830
Total equity 2307 1493

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 1 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

lan Griffiths
Director
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ITV plc Company Financial Statements continued

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Share Other Retained
Capital Premium Reserves Earmings Total
N Note £m £m i £€m £m Em
Balance at 1January 2016 403 174 36 880 1493
Total comprehensive income for the year ) ) ] ]
Profit . ) _ - - - 1475 1475
Net loss on cash flow hedges - - 8 _ 8)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (8) 1,475 1,467

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity

Contributions by and distributions to owners ) ] ]

Equity dividends i - - - (663} (663}
10

Movements due to share based compensation - - - 10
Total contributions by and distributions to owners . . - - - 653)  (653)
Total transactions with owners - - - {653} (653}
Balance at 31 Decernber 2016 viifviii 403 174 28 1,702 2307
Share Share Other Retaned
Capital Premium Reserves Earmings Total
Note £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1January 2015 . . o 403 174_ 36 654 1,267
Total comprehensive income for the year o L -
Profit - - - 671 671
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 671 671
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity o o o o o
Contributions by and distributions to owners . L S o o
Equity dividends 3 ~ ) = - - _ (459) (459)
Moverments due to share based compensation - - - K= B
Total contributions by and distributions toowners .~~~ -~ - - _(445) _{445)
Total transactions with owners - - - {445) {445)
Balance at 31 December 2015 vii/ viii 403 174 36 880 1,493
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements

Notei
Accounting
policies

In this This section sets out the notes to the ITV plc Company only finandial statements,
section Those statements form the basis of the dividend decisions made by the Directors,
as explained in detail in note viii below.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework,

Basis of preparation

The Company is a qualifying entity as it is a member of the TV plc Group where ITV plc, the ultimate parent prepares
publicly available consolidated finandal statements.

Exemptions Applied

The Company is taking advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS101.

Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flows

Disclosure of key management persornnel compensation

Disclosure of related party transactions between wholly-owned subsidiaries and parents within a group
Disclosures required under IFRS 2 Share Based Payrnents in respect of group settled share based payments
Disclosures required by IFRS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure

« Certain disclosures required under IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

+ Disclosure of informationin relation to new standards not yet applied

As permitted by section 408 (3) of the Companies Act 2006, a separate income statement dealing with the results
of the parent company has not been presented.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are directly or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control exists where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The investment in the Company’s subsidiaries is recorded at cost.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are translated into sterling

at the rate of exchange ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the
profit and loss account. Nor-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated into sterling at
the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value including directly attributable transaction costs, with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The difference between initial fair value
and the redemption value is recorded in the profit and loss account over the period of the liability on an effective
interest basis.
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Notes to the ITV plc Company Financial Statements
continued

Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Company uses a imited number of derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in interest
and other foreign exchange rates. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivative financial instrurnents are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently remeasured at fair value with
the movement recorded in the profit and loss account within net financing costs, except where derivatives qualify

for cash flow hedge accounting. in this case, the effective portion of cash flow hedge is recognised in retained profits
within equity. The cumulative gain or loss is later reclassified to the profit and loss account in the same period as the
relevant hedged transaction is realised. Detivatives with positive fair values are recorded as assets and negative fair
values as liabilities.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is determined by using the difference between the contract
exchange rate and the quoted forward exchange rate at the balance sheet date,

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Company would receive or pay to terminate
the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
swap counterparties.

Third-party valuations are used to fair value the Company'’s derivatives. The valuation techniques use inputs such as
interest rate yield curves and currency prices/yields, volatilities of underlying instruments and correlations between
inputs. For financial assets and liabilities dlassified at fair value through profit or loss the fair value change and interest
income/expense are not separated.

Daferred tax
The tax charge for the period is recognised in the income staterment or directly in equity according to the accounting
treatment of the related transaction.

Deferred tax arises due to certain temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabflities for
financial reporting purposes and those for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settiement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities. A deferred tax asset is
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to utilise the temporary
difference. Recognition of deferred tax assets, therefore involves judgement regarding timing and levet of future
taxable income.

Share-based compensation

The Company utilises share award schermes as part of its employee remuneration packages, and therefore operates
a nimber of share-based compensation schemes, namely the Deferred Share Award (DSA), Performance Share Plan
(PSP), Long Termn Incentive Plan (LTIP) and Save As You Earn (SAYE) schemes.

A transaction will be classed as share-based compensation where the Company receives services from employees and
pays for these in shares or similar equity instruments. If the Company incurs a liability based on the price or value of the
shares then this wilt also fall under a share-based transaction. The Company recognises the retained earnings impact of
the share-based compensation for the Group as awards are settled in TV plc shares. The cost of providing those awards
is recharged to subsidiaries that receive the service from employees,

The fair value of the equity instrurnent granted is measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period via a
charge to the income statement with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value of the share options and awards
is measured using either market price at grant date or, for the Save As You Earn scheme (SAYE), a Black-Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the individual schermne.

Vesting conditions are limited to service conditions and performance conditions. For performance-based schemes, the
relevant performance measures are projected to the end of the perfarmance period in order to determine the number
of options expected to vest. The estimate is then used to determine the option fair value, discounted to present value.
The Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest, including an estimate of
farfeitures at each reporting date. The impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, are recognised in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustrment to equity.

Exercises of share options granted ta employees can be satisfied by market purchase or issue of new shares. No new
shares may be issued to satisfy exercises under the terms of the DSA. During the year all exercises were satisfied by
using shares purchased in the market and held in the [TV Employees’ Benefit Trust.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised through equity on the earlier of their approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment.
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payments

Note iii

Investments
in subsidiary
undertakings

Note iv
Amounts
owed
(to)/from
subsidiary
undertakings

Notev
Borrowings
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Two {2015: two) Directors of TV plc were employees of the Company during the year, both of whom remain at the year
end. The costs relating to these Directors are disclesed in the Remuneration Report.

Share based payments

The weighted average share price of share options exercised during the year was 55.33p (2015: 16.65p). The options
outstanding at the year end have an exercise price in the range of nil to 206.83p (2015: nil to 206.83p) and a weighted
average contractual life of one year (2015: one year) for all the Schemes in place for the Group.

The principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 184. The carrying value at 31 Decermber 2016 was £1,861 mitlion
(2015: £1,861 mitlion).

In 2015, the Company increased investment in subsidiaries by £156 million.

The Company operates an intra-group cash pool policy with certain 100% owned UK subsidiaries. The pool applies
to bank accounts where there is an unconditional right of set off and involves the daily closing cash position for
participating subsidiaries whether positive or negative, being cleared to £nil via daily bank transfers to/from ITV plc.
These daily transactions create a corresponding intercompany creditor or debtor which can result in significant
moverments in amounts owed to and from subsidiary undertakings in the Company balance sheet.

Keeping The Directors manage the Growp's capital structure as disclosed in Section 4
it simple

Campany finandial statenients,

&

Loans and facilities due within one year

At various periods during the year the Group drew down on the Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) to meet short-term
funding requirerments. All short-term drawings were repaid by the end of the year (2015: no outstanding short-term
funding). The maximurn draw down of the RCF during the year was £500 million in May.

The Group also had an unsacured £161 million Eurcbond which matured in January 2017 and had a coupon of 6.125%.
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Loans and loan notes due after one year

The Group has two bilateral loan faditities maturing in March 2017; both loans can be extended until 2018 at ITV's
option. The two facilities are a £100 million bilateral loan that is fully drawn down as of 31 December 2016, and

a £150 million bilateral loan with an unconditional right to set off with cash on deposit with the counterparty.
The £150 million arrangernent is in a net £nil position.

In December 2016 the Group issued a seven-year €500 million Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.0% which will mature
in December 2023, The bond has been swapped back to sterling using a cross currency interest swap. The resulting
fixed rate payable is c. 3.5%. The proceeds of the bond were for general corporate purposes including the repayment
of the £161 million sterling bond which matured in January 2077

In September 2015 the Group issued a seven-year €600 rnillion Eurobond at a fixed coupon of 2.125% which will mature
in Septernber 2022. The bond refinanced the 12-month bridge loan facility of €500 million used for the purchase of
Talpa Media in April 2015.

What is the value of our derivative financial instruments?

Note vi Assets Liabilitles
Managing - S : me e
z Current e
ma':ket,r'SKS: Foreugn exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges S 7 @
derivative Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — fair value through profitorloss 3 ®
financial Non-current
instruments Cross currency interest swaps - cash flowhedges B - 18
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps — cash flow hedges 4 3)
14 (19}
Assets Liabilities
2015 2015
Current - o o
Foreign ‘exchange forward contracts and swaps - cash flow hedies ) 3 @4
Foreign exchange forward contracts and swaps - fair value through pro’r' itor loss - 3 @
Non-current o . o o
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value through profit or loss 9 &)
15 (12)

The Company mainly ernploys three types of derivative finandial instruments when managing its currency and interest
rate risk:

Foreign exchange swap contracts are detivative instruments used to hedge incorme statement transtation risk
arising from short-term intercompany loans denominated in a foreign currency

Forward foreign exchange contracts are derivative instruments used to hedge transaction risk so they enable the
sale or purchase of foreign currency at a known fixed rate on an agreed future date.

interest rate swaps are derivative instruments that exchange a fixed rate of interest for a floating rate or vice-versa
or one type of floating interest rate for another and are used to manage interest rate risk.

Cross-currency interest rate swaps are derivative instruments used to exchange the principal and interest coupons
in a debt instrument from one currency to another.

Cash flow hedges

The Group applies hedge accounting for certain foreign currency firm commitments and highly probably cash flows
where the underlying cash flows are payable within the next two to seven years. In order to fix the sterling cash inflows
and outflows associated with the commitments and interest payments — which are mainly denominated in AUD or
euros - the Group has taken out forward foreign exchange contracts and cross currency interest swaps for the same
fareign currency amount and maturity date as the expected foreign currency outflow.

On issuing the 2023 Eurobeond, the Group entered into a portfolio of aross-currency interest rate swaps, which swapped the
euro principal and fixed rate coupons into sterling. In result the Group makes sterling interest payrments at 3 fixed rate.

The amount recognised in other comprehensive income during the period all relates to the effective portion of the
revaluation loss associated with these contracts. There was less than £1 million (2015: £1 million} ineffectiveness taken to
the income staternent and £2 million cumulative gain (2015: £6 million loss) recyded to the income statement in the year.
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Interest rate swaps

Onissuing the 2017 Eurobond, the Company entered into a portfolio of fixed to floating interest rate swaps and then
subsequently cverlaid a portfolio of floating to fixed interest rate swaps with the result that interest was 100% fixed
on these borrowings. The timing of entering into these swaps locked in an interest benefit for the Company, resulting
in a net mark-to-market gain on the portfolio.

Undiscounted financial liabilities

The Company is required to disclose the expected timings of cash outflows for each of its derivative financial liabilities.
The amounts disctosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest), so will not always
reconcile with the amounts disclosed on the statement of financial position.

Carrying ConmmlaTma: Less than Between Between
value cash flows 1year 1and 2 years 2and 5 years Over 5 years
At 31 December 2016 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Non-cuirent and current
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - cash flow hedges
Inflow 1 393 237 156 - -
Outflow {10) (392) (237 (155) - -
Cross currency swaps - cash flow
hedges
Inflow - 497 10 10 30 447
Qutflow (6) (542) ) {17) (51 (457)
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - fair value through profit
orloss
Inflow 412 412 402 10 - -
Cutflow {412) (412) {402) 10 - -
Interest Rate Swaps - fair value
through profit or loss
Inflow - 13 13 - - -
Outflow - (6) (6) - - -
(5) 37 - 6 n (9
Total
Carrying Contractual Less than Between Between
value cash flows 1year 1and 2years  Zand5Syears Over 5 years
At 31 Gecemnber 2015 £m £m £m £m £im £m
Non-current and current
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps — cash flow hedges
Inflow 3 136 102 34 - -
Outflow (4) {136) {102) (34) - -
Foreign exchange forward contracts
and swaps - fair value through profit
or loss
inflow 3 253 248 5 - -
Quttlow (0] {252) (247) () - d
Interest Rate Swaps — fair value
through profit or loss
Inflow 9 22 9 13 - -
Outflow {6) {12) &) 6) - -
3 T 4 7 - —
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Aliotted, rssued
- Authorised and fully pard
NOte vil . 2016 & 2015 2016 & 2015
Share capital £m £m
Authorised ordinary shares of 10 pence each 8,000,000,000 800
Allotted, issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 10 pence each 4,025409,194 403
Total 800 403
The Company's ordinary shares give shareholders equal rights to vote, receive dividends and to the repayment
of capital
Note viii KeePing TV ple v anon trading mvestment holding compeany and derives its peofits frony
EQUity and it Simple dividendas paid fry subsidiory companies.
diVidends Ther Dires tors censider the G yacapital stroe ture andbdividend policy at least twice

par ahead of announcing resalts aned dossoin the context obits ability tocontinue

Fooing cone i, to execule the strategy snd o mvestin opportunities to grow the

1o enbusne e shareholder valoe.

erd policy i i luene ed by anomber of the prmopal diske asidentibie
oo BG that could have a negative impact on the performan

g the tevel of dividendin amy year the Drectors folloy
med alsoconseder anumiber of other factors that afloence the progaosed
i lucding

of retained distrtiatable reserves 0 1TV ple The Compainy
abibity of cashirosnurces fas disclosed i note 40 to the consolidated finanoal
Satennents),
o Futre cashoommutioents andinvestiment plans, in line with Group’™s strategic plan

Equity

The retained earnings reserve includes profit after tax for the year of £1,475 million {2015: £671 million profit}

which includes dividends of £1,500 million from subsidiaries in 2016 (2015: £700 million). Other reserves of £28 million
{2015: £36 million) relate to share-buy backs in prior periods and foreign currency translation net of cashflow hedging.

Dividends
The Directors of the Company propose a final dividend of 7.2p per share and a spedial dividend of 5p per share.
Distributable reserves
The distributable reserves of ITV plc approximate to the balance of the retained earnings reserve of £1,702 million
as at 31 December 2016,
Note ix Keeping A tontingent liability is a liability that is not sufticientty certain to qualify
contingent it Simpte for recognition as a pravision where uncertainty may exist regarding the

outcome of future events

liabilities

&

Under a Group registration, the Company is jointly and severally liable for VAT at 31 December 2016 of £47 millicn
(31 Decernber 2015: £59 million). The Company has guaranteed certain finance and operating lease obligations of
subsidiary undertakings.

There are contingent Liabilities in respect of certain litigation and guarantees, broadcasting issues, and in respact
of warranties given in connection with certain disposals of businesses. None of these items are expected to have
amaterial effect on the Company's results or financial position.

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within its Group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this
respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable
that the Company witl be required to make a payment under the guarantee.
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There are no capital commitments at 31 December 2016 {2015: none).

Note x
Capital and
other
commitments
i Keepin The related parties identified by the Direc clude solely key managenwent,
ote xi ping } Y ]
Related party it simple as 1TV pleis a holding pany with no commercial activity.
transactions To endbie the users of the finandiat statements to form a vie w0t the eftects of
related ty retationships an the Company, v » the Comipany's transac tions
% with those during the ye.ar
Transactions with key management parsonnel
Key management consists of ITV plc Executive Directors.
Key management personnel compensation, on an accounting basis, is as follows:
206 2015
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 3 3
Share-based compensation 2 3
5 6
Total emoluments and gains on share options received by key management personnel in the year were:
2016 2015
£m Em
Emoluments 7 L 3 3
Gains on exercise of share options o 2 3
Gains on release of restricted share awards 2 3
7 9
Note xii Keeping Vhere the Group receives information in the period between 31 December 2016
Subsequent it simple and the date of thisreport about conditions related to certain events that exis
events . 31 Decambe ) update our disctosu hat relate to th onditions in Light

of the new information. Such events c an be categorised as adjusting or non-acdjusting

% [aluds ng onwhether the condition existed at 31 > f nan-adjusting

events are material, non-disclosure could influence the econaimic

such an estimate cannct be macde,

On 5 January 2017 the £161 Eurobond matured and the Group repaid the capital amount. The related interest rate swap
contracts were settled at the same time. The bond was refinanced earlier in December 20716,
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Subsidiary undertakings and investments

Principal subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 Decernber 2016, all of which are wholly owned (directly or indirectly) and

incorporated and registered where stated.

Company Name Country Principal Business Activity % Holding
Carlton Communications Limited* (Tia)(d) UK Holding company 100
ITV Broadcasting Limited (1)(3) UK Broadcast of television programmes 100
ITV Consumer Limited (){a) UK Development of platforms, broadband, transactional and mobile services 100
ITV Digital Channels Limited (s} UK Dperation of digital tetevision channels 100
1TV Global Entertainment Limited (1){3) UK Rights ownership and distribution of television programmes and fitms 100
ITV Network Limited (1{) UK Scheduling and commissioning of television programmes 100
1TV Rights Limited (1)(3) UK Rights ownership 100
ITV Services Limited {1}(a)(e) UK Pravision of services for other companies within the Group 100
ITV Studics Limited {1)(3) UK Production of televiston programmes 100
ITV2 Limited (T){a) UK Operation of digital television channels 100
SDN Limited (14{a) UK Operation of Freeview Multiplex A 100
Talpa Media BV.{93){a) Netherlands Productlon of television programmes 100
ITV Studios, Inc. (FO)(j} USA Production of television programimes 100
Leftfield Entertainment, LLC (631h) USA Production of television programmes 100
Subsidiary undertakings
Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Hotding
12 Yard (North) Productions Lirmwted {1)(a) UK 100 Cat's on the Roof Media Lirruted (Y)(3) UK 100
12 Yard Lumited {1}a) UK 100 Central Television Limited (1)) UK 100
12 Yard Productions (investments) Limited (1)(a} UK 100 Channel TelevisionHoldings Lirmited (1){a) UK 100
12 Yard Productions Limited (1)(3) UK 100 Cosgrove Hall Fitms Limited {1)(@) UK 100
A C E (1988) Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Denipurma Lirruted (1(a) UK 100
Action Time Holdings (1)(a) UK 100 DTV Limited (1) UK 100
Anglia Television Group (1)(a} UK 100 Electranic Rentals Group (1@} UK 100
Anglia Television Limited (1)(3) Uk 00 EQ Pictures Limited (1)) UK 100
Back Productions Limited (7)) UK 100 GIL Limited (1)) UK 100
BGSS Limited (1)(g) UK 100 Granada AV Solutions Lirmited {1){(a) UK 100
Big Talk Bliss Limited (1)(3) UK 00 Granada Film (1)) UK 00
Big Talk Cold Feet Lirmited (1){a) UK 100 Granada Film Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Big Talk lnvestrments Lirmited (1}(a) UK 100 Granada Group Limited (1)a) UK 100
Big Talk JL Limited (1)) UK 100 Granada Limited (Tja} UK 100
Big Takk Pictures Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Media Group Limited (1)a) UK 100
Big Talk Productions Lirnited (1)(3) UK 100 Granada Medla Limited (1)(a}{) UK 100
Broad Street Films Limited (1{a) UK 100 Granada Productions Lirmited (1)(a} UK 100
Campania Limted (1}(@)(f) UK 100 Granada Properties (1)(a) UK 100
Carbon Media Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Screen (2005) Limited (1)(3) UK 100
Carlton Active Limited (1)(@) Uk 100 Granada Television International (1){a) UK 100
Carlton Cinema Limited (1)a) UK 100 Granada Television Limited{1a} UK 100
Cariton Content Holdings Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Television Overseas Lirnited (1)(@) UK 100
Cariton Entertainment (1)(a) UK 100 Granada Television Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Carlton Film Distributors Lirmited (T{a) UK 100 Granada UK Rental and Retail Limited {1){a)(e) UK 100
Carlton Films Limited (1){a) UK 100 Interactive Telephony Lirmited (1)a} UK 0o
Carlton Finance Limited(T)(a) UK 100 International Telewision Enterprises London Limited (14a){d) UK 100
Carlton Food Netwark Limited (1){a) UK 100 1TC Distribution (1){@) UK 00
Carlton Productions Limited (1)) UK 100 ITC Entertainment Group Uimited (1)(a) UK 100
Carltan Programmes Development Limited {Tj(z) UK 100 ITC Entertanment Holdings Limited (1{a) UK 100
Carlton Screen Advertising (Holdings) Limited (1)) UK 100 {TV (HC) Lirmited* (1)(3) UK 160
Carltonco 103 (1)(a) UK 100 ITV (Scotland) Limited {30)(a) UK 100
Carltonco 99 Limited (1)(3) UK 100 ITV Bancroft Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Carttonco Eighty-One Limited {T}a)(b) UK 100 1TV Beowulf Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Carltonco Fifty Limited (1)(@)k) UK 100 ITV Border Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Carltonco Forty Investments (@) UK 100 ITV Breakfast Broadcasting Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Caritonco Forty-Five Limited (1(3) UK 00 ITV Breakfast Limited (1)(a) UK 100
Carltonco Ninety-Six (T ayn UK 100 ITV Breathless Limited {1)(a) UK 100
Carltonco Seventeen Limited (1)(8) UK 100 ITV Central Limited (3() UK 100
Castlefield Properties Limited {1}a) UK 100 ITV Channels Limited {1)(a) UK 100
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Company Name Country % {ompany Name Country %
Holding Holding
ITV Cilta Limited (1)) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Bouquet) Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV Cradie Limited (Txa) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (BW) Limited (26)(a) UK 100
1TV DC Trustee Linuted (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (End) Ltd (7)(a) UK 100G
ITV Digitat Holdings Limited (14a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (End2) Limited {1)(@) UK 100
[TV Enterprises Limited (1)(3) LK 100 Mammoth Screen (Falcon) Limited (1)(a} UK 100
ITV Global Content Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Marmath Screen (Fearless) Limited {1)(@) UK 100
TV Holdings Limited {1)(3) UK 100 Mammath Screen (Monroe) Limited (T{a) UK 100
1TV Home Fires Lirmited (1){2) UK 100 Mammeoth Screen (NE) Lirruted (1)(a} UK 100
ITV International Channels (Asia) Limited (1)(3) UK 100 Mamimath Screen (NF Lirmuted (35)3) UK 100
ITV Investments Limited* (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (NW) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
ITV J&H Limited (1)() UK 100 Mammoth Screen (PE) Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV Jericho Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammoth Screen (Pol2) Limited (1)(3) UK, 100
TV IR Limited (T)(a) UK 100 Mammath Screen (Pol3) Lirmted (1)(3) UK 100
TV Lewis Limited (T)a)} UK 100 Mammeth Screen (Poldark) Limited (1)() UK 100
TV Little Boy Blue Lirmited {1}(a} uK 100 Mammath Screen (QV) Limited (1){a} UK 100
ITV Loch Ness Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Mammaoth Screen (RM) Limited (1)@} UK 100
ITVLFVC (Scotland) Limited (30)a) UK 100 Mammath Screen (WFTP) Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV Lucan Limited (1)@} UK 100 Mammaoth Screen (WH) Limited (13{3) UK 100
ITV msenidian Limited (T)a} UK 100 Mammoth Screen Ltd {1)(3) UK 100
ITV Moorside Lirmited (1)) UK 100 Millbank Studios {1xa) UK 100
ITV Mr Selfridge Limited (1)(a) UK 100 Marning TV Limited (14a) UK 100
ITV News Channel Limited (T}a)(k} UK 100 Maoving Picture Company Films Limited (1)(@) UK 100
TV NP Limited (Ta) UK 100 New Providence Productions Lirmited {1}{z) UK 100
ITV Pension Scherme Limited (Ha){b) UK 0o Partridge Holdings (1)(@) UK 100
ITV Play Limited (1){a} UK 100 Pickwnck Packaging Limited (Y)(a) UK 100
ITV Productions Limited {THa) UK 0 Planet 24 {1)(a) UK 100
ITV Properties {Developments) Limited {1() UK 00 Pro-Vision Facilities Limited (14a) UK 100
1TV Shetland Lirmited (1)(a) UK 00 Sightseers Film Limited (1ya) UK 100
ITV Spint Limited (H(3) UK Ls]0) Signpost Limited (1)) UK 100
1TV Sport Channel Limited (1)) UK 100 SOM (ITV) Limited (1)(a} UK 100
1TV Studios (Israel) Limited (1) UK 100 50 Television Developments Limited (1)(a) UK 100
1TV Studios Newco 1Limited (1)(a) UK 100 50 Telewision Limited (D) LK 100
1TV Studios Newca 2 Limited (1){a) UK 100 Talpa Media UK Ltd {Tia) UK 100
ITV $tudios Newco 3 Limited (1)(3) UK 100 Television Music Limited (1)) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 4 Limited (1)(a) UK 100 The OITV Channel Lirited (1)) UK 100
ITV Studios Newco 5 Limited (1) UK 100 The Garden Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 160
ITV Studios Newco & Lirmited (1)@} UK, 100 The London Studios Limited (1)() UK 1ca
ITV Supplementary Pension Scheme UK 100 Tyne Tees Television Holdings (1)) UK 100
Lirmited (1) Tyne Tees Television Limited (1){a) UK 100
{TV T&B Limited {1)(a} UK 100 United Broadcasting & Entertainment UK 100
ITV Tennison Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Limited (1))
ITV Text Santa Limited (1)(a} UK 100 United Broadcasting Holdings (1)(a) UK 100
ITV Thunderbirds Limited (1)(a) UK, 100 UTV Limited (34)(3) UK 100
ITV Top Class Limited {T)(a) UK 100 VOD Member (ITVA) Limited (1)(a) UK 100
TV Trauma Limited (1)(a) UK 100 VOD Member (ITVE} Limited (1)(a) UK 100
TV Tut Limited {Ta} UK 100 Westcountry Televisiontimited (1)) UK 100
ITV Ventures Limited (1)(a) UK, 100 Yorkshire Television Limited (7{a) UK 100
1TV Wagstaffe Limited (1)(a} UK 100 Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Tetevision Enterprises Limited {T)(a) UK 100
ITV Wales & West Group Limited (1) UK 100 Yorkshire-Tyne Tees Productions Limited (1)(a) UK 160
ITV Wales & West Limited {1)(a) UK 100 Zebedee Productions Limited (13a) UK 100
[FV3 Limited (1)() UK 00 Artist Services Cable Pty Ltd (36)(a) Australia 100
ITVa Lirited (1)(a) UK 100 Artist Services Investments Pty Limited (36)() Australia 00
Juice Music UK Linmted (1) UK 100 Artist Services Productions Pty Ltd (36)(a) Australia 100
Leftfield (UK) Limited (21){a) UK 100 Granada Media Internationat {Australia) Pty Ltd (36)(a) Australia 100
Link Electronics Limited (3){(a) UK 00 Granada Media Investments (Australia) Pty Ltd (36)(a) Australia 100
Landon News Network (1)%a) UK 100
London Weekend Television Limited (1)) UK 100 Granada Productions Pty Ltd (36)(@) Australia 100
LWT {Holdings) Limited (1)(a)c) UK 100 ITV Services Pty Lud (35)(@) Australia 100
LWT Productions Limited (T)a} UK 100 ITV Studios Australia Pty Ltd (35)a) Australia 100
Mammoth Screen (AR) Limited (1)) UK 100 Leftfield Australia Pty Ltd (37)a) Australia 100
Mammoath Screen (ATTWN) Limited {1){a) UK 100 Totally Full Frontal Productions Pty Limited {36)(a) Australia 100
LTP Productions Inc.(75)()) Canada 100
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Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
Granada December EightLimited (38)a) Cayman 100 ITV Entertainment Services inc (63)(]) USA 100
Istands ITV Global Entertainment Inc. (63){)} USA 100
Granada December Nine Limited {38)a) :;[a::;:n 100 11V Gritty Holding Inc.(63)0) UA 700
1TV Holdings (Cayman) Lirited (39)(a) Cayman 200 ITV Gurney I-—loldlng Inc. (63)f) usa 100
Islands ITV HN Holding Inc (63)() ush 100
Talpa Chile SpA (97)(3) Chile 100 ITV Internationat Corparation (63)()) USA 100
Uruted Productions ApS {62)(a) Denmark 100 1TV Leftfietd Holding Inc (63)() USA 100
1TV Studios Finland Oy (43)(a) Finland 100 1TV New Form Holdingnc. (53)()) LA 100
ITV Studios France (Holdings) SAS (98)(a) France 100 ITV Popee Holding Inc (63)() USA 100
1TV Studios France SAS (A4)43) France e 1TV SVOD Holding Inc {63)()) USA 100
ITV Studios Germany GmbH (£6)(a) Germany 100 ITV Thinkfactory Holding Inc. (63)() usa 100
ITV Studios Germany Holdings GmbH (46)(a) Germany 100 TV Tornorrow Holding Inc {63)(} USA 100
Newtepia GmBH (100)a}l Germany 100 ITV US Hotdings Ing, (63)(j) UsA 100
Tatpa Germany Fic tion GmbH (99)(a) Germany 100 {TV Us Productions In¢. (63)()) UsA 100
Talpa Germany Gmbh & Co KG (47)(@) Germany 100 JB Entertainment Holding Company Inc (63)()) usa 100
Talpa Germany Verwaltungs GmbH (47)a) Germany 100 Kirkstall Read Enterprises inc (63)()} UsA 100
Elecrent Insurance Limited (31)(a) Guermsey 100 teftfield Pictures of NY Holdings, LLC {63)() UsA 100
TV Global Entertanment (Hong Kong) Limited (49)(a) HongKong 100 Leftfield Pictures of NY, LLC (63)0) usa 100
Talpa China Limited (48)(3) HongKong 100 Leftfield Ventures, LLC (63)(j) UsA 100
Carlton Home Entertainment Ireland Limited (50)(a) Iretand 100 LWT Enterprises Inc. (63)() UsA 100
Channel Television Limited (32)(a) Jersey 100 Over the Pond Productions Inc {63)() usa 100
ITV London Properties Limited (33)(a) Jersey 100 Quay Street Enterprises Inc. (53)(j) UsA 100
ITV Praperties (Jersey} Limited (33)(a) Jersey 100 Red Orange Productions, LLC {94){) UsA 100
Brandcams international 8. (52)(3) Netherlands 100 50 Televisian US inc. (7OX]) UsA 100
Global Music & Tatent Agency BV. (23)(3) Netherlands 100 Talpa Media USA Inc. (94)()) usA 100
ITV (Europe) Holdings By * (55)(3) Netherlands 100 Upper Ground Enterprises inc. (53)()) usA 100
ITV Enterprises BV (S5)(a) Netherlands 100 Zinna Productions LLC (94} Usa 100
ITV Finance (Europe} BV. (55)@) Netherlands 100
MasMedia BV. (56)(@) Netherlands 100 Joint ventures and Investments
TalpaContent BV (57){a} Netherlands 100 Company Name oty %
Talpa Fictie BV {57)a) Netherlands 100 Holding
Talpa Germany Holding B.V.(93)(3) Netherlands 100 Absolutely Rights Limited (6)(a) UK 20
Talpa Gtobal B.V.{53)a} Nethertands 100 That Mitchell and Webb Company Limited (7)a) UK 20
Talpa Non-Spot B V{57)(3) Netherlands 100 DTV Services Limited (17)(a} UK 20
Talpa Producties BV (57a) Netherlands 400 Route 24 Limited (24Ka} UK 245
Utopia BY,(57)(a) Netherlands 100 Monumental Television Limited (79)@) UK 292
Voist Media 8.V, (102)(a} Netherlands 100 Channel MumLimited (12)(a) UK 5
wardour Street FIlms 8 V (55)(a) Netherlands 100 Clearcast Limited (14)() UK 25
ITV Studios Norway AS {76)(a} Norway 100 ISAN UK Lirnited (25)(3) UK =
1TV Studios Nordic AB{77)(@) Sweden 100 CGirkus International Limited (13)(a} UK 28
Talpa Asia Pte, Ltd. (36){a) Singapore 100 Thinkbox TV Limited {23)(a) uk 2858
ITV Studios Germany GmbH, Koln, Zweigriederlassung Switrertand 100 Cirkus Limited (13)a) UK ElL]
ZUekch (76)m) Malacara Limited (2)(2) UK 36.75
12 Yard Hotdings. nc. 0D usA 109 Harlequin Agency Limited (5)(a) UK 375
Pink Rose Bud Limited (2)(a) UK 375
Angla Television Inc. (70X) usa 100 Mainstreet Arlngton Productions Limited (4)(a) UK 3825
Astrum Productions,LLC B UsA 00 Mainstreet Pictures Lirmited (4)(a) UK 3825
Cardinal Productions of OhigInc (63))) USA 100 Unforgotten Limited (4) @) o B
Carlton Media Company InC (63Xj) USA, 100 Bart Studio Limited (5ya) " P
Electric Farm Entertainment Holdings Inc (63)() USA 100 Cloth Cat Amimation Limited (5)@) UK e
Granada Cracker US Productions (70)(j) usa 100 Cloth Cat L6 Limited 0] oK prp
Granada Television International ing. (63)(j) USA 100 Independent Television News Limited (200@) oK o
Harndon Entertainment Inc (633(j) USA 100 Thad Media Limited () @ 0K P
ITC Distribution, LLC{63){1} UsA 00 Bone Kickers Limited (@) " o
ITC Entertainment Group inc (63){)} USA 100 Box Clever Technology Limited @)@ UK s
HC Flrms, LLC 103 Usa 100 British Film-Makers Limited {1){a) UK 50
ITC Productions. LLL (63)) UsA 100 Digital 3and 4 Limited (16)(@) UK 50
1TV America tnc (63)(i) usA, 100 Freesat (UK) Limited (1813) o =
(T Believe Holding tnc (G31) usa 109 Gameface Productions Limited (1)) UK 50
TV Diga Hoiding Inc. 63)() UsA 100 Noho Film and Television Limited (28)(3) UK 50
Standard Music Limited {29)(a) UK 50
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Company Name Country % Company Name Country %
Holding Holding
Telewision Media Marketing Limited (1)@} UK 50 Rangers Productions SRL (83)(a) Mexico 65
Possessed Limited (1)(a) UK 51 Identity Mansion B V. (95)(3) Netherlands 25
OSF {(Wales) Limited (5)(a) UK 46,27 Pomper & Linders BV. (101){a) Netherlands 20
Oxford Scientific Fitmms Limited (543) UK 46.27 Talpa Arabia Holding Ltd {84)(a} UAE 90
Second Act Productions Limited (1{a) UK 74,07 Maximum Media Production FZ-LLC (84)(3) UAE 90
Age Before Beauty Limited {4)(@) UK 75 Talpa Middle East FZ-LLC (84)(g) UAE 90
Aim Films Limited {3){a) UK 75 Eight Bells Productions, LLC (63)(h) UsA 60
Boom Cymru TV Ltd (S)(a) UK 75 What's the Business, LLC (85)h} USA 60
Boom Pictures Limited (1)} UK 75 FT Praductions, LLC (63)(h) UsA 615
CynhyrchiadauBoomerang Cyf {(2)(a) UK 75 shirina, LLC (63)(h} usa 63 25
Double Double Limited {1)(a) UK 75 Crew Ready Everywhere, LLC (63){(h} USA 65
Gorilia TV Group Limited {(5)(a) UK 75 Hatfield and McCoy Productions, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
Gorilla TV Limited (S){(a) UK 75 Highball Music Group, LLC (63)(h) usa a5
Indus Films Eimited (2)(a) UK 79 LG Films, LLC (63)h) USA 65
TV TFG Holdings Limited (1)(a} UK 75 Marnage Boot Camp Reality Stars, LLC {63){h} LSA 65
Hirm Productions Limited (4)a) UK 75 MBQuartet, LLC {63)(h) USA 65
TwoFour Group Limited (xx)(x} UK 75 Signal Post Facilities, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
TwaoFour Broadcast Limited {(xx)(x} UK 75 Sound and Stage Studios, LLC (63){h) USA 65
Twofour Group Holdings Limited (1){a) UK 75 Texas Rangers, LLC (&63)(h} UsA 65
3sixtymedia Limited {1)(a} UK 80 Thinkfactory Media, LLC (87)(h) USA 65
GC Films Pty Limited {36)(3) Australia 49 WebLegal, LLC (63)(h) usa 65
Thunk Factary Productions Canada Ltd (80)(j) Canada 65 Westside Film Partners, LLC (63){h) Usa 65
Talpa Nordic ApS {&ya) Denmark 51 Loud Television, LLC {63)th) usa 75
Imago TV Film und Fernsehproduktion GmbH{45){a) Germany 80 Next Steps Productions, LLC (63)(h) Usa 75
The Lab Telewision 2013 Limited Partnership (81){a) Israel 50 QOutpost Entertainment, LLC (63)(h) USA 75
Talpa Itatia Srl (82)(@) italy 50 Tomorrow 1TV Studios, LLC (63)(K) [¥:3,) 25
Memberships, Partnerships and Companies Limited by Guarantee
Company Name Country % Holding  Company Name Country % Holding
[TV LTVC Scattish Limited Partnership (30j(h) UK 100 High Noon West, LLC (71)(h) USA 60
ITV Scottish Limited Partnership (30)(h) UK 160 Feeding Time Productions, LLC (89)(h) USA 615
DTT Muluplex Operators Limited (17)(1) UK 25 Hollywood Camera and Lighting, LLC (90} UsA 615
Digital Production Partnership Limited (1{1) UK 50 Gurney Productions, 1LC (7OKh) USA 615
Producers Rights Agency Limited {25)() UK 50 RICMA, LLC (65)(h) Ush 615
ITV Nethertands Co-operatief W.A*(55)(h) Netherlands 100 Yukon RAFT Productions, LLC {97)(h) USA 615
Chad Alan Productions, LLC {(62)(h) usa 100 Brat Brigade, LLC {73)(h} UsA 6325
Double Down Films Holdings, LLC (63)(h) Usa 100 Deep Gotham Post, LLC (73)(h} UsA 6325
Double Down Films, LLC (63)(h} usa 100 DGK 5, LLE (63)(h) USA 6325
Electric Farm Entertainment, LLC (63)(h} USA 100 Diga Holdings, LLC (63)(h} UsA 6325
Moving Pictures Services Inc. (63)h} usa 10Q Diga Production Studios, LLC (63Kh) USA 6325
Oaklawn Pacific Properties, LLC (66)h} UsA 100 Diga, LLC (63)h) USA 6325
Sirens Media, LLC (63)(h) usa 100 Filrn Productions Rentats, LLC (70)(h) USA 65
Sirens Project 1203, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 Roasters, LLC (63)¢th) USA 65
Sirens Project 1223, LLC (63)h) USA 100 Thinkfactory Group, LLC (63)(h) USA 65
Sirens Project 1226, LLC (63)h) UsA 100 1016 Productions, LLC (60)(h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1227,LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios, LLC (50)h) USA 75
Sirens Projact 1307, LLC {63)(h) usa o 6565 Productions Studios 2, LLC (60)(h) USA 75
Sirens Praject 1303, LLC {63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios 3, LLC {GO)(h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1309, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 6565 Productions Studios 4, LLC (60)(h) usa 75
Sirens Project 1316, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 Allin Post, LLC (60)(h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1326, LLC (63)(h) UsA 100 Cheese String Studios, LLC (72){h} USA 75
Sirens Project 1408, LLLB3K) USA o0 InReality Productions, LLC {72)(h) USA 75
Sirens Project 1410, LLC {63)(h UsA 1oc Gritty Productions, LLC (63)(h) USA 100
Sirens Television Development, LLC (63)(h) USA 100 East Olive Productions, LLC (60)(h} USA 75
Sunshine Productions Holdings, LLC (63)(H) USA 100 BB Rights, LLC (63)(h) USA 50
Work Shap of NY, LLC (63)(h} usa 100 Britbox, LLC (92)(h) USA 405
Jaffe/Braunstern Entertanment, LLC {69)(h} usa 100 Twofour America, LLC {7O)h) USA 75
High Noon East, LLC (77){h) usa 60 Twofour Broadcast Media, LLC {70)h} UsA 75
High Noon Group, LLC (71)(h) USA 60
High Noon Productiens, LLC {(73)(h) USA 60
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Address key

(T Thelondon Television Centre, Upper Ground, London, SE19LT, UK

(2) 218 Penarth Road, Cardiff, CF11 8NN, UK

(3} Twofour Studios, Estover, Plymouth, Revon, PL6 7RG, UK

{#) Kngsbourne rouse, 223-231 High Hotborm, London, WC T 7DA, UK

(5) Gloworks, Porth Teigr Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF10 4GA, UK

(6) 18 Glasshouse Studigs, Fryern Court Rd, Fordingbridge, Hampshire, SP6 ING, UK

(7) 26 Nassau Street, London, W1W 7AQ, UK

(8) 5New Street Square, London, EC4A 3TW, UK

{9) 20 Cathedral Road, Cardiff, CF119LJ, UK

{10} 9 Mansfield Streat, London, WM 9FH, UK

(11 20 Orange Street, 3rd Floor, London, WC2H 7EF, UK

{12y 21Hatton Gardens (Room 9), London ECIN 9BA, UK

(13) The Met Building, 22 Percy Street, London, W1T 2BU, UK

(14) 4 Roger Street, 2nd Floor, London, WC1X 2JX, UK

(15) c/o Creative Skillset, 1-3 Grosvenor Place, Fifth floor (Suite 5B), London, SW1X 7H), UK

{16) 124 Horseferry Road, London, SW1P 2TX, UK

(17) 27 Mortimer Street, London, W1T 34F, UK

(18) 23-24 Newman Street,London, WIT 1P, UK

(19) Unit 8 Acarn Production Centre, R/0 105 Blundell Street, Landon, N7 98N, UK

{20) 200 Gray's Ith Road, London, WC1X 8HF, UK

{27 Clay Barn, Ipsiey Court, Berrington Close, Redditch, Worcestershire, BS8 0TD, UK

{22} 10 Lower Thames Street, (Third FLogr), Landon, EC3R 6YT, LUK

{23) Manning Heuse, 22 Carlisle Place, London, SW1P 1JA, UK

(24) York House, Empire Way, Wembley, Middlesex, HAS OFQ, UK

(25) Fitzrovla House, (3rd Floor), 153-157 Cleveiand Street, London, W1T 6QW, UK

(26) Round Foundry Media Centre, Foundry Street, Leeds, LS115QP, UK

{27} c/o Archery Plctures, 3 Archery Close, London, W2 2BE, UK

{28) 59 Charlotte Street, (Third Floor), London, WIT 4PE, UK

(29} Roundhouse. 212 Regent's Park Road, London, NW18AW, LUK

(30) Quartermile One, 15 Lauriston Place, Edinburgh, EH3 9EP, Scotland

{31y PO Box 308, 5t. Peter Port House, Union Street, St. Peter Port, GY13TA, Guernsey

(32) Le CapetainHouse, Castle Quay, St. Helier, JE2 3EH, Jersey

(33) Ogler House, The Esplanade, St. Helier, JE4 9WG, Jersey

(34) Ormeau Road, Belfast, BT7 1EB, Northern Ireland

{35) 5Cromac Avenue, The Gasworks, Belfast, BT7 2JA, Northern Ireland

(36) Building 61, Fox Studios Australia, 38 Driver Avenue, Moore Park NSW 2021, Australla

(37) ¢/oAddisons,Level 12, 60 Carrington Street, Sydney NSW 2000, Australla

(38) Appleby Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO
Box 190 GT, Georgetown, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman istands

{39) c/o Appleby Trust {Cayman)Limited, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O..Box 1350,
Georgetown, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayran Islands

(40) Ugland House, Q. Box 309, South Church Street, Georgetown, Grand Cayman,
Cayman islands

@1 Mosedalvej 14, 2500, Valby, Copenhagen, Denmark

(42) Finsensvej 6E, 2000, Fredenksberq, Denmark

{43) Elimaenkatu 9 A, Helsinki, 00510, Finland

(64) 23 Rue Montorguesl, 75001, Paris, France

(45) Keplerstrasse 4-6, 10589, Berlin, Germany

“6) Am Coloneumn 6, 50829, Cotogne, Germany

(47) lenfelder Allee 80, 22039, Hamburg, Germany

(48) Room 1902, 19F Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

{49) Gloucester Tower (8thFloor), The Landmark, 11 Pedder Street, Central. HongKong

{50} One Spencer Dock, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland

(5Ty Mayor Street Upper, Dublin, DUBLIN 1, Ireland

(52) Burgemeester Stramanweq 97,¢, 1191EA, Quderkerk aan de Amstel, Netherlands

{53) Sumatralaan 45, 1217 GP, Hilversurn, Netherlands

{54) Heemnraadssinget 18Q, 30210DL, Rotterdam, Netherlands

Interest key

@ Ordinary {hy membership/Partrership
(b Deferred {} Guarantee

{©@ Specialdeferred {y Common

(d} Redeemable preference &) Preference

(8 Cumulative preference {) Partpreference

fH Curmulatwe redeemable preference {m) Branch

{g) Convertible preference * Direct subsidiary
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(55) Hoogoorddreef 15, 1101 BA, Amsterdam, Nethertands

(56) Noorderweq8, 1221 AA, Hilversurm, Netherlands

{57) Zevenend 45, T251RL, Laren, North Holland, Netherlands

(58 voorstraat §), £797 BE, Willemstad, Netherlands

(59) Herikerbergweg 238, 1101 CM, Amsterdam Zuidoost, Netherlands

(60} 121 West Lexington Drive, Suite 401, Glendale CA 91203, USA

{67 1633 Bayshore Highway, Suite 320, Burlingame CA 94010, USA

(62) 3867 Plaza Tower, 15t Flpor, Baton Rouge, Los Angeles CA 70816, USA

(63) The Corporation Trust Company, Corparate Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, Newcastle, DE 19801, USA

(64} Corporation Service Company, 2711 Centreville Road {Surte 400), Wilmington,
Newcastle DE 19808, USA

{65) 8929 South Sepulveda Boulevard, Suite 51, Los Angeles, CA 90045, USA

{66) The Corporation Trust Company, 311 South Division Street,
Carston City NV 89703, USA

(67} 450 North Roxbury Drive, 8th Floor, Beverly Hills CA 90210, USA

{68) United Corporate Services, Inc, 874 Walker Road {Suite C), Dover, Kent, DE 19904, USA

{69) 321Souther Beverly Drive, Suite M, Beverly Hills, CA 90212, USA

(70) CT Corporation Systemn, 818 West Seventh Street, Suite 930, Los Angeles,
CAS0017,USA

{71) The Hodson Law Firm, 1129, East 17th Avenue, Denver, CO 80014, USA

(72) 24955 Pacific Coast Highway, Suite (302, Malibu, CA 90265, USA

{73) CT Corporation System, 111 Eighth Avenue, 13th Flaor, New York, NY 10011, US4

{74) 21Holborn Viaduct, London, EC1A 2DY, UK

{75) 120 West 3rd Avenue #201, Vancouver, BC VSY 1EG, Canada

(76} Starvhusgaten 2A, Bergen, Norway

(77) Soder Malarstrand 65, 11825, Stockholm, Sweden

(78) Scharenmoosstrasse 105, BO52, Zurich, Switzerland

(79) 95t Peters Street, Londan, N18JD, UK

(B0) Bucchil Goldsteln LLP, 99 Atlantic Avenue, Suite 214, Toronto, MEK 3J8, Canada

(B1} 23 Habarzel Street, Tel Aviv, 69710, Israel

(82) ViaEnrico, Tazzoli 6, Rome, Italy

(83) Gonzales Carillo, SC Abogados, Montes Urales no 632, Piso 3, Lomas de Chapaltpec,
DF 11000, Mexico

(84) Building 2, Dubal Media City, Dubia, UAE

(B5) 3035 South Parker Road, Sulte 500, Denvar, CO 80014, USA

(86) eResident Agent Inc, 1212 Wilshire Boulevard ~1201, Los Angeles, CA 90025, USA

{87) 1640 South Sepulveda Boulevard, Suite 300, Las Angeles, CA 90025, USA

{88) CT Cerporation System, 306 Main Street, Suite 512, Frankfort, KY 40601, USA

(89) CT Corporation System, 5615 Corporate Boulevard, Suite 4008, Baton Rouge, CA
70808, Los Angeles, LISA

(90} 24955 Pacific Coast Highway, Suite C302, Malibu, CA 50265, USA

{97 Incorp Services Inc, 101 E 9th Avenue, Suite 12-B, Anchorage, AK99501-3651, USA

{92) 1120 Avenue of Americas, SthFloor, New York, NY10036, USA

(93) Familie de Mollaan 1, 1217 Z8 Hilversumn, Netherlands

{94) 15000 Ventura Blvd, Suite 202, Sherman Gaks, CA 91403, USA

(95) Westersingel 108, 3015 LI} Rotterdam, Netherlands

{96) 198A Telok Ayer Street, Singapore 068637

{97) calle Cerro EL Plomo 5855, oficina 1605, comuna de Las Condes,
Region Metrapolitana, Chile

(98) 3rue Taylor, CS 20004, 74010, Paris, France

(99) Gethiner Strasse 5,10785, Berlin, Germany

(100} August-Bebel Strasse 58, 15711, Konigs Wusterhausen, Germany

{101} Keizersgracht 1493, 1015CL, Amsterdam, Netherlands

{102} Hollandse Kade 34, 1391M, Abcoude, Netherlands
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Shareholder Information

Shareholder profile

Haolders Shares held
Information as at 31December 2016 Number % MHlons %
Type of halder:
Insurance companies 5 0.0t 9] 0
Banks and nominee companies 3,015 5.52 3,887 96.58
Individuals 51,260 93.87 123 306
Others 333 060 15 0.36
Totals 54,613 100 4,025 100

Holders

Nurmber % Shares held %
Size of holding:
1-100 8,781 16.07 306,634 0.01
101-200 7164 13M 1,076,804 0.03
201-500 13,605 26491 4,421,055 omnm
501-1,000 8,758 16.03 6,431,692 016
1,001 - 2,000 6,809 1247 9,895,045 0.25
2,001 - 5,000 5188 9.5 16,306,370 041
5,001-10,000 1,863 341 13187431 0.33
10,001 - 50,000 1,392 255 28193018 0.70
50,001-100,000 221 0.41 15,752,927 0.39
100,001- 500,000 363 067 90,071,530 2.24
500,001-1,000,000 119 0.22 88,194,950 219
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 223 041 540614448 1343
5,000,001 - 10,000,000 53 01 368,562,661 916
10,000,001 - 50,000,000 60 01 1177107,879 29,24
50,000,001 and above 14 0.03 1665,286,750 41.37
Totals 54,613 100 4,025,409.,194 100
Company website Registrars and transfer office

Investor and shareholder-related information, including the current
price of ITV plc shares, can be found on the Company website at:

@ www.itvplc.com

Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date for the Final and Special dividend 27 April 2017
Record date for the Final and Special dividend 28 April 2017
Annual General Meeting 10 May 2017
Interim Management Statement 10 May 2017
Payment date for the Final and Special Dividend 25 May 2017
Half year results announcement 26 July 2017
Registered office

The London Television Centre

Upper Ground

London

SE19LT

(@ 0207157 3000

Company registration number 4967001

All administrative enquiries relating to shareholdings and requests
to receive corporate documents should be directed to Capita Asset
Services, The Registry, 34 Beckenharm Road, Beckenham, BR3 4TU.
They can be contacted by telephone on

@ 0871664 0300 from the UK (calls cost 12 pence per minute plus network
charges) and

(@) +44 371664 0300 from outside the UK (calls UK wilk be charged at the
applicable international rate).

Lines are open Monday to Friday 9.00 am. to 5.30 p.m.

Alternatively you could email them at:

@ shareholderenquiries@capita.co.uk

Annual General Meating

The Annual General Meeting will be held on Wednesday 10th May
207 at 11.00 a.m. at the Queen Elizabeth ll Conference Centre, Broad
Sanctuary, Westrninster, London SW1P 3EE. The Notice of the AGM
contains an explanation of special business to be considered at the
meeting and a copy of this is available on the Company website.

@ www.itvplc.com/investors/shareholder-information/fagm
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Additionat Information P Glossary

Glossary

Broadcasters’ Audience Research
Board (BARB) - organisation owned by
broadcasters and advertisers providing
data on linear and online television
viewing statistics by UK households

Catch up viewing - non-live viewing

of recently broadcast television programmes,
either via a recording device {often called a
PVR or DTR) such as Sky+ or through a Video
on Demand service such as the ITV Hub, BBC
iPlayer, All 4 or MyS

Channel 3 licences - the 16 regional licences
and one national licence awarded to transmit
Channel 3 across the UK. All are owned by ITV
with the exception of two of the regicnal
licences which are owned by STV

Contract Rights Renewal (CRR) - the
remedy agreed by Carlton and Granadain
2003 as a pre-condition of the merger, which
governs the way in which ITV airtirme is sold
by ITV to its advertising custormers

Free-to-Air (FTA) television — viewing

of television through devices not requiring
a subscription such as the Freeview or
Freesat services

High Definition (HD) - channels or services
broadcast in substantially higher resolution
than standard, providing improved

picture quality

Impact or Commercial impact - one
Commercial Impact is defined as one
viewer watching one 30-second
television cornmercial

ITV Family - the [TV family of channels
which includes ITV, ITV2, ITV3, ITV4,ITVBe,
ITV Encore, CITV, [TV Breakfast, CITV
Breakfast and all associated +1and HD
equivalents, Viewing figures include the
whole of the ITV netwark. Revenue figures
include only ITV plc operated regions

Linear television - television service
where the viewer has to watch a scheduled
TV program at the particular time it's
offered, and on the particular channet

it's presented on
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Long-form video requests - video requests
are ameasure of the total number of videos
requested across all platforms (such as itv.
com, Virgin and mobile devices) and includes
simulcast. A long-form video is a programme
that has been broadcast on television and is
available to watch online and on demandin
its entirety

Long-form online viewing (consumption)
- total number of hours of ITY VOD content
viewed on advertiser funded platforms (such
as mobiles, itv.com, connected TVs)

Media sales commission - commission
earned by ITV plc on sales of airtime on
behalf of the non-consolidated licensees
{STV and UTV until acquisition in Feb 2016)

Net Advertising Revenue (NAR) - the
amount of money received by a broadcaster
as payment for television spot advertising
net of any cormmission paid to agencies

Total Schedule Costs/Total Network
Programme Budget (NPB) - the budget
spent on programming broadcast on the
ITV family of channels, inctuding spend on
regional programming and ITV Breakfast

Non-consolidated licensees - the

two regional channel 3 licences which ITV
does not own These licences are owned
by STV and revenues received from these
licences for ITV programming content are
referred to as minority revenues

Non-NAR revenue - non-NAR revenue
includes all ITV revenue, bothinternal and
external, except net advertising revenue
(NAR). This includes inter-segment revenue
from the sale of TV Studios shows to the
ITV Network

Ofcom - independent regutator and
cormpetition autherity for the UK
communications industries

Over-the-top content (OTT) - delivery
of audio, video, and other media over
the Internet, this includes content

from providers such as Netflix, Amazon
and Hulu and also our own on demand
service, the ITV Hub

SDN - multiplex operator owned by ITV
which operates one of the eight national
multiplex licences in the UK on Freeview

Share of Broadcast {SOB} - ITV's share
of UK television advertising revenue (NAR),
ameasure of market share

Share of Commercial iImpacts (50CI) -

the term used to define the share of total

UK television commercial impacts whichis
delivered by one channel or group of
channels. This measure excludes viewing

of BBC channels as they do not generate
commercial impacts. Unless stated otherwise,
SOC! figures cited throughout this report

are based on BARB data and are based on

the universe of Adults (16+)

Share of Viewing (SOV) - the share of

the total viewing audience during a defined
period gained by a programme or channel,
This measure includes viewing of BBC
channels. Unless stated otherwise, SOV
figures cited throughout this report are
based on BARB data and are based on the
universe of individuals

Spot advertising - Linear television
advertising occupying a short break during
or between programmes

Subscription Video on Demand (SVOD) -a
paid for service where a subscriber has access
to wide range of content whenever they
request it

Video on Demand (VOD) - the ability
to deliver video content to acustomer's
television set, computer or device when
the customer requests it

YouView - a joint venture {with the BBC,
Channel 4, Channel 5, BT, TalkTalk, and Argiva)
to operate and promote a hybrid television
platform combining Freeview channels with
catch up and on demand services
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